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MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND KEY OPERATING DATA
TEVBEERTELRERE

The following financial statements, notes and discussion and analysis UTHBERREK MWaERImEkoMEESE TELY
contain certain amounts and percentage figures that have been subject BENHERASLET At BEFXREPE—H
to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain HFRVAEEMINBTHEMNET MBS T~E
tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding HERBAOEE -

them and all monetary amounts shown are approximate amounts only.

KEY FINANCIAL DATA

FTEHKHE
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Revenue A 5,085,790 4,416,764
Gross profit EF 583,497 557,939
Net (loss)/profit F(E8R),/F)E (769,029) 47,075
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the shareholders of 53 & & A &) I B &9 % (E18) /75
the parent company (769,029) 50,911
Adjusted net profit BREEFENEO 39,206 47,075
Basic (losses)/earnings per share (in RMB cents) &R EZA (E18),/BH (A B 5) (55.4) 3.6
Note 1:  Net profit after deducting monetary fund receivables bad debt loss A1 MBERREBCGTRSEMEERAR ((HRAEHE L
arising from the recognition of an one-off and non-recurring impairment AN ZEFEFN—RENERRREGEMELANEE
loss on the deposits due from GMK Finance Co., Ltd. (“GMK BEIERIBRERNFRMHE-

Finance”).

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF



MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND KEY OPERATING DATA

KEY OPERATING DATA
TEREHE

Rearing volume of white-feathered broilers
APREFEE

unit: million birds
By ABE

154.8

140.8

‘ﬁgbdr

Year ended 31 December 2022

BZ=2022512H31H
LFE

Year ended 31 December 2021
B Z2021%F12831H
IEFE

Sales volume of raw chicken meat products
SRARMEE
unit: million kg

B HETR
251.5

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12A31H
HFE

Year ended 31 December 2021
B ZE2021F12A31H
HFE

Sales volume of chicken breeds
BEHE

unit: million birds

By BBE
31.1 32.1
xD-

Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2021%F12831H HZE2022F12831H
LFE LFE

FTEVBEERTELE-HE

Processed volume of white-feathered broilers
BPR#EMTIE
unit: million kg
B BHETR
355.9

315.6
y !

Year ended 31 December 2021  Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2021%F12831H HZE2022%F12A831H
ILEE ILEE

Sales volume of processed chicken meat products
RIMTHARMEE
unit: million kg
By BABTR
114.0

107.6
y !
X0

Year ended 31 December 2021 Year ended 31 December 2022
BZE2021F12A318 B E2022%12A318
LHFE LHFE

Adjusted net profit"
R EE A

39.2

Year ended 31 December 2021  Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2021%F12A831H HZE2022%F12A831H
LHFE LHFE

unit: million

B EHEBR
471

Note 1: Net profit after deducting monetary fund receivables bad debt loss arising from the recognition of a one-off and non-recurring impairment loss on

the deposits due from GMK Finance.

i1 NRERRERHBEFTERRIERN —RERFEBRAEBEEMEEANERESERBRRAFFNE -

Annual Report 2022 F 2§

7



2022 MAJOR EVENTS
—E-=EABR

@ JANUARY
—A
Ny lis @® MARCH
| . "‘.'.-\.'\ =A

On 2 March, “BlE R & (Fovo Foods)” (‘Fovo
Foods”) raw chicken meat was selected
as “Shandong’s Good Product”.

A

3A28  [B# & & (Fovo Foods)] ([ Bl

) . . HERDEEAANEFRILR]IELE -
On 8 January, the first product of “@/(iShape)” (“iShape”)

in 2022 — “Gancuiburen” chicken breast chips was launched,
and started the era of “All Things Low-fat”.

N On 4 March, Li Xian, a talented actor
1A88 & (iShape)J ([BR1)2022E 5 @[22/ T2 born in the 1990s, was engaged as the m
HWAER L WHERTEYETER ISR - brand ambassador of iShape. i EFERA KK

CERE [RES G0MRu

3A4H WRENKEEFTEHEKARE
s A

o Ramazn

- . On 8 March, during the “Women’s Day”

'_ g promotion, iShape launched a new popular

T single product — low-fat chicken breast

On 12 January, Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd. (the “Company” sausage and low-fat chicken breast

or “Fengxiang’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) meatballs, which received positive

urgently distributed quality-assured chicken products to fully response from the market.

support Xi'an and help people in Xi'an to fight against the

COVID-19 pandemic and overcome the difficulties together. 3A8H M E KM B # L

2MARER — KR WA G EE

1A IWRBHERHERRA(RQF I BER HHAY BT HRIFRE -
B EREMNBARNGBAAEENESHABLTLER
EMENBERLT HATARRLONE HRER-
| | |

On 16 February, iShape launched its first
chili meat-fried salad chicken breast with
“Chinese Culinary Flavours”.

On 8 April, iShape further accelerated its development of “All Things
2A168 - B AP EZARK]®H Low-fat”, officially launched iShape chicken breast oat fried rice, a brand
WY AR R R T o new crossover product, on all platforms.

4R8H  BREIBYWEMERIBREZR 2MBERTR—EFH
FEBRUARY WABEPERFAER LS -
® -5
On 18 April, iShape won the “Digital Intelligence Business Competition
Annual Gold Award of People Management” at the “2022 Alimama m
awards” annual ceremony.

47188 » [20224 £ F] 2 15 {5 m awards | & Z 28038 | - B &
EI#EREBEFEARLESE] -

APRIL
® =E

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A



@ MAY

HA

On 5 May, “All Things Low-fat”
under iShape launched another new
product — iShape chicken breast
luncheon meat, on all platforms.

SAGH - B TI&EY & A KA
BANT —EBEWERTEARY
Bk

On 31 May, iShape’s salad chicken
breast was selected as the only “Tik
Tok Annual Products” of the fresh
food category at the 2022 Tik Tok
E-commerce Ecology Conference.

5A31H - B ) 5 % iy ) & 32

02K EEWMERAGEHLE
K—TREFETY] -

i 8

BETRBEER

i =m0 71 3L = B2 77 b iz WS

On 8 June, iShape became the official supplier of

Beijing Gu

6A8H BEKAILLRE LR BRELIBNET

e -

JUNE
® =<5

oan Football Club.

e

2022 MAJOR EVENTS
S B

In July, Fengxiang was awarded the title of “2022
High-end Brand Enterprise in Shandong
Province” by Shandong Administration for
Market Regulation, which is another important
honor granted to the Company in the national
regional brand construction of “Shandong’s
Good Products” and once again demonstrates
its brand leadership.

TH BRERODHFURETSEEEERRK
Fl202FEILRESHMIEEEBXEIE
S ERARAEMNFRUR]2EREMEE
RTESHN -—EBRE BRYBELME
BEEDS -

= T

BEARM AEKH

On 18 June, iShape won the champion of the
omnichannel sales in the subdivided industries,
and was the champion of 618 Shopping Festival
sales for three consecutive years.

6A18R BRHTEANTEEZREHEET
B EBE=FIZRI618EMHHT -

On 28 June, Fengxiang was selected as the “2021
Top 10 Corporate Governance Enterprises of
Shandong”.

6728H « BElFERMN AE2021 B KR A EEE+
KB | o

Annual Report 2022 F 2§
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2022 MAJOR EVENTS
—E-=EABR

@ AUGUST
NA

o ~ On 4 August, the new product “iShape MIX

;o na

@ !,gwxi'lﬁ ‘ tender chicken breast” was launched.
P i

¥ | fr

el

.flﬂﬁ ; 8A48  ERMBMXE A D F e

@ OCTOBER

On 16 October, the controlling interests of the Company were

@ On 16 August, the iShape low-fat chicken breast meatballs with

acquired by Pacific Alliance Group through auction, and

new flavours of sweet corn and Orleans crispy bones was

launched.

Fengxiang is well prepared for its new journey.

107168 RAEAEERERABRESEREHNES B
HRRDEEDE BRAIE -

8160 « ¥ EET FORUK - B R B WE AT A 200 P9 1 Bk

B
On 27 October, the State Intellectual Property Office issued the
Notice on Determining the New Batch of National Intellectual
On 29 August, the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs published the list of high- Property Demonstration Enterprises and Advanced Enterprises
quality development bases for agricultural international trade in 2022. Leveraging that Passed the Review in 2022. With its excellent
core strengths including excellent product quality, continuous innovation capabilities comprehensive strength of intellectual property rights and
and strong brand strength, coupled with outstanding performances in import and extensive industry influence, Fengxiang successfully passed the
export trade, Fengxiang was recognised by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural review of “National Intellectual Property Advantageous
Affairs of PRC as the high-quality development base for agricultural international Enterprises” and ranked on this national list for the sixth
trade in 2022. consecutive time.
8H29F  REENBLAM2FEXBREISEERREMEZE - BHER 10A27H  BEIRMBERERD B MR EE2022F 5 — 4t
MERFHNERRE HENEFEN BINREENSKLES DA& MBBABROBRRABERTECENEZLXNBM) -
FERNESTHNRRE WEXENLBRER20NXFREXERESTE H#Hﬂﬁ BEEHNANBERGAENIREZNTEYE

ERREREN-

SEPTEMBER
A

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A

JEFBEBIBERMAEEEICEIBR  FRAREBHE
*Fl%sﬁjﬁ$°

On 5 September, “iShape pocket chicken
breast”, the first new normal-temperature
product of iShape, was launched.

9A5R BV ERERMMIET OKEN
AL B e

On 7 September, Wu Genglu spiced chicken was launched.

9RA7TH REBEREHEE Li-



@ NOVEMBER
+-A
In November, “iShape” ranked No.1 within the omni-

channel chicken breast industry and TOP1 in the
category market during the 11.11 Festival.

MA EBREE+ WM BEERNTEE2REHES
NO.1 - a5 HEE TOP1 °

In November, due to the needs of pandemic prevention
and control, Liaocheng City implemented static
management. In view of this, employees of Fengxiang
strived to fight the pandemic and ensure supply,
demonstrating a strong sense of responsibility.

MA BARBEHERE WRmERFEER  BF
BHETIRILEETEE SRS REE BRRH
BAMEEEE -

On December 29, the list of winners for the “19th People’s
Choice Craftsmanship Award” was released at the “2022
People’s Finance Summit Forum” held in Beijing, iShape
Food Technology Co., Ltd. (“iShape Food Technology”)
was honoured with the “Craftsmanship Brand Award” by
virtue of its ingenuity, innovative leadership within the
industry, comprehensive strength, market recognition and
user reputation, making it the only brand of chicken products

selected across the country.

127298 ' [2022 AR RS
BEARFLE|EELE - |IRER
EBEMSE REEBENAFSIE &
EHBEFXEELEIARELREE]  F2EME—A

BEHER M

DECEMBER
. +=A

WmEIERRAMTIE TN
MERERQRE

£ mBRA

2022 MAJOR EVENTS
—B--EKRER

Leveraging on the quality standards, channel resources,
industry experience and brand reputation accumulated over
nearly 30 years of supplying products and services to
international customers, the Group has achieved record high in
sales revenue from its new export channel and has been the
largest export supplier of white-feathered chicken in China for
many years.

BEASERBREEFREHEEMMRBEOIFAERNR
EEREE REER TELBRNREER MHOREHE
WARIE S mas TEEZFRATEAPHETERK
M A ER -

The Group actively undertakes high-end catering brand projects,
promotes new product development and independently
recommends a variety of new products, becoming a supplier of
a full range of chicken products.

AEERGAZSHERDIERE  HEFERRE B8
RESFH M KAEAZRBHEERD-

Annual Report 2022 F 2§
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ESEXIRBEEHSE

MAKING FULL PREPARATIONS FOR A
NEW JOURNEY

Dear Shareholders and Investors,

As the new chairman of the Board of Directors of Fengxiang, first of all,
| would like to express my gratitude to all of you for working hand in
hand with Fengxiang through the extraordinary year of 2022.

2022 was a challenging year, in which Fengxiang had faced numerous
challenges at both macro and micro levels.

The domestic and international outbreak of the pandemic, the increased
risk of economic downturn and their impacts on people’s livelihoods
have suppressed the end-user demand and put Fengxiang’s sales
under tremendous pressure.

Due to the impacts caused by the recurrence of the COVID-19
pandemic and the financial difficulties of its former controlling
shareholders, Fengxiang'’s financial and operational situation was put to
a rigorous test.

Nevertheless, with the joint efforts from all colleagues, Fengxiang
bucked the trend in 2022 by achieving growth in breeding, human
efficiency and operational indicators, and realised a record-high
operating revenue of RMB5,085.8 million.

Among which, the new export business played a mainstay role and
recorded a significant increase in a sales revenue of RMB1,359.3
million, representing a year-on-year growth of 39.2%.

The new centralised procurement business bucked the trend and
achieved a sales revenue of RMB926.2 million, representing a year-on-
year growth of 2.7%.

Firstly, | would like to give my thanks to the founder of Fengxiang, Mr.
Liu Xuejing, and the former chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Liu
Zhiguang, for Fengxiang’s achievements in 2022. Founded more than
31 years ago, the Company has become a first-class white-feathered
broilers integrated breeding and processing enterprise in China laying a
good foundation for future development.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

B3 BRHE

EMNEHORR JSUEHNREA

ERBHEROMFTTESTSER  BARBASLBHE
B D ERE R T AF LE20224F -

20225 - RAMBEBN —F BERODERZBEMME
JEH HRE R Sk -

BASNRIB U KRR - EFETITRBRE M AL
AFBEARTE  MHTREFI BERMDOEE
HEREXETD -

RENRETKOZLEZERRERBEROPBE
HOFE BERNDOMBREEMNAZTBRIKE

BEWY  EECRCHRRASNT - 20225 BB
RRERS  ERBEE AR EERESHE
5 ERBH S BERAETARES0858F 8
THE S R BT -

Hep ST OEBRERZ HERAKBERZEAZ A
R#1,350.38 & T A 18K 39.2% °

MERERPEME  HEWRANBARKEI2E2E
B FAIER27% -

BB D 2022 FREMMBEHR KA BERER
HARERDNEABAZNERELERFREEG LIRS
HIE SR o M PIESTF AT RIS BAF A LD - G E AT EX
BA-ROAPAERE NI —8BLEE RSX
HERITT T RIFRER -



Secondly, | would like to thank the management team and employees
of Fengxiang for their hard work contributions to the development of the
Company during the last year.

Looking forward to 2023, we will see both challenges and opportunities.

In 2023, there will still be many challenges in the global economic
environment, causing uncertainties to growth. The Ukraine conflict,
interest hikes in developed markets and other political and economic
environment factors will continue to influence the global economy. The
continuity of consumption demands in international markets and the
avian influenza in many countries would also have impact on the
demand and supply of white-feathered broilers.

In 2023, as the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control enters a
new stage, the consumption environment and order will gradually
improve, market expectations and confidence will stabilise, the effect of
policy support will constantly show, and thus China’s economic
operation is expected to rebound in 2023.

At a time of coexistence of challenges and opportunities in 2023,
Fengxiang will also face a new life.

At the end of 2022, Pacific Alliance Group (the “PAG”) became a
controlling shareholder of Fengxiang, lending a hand to release
Fengxiang’s pressure from the debt restructuring of former
shareholders. In 2023, PAG will join in Fengxiang on a new journey by
bringing more experience and resources to Fengxiang’s development,
and will explore more business and development opportunities, opening
a new chapter for the development of Fengxiang.

In 2023, besides implementing its existing strategies, Fengxiang will
further improve the Company’s operating efficiency and effectiveness in
order to achieve stable and sustainable quality growth.

To this end, Fengxiang will launch the following major strategic
initiatives in 2023:

First, based on breeding and farming, Fengxiang will conscientiously
ensure the stability and efficiency of the supply side, and build
Fengxiang into a leading white-feathered broilers supplier in China and
then expand globally.

Secondly, we will further deepen our pipeline deployment, expand
Fengxiang’'s share in each pipeline, and further stabilise Fengxiang’s
partnership with each pipeline customer.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ESEXRBEHS

HRZEHSBFERNIHEEEGMSMLET - B E
iﬁ&ﬂ%@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%°

20234 - PREA BB 17 o

2023F 2R ERBDASHERZHKE K

Eﬁ%%$%m&o%%%ﬁ%~%*ﬁ%m5%ﬁ
CERBEAZHERCENVEBEETLE - R

%m%ﬁ% FHBFEENZEARROERBES
SUHOTAERBST KMERERTE

2023  BEE B REAFORE B EES
MEBRFESRE  THEANEL TR 02 EA
NERREERR  2023F PR EETA LR
BI% -

£ Bk B B B 0 77 AV 20234F 0 BLRE R D b 15 R
WA e

2022F K ABWEASE([KBEE]) KRR BN
WEREIR - BEHRFROBRARERREHER
i 72 A BN JBE 77 © 2023 9F X BE = [ i 5 T R A AR 10 B
ROTEVIETR - BB R D TREZNEBRNE
R BPRARRESHOEBMEREE  SREFR
NHEBRFNERREE

2023%F  BAFERMNAENTHEAUBNER L - £
REARNKEMENNLZ ERBEHENSES
HEe

AU 2023 F B RN A EBRBEERE
— BEBRMBATEMEESERINTF - R4

RRMRE S 1T &R A R B M 2 R A
BEAVAHEHER -

E- E-TRMWRENR BARFERNHESRE
MEAX E—SPREREBRNASRETFPNAE

BA% -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ESEXIRBEEHSE

Thirdly, we will steadily advance digital marketing capabilities to capture F= RS EEHTLEHEE N LEBERFERTAHE
the brand premium brought by sales approach in a new business form EFTRNGBEERDEROBERE  E—FRATE
and further enhance our competitiveness in the market. BmE e

“Charge at the toughest and aim at the farthest” is a line quoted by PEEZ#EMBEZR] ST RELE2023F
General Secretary Xi Jinping from Su Shi in his New Year's speech in FHHE LS AHEN —OF EERHIMRHEEZE
2023. It means to take on the biggest challenges and go after the most WE - EREERNEZE] -

ambitious goals.

In 2023, we believe that Fengxiang will face challenges and 2023F HMEGE BEROEEXNEEREMER
opportunities head-on and seek progress while reinforcing its Bk EEEEGESESNRE  E—-SREAZ
competitive edge, further enhance its overall competitiveness, and EEE N FRGTAIERE -

embark on a new journey.

We look forward to your continuous trust and support. HESB I EEETEY o
Thank you! EIEIN

Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd. IWRBHERGERDE

Chairman of the Board of Directors EFEETE

Zhu Lingjie KER

14 SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY PROFILE
Introduction

The Company is the largest white-feathered broiler meat exporter and
the leading retail enterprise of chicken meat food in China, which was
established as a joint stock limited liability company in the PRC on 17
December 2010 and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 16 July 2020 (stock code: 9977).

The Group is principally based in Shandong, the PRC and produces
and sells processed chicken meat products and raw chicken meat
products mainly from white-feathered broilers. The main products
include (i) processed chicken meat products; (ii) raw chicken meat
products; (iii) chicken breeds; and (iv) others. Apart from its leading
domestic market position in the PRC, the Group has an established and
growing export business supplying a wide range of premium quality
chicken meat products to overseas customers in Japan, Malaysia,
Europe, the Middle East, Korea, Mongolia and Singapore.

The Group’s white-feathered chicken meat products are halal certified
by adopting Islamic slaughter rituals. The Group adopts an integrated
“poultry to plate” model which enables it to control every stage of the
poultry lifecycle, allowing the Group to effectively manage quality and
cost throughout the process starting from the breeding of broilers to the
distribution and sale of chicken meat products.

Business Segments
Processed Chicken Meat Products

The Group markets its processed chicken meat products under “Fovo
Foods”, “iShape” and “A ¥ /& (Wu Genglu)” brands. Processed chicken
meat products comprise cooked, semi-cooked and seasoned chicken
meat products. Depending on the processing methods, these
processed products are required to be chilled or frozen. The raw
chicken meat the Group uses in its processed chicken meat production
is either supplied by itself or procured from independent third party
suppliers. The cooked chicken meat products comprise ready-to-eat
chicken meat products and frozen chicken meat products, which are
fully cooked and sterilised (end consumers will need to reheat the
frozen cooked chicken meat products before consumption according to
the instructions provided on the packaging). The semi-cooked chicken
meat products are processed, chilled or frozen and boxed (end
consumers will need to further process (including steaming, grilling,
roasting or frying) such semi-cooked chicken meat products before
consumption according to the instructions provided on the packaging).
The seasoned chicken meat products include raw chicken meat
flavoured with certain ingredients or spices. The Group also offers
ready-to-cook pre-prepared meal solutions, including Chinese cuisine.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the sales volume of processed
chicken meat products increased by 6.0% to 114.0 million kilogram (“kg”)
(31 December 2021: 107.6 million kg). For the year ended 31
December 2022, the revenue from sale of processed chicken meat
products (after elimination of inter-segment transactions) grew by 3.3%
to RMB2,371.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,295.4 million),
representing 46.6% of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Raw Chicken Meat Products

The Group offers raw white-feathered chicken meat products, which
include whole frozen chickens and chicken portions, such as chicken
wings, chicken breast, chicken drumsticks, chicken drumettes, bone-in
chicken thighs, boneless chicken fillets, chicken head, chicken feet and
chicken legs. The Group’s broilers are then cut into portions according
to its internal or customers’ requirements, which will be chilled or frozen
depending on the product’s nature. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the sales volume of raw chicken meat products increased by
24.0% to 251.5 million kg (31 December 2021: 202.9 million kg). For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue from external sale of
raw chicken meat products increased by 30.7% to RMB2,500.6 million (31
December 2021: RMB1,913.3 million), representing 49.2% of the
Group'’s total revenue.

Chicken Breeds

The Group sells some of its chicken breeds hatched from broiler eggs
to other independent third parties for breeding into broilers. The sales
volume of the Group’s chicken breeds is based on the average selling
prices of chicken breeds, which is market-driven. The Group sells
chicken breeds to local chicken farmers and other poultry business
operators, who are independent third parties. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the sales volume of chicken breeds increased by 3.2%
to 32.1 million birds (31 December 2021: 31.1 million birds). For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue from external sale of
chicken breeds dropped by 17.3% to RMB53.6 million (31 December
2021: RMB64.8 million), representing 1.1% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Other Products

The Group sells other products, including the sale of broilers that
cannot satisfy the Group’s quality requirements and excess broiler eggs
that exceed the Group’s internal needs, by-products (such as chicken
feathers, chicken blood and unused chicken organs), packing materials
and other miscellaneous products. Revenue from the external sale of
other products grew by 12.0% to RMB160.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB143.3 million),
representing 3.2% of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 marked the third year since Fengxiang'’s listing, and also the third
year of Fengxiang'’s resilient growth amid the pandemic.

Be it in the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”) or in the past three years, Fengxiang withstood multiple
challenges and pressures and strode forward steadily in the face of
difficulties.

In spite of the limitations caused by various intertwining factors such as
the volatile industry cycle, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
suppression of market demand, the surging costs of animal feed
ingredients and the debt pressure on the Company, the Group still
achieved outstanding results compared to its peers in the industry of
which we are deeply proud.

In 2022, with the three major themes of industry restructuring, product
innovation and upgrade, and production efficiency enhancement, the
Group focused on overcoming internal and external difficulties,
reinforcing foundation, controlling costs, retaining customers and
striving for space.

During the year, the Group achieved sales revenue of RMB5,085.8
million (2021: RMB4,416.8 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 15.1%, with net loss of RMB769.0 million (2021: net profit of
RMB47.1 million). Our net profit after deducting monetary fund
receivables bad debt loss arising from the recognition of an one-off and
non-recurring impairment loss on the deposits due from GMK Finance
was RMB39.2 million (2021: RMB47.1 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 16.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Reporting Period,

the Group achieved the above

performance mainly because:

(1)

U

the diversified channel strategy achieved stable performance
against fluctuating market demands. The export business grew at
a fast rate and achieved its best-ever performance, the single
product strategy of the new centralised procurement business
was implemented steadily, and the key food and beverage
customers business stably developed;

the breeding results gradually stabilised and reached its record
high with significant improvements in the overall breeding quality
and other various indicators;

annual rearing volume reached a record high of 154.8 million
birds;

the strength of the core channels of the B2C new retail business
were outstanding, and its market share was stable; and

the integration of the whole industry chain of production, sales,
quality and research achieved synergy effects, enhanced quality
and efficiency and enabled innovation.

Business Highlights
1. New Export Business Became a Pillar

The export business of white-feathered chicken meat
products is the foundation of Fengxiang. In the process of
providing products and services to international customers
for nearly 30 years, the Group has accumulated
domestically-leading and international quality standards,
channel resources, industry experience and brand
reputation.

The sales revenue of the new export business further rose
to RMB1,359.3 million (2021: RMB976.5 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 39.2%, and its
proportion of business increased to 26.7% (same period:
22.1%), making the Group the largest export supplier in the
white-feathered chicken industry in China and driving and
supporting the continuous growth of the Group’s overall
business in adversity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continued to have a leading position in exports
to East Asian countries such as Japan, and recorded
significant growth in Europe and Southeast Asia, in
particular the new Middle East market, with more diversified
and boutique channels.

It is notable that over the years, the Group has attached
great importance to product and service quality and
cultivated overseas markets, accumulating valuable
customer satisfaction and loyalty. During the global
pandemic, the Group received tremendous trust and
support from international customers and obtained
opportunities for extraordinary growth.

Major Customer Business

The major customer business is the supply of chicken meat
products by the Group to international Western-style fast
food stations in Mainland China.

Sales revenue from the major customer business reached
RMB684.2 million (2021: RMB643.5 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 6.3%. The Group serves major
customers located in most regions in the PRC such as
Northeast, North, East, Central and Northwest China. On
the basis of expanding the coverage of sales territory, the
Group has actively cooperated with customers’ needs and
promoted product innovation, added several new types of
processed food products, basically covering all relevant
products supplied by the customers.

Under the challenges unfavourable to the macro-
environment in 2022, with national food and beverage
revenue declining by 6.3% compared to the same period
last year, the Group’s various industrial lines worked
together and further strengthened its cooperation with the
key customers, recording good results in terms of sales
revenue growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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New Centralised Procurement Business Rose
as a Star

The new centralised procurement business achieved sales
revenue of RMB926.2 million (2021: RMB901.7 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.7% and
accounting for 18.2% (same period: 20.4%) of the overall
business.

During the Reporting Period, the centralised procurement
business division endeavoured to improve operations by
deploying a series of refined operating means to various
aspects including the focused development of single
products, extensive exploration in gaining new customers,
speedy turnovers of products, achieving a year-on-year
increase of 19.3% in human resources efficiency indicators
as compared to the last reporting period.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue of national
food and beverage industry in 2022 decreased by 6.3%
compared with the same period last year, of which its
revenue in the first half year decreased by 7.7% compared
with the same period last year (source: National Bureau of
Statistics). In light of multiple rounds of pandemic lockdown
implemented in Shanghai, Xi'an, Shenyang, Zhengzhou
and other cities, stores of high-end food and beverage
brand have suspended dine-in for a long time. Under the
severe pandemic situation, the Group rapidly expanded its
market shares against the difficulties. Therefore, the sales
volume of high-end food and beverage brands in the
second half year increased by 22.2% over the same period
last year, with a growth of 11.3% in sales volume through
channels during the year. Meanwhile, in response to the
development trend of the industry and the demand for new
products of customers, the Group actively undertook
projects of high-end food and beverage brands, facilitated
new product development and independently recommended
a variety of new products, becoming a supplier of all
chicken meat products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The No.1 Central Document for 2023 has introduced a
proposal to “nurture and develop the prepared dish
industry” for the first time, making prepared dish a new
business model and industry that promotes the high-quality
development of rural industries and has a trillion-dollar
market with immense potential for growth. Poultry meat is a
key ingredient for prepared dishes, thus poultry prepared
dishes may become a new growth point for poultry
enterprises. The Group has years of experience in the
development of prepared dishes for overseas B-end
institutions and domestic B-end institutions and C-end
consumers, serving a wide range of ready-to-eat,
microwaveable, boiled, steamed, roasted and stir-fried
prepared dishes. After continuous upgrade of production
lines and product optimisation, the Group’s production
capacity of processed chicken meat products reached
142,000 tonnes. This has enabled the Group to meet the
production and processing demands for four major
categories of dishes, including ready-to-cook, ready-to-eat,
ready-to-heat and ready-to-prepare dishes. In 2022, sales
revenue of its processed chicken meat products business
accounted for 46.6%, which delivered a higher and more
stable profit.

In addition, the Group intensified its efforts in new product
development, broadened its portfolio and launched a
number of new products to meet the rapidly changing
customer and market demand for prepared dish products.

New Retail Business Remained as a Leader

The new retail business achieved sales revenue of
RMB625.9 million (2021: RMB948.1 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 34.0% and accounting for 12.3%
(same period: 21.5%) of the overall business.

Among which, the share of “iShape” in the new retail
business increased from 51.6% for the same period to
54.4%, continuing to play a major role as the Company’s
customer-end products.

EEBEENRE DN

Bl RIE2023F A — SRS P B ORI
[BEERBRIEE] BHEEXIEAR
ERNEXSESERNMEBATESE
BEEMESHAENERE BREBHIEX:
MEASEAENEZR  SEEEK
IRABLERENTERY  A£EFZ
FREE B - HABmEE - Ciw
HEEMNBAXELRABELR HEHA
RME KB -EZRE -ZPLEZHER
REAMNEAXER CRFENELA
BNERENL NEERNITEARRE
BEiERM1428 M A EIRBRENZ - A
BAEAEMNORKRENEENTE
o 2022 F RN TH AR @SSR
LLiE466%  AMTHAERBEBERT
EEERBEMFEE-

REBIRMAF mFAETIENE - EITH
mt MERZEENFmERS  mER
HRERBERNEFPNMBHER -

WEEXBHEEAR

FEEXEBERBEERAARKE25.98
BL(2021F : ARKMBIBEE L) A
bR > 34.0% 2 75k t 12.3% (R B 44 t
21.5%) ©

Hp BEmBERTEXTNGLHR

HIH51.6% + Fr 2|54.4%  #E T HiES
A A)CU BE i ©

Annual Report 2022 £}

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the period when the chicken breast products
business was severely affected by the pandemic, even
though the whole business saw negative growth, “iShape”
brand steadily maintained its price levels and market
shares. For example, in the two major battle fields of online
sales TMall and JD.com, the market shares of “iShape”
exceeded that of the first runner-up by 5.1% with unit prices
nearly twice its major competing products. In terms of
offline markets, the products under the “iShape” series
have covered nearly 60,000 network points across 142
cities, among which the majority are quality convenience
stores and boutique key accounts. And in the post-
pandemic era, “iShape” speeds up the establishment and
promotion of campus distribution channels to further focus
on the young consumers.

For several years, “iShape” has consistently implemented
its strategy of single products to continuously add new
products into existing ones and has made great success so
far. Among which, the sales of salad chicken breast, our
competitive product, amounted to over RMB300 million;
newly-launched Xiao Q chicken breast, chicken breast bar,
Jia’ge chicken drumstick, low-fat chicken breast meatball
and chicken breast luncheon meat also demonstrated
excellent growth.

The four products newly launched during the Reporting
Period all demonstrated the research and development
(“‘R&D”) level of new products and the competitiveness of
the products of the Company. Low-fat chicken breast
meatball, a product with sales exceeding RMB10 million
within 10 months of launch, became the top seller among
new products. Chicken breast meat fried rice achieved a
repurchase rate of 17.5%, becoming an ace in terms of
repurchase rate among new products. Room-temperature
chicken breast sausage achieved sales of over RMB7
million within 10 months of launch. Tender MIX chicken
breast became the best new product representing quality,
forming a new barrier for low temperature categories in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

() Observation of Current Trends

China will be the World’s Largest Consumer
Market and is entering an Era of Quality and
Personalised Consumption

Two significant signs of China entering a new era of
consumption are: (i) China’s GDP per capita has crossed
the threshold of US$10,000, and consumption has become
the primary driver of economic growth for six consecutive
years; (ii) the combination of three major waves of change
— people, traffic channels and supply chains has led to an
unprecedented transformation in the cost structure of
consumer goods in China.

Strong Growth in Processed Chicken Meat
Products under the Common Choice of Three
Specific Customer Groups

Over the past five years, changes in 14 segments, including
food and beverage, have had a significant impact on
consumers’ lives, with a particularly obvious trend of
consumption upgrade. White-collar women occupy the
main position of consumption decision-making, and our
major consumer groups, namely “Her Economy”, “Generation
Z” and “Silver Economy”, have shown convergence in their
choice of food, which focus on choosing the “healthier”,
“tastier” and “more convenient” products.

With higher protein, lower fat and lower energy
consumption, white-feathered broiler becomes an important
growth pole in the trend towards nutrition and consumption
upgrade. According to Frost & Sullivan, the average growth
rate of the white-feathered broiler market is expected to
exceed 10% in the next five years, reaching RMB150 billion
in 2025.

The white-feathered broiler industry has undergone
comprehensive transformation and upgrade in recent years,
from producing chicken breeds and raw chicken meat
products primarily to mainly providing processed chicken
meat products instead. The size of the processed chicken
meat market is expected to exceed RMB60 billion in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DN

3. Changes in Underlying Logic of Consumption 3. HERITREEEZEBZLEZL
Industry

Due to the combined effect of the industry cycle and the ETERARRZERRANSINEET 8

pandemic cycle, the underlying logic of the consumption
industry has undergone significant changes: consumer
attitude had changed from impulsive consumption for “internet
celebrity, most popular and fresh-seeking” previously to the
current rational consumption for “high quality, excellent
price and pragmatism”. The growth driver of the consumer
market has changed from attention-driven to product
quality-driven accordingly.
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Development Goal

In order to adjust to market demands, we are committed to
upgrading the industry of traditional chicken meat products
and achieving sustainable, steady and balanced quality
growth.

We will continue to pursue balanced growth across multiple
channels and expand production lines. We aim to maintain
our industry leadership in new export business and
enhance profitability and international influence. Based on
the needs of key clients from B-end, we will ceaselessly
enhance product quality, introduce new products and
improve shares.

We will continue to steadily enhance the quality of breeding,
and drive the growth in breading capacity, and ensure the
healthy improvement of supply chain management
capabilities.

We strive to build “iShape” as the most popular brand of
chicken meat products and even low burden food among
consumers, and to continue to create higher market value
of the new retail business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Strategic Path: Adhering to the “123” Strategy,
Focusing on Downstream Channel and
Creating a Leading Chicken Meat Products
Brand

In recent years, the Group has been actively transforming
and upgrading itself, continuously implementing the “123”
development strategy (“One Foundation, Two Major
Markets and Three Driving Forces”), increasing the
proportion of sales of processed food products, expanding
the retail business and building itself as China’s leading
brand of chicken meat products.

(1) “One Foundation”

We insist to extend the Group’s advantage in its
vertically integrated business model across the entire
industry value chain and the industry ecological
chain, and strengthen management on the quality of
raw material supply, so as to ensure food quality and
safety, offer consumers with quality-assured products
and lay a solid foundation for product quality; and on
top of this, we steadily promote the growth of our
breeding capacity and strengthen the foundation of
our integrated industry-chain business model.

(2) “Two Major Markets”

We simultaneously drive the balanced development
of the domestic market and the international market,
ensure “same production line, same standard, same
quality” for domestic sales and export sales, and
facilitate the dual circulation of the domestic and
international markets.

(3) “Three Driving Forces”

Firstly, we continue to strengthen our comprehensive
business capabilities and business scale for key food
and beverage customers and use it as a starting
point to continue to expand the centralised
procurement business facing the food and barrage
industry and the convenience store system and
provide food and beverage, retail and group
customers with quality centralised procurement
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DN

Secondly, we continue to optimise the products,
services and channels of the export business and
reinforce the Company’s leading position in the
export business, and continue to upgrade its services,
develop markets and broaden channels so as to
provide the most outstanding service and achieve
diversification of channels.

Thirdly, we focus on the development of new retail
business through online and offline collaboration. In
line with the Group’s efforts in the development of
B2C business commenced several years ago, the
new retail business mainly provides consumers with
quality products including “iShape” and “Fovo Foods”
through channels such as online e-commerce, offline
convenience stores and boutique supermarkets.

Through the implementation of the new strategy, the
Group realised the mutual promotion of the domestic
market and the international market. Great synergy
and three driving forces are created among the new
retail business, the new centralised procurement
business and the new export business. With the
quality and standard for serving global top food and
beverage giants for years, the Group provided
hundreds of millions of families and individual
consumers with quality products and services,
creating a leading brand of chicken meat products.

The Development Direction of “iShape”

The strategy of “iShape” is to achieve steady development
of the chicken breast products, then gradually transform
from high-end chicken breast products to “low-burden”
meat products and healthy food.

We have been building “iShape” with the focus on “health
needs”, gradually transforming from rational brand
philosophy of “high nutrition” and “high function” to
emotional brand philosophy of “low physical burden”, “low
psychological burden”. In our relentless pursuit of
“professionalism” and “fashion”, we continue to subdivide
user groups and maximise the satisfaction of consumers’
diversified needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

U]

Overall Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group experienced
an increase of 15.1% in revenue as compared to that of 2021.
There was a net loss of RMB769.0 million as compared with a net
profit of RMB47.1 million in 2021, mainly due to the recognition of
an one-off and non-recurring impairment loss on deposits due
from GMK Finance. The Company recorded a net profit of
RMB39.2 million in 2022, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 16.7%, without taking into account the monetary fund bad debt
loss arising from such an impairment loss. There was an increase
of 4.6% in gross profit as compared to that of 2021. The basic
loss per share was RMB55.4 cents in 2022. Set out below is the
detailed information on the fluctuations in the Company’s results
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021 Change

2022 £ 20214 L))

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

Items 1HH ARET AR T T (%)
Total operating revenue aE I A 5,085,790 4,416,764 +15.1
Operating costs BERAK 4,502,293 3,858,825 +16.7
Selling expenses HEEH 329,206 345,019 4.6
Administrative expenses EEEH 108,499 89,311 +21.5
R&D expenses e & H 31,944 24,983 +27.9
Finance costs B &R 49,105 47,696 +3.0
Other gains & 9,676 13,392 -27.7
Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value ANRBEEHKRZE (EE) 21,694 (4,170) +620.3
Total (loss)/profit (B18)F Mz (768,257) 48,744 -1,676.1
Net (loss)/profit F (E58),/ (769,029) 47,075 -1,733.6
Adjusted net profit® AR FEFEO 39,206 47,075 -16.7
Gross profit EFE 583,497 557,939 +4.6
Gross profit margin S 11.5% 12.6% -8.7
Net (loss)/profit margin F(FE518),/FHE & (15.1)% 1.1% -1,472.7

Note 1:  Net profit after deducting monetary fund bad debt loss arising
from the recognition of an one-off and non-recurring impairment
loss on the deposits due from GMK Finance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue by Products

REmE T HRA

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MBLEE

2022 2021 Change

2022 20214 i-12)

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

ARET T ARET T (%)

Raw chicken meat products EHRR G 2,500,559 1,913,256 +30.7
Processed chicken meat products FIMTHAS R 2,371,087 2,295,406 +3.3
Chicken breeds #H 53,619 64,822 -17.3
Others Hi 160,525 143,280 +12.0
Total A&t 5,085,790 4,416,764 +15.1

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s sales revenue
increased due to the increase in chicken meat products sold and
exported by the Group to Europe, Malaysia and other countries.

Sales Volume and Average Selling Price by Products

BEHA AEBREERAEN DERAE
BEERMN SRADREMCERNEARS
3% h0 PR B o

REmB7HHEE  FHEE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFEE

2022 2021 Change
20225 20214 =
(%)
(%)
Raw chicken meat products CRAMM
Sales volume (per kg) HWE(BTR) 251,535,459 202,911,040 +24.0
Average selling price (RMB perkg) ~ TFHEB (B F 2z AKEK) 9.94 9.43 +5.4
Processed chicken meat products SEMT#HAR G
Sales volume (per kg) HE(FFz) 114,020,427 107,572,326 +6.0
Average selling price (RMB perkg)  FHEB(HF TR ARE) 20.8 21.34 -2.5
Chicken breeds B
Sales volume (per bird) HE (HE) 32,067,474 31,082,052 +3.2
Average selling price (RMB per bird) FI¥JEE (FE A EH) 1.67 2.09 -19.8

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Reporting Period, the number of white-feathered HEBHRN 2FAAPREZR=ERALER
broilers being slaughtered experienced a year-on-year increase 134% HRNEBEMHNEHEEHARFHEEER &
of 13.4%, and the production and sales volume of chicken meat VAL HENRBEEMELCE - S 2#RNEm
products both experienced corresponding growth. The growth of FHOEEHEEEN LBEFHEB LK
breeding, processing and sales are related. For raw chicken meat ANMITHEARNREEFELEERHEE K F
products, there was an increase in average selling price due to HEENMNMETH® -MEPBR BEHEBITEH
increased sales volume in new export channels; for processed HEERREBRKRN FHEET®-

chicken meat products, there was a slight decrease in the
average selling price due to decreased sales volume of the “iShape”
products. During the Reporting Period, the price of chicken
breeds fluctuated significantly due to the market impact, with a
drop in the average selling price.

Revenue by Geographic Territory and Products P B 15 57 i R vm Bl 7 B A

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021 Change

20224 20214 )

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

AR® T ARET T (%)

Mainland China AR A D 3,726,469 3,440,302 +8.3

Japan =N 387,353 369,488 +4.8

Malaysia BRI 329,914 275,957 +19.6

Europe &M 558,309 262,068 +113.0

Other countries E B xR 83,745 68,949 +21.5

Total =X 5,085,790 4,416,764 +15.1
During the Reporting Period, the Company’s revenue growth in REHAN  SHANREELEESHPE M
the Mainland China market was driven by an increase in sales MHEWAE R LN BRERARA QG E @I
volume of raw chicken meat products. Also, in light of the FHRBEBRERRER FREERAED - BONKR

competitiveness of the Company’s products and the re-structuring HEmEHHERATRER -

of the international landscape, growth was achieved in sales
revenue from Malaysia, Europe and other markets.
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B2B and B2C Sales Revenue

The Company’s B2B sales are mainly direct sales or distribution
of products to domestic and international customers, primarily
food service or industrial customers, fast food restaurants, and
food retailers. B2C sales are primarily through online and offline
platforms to the end consumers.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DN

B2B X B2C #5 & i A

AFB2BIHE T EHHBARBEBE R EH K
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For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLFE

2022 2021 Change

2022 % 20214 28

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

AR®T AR T T (%)

B2B B2B 4,459,921 3,468,674 +28.6
B2C B2C 625,869 948,089 -34.0
Of which: Online EHeoho g b 266,356 486,325 —-45.2
Offline (N 359,513 461,764 -22.1

Total At 5,085,790 4,416,764 +15.1

During the Reporting Period, the Company further expanded its
B2B customer base and achieved growth in sales volume.
Revenue from the B2B business increased by 28.6% and
accounted for 87.7% (2021: 78.5%) of the total revenue,
representing an increase of 9.2%. Accordingly, revenue from the
B2C business decreased by 34.0% due to the decline in sales
volume of the products under the iShape and Fovo Foods series
caused by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Revenue from
the B2C business reached 12.3% (2021: 21.5%) of the total
revenue, representing a decrease of 9.2%.

Operating Costs

The Group’s operating costs increased by 16.7% to RMB4,502.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB3,858.8
million), mainly due to (i) a 9.9% increase in the sales of white-
feathered broilers reared by the Company and (ii) rising costs of
animal feeds due to the year-on-year increase in corn and
soybean meal prices.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 21.5% to
RMB108.5 million in 2022 (2021: RMB89.3 million), mainly due to
the increase in the share incentive expenses and service fees.

Selling Expenses

The Group’s selling expenses decreased by 4.6% to RMB329.2
million in 2022 (2021: RMB345.0 million), mainly due to the
decrease of sales and marketing expense of the Group.

R&D Expenses

The Group’s R&D expenses increased by 27.9% to RMB31.9
million in 2022 (2021: RMB25.0 million), mainly due to increased
investment in R&D with the establishment of a multi-level new
product R&D system.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2022
increased by 3.0% to RMB49.1 million (2021: RMB47.7 million),
which was mainly due to (i) the increase in borrowing rates; and (i)
the decrease in interest income.

Total Profit/(Loss)

During the Reporting Period, loss for the year was primarily due
to the recognition of impairment loss on deposits due from GMK
Finance.

() Analysis on Capital Resources

1. Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group has funded its operations principally with cash
generated from its operations, borrowings and capital
contributions of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). The Group’s primary uses of cash in
2022 were for working capital purposes and capital
expenditures for expansion and improvement of production
equipment and facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the registered capital of the
Company was RMB1,400,000,000 and the total number of
issued shares of the Company was 1,400,000,000 shares
(“Shares”), comprising 1,045,000,000 domestic Shares and
355,000,000 H Shares with a nominal value of RMB1.0
each.

As at 31 December 2022, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,489 million, representing a decrease of
39.5% as compared to that as at 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly attributable to: (i) the repayment of
certain long-term borrowings that has fallen due; and (ii) the
decrease of pledged borrowings.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total borrowings divided by total equity, and balance sheet
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total assets. The
gearing ratio and balance sheet ratio as at 31 December
2022 was 57.0% (31 December 2021: 72.4%) and 50.0% (31
December 2021: 51.0%), respectively.

Contingent Liabilities and Pledge of Assets

The Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022
were secured by (i) mortgages of the Group’s lands situated
in the PRC with aggregate net carrying values of RMB74.3
million (31 December 2021: RMB57.7 million); (ii) pledge of
the Group’s bank deposits of RMB187.7 million (31
December 2021: RMB472.4 million); (iii) pledge of certain
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment with
aggregate net carrying amount of RMB1,948.5 million (31
December 2021: RMB667.8 million); and (iv) guarantee
from a related party for loans up to RMB264.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB313.0 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The results and business operations of the Group are affected by a
number of risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly related to the
business of the Group. Primary risk factors are outlined as follows:

Price Risks

Price risks refer to the losses of costs increase or profits decrease due
to the fluctuation of the purchase price and the sales price. We operate
in a competitive industry, where the raw materials and products are
commodities, all of which have been subject to significant price
fluctuations. We are exposed to the risk of fluctuations of commodity
prices, including prices of corn and soybean meals (which are our
primary animal feed ingredients), chicken breeds and poultry products
in China. Fluctuations in these commodity prices have had and are
expected to continue to have an effect on our profitability. Commaodity
prices generally fluctuate with market conditions, including supply and
demand, diseases, government policies and weather conditions in
major agricultural and farming regions.

Health Risks

Health risks refer to the risks of outbreak of diseases among or
attributed to chicken. A lot of countries have encountered animal
diseases, including but not limited to, foot-and-mouth disease, avian
influenza and other animal diseases. Avian influenza, in particular
H5N1 virus, H7N9 virus and H5NG6 virus, is a type of disease which
spreads through poultry and is capable of killing millions of poultry and
may, in some circumstances, be transmitted to humans, causing
symptoms such as fever, cough, sore throat, muscle aches and, in
severe cases, breathing problems and pneumonia that may be fatal.
Outbreak of diseases in neighbouring areas of any of our production
facilities could raise concerns of the public and our customers on the
safety and quality of our products. To solve health risks, the Group has
implemented comprehensive procedures to prevent diseases among
our breeders and broilers and focuses on reaction measures in
response to any potential risk of disease outbreak. The Group has a
technical specialist responsible for collecting information relating to
livestock disease and providing early warning. In particular, we
implemented a disease and mortality rate monitoring programme
whereby our staff will check and remove dead breeders and broilers
and will inform our veterinarians accordingly. Our veterinarians monitor
the mortality rate of breeders and broilers on a daily basis and we
maintain records of their health conditions throughout their lifespan.
Such records include feed consumption, mortality, daily egg production,
average egg weight, medication, vaccinations and disinfection records.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Food Safety Risks

Food safety risks refer to risks of severe customer complaints, large-
scale product recalls and other negative effects resulted from
unqualified product and food safety indicators due to deficient food
safety management system as well as early warning mechanism. To
solve possible food safety risks, we have established and maintain a
quality control system covering each stage of our operations. In addition
to our quality control system covering each stage of our operations, we
have established a food safety control system covering issues related
to our R&D, supplier certification and management, procurement,
production, storage, transportation and sales and distribution activities,
and has obtained, among other things, (i) 1SO22000 (Food Safety)
Certificate; (ii) ISO9001 (Quality) Certificate; (iii) GLOBALG.A.P. (Global
Good Agricultural Practices Certification); and (iv) HACCP Certification.

Safety Production Risks

Safety production risks refer to risks of corporate property loss,
temporary production suspensions or tarnished reputation due to
production safety accidents caused by deficient safety management
system or inadequate accident preventive measures. The Group has
formulated food safety and management system manuals and
procedure documents in accordance with the requirements of Food
Safety Law of the PRC, GB/T27341-2009 Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Point (HACCP) System — General Requirements for Food
Production Enterprises and other laws and regulations and relevant
industry standards. Further, the results of our bacteria tests on our
chicken meat products have complied with the Fresh and Frozen
Poultry Product National Standards of the PRC and we procure our raw
materials, Parent Stock Day-old Chicks and frozen chicken meat
products from third party suppliers that have obtained the necessary
licences and permits.

Epidemic Risks

Epidemic risks are the major risks faced by the development of animal
husbandry. Outbreaks of health epidemics such as COVID-19, the
severe acute respiratory syndrome, Middle East Respiratory Syndrome
as well as the Ebola virus could materially and adversely affect our
business operations. The Group will continue to monitor closely the
development of the epidemics, assess and react actively its impacts on
the Group’s financial position and operating results, and ensure hygiene
measures have been adopted. Vehicles, staff, visitors and relevant
equipment entering and exiting the breeder and broiler farms are
required to undergo a disinfection process and be logged, and our staff
are prohibited from bringing their uniforms out of the enclosed farm
area to minimise the chance of introducing bacteria from the external
environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic since late 2019 has
caused significant disruption to the PRC and world-wide economic
activities. To cope with the risks caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Company has established an epidemic prevention and containment
team and formulated a comprehensive and stringent prevention and
control plan according to the development trend of the epidemic and
national policies, and strived to ensure employee safety, stable
production and smooth sales.

Financial Risks

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of unrestricted monetary funds of
the Group was RMB144,732,800. The balance of short-term borrowings
was RMB1,124,613,700. The balance of long-term borrowings and
long-term payables due within one year was RMB112,372,600.

The bank deposit balance in the consolidated balance sheet of the
Company included funds amounting to RMB1,041,438,100 deposited
with GMK Finance, which was controlled by GMK Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd. (“GMK Holdings”), the former controlling shareholder of the
Company. GMK Holdings and its subsidiaries had overdue debts. GMK
Finance was involved in overdue repayment disputes and litigation. The
management of the Company did not provide sufficient supporting
evidence regarding the possible impact of the matter on the above
deposits and the reasons for not providing for impairment. The Auditor
therefore expressed a qualified opinion on the financial statements of
the Company for the year 2021. As at 31 December 2022, a full
provision of impairment loss was made for the funds of
RMB808,234,800 deposited with GMK Finance and included in credit
impairment loss for the year 2022. The management of the Company
did not provide sufficient information on whether it was necessary to
make a provision for impairment for the funds deposited in GMK
Finance as at the end of 2021. Therefore, the Auditors was unable to
obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the opening balance
of such deposits and on whether the credit impairment loss of
RMB808,234,800 should be fully recognised in 2022, and to assess
whether any adjustments to the financial statements of the Company
were necessary.

These situations indicate the existence of material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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EEEBNWR DN

Policy and Regulation Risks

We are subject to laws, rules and regulations inside and outside the
PRC. Changes in domestic and foreign economic environment and the
continuous development of the poultry industry could result in the
relevant laws and regulations and industry policies being adjusted
accordingly. Such changes may, to a certain extent, result in
uncertainties in the future business development and operating results
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
the Group did not have any other significant investments, acquisitions
or disposals.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 7,202 employees who were
directly employed by the Group, of which 7,198 employees were
employed in the PRC and 4 employees were located in Japan. The
remuneration packages for the employees include salary, bonuses and
allowances. As required by the PRC regulations, the Group (i)
participates in social insurance schemes operated by the relevant local
government authorities, and (ii) maintains mandatory pension
contribution plans, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance and maternity insurance. The Group also
provides continuing education and training programmes to its
employees to improve their skills and develop their potential. The
Company also adopted two share award schemes on 24 June 2020
and 10 December 2021, respectively, and any full-time or part-time
employees of the Group (including any director of the Company (the
“Director(s)”)) are eligible participants under the said schemes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

1.

Opportunities and Potential Development

(1)

®)

the recovery and eruption of demands as feed grain prices
have stabilised and the industry cycle returned to a new
round of rising period;

increasing and rapid growth in healthy-food market, with
chicken breast as the main ingredient;

improvement in the efficiency of convenience stores, Tmall
and other advantageous channels, and a rapid rise in new
e-commerce platforms such as Tik Tok, Kuaishou;

further accumulation of strength and rapid amplification of
energy of the “iShape” brand value; and

re-structuring of the international landscape opening
opportunities for us to enter into more overseas markets.

Premium Growth Strategies at Current Stage

(1

maintain stability: taking advantage of breeding and
farming, and making full efforts to ensure stability and
efficiency on the supply side;

consolidate business foundation: strengthening team
building, infrastructure and system construction, and
striving to stay as the best in the industry with regard to
overall operation and management standards;

strengthen development: continue to seek benefits from
business growth and stimulate internal strength from
development;

plan for the future: actively establish a plan by keeping
pace with outstanding domestic and foreign peers to
enhance competitiveness in a sustainable manner; and

comprehensive management: significantly enhance quality,
increase revenue and reduce costs by focusing on human,
financial, material from farming, production to marketing.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors, supervisors (the “Supervisors”) and senior management PiNUN
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to

the date of this annual report are set out below:

DIRECTORS
BE=x

Name

HAH

Mr. Liu Zhiguang (retired on 18 January 2023)
2|75 S 4 (R 202341 A18 HIRAT)

Mr. Xiao Dongsheng
HRAERE

Mr. Wang Jinsheng (resigned on 30 March 2022)
T B8 5 A (722022473 A 30 A & T)

Ms. Zhou Jinying (appointed on 31 May 2022 and
retired on 18 January 2023)

B ShE 2z + (72022 F5 A31BHE F
I 202341 A 18 HIR 1E)

Mr. Shi Lei (appointed on 31 May 2022)
AT E (20225 A31HE )
Mr. Liu Xuejing (retired on 18 January 2023)

2|2 2 % 4 (R 2023E1 A 18 H R ()

Mr. Zhang Chuanli (retired on 18 January 2023)
SRE N S (202341 A18 HIRT)

Mr. Ow Weng Cheong (resigned on 30 March 2022)
5k & % 4 (74202243 A 30 B B 1)

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (appointed on 18 January 2023)
[ FR & 55 A (322023 F 1 18 H £ 1T)

Mr. Zhu Lingjie (appointed on 18 January 2023)
KBRS E (R2023F1 A18A £ 1T)

Mr. Lu Wei (appointed on 18 January 2023)
BB ST (72202361 18 B £ 1T)

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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Position in the Company
NEBA

Chairman of the Board of Directors and executive Director

EFESIRRITESE

Executive Director and general manager

HITESFRAKE

Executive Director, vice general manager and general manager
of the breeding department
HITEF BECERBHEFENELR

Executive Director and vice general manager

MITEFREI AR

Executive Director, vice general manager, chief financial officer,
secretary to the Board of Directors and joint company secretary

BITES BAKE VKA SFenERBMEARIWE

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Non-executive Director

FUNTES

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Non-executive Director

FRITES

Chairman of the Board of Directors and non-executive Director

EFETIRRFATES

Non-executive Director

FRITES
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Name

ES EERSAEERERBE

Position in the Company

HH DA B

Ms. Zhou Ruijia (appointed on 18 January 2023)

Mr. Guo Tianyong (retired on 18 January 2023)
DM B S A (202341 A18 B ET)

Ms. Wang Anyi (appointed on 18 January 2023)
TZ 5%+ (20231 718HE1T)

Ms. Zhao Yinglin
A 2+

Mr. Chung Wai Man
ERXEE

The biographical details of the Directors are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Dongsheng, aged 51, an executive Director and the general
manager of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 1
November 2018. He is primarily responsible for the sales and marketing
functions of the Group. He is also a director of iShape Food Technology
and Fengxiang Foods (Japan) Co., Ltd and an executive director of
Shandong Fengxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. (‘Fengxiang Industrial”).

Mr. Xiao has over 25 years of experience in corporate and business
management. He joined the Group in December 2010. He has been a
general manager and the general manager of international marketing
centre of Shandong Fengxiang Food Development Co., Ltd. (“Fengxiang
Food Development’) since December 2011. He has also been a
general manager of iShape Food Technology since June 2019. Mr.
Xiao obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering from Nanjing
University of Chemical Technology (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University) in the PRC in July 1994.

Mr. Shi Lei, aged 37, an executive Director, the vice general manager,
chief financial officer, the secretary to the Board of Directors and a joint
company secretary of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on
31 May 2022. He is primarily responsible for the financial aspects of the
Group.

Non-executive Director
B E 2+ (720231 F18H & 1) FEH

L=

TES

Independent non-executive Director

BYIFRTES

Independent non-executive Director

BUFNTES

Independent non-executive Director

BYFATES

Independent non-executive Director

BUFNITES

EEZNERFBHIDT
BITES
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Mr. Shi has over 13 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management, and joined the Group in June 2013. Mr. Shi served as a
vice general manager of financial budget and analysis department, a
financial manager and an assistant director of financial centre of the
Company from June 2013 to February 2018. Mr. Shi has been a
supervisor of Yucheng Fengming Food Co., Ltd. since August 2017.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shi worked for the finance department of
Qingdao Zhengda Co., Ltd. from January 2008 to June 2010, and
worked as a supervisor of the finance department of OSI Group (Weihai)
Poultry Development Co., Ltd. from June 2010 to June 2013. Mr. Shi
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in financial management from Qingdao
Agricultural University in the PRC in July 2007.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, aged 54, a non-executive Director of the Company.
He was appointed as a Director on 18 January 2023. Mr. Qiu is a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“‘Remuneration Committee”).

Mr. Qiu has over 30 years of experience in corporate finance and
private equity investment. He has been a partner and managing director
of PAG Asia Capital since April 2015. From 1990 to 2000, Mr. Qiu
served as a vice president at Goldpark China Limited, a subsidiary of
China Huaneng Group. Mr. Qiu has served as the managing director
and managing partner at Hony Capital for 10 years from January 2005.
Before that, he was the chairman of Yintai Holdings Limited. From July
2006 to June 2015, he served as a non-executive director of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Development Co.,
Ltd. (currently known as Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and
Technology Co., Ltd.), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 01157) and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000157). He has been a director of Metro Land Corporation Ltd.,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600683), since December 2017; and a non-executive director of China
Youran Diary Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 09858), since August 2020. He is
currently the chairman and the general manager of Shanghai Baosteel
Gases Co., Ltd.. Mr. Qiu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
from Xi’an Jiaotong University in the PRC in 1990. He then obtained a
master’'s degree in business administration jointly awarded by Kellogg
School of Management of Northwestern University in the United States
and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in Hong
Kong in 2003.
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Mr. Lu Wei, aged 44, a non-executive Director. He was appointed as a
Director on 18 January 2023. Mr. Lu is a member of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

Mr. Qiu has over 20 years of experience in banking, investment and
business consultation. He joined PAG Asia Capital as a senior
associate in August 2011 and was subsequently promoted to vice
president and executive director. He is currently a managing director of
PAG Asia Capital. From September 2001 to June 2004, Mr. Lu served
at the Shanghai office of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited.
From August 2004 to April 2010, he served as a business analyst and
an associate at McKinsey & Company. He served as a senior associate
at the Shanghai office of CITIC Capital from May 2010 to August 2011.
Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics with a major in
international finance from Renmin University of China in the PRC in
July 2001. He then obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Harvard University in the United States in June
2009.

Mr. Zhu Lingjie, aged 43, is the chairman of the Board of Directors and
a non-executive Director. He was appointed as a Director on 18
January 2023. Mr. Zhu is the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).

Mr. Zhu has over 18 years of experience in business and marketing
strategy formation and investment. Mr. Zhu joined PAG Asia Capital in
October 2013 and his current position is managing director. He has
extensive experience in consumer goods sector and retail industry as a
consultant and professional manager. From July 2005 to March 2008,
he worked as a senior manager at Opera Solutions, LLC., a company
providing analytics consulting service. From March 2008 to March
2012, he served as a senior project manager at Roland Berger, a
worldwide management consulting company. Mr. Zhu joined Beiersdorf
AG, a German multinational company that manufactures and retails
personal care products in April 2012, and he served as the trade
marketing director and the head of e-commerce of the “NIVEA” brand
and the business unit head of the “Eucerin” brand. Mr. Zhu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in finance from Nanjing University in the PRC in July
2002. He then obtained a certificate of graduate studies from Johns
Hopkins University Nanjing University Center for Chinese and American
Studies in July 2004. He further obtained a master’s degree in finance
from Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2005.
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Ms. Zhou Ruijia, aged 34, is a non-executive Director. She was
appointed as a Director on 18 January 2023.

Ms. Zhou has over 11 years of experience in investment, financial and
operational management. Ms. Zhou currently serves as an executive
director of PAG Asia Capital, focusing on buyouts, privatisations, and
structured minority investments. Since joining PAG Asia Capital in
2013, Ms. Zhou has been actively involved in a number of investments
in the business services and technology sectors, including several
leading public companies on the New York Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange. She is primarily responsible for conducting
investments and advising invested portfolio companies on strategic,
financial and operational initiatives. Prior to joining PAG Asia Capital,
Ms. Zhou worked as an analyst in the investment banking division of
Goldman Sachs in New York from July 2011 to July 2013, primarily
responsible for conducting financial analysis and advising corporate
clients and financial institutions on mergers and acquisitions, as well as
equity and debt issuances. Ms. Zhou obtained a bachelor of science
degree from Duke University in the United States in 2011.

Independent non-executive Director

Ms. Wang Anyi, aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was appointed as a Director on 18 January 2023. Ms. Wang is the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. Wang has over 20 years of experience in business consultancy,
corporate management and finance. Ms. Wang has been a partner and
the chief financial officer of BosWinner, a company providing building
and facility construction and management software, since June 2017.
Prior to that, she served as the chief financial officer of e-Shang, an
integrated development and investment management business that
subsequently merged into the ESR Group from 2014 to 2017. Ms.
Wang started her career as an analyst at McKinsey & Company in
1999. She joined Morgan Stanley as an associate in its Chicago office’s
mergers and acquisition team in 2004 and then served in the global
capital markets team in the Hong Kong office in 2006. She was
promoted to vice president of the China investment banking and real
estate team in the Hong Kong office in 2007. From 2009 to 2013, she
served as the head of corporate finance and investor relations at
Yanlord Land Group Limited. Ms. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree
in international finance and real estate from Shanghai Jiaotong
University in the PRC in 1999. She then obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University in the United States in 2004.
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Ms. Zhao Yinglin, aged 57, an independent non-executive Director.
She was appointed as a Director on 28 May 2021. Ms. Zhao is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Ms. Zhao has 23 years of experience in corporate and business
management. She was the general manager of the investment
management department of China Life Property & Casualty Insurance
Company Limited between October 2007 and March 2020 and the chief
investment officer of PICC Health Insurance Company Limited from
March 2020 to February 2021. Ms. Zhao completed her postgraduate
studies in finance and investment and received her doctorate degree in
economics from the Northwest University in the PRC in July 2000. She
obtained the Securities Practitioners Qualifications Certificate from the
Securities Association of China in February 2004 and obtained the
Independent Director Qualification Certificate from the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in March 2014.

Mr. Chung Wai Man, aged 59, an independent non- executive Director.
He was appointed as a Director on 8 August 2019. Mr. Chung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chung has over 29 years of experience in accounting, taxation and
finance. Mr. Chung has served as an independent non-executive
director of Net Pacific Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 5QY)
since June 2018, the shares of which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Limited and E Lighting Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
08222) since September 2014, the shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chung has been the general manager of
Yipei Global Capital Limited since May 2021.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor's degree in social sciences from
University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and a master’s degree in
international business management from City University of Hong Kong
in November 1998. Mr. Chung has been an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April 1995
and a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom since November 1999.
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SUPERVISORS
E=

Name
Mr. Zhang Jun (retired on 18 January 2023)
R = St 4 (FA20234 1 18 AR T)

Mr. Chen Dehe (retired on 18 January 2023)
BR {2 28 55 A4 (72202341 A18 HIR{T)

Ms. Lian Xianmin (retired on 18 January 2023)
FREG L (7 2023F 1 A18HET)

Ms. Gao Jin (appointed on 18 January 2023)
BELZ T (R2023F 1188 &)

Mr. Zhu Kaijie (appointed on 18 January 2023)
KIS 4 (7R 2023F1 A18H £ 1T)

Mr. Ma Xianwen (appointed on 18 January 2023)

Position in the Company
e A BB

Shareholders representative Supervisor

BRRAKRE=S

Shareholders representative Supervisor

BRAKRES

Employees representative Supervisor

BTRRE=S

Shareholders representative Supervisor

BRAKRES

Shareholders representative Supervisor

BRAKRE=S

Employees representative Supervisor

BEEA L (20231 A18A £ 1) BITRKRE=E
The biographical details of the Supervisors are set out as follows: EEREREFBOT :

Ms. Gao Jin, aged 40, is the chairperson of the Board of Supervisors
and a shareholders representative Supervisor. She was appointed as a
Supervisor on 18 January 2023.

Ms. Gao has over 10 years of experience in professional accounting
and tax advisory services. Ms. Gao joined PAG Asia Capital in April
2019 and her current position is vice president. From August 2005 to
October 2014, she served as a manager at KPMG Advisory (China)
Ltd.. From November 2014 to June 2015, she worked as a senior
manager at WTS Consulting (Shanghai) Ltd. From July 2015 to
February 2019, she served as a director at Sinopharm Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (currently known as Sinopharm Capital
Management Limited Company). Since June 2020, she has been a
supervisor at Shenzhen Xin Jiao Cultural Information Consulting Co.,
Ltd.. Since June 2021, she has been a director at Mingya Insurance
Brokers Co., Ltd. Since April 2022, she concurrently serves as a
manager at Chengdu Xuyu Education Consulting Co., Ltd. and
Chengdu Fanshun Education Consulting Co., Ltd.. Ms. Gao obtained a
bachelor's degree in accounting from Fudan University in the PRC in
July 2005. Ms. Gao has been a certified public accountant in the PRC
since December 2006 and a certified tax advisor in the PRC since
August 2009.
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Mr. Zhu Kaijie, aged 27, is a shareholders representative Supervisor.
He was appointed as a Supervisor on 18 January 2023.

Mr. Zhu has over five years of experience in finance and investment
banking. Mr. Zhu joined PAG Asia Capital in February 2021 and his
current position is senior associate of private equity strategy. From July
2017 to August 2019, he worked at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited with
his last position as an associate of the investment banking division.
From September 2019 to January 2021, he worked as an analyst at
DCP Capital. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor's degree in arts with a
double major in economics and mathematics-statistics from Columbia
University in the City of New York in the United States in May 2017 with
magna cum laude honour.

Mr. Ma Xianwen, aged 37, is the employees representative Supervisor.
He was appointed as a Supervisor on 18 January 2023.

Mr. Ma is the senior manager of the human resources department of
the Company and the manager of the human resources department of
iShape Food Technology. Mr. Ma joined the Company in November
2009. He was a recruitment specialist of the human resources
department of the Company from November 2009 to December 2011.
From January 2012 to July 2016, he successively served as the section
chief of recruitment division and integrated personnel division under the
human resources department of the Company. He worked as the
manager of the human resources department of the Company from
August 2016 to December 2020 and was promoted to senior manager
in January 2021. Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor's degree in human
resources management from Liaocheng University in the People’s
Republic of China in June 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BREEE

Name

HE

Mr. Xiao Dongsheng
HERAERE

Mr. Wang Jinsheng (resigned on 30 March 2022)
T B 5L A (A20229F 3 A30 A &)

Mr. Wang Zhixian

Position in the Company
AR

General manager
4B 4 Ei

oy WL

Vice general manager and general manager of the breeding department

BRI R EEEEIELE

Vice general manager

Vice general manager

pap Y Bliaie
Mr. Meng Tao
B E Bl A e g

Ms. Zhou Jinying
B Sh i 2+ gl
Mr. Shi Lei
A@EE

The biographical details of senior management of the Company are set
out as follows:

For biographical details of Mr. Xiao Dongsheng (H % 4) and Mr. Shi
Lei (FA%&), please refer to “Directors — Executive Directors” of this
section.

Mr. Wang Zhixian, aged 57, a vice general manager of the Company.
He is primarily responsible for the food safety and quality management
functions of the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 21 years of experience in food safety and quality
management industry. He joined the Group in August 2001. He was a
vice general manager of Fengxiang Food Development from August
2001 to August 2011. He served as a vice general manager of food
business department of Fengxiang Food Development from August
2011 to July 2016. Mr. Wang served as a general manager and an
executive director of Xingwen Tianyang Jishi Food Development Co.,
Ltd. from July 2016 to October 2019 and from May 2016 to October
2019, respectively. He has been a general manager of Fengxiang
Industrial since December 2011.

Mr. Wang completed his education specialising in Chinese enterprise
operator project from Peking University in the PRC in July 2017. He
also completed his education specialising in refrigeration from
Shandong Commercial School in the PRC in July 1986.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

Vice general manager

Vice general manager, chief financial officer, secretary to the Board of
Directors and joint company secretary
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Mr. Meng Tao, aged 55, a vice general manager of the Company. He
is primarily responsible for the operational planning and supply chain
centre of the Group.

Mr. Meng has over 33 years of experience in meat product industry. He
joined the Group in February 2013. He was a vice general manager of
production department of Fengxiang Food Development from February
2013 to November 2013. He served as a general manager of
production department of Fengxiang Industrial from November 2013 to
September 2016. Mr. Meng served as a vice general manager of
Fengxiang Food Development from September 2016 to February 2018.

Mr. Meng completed his education specialising in mechanical
engineering from Beijing Union University in the PRC in August 1989.
Mr. Meng was awarded the Post Experience Certificate in engineering
business management from The University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom in November 2002.

Ms. Zhou Jinying, aged 50, a vice general manager of the Company.
She is the person-in-charge of the business of “iShape”, and is also the
general manager of marketing centre.

Ms. Zhou has over 25 years of experience in marketing and media
industry. She joined the Group in February 2018. She has been a vice
general manager of the Company since February 2018 served as an
executive Director of the Company from May 2022 to January 2023.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou served as a general manager of
the brand management centre and a chief brand officer at GMK
Holdings from September 2016 to April 2018. She was a vice general
manager and chief brand officer of GMK Holdings from April 2018 to
January 2019.

Ms. Zhou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in cultural business
management from Beijing Film Academy in the PRC in June 1998.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management (i) hold any other directorship in
other publicly listed companies in the last three years; (ii) has any
relationship with any other Directors, Supervisors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company; (iii)
hold any other position in the Company or other members of the Group;
(iv) hold any other interest in the shares of the Company with the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”);
and (v) has other information relating to him/her that should be
disclosed pursuant to the events under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

Change of Directors

On 30 March 2022, Mr. Wang Jinsheng tendered his resignation from
his position as an executive Director, and Mr. Ow Weng Cheong
tendered his resignation from his position as a non-executive Director.
On 30 March 2022, Ms. Zhou Jinying and Mr. Shi Lei were proposed to
be appointed as executive Directors of the Company and were elected
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2022.

The fourth session of the Board of Directors expired upon the
conclusion of the 2023 first extraordinary general meeting (the “General
Meeting”) and the H share class meeting of the Company held on 18
January 2023 (the “Shareholders Meetings”), and all incumbent
Directors retired from their positions as Directors at that time. On 28
December 2022, the Board of Directors resolved to re-elect Mr. Xiao
Dongsheng and Mr. Shi Lei as executive Directors, elect/re-elect Ms.
Wang Anyi, Ms. Zhao Yinglin and Mr. Chung Wai Man as independent
non-executive Directors, and elect Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, Mr. Lu Wei, Mr.
Zhu Lingjie and Ms. Zhou Ruijia as non-executive Directors at the
General Meeting. On 18 January 2023, the appointments of each of the
above Directors of the fifth session of the Board of Directors were
approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting. Mr. Zhu Lingjie
was elected and appointed as the chairman of the Board of Directors.

Changes of Supervisors

The fourth session of the Board of Supervisors expired upon the
conclusion of the Shareholders Meetings, and all incumbent
Supervisors retired from their positions as Supervisors at that time. On
28 December 2022, the Board of Supervisors resolved to elect Ms. Gao
Jin and Mr. Zhu Kaijie as shareholders representative Supervisors at
the General Meeting. On 18 January 2023, the appointments of each of
the above Supervisors of the fifth session of the Board of Supervisors
were approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting. On the
same date, Mr. Ma Xianwen was elected as an employees
representative Supervisor at the employees representative meeting of
the Company. Ms. Gao Jin was elected and appointed as the
chairperson of the Board of Supervisors.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present its report (the “Report of
Board of Directors”) together with the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The principal business of the Company is the R&D, processing and
sale of chicken meat products made with white-feathered broilers. Main
products include processed chicken meat products and raw chicken
meat products.

RESULTS

The results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on pages 135 to 137 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The Company has adopted in its general dividend policy. The Company
has implemented a three-year dividend plan, pursuant to which, in the
absence of certain special circumstances, if the Company records profit
for the year and its accumulated undistributed profit is positive, and is
capable of meeting the actual demand for distribution, the Company
shall distribute dividends in cash, and the aggregate profits distributed
in cash for such three years shall not be less than 30% of the total
distributable profits realised for the latest three years as set out in the
Company’s financial statements and the dividends to be distributed in
each particular year shall be decided by the Board of Directors. Any
proposed distribution of dividends shall be formulated by the Board of
Directors and shall be subject to approval at the shareholders’ meeting.
A decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the
amount of any dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including
our results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, capital
adequacy ratio, payments by our subsidiaries of cash dividends to us,
business prospects, statutory, regulatory and contractual restrictions on
our declaration and payment of dividends and other factors that the
Board of Directors may consider important.

According to the applicable PRC laws and the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”), we will pay dividends out
of our profit after tax only after we have made the following allocations:

. recovery of accumulated losses, if any;

. allocations to the statutory reserve equivalent to 10% of our
profit after tax, and, when the statutory reserve reaches
and is maintained at or above 50% of our registered capital,
no further allocations to this statutory reserve will be
required;
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. allocations, if any, to a discretionary common reserve fund
that are approved by the Shareholders in a shareholders’
meeting; and

. allocation of employee welfare funds to be borne by the
Company.

The Articles of Association stipulates that the Company may distribute
dividends by means of cash, stock or a combination of cash and stock.
There is no assurance that we will be able to declare dividends of such
any amount each year or in any year.

Pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues
Concerning Individual Income Tax Collection and Management after
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348), individuals who are resident outside the PRC and who hold
shares issued in Hong Kong by domestic non-foreign invested
enterprises enjoy preferential tax rate in accordance with the tax
conventions between Mainland China and the country where the
residents reside and the tax arrangements between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong (Macao). Individual shareholders will be generally
subject to a withholding tax rate of 10% when domestic non-foreign
invested enterprises which issue shares in Hong Kong distribute
dividends to their shareholders, unless otherwise required by the
regulations of relevant tax laws and tax conventions. Pursuant to the
Notice on the Issues Concerning Withholding the Enterprises Income
Tax on the Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Share
Holders Who Are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han
[2008] No. 897) of the State Administration of Taxation, we are obliged
to withhold and pay enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% from
dividends paid or payable for H Shares when distributing dividends to
non-resident enterprise shareholders of H Shares. No tax is payable in
Hong Kong in respect of dividends paid by us according to the current
practice of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. Shareholders
are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding the tax
implication in the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising
from their holding and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil). As at the date of this
annual report, the Board of Directors is not aware of any Shareholders
who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be held
on Friday, 19 May 2023. The notice of the AGM will be published and
despatched to the Shareholders in due course in the manner as
required by the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 16
May 2023 to Friday, 19 May 2023 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be qualified to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the H Share Registrar of the
Company, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (in respect of H
Shareholders), or to the Company’s registered office in the PRC at
Liumiao Village, Anle Town, Yanggu County, Liaocheng City, Shandong
Province, PRC (in respect of domestic Shareholders) no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 15 May 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 15 to 37 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
the Group can be found throughout this annual report. Particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred after 31
December 2022, if any, can also be found in the notes to the financial
statements.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to financial key performance indicators and environmental
policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group, are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Each of the above-
mentioned relevant contents form an integral part of the Report of
Board of Directors.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Company’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on page 324 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the financial statements.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee’s View and
the Plan to Address the Opinion

L Qualified Opinion in 2022

The Auditor has expressed a qualified opinion in the independent
auditors’ report relating to the audit of the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board of Directors
would like to provide the following additional information:

The Company was notified by GMK Holdings, the former controlling
shareholder of the Company, that its subsidiaries had overdue debts in
March 2022. Among such subsidiaries, GMK Finance was involved in
overdue repayment disputes, pursuant to which the creditor filed a civil
complaint against GMK Finance, and the guarantors for such loans,
including Mr. Liu Xuejing (former controlling shareholder and non-
executive Director), GMK Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries were
named as defendants (the “Debt Dispute”). GMK Holdings, by itself
and through its subsidiaries, provided guarantees for some of the loans
obtained by the Group from banks, and provided deposits, loan facilities
(including term loans and entrusted loans) and bill financing services to
the Group. The deposits with GMK Finance have been unavailable for
withdrawal and utilisation by the Group for daily operation since
November 2022. In addition, there was an overdue payment for deposit
interests from GMK Finance to the Group.

Il. Basis of Qualified Opinion

As the Group is not able to estimate the recoverable amounts of
deposits and related accrued interests in GMK Finance for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the Auditor has not
been provided with sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding
the possible impact of the abovementioned matter, they were unable to
make a judgment as to whether adjustments to the related disclosures
in the financial statements are necessary. The Auditor's audit opinion
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
qualified accordingly.
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The Group made a full impairment of the deposits with GMK Finance
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022
due to the following reasons: (i) the Group has been unable to withdraw
and utilise the deposits with GMK Finance since November 2022, and
there was an overdue payment for deposit interests from GMK Finance
to the Group; (ii) the Debt Dispute is still ongoing, and the Board of
Directors cannot predict the timing and outcome of the actions initiated
by the creditors; (iii) as at the date of this annual report, there is no
material progress on the restructuring proposal of the debt arrangement
with GMK Holdings and its subsidiaries; and (iv) the Company has
consulted legal advisers regarding the bankruptcy risk of GMK Finance,
the potential debt procedures and recoverability of the deposits from
GMK Finance based on current circumstances. Based on the foregoing,
the management of the Company considered the timing and possibility
of the recoverability of the deposits with GMK Finance was highly
uncertain and therefore full provision of impairment has been made
accordingly.

lll. Removal of Audit Qualification

The management of the Company has discussed with the Auditor and
confirmed that since the Auditor expressed an audit qualification on the
2022 financial figures of the Group, this will have carryforward impact
on the Company’s annual results for the year ending 31 December
2023. The Company expects that the audit qualification would only
affect the corresponding comparative figures of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 but will be removed in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2024.

IV. The Audit Committee’s View
During the audit process, the Audit Committee reviewed the

management’s position above and agreed with such position
addressing the issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is subject to the PRC national and local environmental laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Law on the Prevention and Treatment
of Water Pollution of the PRC and the Law for the Prevention and
Treatment of Air Pollution of the PRC. In particular, there are
environmental regulations concerning the treatment of wastewater
produced by our slaughtering and processing facilities and we are
subject to annual inspection by the regulatory authorities for compliance
with these laws and regulations. Failure to comply with applicable PRC
environmental protection laws and regulations may result in significant
consequences, including administrative, civil and criminal penalties,
liability for damages and negative publicity. Further, such failure to
comply, or allege on failure to comply, with the relevant PRC laws,
regulations or government policies on environmental protection, may
lead to costly litigation or penalty imposed by the relevant judicial or
governmental authorities. We emphasise on environmental protection
and strive to minimise the environmental impact brought by our
business operations.

The Group has established environmental policies and procedures
aimed at compliance with local environmental and other laws.
Management performs regular reviews to identify environmental risks
and to ensure that the systems in place are adequate to manage these
risks.

There had been no material administrative penalties imposed on the
Group as a result of non-compliance with any PRC laws or regulations
in relation to environmental protection during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board of Directors has authorised the senior management to
control and monitor the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
performance for the daily management of ESG. Investors can search
for information related to the ESG report on the investors relationship
page of the Company’s website. As reported by the senior
management, the Board of Directors considers that the Group’s ESG
performance, with respect to the subject areas and individual aspects
that are set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, has been
satisfactory.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Employees

As at 31 December 2022, we had 7,202 employees who were directly
employed by us, of which 7,198 employees were employed in the PRC
and four employees were located in Japan.

The remuneration packages for our employees include salary, bonuses
and allowances. Except for Japanese employees who are required to
comply with Japanese laws and regulations, as required by the PRC
regulations, we participate in social insurance schemes operated by the
relevant local government authorities and maintain mandatory pension
contribution plans, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance and maternity insurance for some of our
employees. We also contribute to housing provident fund for some of
our employees. No forfeited contribution was used by the employer to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. Details of the
defined contribution and benefit scheme of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note (XIX) to the financial
statements.

When we make hiring decisions, we take into account factors such as
our business strategies, our development plans, industry trends and the
competitive environment. We recruit our employees based on a number
of factors such as their work experience, educational background and
vacancy needs. We endeavour to attract and retain appropriate and
suitable personnel to serve the Group.

We provide continuing education and training programmes to our
employees to improve their skills and develop their potential. We also
adopt evaluation programmes through which our employees can
receive feedback. We foster strong employee relations by offering
various staff benefits and personal development support. Our
subsidiaries in China have established labour unions in accordance
with the applicable PRC law. We are not subject to any collective
bargaining agreements. As at the date of this annual report, we had not
experienced any material labour disputes or claims.

The Company also adopted two share award schemes on 24 June
2020 and 10 December 2021, respectively, and any full-time or part-
time employees of the Group (including any Director) are eligible
participants under the said schemes.
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Customers

We had a diversified customer base of over 3,000 customers globally,
including internationally renowned food processors and traders as well
as fast food restaurant chains (and their poultry meat suppliers and
sourcing agents). We exported to countries including Japan, Malaysia,
Europe, Korea, the Middle East, Mongolia and Singapore. We also sell
our products to our distributors whose designated sales regions are all
within the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 23.15% (2021: 25.01%) of the Group’s
total sales and sales to the largest customer accounted for 10.80% (2021:
11.39%).

Suppliers

We procured (i) raw materials for the production of our animal feeds,
including corn, soybean meal, soybean oil and wheat, and (ii) Parent
Stock Day-old Chicks for the production of our chicken meat products
in the PRC. We also procured raw chicken meat products from third
party suppliers domestically as well as from overseas (generally from
Brazil) for producing our processed chicken meat products in order to
meet customers’ growing demand. During the Reporting Period, we did
not enter into hedging activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 22.12% (2021: 16.37%) of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for 6.42% (2021: 6.45%).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors and Supervisors own more than 5%
of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Company’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note (XXIX) to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company was
1,400,000,000 Shares (of which 1,045,000,000 were domestic Shares
and 355,000,000 were H Shares).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in owners’ equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations,
the Company has distributable reserves of RMB456.3 million in total
available for distribution (2021: RMB1,225.3 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note (XV), note (XVI), note (XXII) and
note (XXIV) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note (VIII) to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the PRC laws that would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

According to the Articles of Association, the terms of service of both the
Directors and the Supervisors are for three years, and all Directors and
Supervisors are subject to re-appointment or re-election upon the expiry
of their term. Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and Supervisors has entered into
a service contract generally with a term of three years with the
Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors has or is proposed to
have a service contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent and
remain so as at the date of this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

Securities Transactions of Directors and Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with each Director and Supervisor and each of them
confirmed that he or she had complied with all required standards under
the Model Code during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning as defined in Part XV of the SFO,
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
the interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or to be entered in the register
to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or other wise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as
follows:

The Company
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Mr. Zhang Chuanli® Beneficial interest Domestic Shares 2,703,000 (L) 0.26% 0.19%
R AEW B En A& R’
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng® Beneficiary of a trust ~ H Shares 3,216,000 (L) 0.91% 0.23%
BRALE® EREX @A H AR
Ms. Zhou Jinying®-® Beneficiary of atrust ~ H Shares 2,605,000 (L) 0.73% 0.19%
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Mr. Shi Lei® Beneficiary of a trust ~ H Shares 586,000 (L) 0.17% 0.04%
A&EED EREX @A H AR
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Notes:

(1)  The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding in domestic
Shares or H Shares respectively.

(2)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,045,000,000 domestic
Shares in issue and 355,000,000 H Shares in issue.

3) Mr. Xiao Dongsheng, Ms. Zhou Jinying, Mr. Shi Lei and Ms. Lian Xianmin
have been granted the awarded shares under the 2020 Share Award
Scheme and/or 2021 Share Award Scheme. They are deemed to be
interested in the issued share capital of the Company for the awarded
shares which have been granted to them pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Xiao Dongsheng, Ms. Zhou Jinying, Mr. Shi
Lei (each a Director as at 31 December 2022) and Ms. Lian Xianmin (a
Supervisor as at 31 December 2022) have been granted 2,976,000,
2,465,000, 506,000 and 301,600 awarded shares respectively under the
2020 Share Award Scheme and 2021 Share Award Scheme (representing
approximately 0.21%, 0.18%, 0.04% and 0.02% of all the issued Shares),
all of which have not yet been vested.

(4) Mr. Zhang Chuanli and Ms. Zhou Jinying retired as Directors on 18
January 2023, and Ms. Lian Xianmin retired as a Supervisor on 18
January 2023.

(5)  The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executives or their associates have or
are deemed to have any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning as defined in Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
the interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, required to be entered in the register referred therein, or
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being the Directors or Supervisors or chief
executives) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares which were required to be entered in the register referred to in
section 336 of the SFO by the Company or would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO:
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Shan Weijian® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
BERO R EEER W& Bk
PAG Capital Limited® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
PAG Capital Limited® REEERER W& &
PAG Asia Capital GP IV Limited® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
PAG Asia Capital GP IV Limited® S 12X @ ##x% NE &k
PAG Asia IV LP® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
PAG Asia IV LP® RELEER NE R
PAG® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
PAG® RErE#Es NE MKk
Pacific Alliance Group Limited® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
corporation
Pacific Alliance Group Limited® i EEE W& B
Falcon Holding GP Limited® Interest in controlled Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%

Falcon Holding GP Limited®

corporation
RELEER
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Approximate
percentage of

interest in the relevant

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the total

Number of class of Shares of share capital of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares the Company the Company®®
RAQEHEERG RADHE
BRIFAERY BREAPREHN
BREREE EEME IR 4 38 5 4 & B EEAEALO BEAI L
Falcon Holding LP® Beneficial interest Domestic Shares 992,854,500 (L) 95.01% 70.92%
Falcon Holding LP® BEamEm NE R
Hwa-An International Limited Beneficial interest H Shares 34,909,000 (L) 9.80% 2.49%
Hwa-An International Limited oy HAR
Dragonstone Capital Management Investment manager H Shares 31,808,000 (L) 8.96% 2.27%
Limited
Dragonstone Capital Management 1% 4 £% 3% HAR
Limited
CICFH New Dynamic Investment Beneficial interest H Shares 29,705,000 (L) 8.36% 2.12%
SPC
CICFH New Dynamic Investment EaiEn H &
SPC
Futu Trustee Limited® Trustee H Shares 17,883,000 (L) 5.04% 1.28%
BREFTERAAY A HAZ
Notes: By st -

M

The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding in Domestic
Shares or H Shares respectively.

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,045,000,000 Domestic
Shares in issue and 355,000,000 H Shares in issue.

PAG Capital Limited is directly owned as to 45% by Shan Weijian and
indirectly owned as to 55% by PAG through its wholly-owned interest in
Pacific Alliance Group Limited. PAG Capital Limited is indirectly interested
in the Shares of the Company through its wholly-owned corporations PAG
Asia Capital GP IV Limited, PAG Asia IV LP, Falcon Holding GP Limited
and Falcon Holding LP. Accordingly, Shan Weijian, PAG, Pacific Alliance
Group Limited, PAG Capital Limited, PAG Asia Capital GP IV Limited, PAG
Asia IV LP and Falcon Holding GP Limited are deemed to be indirectly
interested in the 992,854,500 shares held by Falcon Holding LP.

As at 31 December 2022, Futu Trustee Limited held 21,133,000 H Shares,
representing 5.95% of the total issued H Shares and 1.51% of the total
Shares in issue.

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares.
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{2 fi2 - PAG - Pacific Alliance Group Limited * PAG
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company has
not been notified by any other person (excluding the Directors or Super-
visors or chief executives), who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors or Supervisors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
Supervisors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no issuance of debentures
was made by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

On 24 June 2020, Mr. Liu Xuejing, Ms. Zhang Xiuying, Mr. Liu
Zhiguang, GMK Holdings, Shandong Fengxiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Fengxiang Group”), Shandong Fengxiang Investment Co., Ltd.,
Guangdong Hengqgin Zhengxing Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership), Guangdong Henggin Shangchen Investment Limited
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Guangdong Henggin Pengtu
Investment Co., Ltd. (collectively, the “Former Controlling
Shareholders”) executed the non-competition undertaking (the “Non-
competition Undertaking”) in favour of the Company.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertaking, the Former Controlling
Shareholders have jointly and severally made irrevocable covenants to
the Company that during the Relevant Period (as defined below), each
of the Former Controlling Shareholders, will not and will procure that its
respective close associates will not:

(a) solely or jointly with a third party, engage in or participate in any
commercial business or activity (domestic or abroad) which
constitute or may constitute competition with our principal
business directly or indirectly in any manner (including but not
limited to investments, mergers and acquisitions, associations,
joint ventures, cooperation, partnerships, contracting or operating
leases, purchases of shares of listed companies or equity
participation) (the “Restricted Business”) (in each case whether
as a Director, Shareholder (other than being a Director or
Shareholder of the Group), partner, agent or other wise and
whether for profit, reward or interest other wise);

(b) directly or indirectly, hold any interest or obtain any control
domestically or abroad in any business entities, institutions or
economic organisations, which constitute or may constitute
competition with our principal business (in each case whether as
a Director or Shareholder (other than being a Director or
Shareholder of the Group), partner, agent or other wise and
whether for profit, reward or interest other wise);

(c) directly or indirectly, induce or attempt to induce, any director,
manager, consultant or employee of the Group to terminate his
service contract or employment contract with the Group, whether
or not such act of that person would constitute a breach of that
person’s service contract or employment contract;

(d)  without the prior consent from the Company, make use of any
information pertaining to the principal business of the Group
which may have come to their knowledge in the capacity as the
Controlling Shareholders for any purpose of engaging in any
commercial activities (except for activities related to the Group) or
obtaining his personal benefits; and

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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(e) directly or indirectly, solicit any customer or supplier or employee
of the Group for employment by them to engage in the Restricted
Business.

The restrictions as set out in (a) and (b) above are not applicable to
circumstances where any of the Former Controlling Shareholders or its
close associates invests in, holds, engages in or participates in less
than 5% of the equity interests and does not take part in the business
management in any other companies (whether listed or not) which
engage in business competing with our business.

The Former Controlling Shareholders confirm that since the date of
listing (“Listing Date”) (i.e. 16 July 2020) and up to 20 December 2022
(being the date on which each of the Former Controlling Shareholders
ceased to be a controlling shareholder of the Company), none of them
carried on, participated or was interested or engaged in or held any
other business which is or may be in competition with the business of
any member of the Group from time to time. Relying on this
confirmation and the fact that all executive Directors (with one of them
being the Controlling Shareholders) have devoted their time and
resources in different business activities of the Group, the independent
non-executive Directors are satisfied that the Non-Competition
Undertaking was fully complied with by the Former Controlling
Shareholders since the Listing Date and up to 20 December 2022.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into certain
transactions with its Former Controlling Shareholders, Directors, and/or
their respective associates, which constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and
shall be disclosed below under the requirement of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions as listed below are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms
or better.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
1. Sales of Poultry Products and By-products

The Company entered into the product sales framework agreement
with GMK Holdings and Xiangrui International Stock Holding Group
Company Ltd. on 25 June 2020, pursuant to which the Group would sell
poultry products and by-products to the members of GMK Holdings, its
subsidiaries and associates (the “GMK Group”) and Xiangrui
International, its subsidiaries and associates (the “Xiangrui Group”).
On 28 August 2021, the Company and GMK Holdings further entered
into the new product sales framework agreement (the “New Product
Sales Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall sell
commodities including poultry products, by-products and other livestock
and poultry breeding waste materials such as mixture of paddy husk
and chicken manure to GMK Group. The New Product Sales
Framework Agreement had a term from 28 August 2021 to 31
December 2022, renewable for a term of three years upon mutual
consent of all parties to the agreement and subject to compliance by
the Company with the requirements under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
supply prices of poultry products and by-products sold under the New
Product Sales Framework Agreement were determined with reference
to the market price. The market price refers to (i) the price paid by an
independent third party which purchases such commaodities at the time,
or (ii) the price charged when providing such commodities to an
independent third party at that time under normal commercial
transaction conditions within Liaocheng, Shandong Province. At the
relevant time, GMK Holdings, a Former Controlling Shareholder and an
associate of the Director(s), was a connected person of the Company
and as a result, the transactions contemplated under the New Product
Sales Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 28
August 2021.
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2. Procurement of Logistic Services

The Company entered into the logistics services framework agreement
with Qingdao Xiangguang Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Xiangguang Logistics”)
(the “Logistics Services Framework Agreement’) on 25 June 2020,
pursuant to which the Group may procure Logistics Services from
Xiangguang Logistics. The Logistics Services Framework Agreement
had a term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, renewable for a
term of three years upon mutual consent of all parties to the agreement
and subject to compliance by the Company with the requirements under
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, in considering whether to engage Xiangguang
Logistics to provide the logistics services, the Company would regularly
compare the prevailing market price of similar logistics services in the
market which is ascertained by, among other methods, obtaining
quotations from independent third party logistics service providers. At
the relevant time, Xiangguang Logistics, an associate of the Director(s),
was a connected person of the Company and as a result, the
transactions contemplated under the Logistics Services Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 30 June 2020 (the “Prospectus”).
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3. Receiving Procurement and Outsourcing Services

The Company entered into a framework agreement with GMK Holdings
on 28 August 2021, for the provision of raw materials and processing
services for production materials to the Group (the “Procurement and
Outsourcing Framework Agreement’). The Procurement and
Outsourcing Framework Agreement had a term from 28 August 2021 to
31 December 2022, renewable for a term of three years upon mutual
consent of all parties to the agreement and subject to compliance with
the Company with the requirements under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
pricing of the raw materials, consumption goods and/or services under
the Procurement and Outsourcing Framework Agreement should be
determined with reference to the market price. The market price refers
to (i) the price charged by an independent third party which provides
such raw materials, consumption goods and/or services at the time, or (ii)
the price charged when providing such raw materials, consumption
goods and/or services to an independent third party at that time under
normal commercial transaction conditions within Liaocheng, Shandong
Province. At the relevant time, GMK Holdings, a Former Controlling
Shareholder and an associate of the Director(s), was a connected
person of the Company and as a result, the transactions contemplated
under the New Product Sales Framework Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 28 August 2021.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

3. BEIFREBRICGKRE

KNAGEFR2021F8 A28 Bl S B gt (A AN & B
IRHEM B R A EM R TR T S AE 2 # 5% ([
BRMNBERGE]) - HERINDIEZRTZ A
A BE202148 A28 H £ £20226F 12 A318 1k © & 1%
EEHRAENEN=-F BRREREAQBAET(L
MHAADEREMBRAEREZRNBRTE - RIFEHA -
RERNBIERBGEBTIEMS  HERERRE
WEEBELBMEET MEERILEENRMHE
EANEEERNERSIBRATOBLE = FREEH
FEME BB R R RIS B AT U B A B A - 3k (i) [
BUBE=—HREBERERME  HEBR R SRR
WEREEA% - FEMERE RS - TR AEIERR B AT AR AR 3R
MEZEN—BHEA BUHARARBEEAL BRI
(EWHRANEAE  FTERHEESELEHBHEE T
ETHRGEXNARANFEBRERS - BEE
FLEARNR HEA2021F8 F28HHAE o



REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4. Deposit of Funds

The Company renewed the deposit services framework agreement (the
“Deposit Service Framework Agreement’) with GMK Finance on 31
August 2020, pursuant to which GMK Finance would provide deposit
services to the Group. The Deposit Service Framework Agreement had
a term of two years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022,
renewable upon mutual consent of all parties to the agreement and
subject to compliance by the Company with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, the deposit interest rates offered by GMK Finance to
the Group should comply with the benchmark deposit interest rates
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China from time to time (if any) for
financial institutions such as GMK Finance, and the Group’s deposit
interest rates shall be the same as those offered by GMK Finance to
independent third parties (or better), and the Group would only deposit
its funds with GMK Finance if the rates quoted by GMK Finance are no
less favourable than the quotes of deposit rates offered by two other
banks offering deposit services obtained by the Group. At the relevant
time, GMK Finance, a subsidiary of the Former Controlling Shareholder
and an associate of the Director(s), was a connected person of the
Company and as a result, the transactions contemplated under the
Deposit Service Framework Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 31 August 2020 and circular dated 30 September 2020.
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5. Receiving Financial Assistance by the Discounting
of Commercial Bills

The Company entered into a framework agreement with GMK Finance
on 25 June 2020, for the provision of financial assistance by GMK
Finance to the Group through the discounting of commercial bills (the “Bill
Financing Framework Agreement’) based on the prevailing market
rates for such financing. The Bill Financing Framework Agreement had
a term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, renewable for a
term of three years upon mutual consent of all parties to the agreement
and subject to compliance with the Company with the requirements
under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the finance department of the Company
would regularly (in any event, no less frequently than twice every
calendar year) review the interest rates that were charged by two other
independent third party banks or financial institutions for the rates
offered for the discounting of commercial bills quoted by GMK Finance,
and would only discount commercial bills with GMK Finance if the rates
offered by it were at least as favourable as those offered by
independent third party banks or financial institutions. At the relevant
time, GMK Finance, a subsidiary of the Former Controlling Shareholder
and an associate of the Director(s), was a connected person of the
Company and as a result, the transactions contemplated under the Bill
Financing Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.
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The following table sets forth the respective annual caps and actual
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amounts for the non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the R EBEXINSEFELREERSE

Company for the year ended 31 December 2022:

Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended
31 December 2022

BEBEXS HZE2022F12A3MBILFE
Actual
accumulated/
maximum
Annual caps amounts
BRRA
FELR EEtHE
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®TR) (AR®TRT
. Continuing connected transactions subject to the annual reporting and announcement
requirements
BB TEER{RAER TN ERE
1. New Product Sales Framework Agreement 32,000 10,798
MEmHEESR
2. Logistics Serwces Framework Agreement 19,987 15,630
% Al H& ﬁ% ﬁ:
3. Procurement and Outsourcing Framework Agreement 11,000 2,052
B RN IESR
L. Continuing connected transactions subject to the annual reporting, announcement,
circular and independent Shareholders‘ approval requirements
BETFERR - BERBIRFRIERENHERERS
4.  Deposit Serwce Framework Agreement(oe ) 1,350,000 1,242,545
=
5. B|II F|nancmg Framework Agreement 500,000 46,590
Note: HtaE -
1. The annual caps and actual amounts being the maximum daily balance of 1. FEIREARERSEAGTINSEEREREH (B
deposits (including interests accrued thereon). AR ©
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The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the continuing connected
transactions set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the
terms of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The
annual transaction values of the above continuing connected
transactions did not exceed the annual caps in relation to the respective
continuing connected transactions.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Auditor was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with “Standards on Other Assurance Engagements for
Certified Public Accountants of China No. 3101-Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Auditor has not qualified its report in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A
copy of the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had not entered into any

connected transaction during the Reporting Period, which is required to
be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or Supervisor or an
entity connected with a Director or Supervisor was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
which is significant to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting
during the year ended 31 December 2022 or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies,
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022
between the Company and a person other than a Director or
Supervisors or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not enter into or renew
any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions arising out of corporate activities
against the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 up to
the date of this annual report.

Except for such insurances, at no time during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company or associated companies.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note X to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party
transactions which constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” on pages 65 to 72.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions disclosed
in the financial statements constituted a notifiable connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

Our employees are generally remunerated by way of fixed salary. Our
remuneration policies are formulated based on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly. A remuneration
committee was set up for reviewing the Company’s emolument policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the Supervisors and five
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in note X to the financial statements.

IMPLEMENTATION OF EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
2020 Share Award Scheme

The Board of Directors has approved the adoption of the share award
scheme (the “2020 Share Award Scheme”) on 4 June 2020, which
was effective from the Listing Date. The 2020 Share Award Scheme is
analogous to a share scheme and subject to the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. On 22 June 2020, the Company established a
trust in connection with the 2020 Share Award Scheme (the “2020
Trust”) and has appointed Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the
“BOC Trustee”) as trustee to administer the 2020 Trust. Pursuant to
the 2020 Share Award Scheme, the grant of award (the “2020 Awarded
Shares”) by the Board of Directors to the selected participants may
vest in the form of H Shares or the net sale proceeds of the 2020
Awarded Shares in cash in accordance with the 2020 Share Award
Scheme.
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Purposes

The purposes of the 2020 Share Award Scheme is to recognise the
contribution by the Group’s personnel and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group, to stimulate further development of the
Group, and to provide retirement protection to the Group’s personnel.

Participants

Pursuant to the 2020 Share Award Scheme, any full-time or part-time
employees of the Group (including any Director) are eligible participants
of the 2020 Share Award Scheme.

Administration

The 2020 Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration
of the Board of Directors and BOC Trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed. The decision of the Board of Directors
with respect to any matter arising under the 2020 Share Award Scheme
(including the interpretation of any provision) shall be final and binding.
BOC Trustee shall hold the trust fund in accordance with the terms of
the trust deed.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board of
Directors, the 2020 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of listing.

Scheme Limit and Entitlement

The Board of Directors shall not make any further award which will
result in the maximum number of new H Shares that can be awarded
and issued for the purpose of the 2020 Share Award Scheme in any
financial year is 3% of the total number of issued share capital in the H
Shares at the relevant time (i.e. 10,650,000 H Shares). The maximum
number of new H Shares that can be allotted and issued to a selected
employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued share capital in the H Shares at the relevant time (i.e.
3,550,000 H Shares). The total number of shares available for award (less
those vested and cancelled)under the 2020 Share Award Scheme was
9,095,000 as at the date of this annual report, representing 0.6% of the
issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

Since the adoption date of the 2020 Share Award Scheme and up to
the date of this annual report, a total of 2,050,000 shares had been
granted under the 2020 Share Award Scheme, representing about 0.15%
of the number of shares in issue on the adoption date.
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Grant

After the Board of Directors has decided to make a grant to any
selected employee, the Board of Directors shall send a grant notice to
such selected employee with a copy thereof to the BOC Trustee within
14 business days after the grant was made. Such selected employee
shall confirm acceptance of the awarded shares by signing and
returning to the Board of Directors the acceptance form within 14
business days after the date of the relevant grant notice.

Vesting and Conditions

The Board of Directors is entitled to impose any conditions (the “2020
Vesting Conditions”) as it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion
with respect to the vesting of the 2020 Awarded Shares on the selected
employee, and shall set out the relevant 2020 Vesting Conditions and
the 2020 Awarded Shares in the relevant grant notice.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the 2020 Share Award Scheme
and the fulfilment of all 2020 Vesting Conditions on such selected
participant as specified in the 2020 Share Award Scheme and the
relevant grant notice, the respective awarded shares held by the BOC
Trustee on behalf of the selected participant shall vest in such selected
participant in accordance with the vesting schedule as set out in the
relevant grant notice.

On 26 June 2020, the Board of Directors granted to 18 selected
participants 2,050,000 2020 Awarded Shares under the 2020 Share
Award Scheme (the “Planned Share Award”). As at 31 December
2022, the BOC Trustee held 495,000 H Shares that it purchased from
the open market.

On 30 September 2020 and 30 June 2021, the Company granted to 18
selected participants 820,000 and 410,000 2020 Awarded Shares, and
of which have already been vested, representing in aggregate 60% of
the Planned Share Award.
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The table below sets out the movements of 2020 Awarded Shares
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during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022:

2020 F S EN A% (7 K & E) -

Number of awarded shares

T X & 5 74202291 A1H £2022412 A31H H &

#BRHHA
Closing price of  Closing price of
the Company’s  the Company’s
H Shares H Shares
Cancelled/  OQutstanding immediately immediately
As at Granted Vested lapsed asat before the date before the
Vesting 1January duringthe during the duringthe 31 December of grantin 2022  vesting date in
Name Date of grant date") 2022 year™*?  year™*?  yearled 20222 (HKS)Mote 2 2022 (HK$)
2120225 242022 F
R B HA BERHA
RER R2022F  ADFHRH  ALFHRH
R2022%F RER RER &%/ 12A31A g W B
i REAH BEAHI 118 RE"2 BEOHY KPR HRFET (B ) e ()
Directors
=
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng ¥ 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 120,000 — 60,000 — 60,000 — 117
BREFEM 2020F6A26H 202246 A30H
Mr. Ow Weng Cheong (resigned on 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 80,000 — — 80,000 — — —
30 March 2022)
Rk 2 % & (2022 2020F6H26H 202246 A30H
3A3HEL)
Mr. Wang Jinsheng (resigned on 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 80,000 — — 80,000 — — —
30 March 2022)
FHE R A (20225 2020F6A26H  2022F6A30H
3A30HEL)
Ms. Zhou Jinying (appointed as 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 70,000 — 35,000 — 35,000 — 117
executive Director on
31 May 2022 and retired on
18 January 2023)"° %
[EISHE 7+ (7220225 20206 A26H 202266 A30H
5ANBEZEANTES
172023514188
Mr. Shi Lei (appointed as executive 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 40,000 — 20,000 — 20,000 — 1.17
Director on
31 May 2022)"et4
B&ELE(R202F5A318 2020F6H26H 202296 A30H
EZErpmES)
Supervisor
Ex
Ms. Lian Xianmin 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 20,000 — 10,000 — 10,000 - 1.17
(retired on 18 January 2023)
REHLL 202096 A26H 202246 A30H
(20231 A18 BR M)
Senior Management
BEREEE
Mr. Wang Zhixian 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 32,000 — 16,000 — 16,000 - 1.17
AZREE 2020565268  2022F6A30H
Mr. Meng Tao (Note 4) 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 70,000 — 35,000 — 35,000 — See Note 4
RBEENT4) 2020F6A26H 202246 A30H A4
Other Selected Employees 26 June 2020 30 June 2022 308,000 — 149,000 40,000 119,000 — See Note 5
HitREES 2020F6A26H 202246 A30H A5
Total 820,000 — 325,000 200,000 295,000 -
At
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Notes:

1. The awarded shares granted on 26 June 2020 shall be vested in four
tranches with the vesting schedule as follows: (i) as to 40% of the 2020
Awarded Shares on 30 September 2020; (ii) as to 20% of the 2020
Awarded Shares on 30 June 2021; (iii) as to 20% of the 2020 Awarded
Shares on 30 June 2022; and (iv) as to 20% of the 2020 Awarded Shares
on 30 June 2023.

2. No H Shares under the 2020 Share Award Scheme were granted during
2022. The purchase prices of the vested share awards during 2022 and
unvested share awards as at 31 December 2022 were nil.

3. The outstanding awarded shares (unvested) lapsed during 2022 upon the
resignation of the employees.

4. Mr. Xiao Dongsheng, Mr. Shi Lei, Ms. Zhou Jinying, and Mr. Meng Tao
were four of the five highest-paid employees as at 31 December 2022,
and the aggregate number of shares vested to them during 2022 were
150,000. The weighted average closing price of these shares before the
relevant vesting dates in 2022 was HK$1.17.

5. In 2022, a total of 149,000 shares were vested to other selected
employees. The weighted average closing price of these shares before
the relevant vesting dates in 2022 was HK$1.17.

2021 Share Award Scheme

The Board of Directors has approved the adoption of the 2021 share
award scheme (the “2021 Share Award Scheme”) on 10 December
2021. The 2021 Share Award Scheme is analogous to a share scheme
and subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the 2021 Share Award Scheme, the grant of 2021 awarded
shares (the “2021 Awarded Shares”) by the Board of Directors to the
selected participants may vest in the form of H Shares.

Purposes

Considering the continual operation and further development of the
Group, the purpose and objective of the 2021 Share Award Scheme
are to recognise the contributions by certain employees of the Group
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them and to attract
suitable personnel.
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Participants

Pursuant to the 2021 Share Award Scheme, any full-time or part-time
employees of the Group (including any Director) of any member of the
Group at any time during the trust period are eligible participants of the
2021 Share Award Scheme.

Administration

The 2021 Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration
of the Board of Directors and the trustee (the “Futu Trustee”) in
accordance with the scheme rules and the trust deed. The decision of
the Board of Directors with respect to any matter arising under the 2021
Share Award Scheme (including the interpretation of any provision)
shall be final and binding. The Futu Trustee shall hold the trust fund in
accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board of
Directors pursuant to the scheme rules, the 2021 Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the
adoption date.

Scheme Limit and Entitlement

The Board of Directors shall not make any further award which will
result in the aggregate number of the Shares awarded by the Board of
Directors under the 2021 Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time (i.e. 140,000,000
H Shares). The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to
a selected employee under the 2021 Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any 12-month
period (i.e. 14,000,000 H Shares). The total number of shares available
for award (less those vested and cancelled) under the 2021 Share
Award Scheme was 140,000,000 as at the date of this annual report,
representing 10% of the issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report.

Since the adoption date of the 2021 Share Award Scheme and up to
the date of this annual report, a total of 23,487,800 shares had been
granted under the 2021 Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 1.68% of the number of shares in issue on the adoption
date.
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Grant

After the Board of Directors has decided to make a grant to any
selected employee, the Board of Directors shall send a grant notice to
such selected employee with a copy thereof to Futu Trustee within five
business days after the grant was made. Such selected employee shall
confirm acceptance of the awarded shares by signing and returning to
the Board of Directors the acceptance form within five business days
after the date of the relevant grant notice.

Vesting and Conditions

Subject to the terms and condition of the 2021 Share Award Scheme
and the fulfillment of all vesting conditions to the vesting of the awarded
shares on such selected employee as specified in the 2021 Share
Award Scheme and the relevant grant notice, the respective awarded
shares held by Futu Trustee on behalf of the selected employee
pursuant to the provision hereof shall vest in such selected employee in
accordance with the vesting schedule as set out in the relevant grant
notice.

On 10 December 2021, an aggregate of 23,487,800 2021 Awarded
Shares were granted to 63 selected participants the by the Board of
Directors under the 2021 Share Award Scheme, and 2,609,800
reserved shares will be kept for the time being in the pool of the trust
fund as reserve for future grants of 2021 Awarded Shares to the
selected employees (the “Reserved Shares”). The 2021 Awarded
Shares and the Reserved Shares shall be purchased from the open
market out of cash contributed by the Group. As no new Shares will be
issued by the Company pursuant to the grant, it will not result in any
dilution effect on the shareholdings of existing Shareholders. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10
December 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Futu Trustee held
21,133,000 H Shares that it purchased from the open market.
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The table below sets out the movements of 2021 Awarded Shares
during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022:
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Vesting 1January during the duringthe lapsed during 31 December of grant in 2022 2022
Name Date of grant date Vesting period 2022 year™¢"  year™*" the year"? 20221 (HKS)Moe?) (HKS)"ere
FH202F 20226
B AHA BEASH
RER R202%  AXFHRE  ARFHRH
B202F  RER  RER 2/ 12A318 W g g
3 EEER) SRR SEEE 1818 BROY BE &ROT O MARE (BRI
Directors
B3
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng 9 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 2,916,000 — — — 2,916,000 — —
30 April 2025
HRELENE 20215 202354A30H %
12A108 202554 R 308
Ms. Zhou Jinying (appointed as 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 2,430,000 — — — 2,430,000 — -
executive Director on 30 April 2025
31 May 2022 and retired on
18 January 2023)"?
[ESE 2+ (#2022%5 4316 2021512108 202354A30H %
BZERUNES 2025545308
Wik202351 A18HEAE)
Mr. Shi Lei (appointed as executive 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 486,000 — — — 486,000 — —
Director on 31 May 2022)"¢ 9 30 April 2025
A& RE(R20295A831H 2021125108 2023F4A308%
BZERHTES) 202544 A 308
Supervisor
EE
Ms. Lian Xianmin 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 291,600 — — — 291,600 — —
(retired on 18 January 2023) 30 April 2025
REHLL 2021512108 202354A30H %
(K2023F 1A 18 B R ) 2025545308
Senior Management
BREEE
Mr. Wang Zhixian 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 350,100 — — — 350,100 — —
30 April 2025
TZREE 20215 2023F4A308%
12108 202554 A30H
Mr. Meng Tao™*¢ ¥ 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 583,200 — — — 583,200 — —
30 April 2025
mRIE 2021125108 2023F4A308%
202544 A30H
Highest-paid Employee 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 364,500 — — — 364,500 — -
(excluding Directors and 30 April 2025
Senior Management)"?
BEHHESR 2021412/108 2023F4R30HE
(TEEEER 202554 4308
V_EJ_ 5 ;:Eq EE) (M#3)
Other Selected Employees 10 December 2021 — 30 April 2023 to 16,066,400 — — 1,770,200 14,296,200 — —
30 April 2025
HittEERER 2021512108 202354A30H %
2025%4A30H
Total 23,487,800 — — 1,770,200 21,717,600 — —
it
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Notes:

1. No H Shares under the 2021 Share Award Scheme were granted nor
vested during 2022. The purchase price of the unvested share awards as
at 31 December 2022 was nil.

2. The outstanding awarded shares (unvested) lapsed during 2022 upon the
resignation of the employees.

3. Mr. Xiao Dongsheng, Ms. Zhou Jinying, Mr. Shi Lei and Mr. Meng Tao
were four of the five highest-paid employees as at 31 December 2022.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB505,330.93.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 16 July 2020 by way of global offering, raised total net
proceeds of HK$1,081.5 million (i.e. equivalent to approximately
RMB975.3 million) (the “Net Proceeds”) after deducting professional
fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses. On
7 June 2022, the Company had unutilised net proceeds from the offer
of shares of the Company (the “Unutilised Net Proceeds”) of
approximately RMB122.0 million, which was expected to be invested in
the expansion of the Group’s breeding and production capacities of
white-feathered broilers as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 June 2020. The Board of Directors had resolved to change
the use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds to repay the then existing
borrowings, replenish the cash flow of the Group, and drive the sales of
the existing businesses with sufficient working capital, which was more
beneficial to meet the Group’s operation needs and allowed the Group
to deploy its financial resources in a more effective way.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has used up all unutilised
Net Proceeds.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Proposed Initial Public Offering of A Shares

On 29 January 2021, the Board of Directors has resolved and approved
to commence the relevant preparation related to the proposed initial
public offering of A shares of the Company. The Company has engaged
Huatai United Securities Co., Ltd. as the pre-listing tutoring institution
and submitted the registration application for pre-listing tutoring with the
Shandong Supervisory Commission of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission on 29 January 2021. As at the date of this annual report,
the Company is in the stage of pre-listing tutoring procedure and has
not commenced filing the application for the proposed initial public
offering of A shares of the Company.

MGO

On 5 May 2022, an application for judicial restructuring (the “Judicial
Restructuring”) was filed against Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co.,
Ltd. (FEFEILINZEABRR A R]) (“Xiangguang Copper”), a subsidiary of
GMK Holdings, with the Liaocheng Intermediate People’s Court,
Shandong Province in the PRC by a creditor on the ground that
Xiangguang Copper is unable to repay the debts falling due. The
People’s Court of Yanggu County, Shandong Province in the PRC as
appointed to hear the case, subsequently accepted the application of
Judicial Restructuring of 19 companies, including GMK Holdings,
Fengxiang Group and Fengxiang Investment (each a former controlling
shareholders) and Xiangguang Copper (but, for the avoidance of doubt,
does not include the Company).

On 16 September 2022, an auction announcement was published by
the administrator of Xiangguang Copper (the “Administrator’) on the
network platform of Alibaba Judicial Auction in relation to the proposed
auction sale of the domestic shares of the Company held by the above
three former controlling shareholders.

On 16 October 2022, Falcon Holding LP (“Falcon” or the “Offeror”)
won the auction at the aggregate bid price of RMB1,372,279,100
(equivalent to HK$1,502,336,359) for the sale shares, being
992,854,500 domestic shares in the Company (the “Sale Share(s)”),
which represents a consideration of RMB1.3822 per Sale Share
(equivalent to HK$1.5132 per Sale Share) (the “Acquisition”). The
Offeror, the Administrator, and the above three former controlling
shareholders entered into a sale and purchase agreement and a
supplemental agreement thereto on 16 October 2022 and 19 December
2022, respectively. On 20 December 2022, the Acquisition was
completed and the Offeror became the new controlling shareholder of
the Company.

EEEHE
REEHARBEEAEE

BEEADRAREAR
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The Offeror was required to make unconditional mandatory general
offers in cash for all the issued domestic Shares and H Shares not
already owned or agreed to be acquired by the Offeror and its concert
parties in accordance with the Code on Takeovers and Mergers issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the “Takeovers
Code”). The Offeror also proposed to delist the Company from the
Stock Exchange and accordingly the Company had agreed to convene
its Shareholders’ meetings for the purpose of independent Shareholders
to consider and vote on the delisting resolution (the “Delisting
Resolution”) (among other business).

On 28 December 2022, the Offeror and the Company jointly despatched
the composite document (the “Composite Document”) comprising
(including without limitation) the offer document from the Offeror, the
response document from the Board of Directors, details of the Offers
and the Delisting Resolution (including the expected timetable and
terms of the Offers), a letter of recommendation from the independent
board committee of the Board of Directors to the independent
Shareholders in relation to the Offers, a letter of advice from the
independent financial adviser in relation to the Offers and the forms of
acceptance to the Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of
the Takeovers Code.

On 18 January 2023, the Delisting Resolution was not approved at the
Shareholders Meetings held on that date, and the Delisting Resolution
was not implemented and lapsed.

The Offers were closed at 4:00 p.m. on 1 February 2023. The Offeror
and the parties acting in concert with it were interested in a total of
1,210,640,005 Shares (representing approximately 86.47% of the
issued Shares), comprising 992,854,500 domestic shares (representing
approximately 95.01% of the issued domestic shares) and 217,785,505
H shares (representing approximately 61.35% of the issued H shares).

For details, please refer to the joint announcements of the Company
and the Offeror dated 28 October 2022, 17 November 2022, 20
December 2022, 28 December 2022, 13 January 2023, 18 January
2023 and 1 February 2023; and the Composite Document.
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Public Float and Suspension of Trading in the H shares
of the Company

As the Delisting Resolution was not approved and the public float of the
Company fell below 25% following the close of the Offers, the minimum
public float requirement as set out in Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules is not satisfied. The directors of Falcon Holding GP Limited (being
the general partner of the Offeror), for and on behalf of the Offeror,
undertook to the Stock Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure
that sufficient public float exists in the Shares, which may include
issuance of new Shares by the Company or placing down part of the
interest that the Offeror or its parties acting in concert with it hold in the
Company following the close of the Offers, to ensure the minimum
percentage of the shares as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules to the public. To restore the public float by placing down,
the Offeror may either directly dispose of, transfer, or engage a placing
agent for placing of, the shares held by the Offeror or its concert
parties. In addition, the Directors jointly and severally undertook to the
Stock Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure that sufficient
public float exists in the Shares.

The Company has applied for a temporary waiver from strict compliance
with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Note 1 to Rule 8.08(1)(b) of the Listing Rules, at the
request of the Company, trading in the H shares has been suspended
from 9:00 a.m. on 2 February 2023 since the percentage of public float
fell below 15% following the close of the Offers. For details, please refer
to the joint announcement of the Company and the Offeror dated 1
February 2023.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the public float as required under Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transaction

On 28 January 2023, the Company and Falcon entered into the loan
framework agreement (the “Loan Framework Agreement’), pursuant
to which Falcon will provide a revolving loan facility to the Group for a
term of one year commencing from 28 January 2023 and ending on 27
January 2024. The proposed annual caps, being the maximum daily
balance of the loans (including interests accrued) for the transactions
contemplated under the Loan Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024 is USD13,591,000 and
USD13,591,000 (the annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2024
is set up to 27 January 2024, being the end date of the term of the Loan
Framework Agreement), respectively. At the time of the transaction,
Falcon is the controlling shareholder of the Company directly holding
over 70% interest in the Company’s total issued share capital.
Accordingly, Falcon is a connected person of the Company and as a
result, the transactions contemplated under the Loan Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 29 January 2023 for details.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had not entered into any
connected transaction during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report, which is required to be disclosed under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

Due to the change in the controlling shareholder of the Company, the
enterprise type of the Company has changed from “other limited
company (listed)” to “company limited by shares (foreign investment,
listed)”. As a result, the scope of business of the Company as set out in
the Articles of Association shall be amended according to the PRC
regulatory requirements.

The resolution in relation to the above amendments was considered
and approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 28 February 2023. Save as disclosed above, during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, there had
been no material change to the Articles of Association. The Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Change of Overseas Auditors

In view of the change to the standards in the preparation of the
Company’s overseas financial statements in 2021 from International
Financial Reporting Standards to China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, the Board of Directors also proposed to change
the Company’s overseas auditor from BDO Limited to BDO China SHU
LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP, which was approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 May 2021.

Change of Address of the Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

The address of the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the
Company has been changed to 31/F, Tower Two, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong with effect from 30
December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company will
continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practice to
ensure the compliance of the CG Code. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 94 to 119 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management and
the Board of Directors the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Company, the audited annual results and the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Audit Committee also recommended and submitted the annual results
and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
the Board of Directors for approval.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public
Accountants LLP.
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MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of the Report of Board of Directors, the composition of

the Board of Directors is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Non-executive Directors:

Independent non-executive
Directors:

By order of the Board of Directors
Zhu Lingjie
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Shandong, PRC, 30 March 2023
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Mr. Xiao Dongsheng
Mr. Shi Lei

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei
Mr. Lu Wei

Mr. Zhu Lingjie
Ms. Zhou Ruijia

Ms. Wang Anyi
Ms. Zhao Yinglin
Mr. Chung Wai Man
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MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

As at the date of the report of Board of Supervisors, the composition of
the Board of Supervisors is as follows:

Shareholders representative Supervisor: Ms. Gao Jin
Mr. Zhu Kaijie

Employees representative Supervisor: Mr. Ma Xianwen

FUNCTIONS AND AUTHORITIES AND
OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the functions and powers of the
Board of Supervisors include, among other things:

()  to supervise the Directors, general manager and other senior
management to ensure that they do not act in contravention of
any laws, administrative regulations or the Articles of Association
during the performance of their functions, and to propose removal
of Directors and senior management who have violated laws,
administrative regulations, the Articles of Association or the
resolutions of the general meetings;

(Il)  to require Directors and senior management to make corrections
if their conduct has damaged the interests of the Company;

(I)  to review the financial position of the Company;

(IV) to verify the financial information such as the financial report,
business report and profit distribution plan to be submitted by the
Board of Directors to the general meetings and to appoint, in the
name of the Company, certified public accountants and practicing
auditors to assist in the re-examination of such information should
any doubt arise in respect thereof;

(V) to propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings and,
in case the Board of Directors does not perform the obligations to
convene and preside over the general meetings in accordance
with Company Law, to convene and preside the general
meetings;
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(V1) to submit proposals to the general meeting; () MERRAGRERESR:
(VIl) to propose the convening of a provisional meeting of the Board of () RECHEZEEemEFeE
Directors;
(VIIl) to initiate legal proceedings against Directors and senior () & E”(’“:J5£>>%151 BHHE HES ShE
management in accordance with Article 151 of the Company BABRBHFND:
Law; and
(IX) to exercise other functions and powers stipulated by laws, () AR TBUER RCA R ER)RE 69 H B -
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association.
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ==k
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors had held five BREBRN BB TRARERE TRAABT
meetings and considered and approved proposals and matters QRONFEEETETIEHRS) QU FFERE) (F
including 2021 Work Report of the Board of Supervisors, 2021 Annual EABEAIRTE) (NEPEERE)  (2022F F B %
Report, Annual Profit Distribution Plan, Internal Control Report, 2022 BERhPHmE) (BREMRERFRABESZHEREA
Interim Results and Interim Report and Resolutions on Early Election of MER)SRENFH REHPA AQFESHFE
the New Session and the Candidates for Supervisor of the Fifth EEe@XmBROT

Session. The attendance of the Supervisors of the Company at
meetings of the Board of Supervisors during the Reporting Period is

listed below:
Number of meetings
attended”/Number of
attendance required
HESBERHE
Supervisors E=x EHEEBARE
Mr. Chen Dehe (retired on 18 January 2023) PREE %A (7A2023F1 518 B iR F) 5/5
Ms. Lian Xianmin (retired on 18 January 2023) BEESH I (7A2023F1 518 HE ) 5/5
Mr. Zhang Jun (retired on 18 January 2023) iR E %A (7A2023F1 518 H R L) 5/5
Note: o
(1) Attendance in meetings includes on-site attendance and attendance by 1) HEEZLERSHENESE KRESZHE-

way of telephone and video conference.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF



REPORT OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, with a view to be committed to the
Shareholders and the Company, the Board of Supervisors has diligently
performed its duties of supervision pursuant to applicable laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors
continued to improve the supervisory methods to improve its
effectiveness and influence so as to effectively protect the interests of
the Shareholders and the Company to exercise its supervisory and
counter balancing under the corporate governance of the Company and
specifically carried out the following work:

1. supervised the operation of the Company in accordance with the
law, the implementation of the Company’s decision-making
procedures, internal control system and the performance of duties
by the Directors and senior management in accordance with the
law, and the production, operation and management of the
Company and other major matters. The Board of Supervisors is
of the view that: the Company operates in strict accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations and the provisions of the
Articles of Association, etc., the decision-making procedures are
legal and there are no irregularities in operation; the Directors
and senior management of the Company can perform their duties
faithfully and diligently in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the State and the relevant provisions of the Articles
of Association, and no acts detrimental to the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders have been found;

2. the Board of Supervisors inspected and supervised the financial
situation of the Company in 2022 and checked the financial
information such as financial report, business report and profit
distribution plan to be submitted to the Shareholders’ meeting by
the Board of Directors, and the Board of Supervisors was of the
opinion that: the Company conducted financial management in
strict accordance with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations, its financial system was sound and effectively
implemented, its capital was in good condition, and it could
effectively prevent operational risks;
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ExgHsE

the Board of Supervisors has conducted a comprehensive
inspection of the related party transactions of the Company and
is of the opinion that: the parties to the transactions have followed
the principle of “fairness and impartiality” and the transaction
prices are fair and have not harmed the interests of the Company
and other non-connected Shareholders;

the Board of Supervisors supervised the internal control and
concluded that: the Company follows the basic principles of
internal control and has established a sound internal control
system covering all aspects of the Company in accordance with
its actual situation to ensure the safety, integrity and effective use
of assets. The Company’s internal control organization is
complete, and the internal audit department and personnel are
fully equipped and in place to ensure that the implementation and
supervision of the key activities of the Company’s internal control
are adequate and effective; and

the Board of Supervisors inspected of the Company’s information
disclosure matters and concluded that: as of the end of the
Reporting Period, the Company has established the information
disclosure related system in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, and the Company’s information disclosure was true,
accurate, timely and complete, which could effectively protect the
right to information of investors, especially the small and medium
Shareholders.
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WORK PLAN FOR 2023

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors will continue to faithfully and diligently
perform its duties to further promote the improvement of the Company’s
corporate governance structure and the standardised operation of its
business management, and to establish a good and honest image of
the Company.

1. strengthen supervision of Directors and senior management in
accordance with laws and urge the Company to further improve
the governance structure and enhance the level of governance in
accordance with the requirements of laws and regulations;

2. continue to strengthen and perform supervisory functions, keep
abreast with and actively focus on major decision-making matters
of the Company, and supervise and promote the legality of
various decision-making procedures to better safeguard the rights
and interests of Shareholders; and

3. further strengthen the implementation of the internal control
system by supervising and inspecting the Company’s finances as
well as supervising and inspecting the production and operation
of the Company; strengthen the supervision and inspection of the
enterprise, to prevent operational risks and to promote the
healthy and stable development of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Board of Supervisors had no objection to
other supervisory issues during the Reporting Period.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Gao Jin
Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors

Shandong, PRC, 30 March 2023
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TEERA®RE

The Board of Directors is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards. The Board of Directors believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing a framework
for the Company to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

Since the H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date, the Company has been
complying with the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to Listing Rules throughout the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

The Company has been committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and the growth of its
business and to reviewing such practices from time to time to ensure
that the Company compiles with statutory and professional standards
and align with the latest development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively in the best
interest of the Company.

The Board of Directors regularly reviews the contribution required from

a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time per forming them.
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TEERHRE
Board of Directors Composition EEEgHAR
The Board of Directors currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of EEHEANEBESTAKN BEMEBNTES  HE
two executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and three HFRTEER =B IFNTEST - EFGREAKE
independent non-executive Directors. The current members of the BB :
Board of Directors are listed as follows:
Name Position in the Company
£ ARABA
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng Executive Director and general manager
HRAERE BMITEEREKE
Mr. Shi Lei Executive Director, vice general manager, chief financial officer,
secretary to the Board of Directors and joint company
secretary
AZEHE HITEF BEKE VKA SFeWERBEAA
WmE
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei Non-executive Director
i &£ EMITEE
Mr. Lu Wei Non-executive Director
BRSE EMITES
Mr. Zhu Lingjie Chairman of the Board of Directors and non-executive Director
N EECIRFEINTES
Ms. Zhou Ruijia Non-executive Director
JE 3w 2 &2+ FEWMITES
Ms. Wang Anyi Independent non-executive Director
FTLHEL WIUIEMITES
Ms. Zhao Yinglin Independent non-executive Director
A £+ BYIEMITES
Mr. Chung Wai Man Independent non-executive Director
EREXRE BUIERITES
The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate EERE (9B MBRB(EMBAADR ARG T
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to N ZERBBAANTAREE BIIENTESH
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are M RBCETHRANDERTE A RIBA P AREHA -
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section EZVHREFBENANFRIES EERafE
headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior BERR]—&-
Management” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge of the BRARFRABEEIN BARAMMN -EEEKEZ
Company, there are no financial, business, family, or other material MBS 25 RESEMEREER-

relationships among members of the Board of Directors.
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Chairman and General Manager

Mr. Zhu Lingjie is the chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Xiao
Dongsheng is the general manager. The chairman of the Board of
Directors and the general manager are two different positions, and their
duties are clearly separated and set out in the Articles of Association.

The main duties of the chairman are: to preside over Shareholders’
general meetings, and convene and preside over meetings of the Board
of Directors; to supervise and examine the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board of Directors; to sign the shares, corporate
bonds and other marketable securities issued by the Company; to sign
important documents of the Board of Directors and other documents
that should be signed by the legal representative of the Company, and
exercise functions and powers of the legal representative; in case of
force majeure or major emergency in which a meeting of the Board of
Directors cannot be held in time, to exercise the special right of disposal
in respect of the business of the Company in compliance with laws and
in the interests of the Company, and report to the Board of Directors
afterwards; to organise formulation of regulations on the operation of
the Board of Directors, and coordinate the operation of the Board of
Directors; to listen to regular or irregular work reports of the senior
management members of the Company, and propose guiding opinions
on implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors; to
nominate candidates for the general manager of the Company and
secretary to the Board of Directors; to handle external affairs on behalf
of the Company and sign economic contracts concerning investments,
cooperative operations, joint ventures and loans; and to exercise other
functions and powers specified in relevant laws, regulations or the
Articles of Association and granted by the Board of Directors.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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The principal duties of general manager are: take charge of production,
operation and management matters of the Company and report to the
Board of Directors; organise the implementation of resolutions of the
Board of Directors, annual business plans and investment plans of the
Company; draft the Company’s basic management system and plans
for the establishment of the internal management structure of the
Company; formulate the specific rules of the Company; propose to the
Board of Directors to appoint or dismiss the deputy general manager,
financial officer and other senior management members; appoint or
dismiss management personnel and general staff other than those that
should be appointed or dismissed by the Board of Directors, propose
policies on the salaries, welfares, rewards and penalties related to the
employees of the Company; propose the convening of a provisional
meeting of the Board of Directors; decide on other issues of the
Company within the authority granted by the Board of Directors; decide
on the loan (both within the annual budget and extra-annual budget),
external investment, purchase or sale of assets, acquisition, lease,
mortgage, pledge or any other matters in relation to asset disposal and
guarantee with an amount of less than 10% of the Company’s audited
total assets for the latest period; and exercise other functions and
powers conferred in the Articles of Association and by the Board of
Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Since the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the Board of
Directors at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board of Directors with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent and remain so as at the date of
this annual report.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company generally for a term of three years commencing from
general meeting, which are subject to termination in accordance with
their respective terms, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years.

Directors shall be elected or replaced by the general meeting and serve
a term of office of three years. A Director may serve consecutive terms
if re-elected upon the expiration of his/her term. Any person appointed
as Director by the Board of Directors to fill a temporary vacancy or add
the quota of Directors of the Board of Directors shall serve until the next
annual general meeting of the Company, at which time the said person
is eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board of Directors and Management

The Board of Directors should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board of Directors directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to the management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal
control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board of Directors
for its efficient and effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board of
Directors for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate
actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The Board of Directors reserves for its decisions on all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, election of director
candidates and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board of
Directors, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
liabilities in respect of any legal action taken against them arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed by the
Company on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board of Directors remains informed and
relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key
plant sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During 2022, the Company organised training sessions conducted by
the legal advisers for all Directors. The training sessions covered a
wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties and
responsibilities, continuing connected transaction, disclosure of
interests and regulatory updates. In addition, relevant reading materials
including compliance manual/legal and regulatory updates/seminar
handouts have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December HE2022512A31AILFE - E2 2Bl B4
2022 are summarised as follows: m
Reading news alerts,
Attending training, briefings, newspapers, journals,
seminars, conferences and magazines and publications
workshops relevant to the relevant to the Company’s
Company’s industry and industry and business,
business, director’s duties director’s duties and/or
Name of Directors and/or corporate governance corporate governance
HERAQRTERER - FEEARRITEREY -
EEZRER D EERER W
DNEPREMBE 2 IFI R BRI AR < BB R -
EEnA meEgE - 2BRBERRE BA BT MERERY
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Liu Zhiguang (retired on 18 January 2023) N v
)75 % 4 (72202351 A18 HR )
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng N \
HERAERE
Mr. Wang Jinsheng (resigned on 30 March 2022) X \

T 8 5 4 (22022473 A 30 A & T)
Ms. Zhou Jinying (appointed on 31 May 2022 and

retired on 18 January 2023) N v
[EShIE 2z 1+ (7202248 5 A 31 H B Z £ 17 74 2023 F

1A18HR M)
Mr. Shi Lei (appointed on 31 May 2022) \ \
A& E (R2022F5 A31 B EZT)

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Liu Xuejing (retired on 18 January 2023) v \
2|2 254 (202391 A18 A R E)

Mr. Zhang Chuanli (retired on 18 January 2023) \ N
KB S (20231 A18 HIR1E)

Mr. Ow Weng Cheong (resigned on 30 March 2022) X \

25k & 58 4 (7420224 3 A 30 A BH{E)

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Guo Tianyong (retired on 18 January 2023) v v
2B B 2k A4 (70202361 A18 HIRE)

Ms. Zhao Yinglin v %
A L+

Mr. Chung Wai Man \ N
EEXRE
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Board Independence Policy

The Company has formulated the policy regarding the independence of
the Board of Directors and has appointed Mazars Risk Advisory
Services Limited to assess the effectiveness of such policy. The Board
of Directors has adopted the board independence policy (the “Board
Independence Policy”) as a mechanism to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board of Directors. The summary of which
is set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Composition

The Board of Directors ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board of Directors with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Further, independent non-
executive Directors will be appointed to board committees of the
Company (the “Board Committees”) as far as practicable to
ensure independent views are available.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adopted the Nomination Policy
with regard to the nomination of independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee also assesses the
independence of independent non-executive Directors annually
to ensure independent judgement is exercised.

Compensation

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements
will be granted to independent non-executive Directors as this
may lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise their
objectivity and independence.

Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to seek further information from the management on the
matters to be discussed at meetings of the Board of Directors.
Independent professional advice would be provided to Directors
upon reasonable request to assist them to perform their duties to
the Company. Any Directors who have a material interest in a
contract, transaction or arrangement shall not vote or be counted
in the quorum on any resolution approving the same.
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(v) Board Evaluation

(vi)

Evaluation of the Board of Directors is a continual process. In
accordance with the Board Independence Policy, each Director
reviews the performance of the Board of Directors, as well as the
performance of the Board Committees, through various means:

— Annual questionnaires

An annual self-evaluation questionnaire is conducted by the
Board of Directors and Board Committees. Each of the
Board is required to submit an anonymous questionnaire
on relevant matters such as the Board’s performance, its
dynamics and processes, its composition and diversity, risk
management, and the proceedings of Board meetings. The
questionnaire encourages Directors to share suggestions,
provide comments and raise any concerns.

—  Feedback
A summary of the evaluation result is prepared based on
the anonymous questionnaires collected, and is provided to
the Board of Directors and Board Committees.

— Action Plan
The Board of Directors and Board Committees consider
and discuss constructive insights and action plans in light
of the evaluation process, as appropriate.

Evaluation Results

Mazars Risk Advisory Services Limited has conducted a
evaluation on the independence of the Board of Directors in 2022,
including, among others, the composition of the Board, time
commitment of Directors, professional input obtained by
Directors, self-evaluation of the Board of Directors and the
evaluation of independence of the non-executive Directors. In
accordance with the relevant evaluation results, Mazars Risk
Advisory Services Limited concluded that the Board
Independence Policy adopted by the Group was effective as a
mechanism to ensure that the Board of Directors acquires
independent input and views.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the evaluation results and
the Board Independence Policy, and considered that the
Company’s mechanism in ensuring independent views and input
are provided to the Board of Directors is effective.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, each of which has been delegated responsibilities and
reports back to the Board of Directors. The roles and functions of these
committees are set out in their respective terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of these committees will be revised from time to
time to ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the Company
and to ensure compliance with the CG Code where applicable. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, including three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Guo Tianyong and Ms. Zhao Yinglin. Mr.
Chung Wai Man was the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendations on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors; to review and
monitor the independence and objectiveness of the external auditors
and the effectiveness of the audit procedure in accordance with
applicable standards; the Audit Committee shall discuss the nature and
scope of audit and the reporting requirements with the auditors before
the commencement of audit; to review the financial information of the
Company and its disclosure; to oversee the financial reporting system,
internal control procedure and risk management of the Company; to
enhance the communication between internal auditors and external
auditors; and to develop a policy on engaging external auditors to
supply non-audit services to our Board of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee held two meetings, during which
matters such as the annual results and report for the year ended 31
December 2021, the interim financial results and report for the six
months ended 30 June 2022, and adoption information disclosure and
management measures, etc. were considered and internal control
reports were discussed and reviewed.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, including two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Guo Tianyong and Mr. Chung Wai Man and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Zhiguang. Mr. Guo Tianyong was the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include to make
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the remuneration
policies and package of all Directors and senior management of
the Company and the proper and transparent procedures for the
formulation of remuneration policies; to review and approve
the remuneration proposals of the management with reference to
the corporate targets and objectives set by the Board of Directors; to
make recommendations to the Board of Directors on remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management
members; this shall include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment; to make recommendations
to the Board of Directors on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors; to take into account the salary levels of comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
terms of other positions of the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that the
compensation is in compliance with contractual terms. In the event of
any inconsistency with contractual terms, the compensation shall also
be fair and reasonable but not excessive; to review and approve the
compensation arrangement for dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that it is in compliance with the contractual terms.
In the event of any inconsistency with contractual terms, the
compensation shall also be reasonable and appropriate; to ensure that
no Director or any of their associates participate in the decision of their
own remuneration; to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, including any grants of
options or awards to directors or senior management, and to make
disclosure and give explanation in the corporate governance report on
the appropriateness to approve such material matters (if any); and other
duties commissioned by the Board of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings, during which matters such as
emolument policy and structure of the Company, Directors’
remuneration packages, review of the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee and other related matters were discussed.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

FHWEES

RBEHAN FHEZEERS="2KNE MEFEL
FERTEE HMIHBEELERBREXEE B—F
HITESE AT EE - FHEESIRAFTESE
pia

FHEZEeRBEEBZRRTEREXEATRIM
HERRER FTHEZEENIZREREAAFES
LEMERAEN2BHFMBRLERE  MHRIE
RMEERENREFHTHFMBER REEGROZ
o AREEEMIICESHEERMBRE RIEE
BEMNFHRER AEFERRENRNTEERS
MEBABHFHIGTE - HEBEIFSENE  RIAK
TRAMEEESR(ERBRIREBBRTENE
B) RARATESFNTFHAREESRLIEZR TR
AEARSNNHM ANHOEEEBREARE
BAEMBAAEBGE R RILEMATEER
SREBEAERERRIRIEBRBEAETEMAIN
HEE  UERZEFHERS OGN -2 5REH
ABRBEF B RETRERTERE  TRBZ B
Rt EREETRREMBREABRLERESTMY
EOBEZY UBRZEFLHFEGOGR -3 &
REESWEFR - BFHRETAGEEE @ #R
FREEREFTRAERATGL2EEETMECHH
Bt RSB E TR BDE 1T E RGO B
HEE BRAESHASAEEEROEMAESRE
By ARSI ENEREE(MA)RTEE £
XERABMETIFLBEBELREE  REFTERTHHEM
RLAE

HZE2022F12A3MBILFE HFHEE Y RT
RedF HENW®EBEE S AR 2 H B ok 5L
B EBEBZFHGE BHFHEZEEZHETHRAA
HiiERERE -

Rl



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management by bands for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

TEER®RE

BECEEATHINKEXFEASE TXHINEE
022F1N2ANBILEFERREHEE SN TFTaRER
B 05 B

Remuneration bands FHrERM Number of Individuals A
Nil to HK$5,000,000 £ % 5,000,0007%8 7T 5 5
Nomination Committee BEZZES

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee comprises
three members, including one executive Director, namely Mr. Liu
Zhiguang, two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo
Tianyong and Ms. Zhao Yinglin. Mr. Liu Zhiguang was the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include (I) reviewing the selection criteria
and procedures, structure, number, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, culture and education, expertise, skill,
knowledge and term of office) of Directors and senior management
annually and make suggestions on any proposed changes to the
Directors and senior management based on the strategy of the
Company; (ll) identifying and selecting qualified candidates to be
nominated as Directors and senior management or make
recommendations to the Board of Directors. As for the identification of
suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall consider their
merits and review measurable requirements with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of Directors and senior management; (lll) making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the appointment or re-
appointment of and the succession planning for Directors and senior
management. The Nomination Committee shall at its discretion,
together with the Board of Directors, take into account various factors,
including the strategy of the Company, and the personnel skill,
knowledge, experience and member diversity to be required; (IV)
reviewing, at its discretion, the diversity policy and relevant measurable
targets of the Board of Directors, supervise the implementation
progress of the targets and make relevant disclosure in corporate
governance report annually; (V) reviewing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (VI) other duties as
authorised by the Board of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to the
balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, business,
requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings, during which matters such as structure, size and
composition of the Board of Directors and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors were discussed. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
of the Board of Directors is maintained.

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee will identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors on the selection
of individuals. The Nomination Committee will determine the
composition of members of the Board of Directors based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee will also
make recommendations to the Board of Directors on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for Directors (in
particular the chairman of the Board of Directors and the general
manager), taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy and
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board of Directors has adopted a board diversity policy which sets
out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board of Directors. The board diversity policy provides that the
Company should endeavour to ensure that the members of the Board
of Directors have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution of
the Group’s business strategy. Pursuant to the board diversity policy,
we seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to professional experience,
skills, knowledge, age, gender, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. The Nomination Committee shall review
this policy and the measurable objectives at least annually, and as
appropriate, to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board of
Directors.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board of Directors comprises
nine directors, three of which are females. The Board of Directors
targets to maintain at least the current level of female representation,
with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity in the near future. The
Company has also maintained an approximately workforce 50%:50%
(male:female) gender ratio in the past year.

In considering the Board of Directors’ succession, the Board of
Directors recognises that the gender diversity of the Board of Directors
is achieved but can be further improved. We will endeavour to identify
suitable female candidates for future appointment to the Board of
Directors and provide career development and training opportunities for
our female employees to qualify them for future management and the
Board of Directors positions.

The Company will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity of
the Board of Directors and senior management and shall increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for the Board of Directors, with
the ultimate goal of bringing greater gender diversity to the Board of
Directors.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and nomination procedures adopted to guide the
Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure that the Board of Directors has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

. character and integrity;

. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board of Directors and other directorships and
significant commitments;
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. for independent non-executive Directors, requirement for the

Board of Directors to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

. board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board of
Directors; and

. such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board of Directors is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

From the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the Board of
Directors had reviewed the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the corporate governance policies and practices, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

MEETINGS ATTENDED AND HELD

Since the Listing Date, the Company adopts the practice of holding
meetings of the Board of Directors regularly, at least four times a year
for meetings of the Board of Directors, and at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the attendance records of each
Director of the Board of Directors at the meetings of the Board of
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Directors and general meetings held by the Company are set out below:

TEER®RE

HE2022F12R3MAEFE SEEEEEHFEAR
ARRABITZEZTEERLKEE

SEREHIWT

Attendance/Number of meeting(s)

HERH ERHE
Meeting(s) of Audit Remuneration Nomination
the Board of Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Directors meeting(s) meeting(s) meeting(s) meeting(s)
Exg FHitEaw FHEES REZES
BB i & i g% BRRAR
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Liu Zhiguang (retired on 18 January 2023) 77 N/A 3/3 2/2 11
275 4 (7202341 A18 BE(T) i A
Mr. Xiao Dongsheng 77 N/A N/A N/A 17
HERAERE i A i A i A
Mr. Wang Jinsheng (resigned on 30 March 2022) 0/0 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
(Note 1)
T B S 4 (202243 A 30 B BHAE) (MY st 1) i@ A T E A i A
Ms. Zhou Jinying (appointed on 31 May 2022 and 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
retired on 18 January 2023) (Note 2)
FESHE 22+ (12022 F5 A31 HEZ i A TiE A T A
202341 A18 BIR{T) (M 5£2)
Mr. Shi Lei (appointed on 31 May 2022) (Note 2) 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
A&EE(R2022F65 A31 B EZ ) (f:t2) N3 A iE A AN
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Liu Xuejing (retired on 18 January 2023) 77 N/A N/A N/A 11
2|25 % 4 (7202351 18 HE ) i A T iE A i A
Mr. Zhang Chuanli (retired on 18 January 2023) 77 N/A N/A N/A 11
SRE L5 4 (7 20234F1 A18 BE(T) i A i i A
Mr. Ow Weng Cheong (resigned on 30 March 0/0 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
2022) (Note 1)
[k B 58 & (R2022F3 A30 B & F) (Aat 1) i T iE A i A
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Guo Tianyong (retired on 18 January 2023) 77 2/2 3/3 2/2 17
BB LA (7 2023F 1 A18 AR (T)
Ms. Zhao Yinglin 77 2/2 N/A 2/2 17
A 4+ A~ iE A
Mr. Chung Wai Man 77 2/2 3/3 N/A 17
EREXEE 58 A
Notes: Bt aE -
1. Mr. Wang Jinsheng and Mr. Ow Weng Cheong resigned before the 1. THEEEERBKEEERBITESTS L HAGIT -
holding of the meeting of the Board of Directors.
2. Ms. Zhou Jinying and Mr. Shi Lei shall attend 6 meetings of the Board of 2.

Directors, 0 Audit Committee meeting, 0 Remuneration Committee
meeting, 0 Nomination Committee meeting and 0 general meeting.
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Meetings of the Board of Directors include regular meetings and
extraordinary meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be held at least four times a year and shall be convened by the
chairman. Notice of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
given to all Directors and supervisors at least 14 days in advance and
the board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information shall be delivered to all Directors at least three days prior to
the date of such regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

An extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors may be held by
request of Shareholders representing more than 10% of the voting
rights or by request of no less than one-third Directors or by the
chairman or by two or more independent non-executive Directors or by
request of the Board of Supervisors or by request of the general
manager. Notice of an extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors
shall be given to all Directors, supervisors and general manager at least
five days in advance and the board papers thereof shall be delivered to
all Directors at least three days prior to the date of such meeting.

The Board of Directors shall keep minutes on matters discussed at
meetings of the Board of Directors, including any concerns or objections
raised by the Directors. The minutes shall be signed by the Directors
present at the meeting and by the secretary to the Board of Directors.
Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be kept as the
Company’s record for a period of ten years.

The Board of Directors and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility for oversight of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board of Directors has delegated oversight to the Audit Committee to
oversee the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis, and to conduct reviews of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The Group has
established risk management and internal control systems, consisting
of relevant organisational framework policies and procedures, financial
reporting procedures and processes, compliance rules and policies and
risk management measures that the Group believes are appropriate
processes for its business operations to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. The aforementioned systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Internal Audit

The Company has adopted an internal audit system and has external
auditors responsible for the independent and objective supervision,
examination and evaluation of the Company’s conditions such as
revenues and expenditures, business activities, risk conditions and
internal control. The auditors shall report to the Board of Directors or
the Audit Committee and the Board of Supervisors annually if any
material problems are discovered during the audit procedure.

The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising, reviewing and
evaluating the Company’s internal audit to ensure that the internal audit
was independent and effective. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Company’s internal audit methods, audit policies and
procedures and annual auditing plans and providing guidance and
supervision. The Company had adhered to the principles of
independence, objectivity, prudence, efficiency, importance and
pertinence during the internal auditing process. The Company’s internal
audit system is comprehensive covering business operation, risk
management, internal control and corporate governance.
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The Company and the external auditors conducted an annual internal
control review (the “Internal Control Review”) on, among others,
control environment, risk management, information and communication,
monitoring of controls, operational level controls and provided
recommendations to enhance the internal control system of our Group.

We have adopted and implemented the recommendations provided by
the external auditors and the external auditors have not identified any
material findings which may have material impact on the effectiveness
of our internal control system.

Based on the result of the Internal Control Review, the Board of
Directors, as supported by the Audit Committee, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2022, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting, internal audit
function, adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted arrangement to facilitate employees and
other stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee shall review such arrangement regularly and
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company strictly complies with the Anti-Corruption and Bribery
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, which
expressly prohibit corrupt practices such as corruption and bribery. To
prevent fraud, strengthen corporate governance and internal control,
reduce corporate risks, regulate business practices and protect the
legitimate rights and interests of the Company and its shareholders, we
have developed the “Employee Behaviour Red Line” and “Employee
Non-Compliance Management System”, which clearly define the
violations, types of penalties, principles of penalties, investigation of
violations and management of penalty files.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control procedures
have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised access and use of
inside information are strictly prohibited.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
Directors and Supervisors and the Directors and Supervisors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code from the Listing
Date up to the date of this annual report. The Company’s employees,
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company, are also subject to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Board of Directors is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements relating to disclosure of inside information and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board of Directors such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board of
Directors to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s
financial statements, which are put to the Board of Directors for
approval.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent Auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total fee paid/payable to the external Auditors of the Company,
BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP, in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

B AN B &

HZE2022F12A31A L FE - AR R INEZ ERD L
EEHIEBM(BEREBEAR) 2EXRFEIERE
ERECH, ENEFBERANTE

Category of services R EB Fee paid/payable
B A E A

RMB’000

ARETT

Audit services ERR® 1,800
Non-audit services EBEZRS 350
Total mEr 2,150

The non-audit services mainly included work on reviewing the interim
financial report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Shi Lei and Ms. Yu Wing Sze are currently the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Ms. Yu is an associate member of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (currently known as
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute) and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (currently known as The
Chartered Governance Institute) in the United Kingdom. Ms. Yu is now
working in TMF Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Shi and Ms. Yu worked and
communicated closely to discharge the functions of joint company
secretaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, each of Mr. Shi and Ms. Yu
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at 31 December 2022, the unrestricted monetary funds balance of
Fengxiang amounted to RMB144.7 million, the balance of short-term
borrowings amounted to RMB1,124.6 million, and the balance of long-
term borrowings and long-term payables due within one year amounted
to RMB112.4 million. Such matters, together with other circumstances
as described in Note Il (I) to the independent auditors’ report indicate
the existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the ability of Fengxiang to continue as a going concern. This
matter does not affect the expressed audit opinion.

The Directors have reviewed the cash flow projections prepared by the
management covering a period of not less than 12 months from the
date of filing of these financial statements by the Group. The
management of the Company is of the opinion that the Group will be
able to obtain sufficient working capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months after 31
December 2022. Accordingly, the Company considers it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements of
the Company.

Further discussion on the Group’s going concern uncertainties and the
Group’s action plans have been set out in the “Report of the Board of
Directors — Audit Qualification for the Year Ended 31 December 2022”,
the “Independent Auditor's Report — Basis of Qualified Opinion” and “Note
Il — Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements — Going
Concern” to the financial statements in this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company adopts shareholders’ communication policy and reviews
it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The shareholders’
communication policy sets out various communication channels
including, among other things, the Company’s website (www.fengxiang.
com) where information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices, biographical information
of the Board of Directors and other information are available for public
access, investor briefings and Shareholders’ meetings, through which
Shareholders, both individual and institutional, may communicate with
and provide feedback to the Company from time to time. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board of Directors and the Shareholders.
The chairman of the Board of Directors as well as the chairman/
chairperson of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer Shareholders’ questions
at general meetings. The external auditor of the Company is also
invited to attend annual general meetings to answer questions about
the conduct of audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Board of Directors reviewed the Group’s shareholders and
investors engagement and communication activities conducted in 2022
and was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of Director. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting

According to the Articles of Association, if Shareholders require
convening an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting, the
following procedure shall be followed:

1. Two or more Shareholders jointly holding more than 10% (inclusive)
of shares with voting rights at the general meeting to be convened
may sign one or several written requests with the same format
and content to propose to the Board of Directors to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting, and specify the
topics of the meeting. The Board of Directors shall convene the
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting responsively after
receipt of the aforesaid written request. The aforesaid amount of
shareholding is calculated on the day when the Shareholders
tender the written request.

2. If the Board of Directors fails to issue a notice of meeting within
30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
Shareholders tendering the said request may request the Board
of Supervisors to convene an extraordinary general meeting or
class meeting.

3. If the Board of Supervisors fails to issue a notice of meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
shares with voting rights at the meeting to be convened for 90
consecutive days may by themselves convene a meeting within
four months after the Board of Directors receives the said
request, and the convening procedure shall to the extent possible
be the same as the procedure by which the Board of Directors
convenes the general meeting.

Where the Shareholders convene a meeting because the Board of
Directors or the Board of Supervisors fails to convene the meeting
pursuant to the aforesaid provision, the reasonable expenses incurred
shall be borne by the Company and shall be deducted from the monies
payable by the Company to the defaulting Directors or supervisors.
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When the Company convenes the general meeting, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors and the Shareholders individually
or jointly holding not less than 5% (inclusive) of the total number of
shares carrying voting rights of the Company shall have the right to put
forward proposals to the Company in writing. The Company shall
include the matters falling within the scope of duties of the general
meeting set out in the proposal in the agenda of the meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or in the laws of
the PRC for putting forward proposals of new resolutions by
Shareholders at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move
forward a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures mentioned above. For
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate Candidates of
Directors

Written notices specifying the intention to nominate a person for
election as a Director and acceptance of such nomination by such
person, as well as the written information on such person, shall be sent
to the Company no earlier than the day after dispatch of the notice of
the General Meeting and no later than seven days prior to the date of
such meeting. The minimum length of period during the nomination and
acceptance of such nomination shall not be less than seven days.

Based on this, if a Shareholder of the Company intends to propose any
person for election as a Director, the following documents shall be
effectively delivered to the Company’s headquarter in the PRC at
Liumiao Village, Anle Town, Yanggu County, Liaocheng City, Shandong
Province, the PRC or the Company’s H Share share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, including: (i) the signed notice of the intention to propose
the candidate for election as a Director in general meeting; and (ii) the
signed notice of the candidate indicating his or her willingness to accept
the election, together with (a) information about the candidate required
to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and (b) the
written consent indicating the consent of the candidate to release his or
her personal information.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board of Directors

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board of Directors, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Liumiao Village, Anle Town, Yanggu County
Liaocheng City, Shandong Province, PRC
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)
Email: lei.shi@fengxiang.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANDONG
FENGXIANG CO,, LTD.:

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

I. QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of the Shandong
Fengxiang Co., Ltd. (“Fengxiang”), which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s balance sheets as at 31
December 2022, the consolidated and the Company’s income
statements for 2022, the consolidated and the Company’s cash
flow statements, the consolidated and the Company’s statements
of changes in owners’ equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements.

We are of the view that, except for the possible impact of matters
described in the section “BASIS OF QUALIFIED OPINION”, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and the Company’s financial position as
at 31 December 2022 and the consolidated and the Company’s
financial performance and cash flows for 2022 in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises.

Il. BASIS OF QUALIFIED OPINION

As of 31 December 2021, the bank deposit balance in the
consolidated balance sheet of Fengxiang includes RMB
1,041,438,100 deposited with GMK Finance Co., Ltd. (“GMK
Finance”), which is controlled by GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
(“GMK Holdings”), a former controlling shareholder of Fengxiang.
GMK Holdings and its subsidiaries have overdue debts, and GMK
Finance is involved in overdue repayment disputes and lawsuits.
The management of Fengxiang did not provide sufficient
supporting evidence on the possible impact of these matters on the
above-mentioned deposits and the reasons for not making
impairment provisions. We therefore express a qualified opinion on
the financial statements of Fengxiang for 2021. As of 31 December
2022, a full provision of loss of RMB808,234,800 has made for the
funds deposited with GMK Finance by Fengxiang amounting to
RMB808,234,800 and fully included in the credit impairment loss
for 2022. The management of Fengxiang did not provide sufficient
information on whether it is necessary to make impairment
provisions for the funds deposited in GMK Finance at the end of
2021. Therefore, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence regarding the opening balance of the deposit and
whether the credit impairment loss of RMB808,234,800 should all
be included in 2022. It is uncertain whether it is necessary to make
adjustments to the financial statements of Fengxiang.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on
Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of Fengxiang in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CICPA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES IN RELATION
TO GOING CONCERN

We would like to draw the attention of users of the financial
statements to the fact that as stated in Note Il (Il) to the financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the unrestricted monetary
funds balance of Fengxiang amounted to RMB144,732,800, the
balance of short-term borrowings amounted to RMB1,124,613,700,
and the balance of long-term borrowings and long-term payables
due within one year amounted to RMB112,372,600. Such matters
and situations, together with other circumstances as described in
Note Il () to the financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
ability of Fengxiang to continue as a going concern. This matter
does not affect the expressed audit opinion.

. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

B ZHE R E

BPRRPBEEM SR EANRERTT
B IF- B mEN[EMEFAEH B RE
EMETISoE T BA T RMAEELER
THWEE -ZBRPEEMEFamBEBETA
BABIRARERD  AETTREBETEN
HMEE - HABEE RAEDNFAFEBEESR
DOBERN RERREERREHRTER-

HEREEERENERTRES

BMREVERREAED LT NHBHREWF
(D) Frat - 2022512 A318  BHERHD KRR
WEEESHIER14473.288 T EEAE K eh5E
£112461378 0 —FRIHFHEHERRER
HAPE N AR 5H 511,237.26 8 Lo E L EBE A B
o ERMBREME = (D) Tl MmN
KPGEAEEREBEERGBELEENEE
EARBENEATHETHE ZBFEITFEDHERX
WEFER -

BREIEE

BRETEEERMRBEBREANLE R RELXH
MBERRBABRREENTH GLFHENEY
NHB B RABBETEN AR ETELRS
ROBRMAHELETREFERER -

Annual Report 2022 £}

121



122

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

Except for the matters described in the sections headed “BASIS
OF QUALIFIED OPINION “ and “ MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES IN
RELATION TO GOING CONCERN?, key audit matters identified in
our audit are summarised as follows:

Key audit matters

BEEt R

BRITERREBROER S M E5E L LM
MM EATEEME] MO AAFEEIN RAAER
AR ERNENERESETRELNT

How our audit addressed the matter

ZERAEBRFTRNMEHD

U]
(-)

revenue recognition

EEWRAER

Fengxiang’s operating revenue for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB5,085,790,100.

20224F E B A A1) & £ A 53508,579.01 & T ©

Operating revenue of Fengxiang are primarily generated
from the sales of frozen chicken products and meat
products, which are mainly supplied to large catering chain
enterprises, wholesale market for agricultural products,
supermarket chains and other market fields. Fengxiang
recognizes operating revenue when the control of the
goods is transferred to the customer.
BHBRMFEEZFRARBRRERN R G NERHEE
X% EnTEHEAANESREHLE  REMED
%o BEHBTEM SR - BERONEmIEH#EER
EEPREALERA -

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

(1)

M

)

)

)

(€

4)

Communicated with the management to understand the
impact of industry policies and market environment on the
performance of Fengxiang, and evaluated the rationality of
fluctuations in operating revenue;

HEBBETER TROERE THSREHEATK
MAREENTE  FTHEERARBHAIEME

Conducted interviews with management and selected sales
contracts for inspection to identify contract terms related to
the transfer of control over goods, and evaluated whether
the operating revenue recognition policy of Fengxiang
complied with the relevant requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises;
HERESHANEREEARETRS B EEmE
HIREEREBN ARG SFERERNG AR E XK
ABERBREEFELEGHERMEEEZ K

Combined with product categories, types of sales channels,
major business customers, etc., analysed the changes in
operating revenue and gross profit margin this year while
paying attention to whether there were abnormal

fluctuations;
HEEEMER HERBEAY FEEXEBEFPEZT HA

FEERARENZEHBERETON BEIRERFE
REERBER

Selected samples and implemented confirmation
procedures for trade receivable and operating revenue,
checked the confirmation results against book records, and
carried out substitute tests for no reply samples;
BEREAHEWERERMEERAER T HERT L&
HEARERTAASET TRYE YR HEEAETT
BARAH
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Key audit matters

REETSEHE

B ZHE R E

How our audit addressed the matter

REHEES T RENMESN

Since operating revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of Fengxiang, there is an inherent risk that the
management of Fengxiang (hereinafter as the
“management”) will control the timing of operating revenue
recognition in order to achieve specific goals or

®)

Selected operating revenue transaction samples, checked
sales contracts, orders, outbound documents, invoices and
customer receipt documents, export declaration forms and
other supporting documents for operating revenue
recognition, and evaluated whether revenue recognition

expectations, so we determine operating revenue conformed to the Company’s accounting policies on
recognition as a key audit matter. Please refer to Note I operating revenue recognition;
(XXV) and Note V (XXXV) for the above accounting (5) EH EHXWARZFIHER ZHIEEER FIE - L E

policies, significant accounting judgments and estimates
and related financial statement disclosures.
HRE2ERAZBFERMWERERERZ — MW
FEEBFEEROEEEBE(LATEHRBIEERD AT EDE
EEFRHEMmMBRAMAEERAERRENER @R
HMELERAERBERBERESETH Ll g5t

(6)

E BHZEREFPEWRE HORBESRABRIZFNL
X RFETEEEB A ABREST ARG ERA®BR
‘Eu+ﬁ§ﬁ

Checked the operating revenue transactions before and
after the balance sheet date, checked the outbound

B EREHHAEBFEAAREBEANBREEES documents, customer receipt documents, export declaration
BFE=(=+h)  UAEMFR(=Z+HA) - forms and other supporting documents for revenue

recognition, and evaluated whether operating revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting period.

6) REAEABRANENLEERARS KU HE
B 5 08 AT R A ﬁ%

ERPWARBWEENRENEF IR -

(II) Valuation of biological assets

(2) EMEENMHE

As of 31 December 2022, the book balance of Fengxiang’s
consumptive biological assets and productive biological
assets was RMB190,022,300 and RMB255,692,300,
respectively.

B 22022123318 RO ERLEEMEER
EEMEYMEENIKRESRED B &19,002.238 7T

25,569.23 & It ©

The measurement of the fair value of Fengxiang’s
biological assets involves significant management
judgment, particularly the estimated culling rate and the
market prices of breeders, broilers and broiler eggs. As a
result, there is an inherent risk that management will
control the fair value valuation to achieve specific goals, so
we identify the valuation of biological assets as a key audit
matter. Please refer to Note Ill (XI), (XVII) and Note V (V), (X)
for the above accounting policies, significant accounting
judgments and estimates and related financial statement
disclosures.

BHRHEDNEEARBENGESIREEBNHEKR
B R RIETEEOBIRE E%& WE - BEMNTE
ZE-RMFEEEEREINREERREM LA ABER
ENEERR KMEEVEENGERNSBRES
FTEIE Ll @EER EAEE HE A E A KRB
BBBERBEBLAEWT=(+—) (+1) ARMFER
(F) -~ (+)e

M

(1)

)

)

)

Evaluated the competence, professionalism and objectivity
of the external appraiser engaged by the Company;
SHERAREENINFEANBERN BEEZRENE
Bt

Evaluated the reasonableness of the key assumptions used
in the valuation of the productive biological assets with the
assistance of an external appraiser;
BAENNBAEEROBE T FELEEEEMEER
EFHANERBEROSEE

Implemented monitoring procedures for the Company’s
productive biological assets and reviewed the quantities of
biological assets in the valuation model to verify the
accuracy and relevance of the input data.
HRARAMWMEEMENMEEEMERREF TERMGLER
HhAYEEHS ZEMAGEABIRN LR RAEHA
o
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BYZHBE®RE

V.

V1.

OTHER INFORMATION

The management of Fengxiang (hereinafter as the “management”)
is responsible for the other information which comprises all the
information in the 2022 annual report of Fengxiang other than the
financial statements and this auditor’s report.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In conjunction with our audit to the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information. During the process,
we considered whether there was material inconsistency or there
was likely material misstatement between the other information
and the financial statements or the information we obtained during
the audit.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact. As described in the “BASIS OF QUALIFIED
OPINION” section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening balance of the
deposit and whether the credit impairment loss of RMB
808,234,800 should all be included in 2022. Accordingly, we were
unable to ascertain whether other information relating to this matter
was materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNING BODIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management shall be responsible for the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises to enable them to be fairly reflected and
to design, implement and maintain the necessary internal control
so that there is no material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, in the financial statements.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing Fengxiang’'s continuing operating
capacity, disclosing matters relating to continuing operations (if
applicable) and applying the continuing operating assumptions
unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease its operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The governing bodies are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of Fengxiang.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

I HMER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit
report containing audit opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that audits carried out in
accordance with the audit standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements may be caused by
fraud or error and are generally considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also performed the following
works:

(I) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error; design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(II) Understand the internal control related to the audit to design
the appropriate audit procedures, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

i

=

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

B ZHE R E

CEMEAHMBERRESANEL

BB EREM R EBED N EANSE
By EREUNERERENSBRE  LHA
ﬁA%ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁi ABREZSKTH
RE ELTEREFRBENERNRITHRAE
%*Eﬁ?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%%ﬁ B8 ¥ AT BE /R0 5%
BHERGH MRAIPAHEREFNELR
RAEZEVHEBRREREREYHBRRFELD
RERK RBERREREBEAN -

ERBETERITET TIENBRES - HME
EBREHNE TRFBEER B BAbH
TTATNI{E:

(=) FAAFFEERAEERSERENN T BRE
EREMER R MEREETIZEFUAEY
ELRER WERNTS  #EENETEE
ERBERBHEROER - ARFEE
FER -BE HNEER EBRRASIEE
RAREAESI 2 £ REEFIE AR EEEHM
EAEBRORARSRREZTEHNBERENR
K EE K $E Ry A B o

(D) TRRERAHEBEOAIMBZES - ARFTREN
ERTRER iEEE’\JI;‘E{fW*BT %‘JE’U%A(I&%
BHRER-

=) FEEREEASFBENR
HEE REREREN S B
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(IV) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of Fengxiang to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the information available to us up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Fengxiang to cease to continue as a going concern.

(V) Evaluate the overall presentation (including disclosures),
structure and content of the financial statements and to assess
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

(VI) Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence of the
financial information of the entities or business activities of
Fengxiang in order to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for directing,
supervising and performing group audits. We take full
responsibility for the audit opinion.

We communicated with the governing bodies regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during the audit.

We also provided a statement to the governing bodies on compliance
with ethical requirements related to independence and communicated
with them about all relationships and other matters that may be
reasonably considered to affect our independence, as well as related
precautions (if applicable).

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters we had discussed with the governing bodies, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
any law or regulation precludes public disclosure about such matters or
when, in tiny minority circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhang Guiying
(Engagement Partner)

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang Xuzeng

Shanghai « China
30 March 2023

B ZHE R E

REREEBBBMNFETD  HMAEEWLESTHEEAR
MY BEBREARREE AMBEXREREFFHE-
BPERFREPHAGELER  RIPEREREL
AFARBEELEER HEBRIBBEL T WRAEHE
HERFREPERXETRENNEERRBBHE
ABMETHMEENG R RAEENEERTRS
hEBZER-

VEEHMERR (BHREEER)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEEREGER

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 A31 8 (45 5IFE 84N @ EELHAEARE T)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Note V the period last year
Assets BE MaFa HREREE TFFRGBE
Current assets: REBEE:
Monetary funds EBEe n(—) 332,155,982.00  1,854,773,834.62
Settlement reserves HEEMNS
Loans to banks and other financial institutions T & &
Financial assets held for trading THEEREE
Derivative financial assets METMEE
Bills receivable JEUR =&
Trade receivable JFE W B8R 3K (n(=) 194,977,409.18 260,284,666.39
Financing receivables FE YR IE R &
Prepayments I8 1+ 20E (=) 46,040,884.22 84,921,646.18
Premiums receivables JEWR B
Reinsurance accounts receivable JE W 5 IR BR 3k
Provision of cession receivable WA REREHES
Other receivables H i JE YR (Iv) () 14,832,112.57 13,776,273.32
Financial assets held under resale agreements B ARES R EE
Inventories FE (V) (#) 897,446,575.83  1,018,047,140.80
Contract assets EREE
Assets held for sale BEGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FANE B IERE
BE
Other current assets HihmEh&E (Vi) (7%) 75,107,651.29 99,165,474.37
Total current assets RBEESS 1,560,560,615.09  3,330,969,035.68

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEEREGER

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 531 8 (45 5 5E 840 - @ BB A ARET)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Note V the period last year
Assets EE WA HREREE TFFRGBE
Non-current assets: ERBEE:
Disbursement of loans and advances BEHE MBI
Debt investments BEREEE
Other debt investments HihEHERE
Long-term receivables £ Hi p& 3k
Long-term equity investments REIRERE (Vi (£) 59,841,234.64 63,069,900.18
Investment in other equity instruments HihEm TREKRE
Other non-current financial assets HtERBESmEE
Investment properties BREEEME
Fixed assets EEE (Vi) (1) 3,055,596,832.42  2,961,615,175.06
Construction in progress ERIRE (1X) (1) 996,180.00 35,293,113.33
Productive biological assets SEMEMEE X)(+) 255,692,300.00 204,484,100.00
Oil and gas assets MR EE
Right-of-use assets TREEE X)(+—)  201,487,069.31 194,629,713.97
Intangible assets mLEE X (+=) 89,420,826.97 91,837,058.07
Development expenditures FZ
Goodwill GRS
Long-term deferred expenses REPGFHER
Deferred income tax assets BIEMGHAEE Xy (+=) 165,745.68 184,161.86
Other non-current assets HtERBDEE (XIV) (+P3) 4,573,164.42 48,969,974.44
Total non-current assets kRBEEST 3,667,773,353.44  3,600,083,196.91
Total assets BEMAG 5,228,333,968.53  6,931,052,232.59
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEEREGER

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 A31 8 (45 5IFE 84N @ EELHAEARE T)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Note V the period last year
Liabilities and owners’ equity BENMEEER WA HREREE TFFRGBE
Current liabilities: RBEE:
Short-term borrowings EHER (XV)(+7) 1,124,613,662.56 1,731,044,138.88
Borrowings from central bank M RBITER
Loans from banks and other financial wAES
institutions
Financial liabilities held for trading RBHECEARE
Derivative financial liabilities TESRmAaE
Bills payable FE R B XVI) (+7~) 70,000,000.00 46,606,601.35
Trade payable JE& 1+ BR &K (XVIl) (++)  454,943,148.32 448,843,615.58
Advances from customers FE U T A
Contract liabilities cREAE (Xvil)(+/1)  46,449,176.46 34,352,314.47
Financial assets sold under repurchase EHENESREER
agreements
Absorption of deposits and interbank deposit Nl ER G ACIE R
Client money received for acting as securites {32 E & & 5 3
trading agent
Client money received for acting as securities 1t 12 A 44 75 5 &
underwriter
Payroll payable JRE <) B T 55 B (XIX) (+ 1) 80,136,759.06 67,837,764.09
Taxes payable EX R & XX) (=) 10,034,876.49 9,674,077.39
Other payables H th FE A 5K (XX1)
(=+—) 228,506,878.96 236,504,040.71
Handle fee and commission payable ENFEERAS
Reinsurance accounts payable R D IRERFK
Liabilities held for sale HEFEaE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEHNERE (XX1l)
=R (=+=) 120,412,587.86 132,598,490.89
Other current liabilities EMms Ak (XXilI)
(=Z+=) 2,497,015.86 3,003,157.34
Total current liabilities REBaEEaE 2,137,594,105.57  2,710,464,200.70
Non-current liabilities: kRBEME:
Reserve for insurance contracts REEEREHBES
Long-term borrowings RHER (XXIV)
(=+m) 252,148,000.00 475,112,000.00
Bonds payable JEHEFH
Including: Preferred shares Ho @k
Perpetual bonds XEE
Lease liabilities HEAGE (XXV)
(=+n) 199,665,992.14 196,897,137.78
Long-term payables = Hi P& 15 3% (XXVI)
(=Z+~) 6,070,952.51 125,990,704.41
Long-term payroll payables £ HA P& A< B8 T %7 B
Estimated liabilities SR (XXVII)
(Z++) 124,180.88 154,688.25
Deferred income I FE W 2= (XXVIII)
(=+/0) 20,756,084.55 22,821,583.69
Deferred income tax liabilities RLEMSHARE
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBAER
Total non-current liabilities kFRBEES 478,765,210.08 820,976,114.13
Total liabilities E@E4F 2,616,359,315.65 3,531,440,314.83
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEEREGER

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 531 8 (45 5 5E 840 - @ BB A ARET)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Note V the period last year
Liabilities and owners’ equity BENMEEER WA HREREE TFFRGBE
Owners’ equity: FEEER:
Share capital & 7 (XXIX)
(=+) 1,400,000,000.00 1,400,000,000.00
Other equity instruments Hihigm TH
Including: Preferred shares o BEK
Perpetual bonds KA E
Capital reserve BEARRNTE (XXX)
(=+) 628,701,588.64 621,754,244.95
Less: treasury shares B BT (XXXI)
(=+—) 27,684,645.05 2,547,916.16
Other comprehensive income H iz A W Es (XXXII)
(=+=) -673,735.26 -254,496.85
Special reserves HIARE
Surplus reserves P YN (XXXIlI)
(=+=) 155,377,605.51 155,377,605.51
General risk reserves — MR b
Undistributed profits A5 B AE (XXXIV)
(=+m) 456,253,839.04  1,225,282,480.31

Total equity attributable to owners of BEREARIMAESE

the Company HEmAET 2,611,974,652.88  3,399,611,917.76
Minority interests LR EER

Total owners’ equity FEEERE 2,611,974,652.88  3,399,611,917.76

Total liabilities and owners’ equity EENFEEREAS 5,228,333,968.53  6,931,052,232.59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.

Person-in-charge of the Company:
Zhu Lingjie

Chief Accountant:
Shi Lei

Head of the Accounting Department:
Shen Sanxing

BB TS MR R G IRR AR D

DAFRBEA:
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TEEFIFEEA:
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ERFRBAREEA:
M=H
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

BAREEER/R

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 A31 8 (45 5IFE 84N @ EELHAEARE T)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Note XVI the period last year
Assets BE iz aay HREREE T FFRGBE
Current assets: REEE:
Monetary funds EEEe 168,956,500.60 1,257,368,979.84
Financial assets held for trading RTHMEHMEE
Derivative financial assets MESHEE
Bills receivable ey = 48 (=) 100,000,000.00  442,000,000.00
Trade receivable & U BR 5k (mn(=) 861,768,659.50 535,573,320.38
Financing receivables JEW FRIE R B
Prepayments &~ 7 IE 32,100,800.12 51,317,503.17
Other receivables H fth & UK (=) 13,254,134.80 9,705,069.18
Inventories FE 370,517,426.61 404,606,014.83
Contract assets ERAEE
Assets held for sale BEGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —F AR IERE
BE
Other current assets Hibmen&E 83,733.83
Total current assets REBEESS 1,546,681,255.46  2,700,570,887.40
Non-current assets: ERBEE:
Debt investments BEEKRE
Other debt investments B EERE
Long-term receivables £ HA i Wk
Long-term equity investments EHRERE (Iv) () 1,199,366,591.52  1,038,738,237.49
Investment in other equity instruments HEhEm T EIRE
Other non-current financial assets HiIERBEmEE

Investment properties

REMEIE

Fixed assets E B E 1,773,707,922.78  1,658,733,163.41

Construction in progress TEREIRE 996,180.00 33,682,050.76

Productive biological assets HEEMEMEE 230,123,070.00 180,103,800.00

Oil and gas assets HREE

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 174,024,097.56 178,214,185.94

Intangible assets mEEE 31,777,858.71 32,951,456.15

Development expenditures f 3 2 1

Goodwill S

Long-term deferred expenses RHFEER

Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHERE 165,745.68 184,161.86

Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 590,746.60 34,091,563.05
Total non-current assets kFRBEESF 3,410,752,212.85  3,156,698,618.66
Total assets EEHAG 4,957,433,468.31  5,857,269,506.06

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF



BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
BRAREEE/R/K

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 531 8 (45 5 5E 840 - @ BB A ARET)

Balance at Balance at

the end of the end of

Notes the period last year

Liabilities and owners’ equity BENMEEER Kt it HREREE TFFRGBE

Current liabilities: REEME:
Short-term borrowings 2 HIfE R 1,044,196,479.00  1,341,013,249.99
Financial liabilities held for trading XotemaR
Derivative financial liabilities MEeEE
Bills payable e R & 33,887,748.02
Trade payable & BR 3K 301,212,028.93 241,206,475.67
Advances from customers TEURFKIA
Contract liabilities cREAE 827,991.23 5,617,032.85
Payroll payable JFE 151 B T %5 B 25,649,053.23 21,627,577.10
Taxes payable X E 4,743,975.43 4,439,006.69
Other payable oA FE 3K 117,900,838.83 140,252,017.97
Liabilities held for sale BETERE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FANEEHIERE
BfE 114,137,492.20 93,713,486.04
Other current liabilities EfmsaE
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 1,608,667,858.85  1,881,756,594.33
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE:
Long-term borrowings REIER 252,148,000.00 275,112,000.00
Bonds payable ERHE S
Including: Preferred shares B @R
Perpetual bonds KA E
Lease liabilities HEAE 178,716,971.36 182,190,221.10
Long-term payables £ B B T 3K 90,447,906.50
Long-term payroll payables £ HA & 1< 38 T % B
Estimated liabilities EEREE
Deferred income I8 T U 25 19,388,963.22 21,146,422.36
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFTSTHARE
Other non-current liabilities HtEn#BE
Total non-current liabilities FkRBRBEST 450,253,934.58 568,896,549.96
Total liabilities =R 2,058,921,793.43  2,450,653,144.29
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

BAREEER/R

31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 2022412 A31 8 (45 5IFE 84N @ EELHAEARE T)

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
Notes the period last year
Liabilities and owners’ equity BENMEEER Kt it HREREE TFFRGBE
Owners’ equity: FEEER:
Share capital & AR 1,400,000,000.00 1,400,000,000.00
Other equity instruments Hihgm T H
Including: Preferred shares Hep - EER
Perpetual bonds KB E
Capital reserve BARRNIE 628,305,677.69 621,358,334.00
Less: treasury shares o AR 27,684,645.05 2,547,916.16
Other comprehensive income Hibir & W
Special reserves HIEF B
Surplus reserves Vg N 159,571,799.87 159,571,799.87

Undistributed profits

Ao HE

738,318,842.37

1,228,234,144.06

Total owners’ equity

FrEEEZEES

2,898,511,674.88

3,406,616,361.77

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

BENAAERSEA

4,957,433,468.31

5,857,269,506.06

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Person-in-charge of the Company:
Zhu Lingjie

Chief Accountant:
Shi Lei

Head of the Accounting Department:

Shen Sanxing
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BHRAER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )

Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiaiy 8-k ikt
I. Total operating revenue — BERNA 5,085,790,084.29 4,416,763,575.99
Including: Operating revenue b ZEUA XXXV)(=+7) 5,085,790,084.29 4416,763,575.99
Interest income FEMA
Premiums earned BERRE
Handle fee and commission income FEERARUA
II. Total operating costs T EEERE 5,060,201,964.33 4,395,383,985.61
Including: Operating costs A 2ERA XXV)(=+1) 4,502,293,389.58 3,858,825,346.50
Interest expenses FMEX
Handle fee and commission expense FEERBEX O
Surrender value BRE
Net amount of compensation payout BNZLFE
Net amount withdrawn for insurance liability reserves RORREFCERSEE
Commissions on insurance policies REMFILH
Cession charges HRER
Taxes and charges e RMm XV (=1 7) 39,155,180.17 29,550,280.08
Selling expenses HEER XV (=++) 329,205,686.52 345,018,719.94
Administrative expenses EEER coxvin (= +/1) 108,499,423.88 89,310,527.43
R&D expenses HEER OXIX) (= +1) 31,943,547.85 24.983,123.40
Finance costs MHBER XL (m+) 49,104,736.33 47,695,988.26
Including: Interest expenses Ho: FEER XL)(m+) 74,095,066.76 51,849,048.52
Interest income MEKA (XL)(ET) 23,447,718.05 37,433,512.81
Add: Other income m: Etilia (XL (i =) 9,676,253.49 13,392,460.82
Investment income (loss to be inserted with *=") FENE (BEU-]5
$31) XLn(E+=) 11,141,441.61 18,790,813.44
Including: Income on investments in associates and A HBEMEANSE
joint ventures TENRENRR -3,229,692.59 -1,741,065.89
Income from derecognition of financial assets DB AR ER
measured at amortised cost SREERIBRNE
Exchange gain (loss to be inserted with ") B 5 Wnas (B A [-]50E51)
Income from net exposure hedging (loss to be inserted FHOEBNE (BRUI-]%
with “) £51)
Gains from the changes in fair value (loss to be inserted PREEZHRE (BEMU-
with *=") $iE51) L (m+=) 21,693,761.10 -4,169,866.00
Credit impairment loss (loss to be inserted with ") ERAEEX(BRUI-I5%
E51) XLv)(m+m) -810,858,571.24 -2,150,400.44
Asset impairment loss (loss to be inserted with *-") BEREBRX(BEU-IH
£311) (XLV)(B+5) -3,936,921.91
Gains on disposal of assets (loss to be inserted with “-") BERE e (BENUI-]5
£31)) XLV)(B+7) 761,369.73 1,621,508.51

Annual Report 2022 £} 135



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

R bR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55 8RS - @ EUH AARE T
Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiaiy THeH ITHeE
I1l. Operating profit (l0ss to be inserted with *-") = BEFBBERM-IFES) -768,217,430.48 48,864,106.71
Add: non-operating income m: EEMEA XLvin(m++) 947,900.39 943,271.37
Less: non-operating expenses W EENTH (XL (m+1) 987,625.06 1,063,324.87
IV. Total profits (total loss to be inserted with “-") W FERE (BREBU-1RET) -768,257,155.15 48,744,053.21
Less: income tax expenses W EHER XLX) (7 +71) 771,486.12 1,668,638.58
V. Net profit (net loss to be inserted with =) e FHBOFERM-ISES) -769,028,641.27 47,075,414.63
(1) Breakdown by continuity of operations () BEERELHE
1. Net profit from continuing operations (net loss to be 1 HETEFFBE(EHERMN
inserted with *~") [-J5E5]) -769,028,641.27 47,075,414.63
2. Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss to be 2. RIMEEERE(FEEN
inserted with “=") [-I5E5])
() Breakdown by attributable interests (Z)RREEGENE
1. Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 1. BBRE R ERENTHE
(netloss to be inserted with “-") (FBBEUI-]5E) -769,028,641.27 50,910,673.32
2. Profit or loss attributable to minority interests (net loss to 2. PEREER(FEEN
be inserted with *-") [-]5RE51) -3,835,258.69
V1. Net other comprehensive income after tax e EfiiRd ”51 REVIR (R R E -419,238.41 -408,498.48
Net other comprehensive income attributable to the GEREARMEENAES
shareholders of the Company after tax WanhiEss -419,238.41 -408,498.48
(1) Other comprehensive income that cannot be reclassified () PRENEERENEMY
into profit or loss Falka
1. Changes arising from remeasurement of defined 1. EFHERT R #:HE2
benefit plan HE
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot be 2 BEATTHEBENED
reclassified into profit or loss under the equity method Fals
3. Change in fair value of investment in other equity JEMBRIAREARER
instruments 29
4. Change in fair value of corporate credit risks 4 bEESERERLLER
2
(Il) Other comprehensive income that can be reclassified into (D) BEDBERENENEA
profit or loss W -419,238.41 -408,498.48
1. Other comprehensive income to be reclassified into 1. 1& ik T ERRNHEM
profit or loss under the equity method relE
2. Change in fair value of other debt investments 2 H‘rﬂﬁ%?ﬁﬁ’/}& BES
3. Amount of financial assets to be reclassified into other I EBEEENBHALLM
comprehensive income melEneE
4. Credit impairment provision for other debt investments 4 HOBERBRECRAELER
5. Cash flow hedging reserve 5 RenEENREE
6. Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency 6. INEBBRRFTEER
financial statements -419,238.41 -408,498.48

7. Others
Net other comprehensive income attributable to minority
interests after tax

7. Eft
FERVERRANEBES WED
REFE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BHRAER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )

Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiaiy rHEHE ikt
VI Total comprehensive income - BelaEE -769,447,879.68 46,666,916.15
Total comprehensive income attributable to the shareholders EBREATIMBENGANE
of the Company ok -769,447,879.68 50,502,174.84
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests EERVEBRRNGAUERE -3,835,258.69
VIIl. Eamings per share: N Bl
(I)  Basic earnings per share (RMB per Share) (=) BERERKE (T/B) L(ETF) -0.55 0.04
(Il) Diluted earnings per share (RMB per Share) (Z) BEERIE (T/K) L)(ETF) -0.55 0.04
Person-in-charge of the Company:
Zhu Lingjie ARABEA:
KEZR
Chief Accountant:
Shi Lei FEEHIFAEA:
vk
Head of the Accounting Department:
Shen Sanxing BRMEBEEA:
=8
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(SNSRI ES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - £ EMH A AR E )

Amount of Amount of
Note XVI the current period the previous period
Items EH Wt~ rHEH ITHeE
. Operating revenue — BEUA V)(%) 3,260,206,263.49 2,610,065,993.02
Less: Operating costs B EERA V)(#) 3,093,615,405.77 2422717 452.14
Taxes and charges il 16,835,143.09 13,184,045.39
Selling expenses HEER 4,307,073.71 4,902,172.82
Administrative expenses EEER 72,401,634.08 61,621,966.47
R&D expenses HEER 10,984,830.74 8,882,025.83
Finance costs BHER 59,696,070.59 50,802,463.72
Including: Interest expenses HEh:FIEER 64,453,593.76 46,896,932.31
Interest income A EBA 16,114,754.18 21,974,817.90
Add: Other gains me Efla 5,824,931.02 10,675,063.75
Investment income (loss to be inserted with “") REWE (BRMUI-]5%
) V() -11,140,414.56 -10,735,826.89
Including: Income on investments in associates and o UBetENG g
joint ventures PENREANR W) () -3,228,665.54 -1,741,065.89
Income from derecognition of financial DB AR ER
assets measured at amortised cost SREERILRER
Yz V()
Income from net exposure hedging (loss to be inserted FHOEBE (BRL
with ) [-15%83)
Gains from the changes in fair value (loss to be AABEEHNE (BAMU
inserted with ") [-]%E5) 11,145,987.49 -8,686,583.69
Credit impairment loss (loss to be inserted with ") EEREREEX(BRU-I%
1851) -497,583,093.88 -515,111.86
Asset impairment loss (loss to be inserted with “-") BERBERXBEU-IH
31
Gains on disposal of assets (loss to be inserted with ) BERE s (BENUI-I5
85 -70,330.59 1,075,426.03
II. Operating profit (loss to be inserted with “") Z 2EFEBEUI-IRES) -489,456,815.01 39,768,833.99
Add: non-operating income e g EMEA 566,009.05 662,785.86
Less: non-operating expenses W EENT 224,290.00 522,394.24
IIl. Total profits (total loss to be inserted with “-") = MBagE(BREBEN-]FET) -489,115,095.96 39,909,225.61
Less: income tax expenses WMEHER 800,205.73 321645
IV. Net profit (net loss to be inserted with “-") M- ERE(F BB -] RET) -489,915,301.69 39,906,009.16
(I) Net profit from continuing operations (net loss to be inserted () BEEZFHBEFHEN
with *=") [-]5RE7) -489,915,301.69 39,906,009.16
(I1) Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss to be inserted (=) 4 1 48 % F 7% (F 124
with ) (-5 E51)
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
SNSRI ES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )
Amount of Amount of
Note XVI the current period the previous period
Items BR Mt~ rHLE ik
V. Net other comprehensive income after tax e A aKanfETE
(I) Other comprehensive income that cannot be reclassified into (-) PENBEBRRNER
profit or loss Faka
1. Changes arising from remeasurement of defined benefit 1. BN ERER & E
plan 298
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot be reclassified 2 BRETTHBERN
into profit or loss under the equity method Efpira e
3. Change in fair value of investment in other equity EMERTARERR
instruments EEZY
4. Change in fair value of corporate credit risks 4 PEESERERAR
BEZ
(I1) Other comprehensive income that can be reclassified into profit (=) B E N BEBHENE
or loss mala
1. Other comprehensive income to be reclassified into profit or 1. BRETUBERMEMN
loss under the equity method GFaka
2. Change in fair value of other debt investments 2 HBEREREAAEE
g
3. Amount of financial assets to be reclassified into other 3 EREEENRALL
comprehensive income GENENDE
4. Creditimpairment provision for other debt investments 4 HpERREGRRNE
Ef
5. Cash flow hedging reserve 5 BenEEHRE
6. Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency 6. NEBBRRNEET
financial statements
7. Others 7. Ef
V1. Total comprehensive income N RANEEE -489,915,301.69 39,906,009.16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Person-in-charge of the Company:
Zhu Lingjie

Chief Accountant:
Shi Lei

Head of the Accounting Department:
Shen Sanxing

BRI TSR R TG IMRAOE D

ARBEA:

KER

EERIFEEA:
aE

BRFRBEEA:
M=E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - £ EMH A AR E )
Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiai rHEE ITHeE
I. Cash flows from operating activities - BEIBELNRERE
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of services HERR REABUINES 5,532,056,046.84 4,621,184,833.21
Net increase in customer deposits and deposits from other banks RPERARZEMTIEFE
and financial institutions mE
Netincrease in borrowing from central bank MR RBTETFEME
Net increase in loans from other financial institutions MEMEBYBERALSFE
mE
Cash received from receiving insurance premium of original WHERRARRENENES
insurance contract
Net cash received from reinsurance business WHBREBRSFE
Net increase in deposits and investments from policyholders REFERBEAFFEME
Cash received from interest, fees and commissions YEne FEERAeNES
Net increase i loans from banks and other financial institutions FAESFEME
Net capital increase in repurchase business EEEBESFEMNE
Net cash received from securities trading brokerage services REEEZFUINELTE
Tax refunds received KENHERE 127,543,233.78 44,084,793.15
Cash received from other operating activities KHERBREEYERORE  L)(ET-) 68,445,216.58 169,307,017.50
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities BREBHRLMANG 5,728,044,497.20 4,834,556,643.86
Cash paid for goods purchased and services received BEER BIBEIMNNES 4,418,519,185.46 3,781,942,095.93
Net increase in customer's loans and advances RPERRBHFHE 7][1%5
Net increase in deposits with central bank and other financial FHRARITNAEZERT
institutions FEm %E
Cash paid for original insurance contract claims THRRBARBATENES
Net increase in loans to banks and other financial institutions FHE2FHE jJD #
Cash paid for interest, fees and commissions TRFE FEERESMRS
Cash paid for policy dividends INRELFNES
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees IRRBIARAR I
Be 590,306,572.37 654,318,425.25
Cash paid for taxes XRMEERE 54,053,370.90 56,286,765.44
Cash paid for other operating activities THEMASEEYERNES  W)(EF) 91,775,936.73 177,871,414.60
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities BETHREAL G 5,154,655,065.46 4,670,418,701.22
Net cash flows generated from operating activities BETHELNBERERE 573,389,431.74 164,137,942.64
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )

Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiai THEH ITHeE
IIl.  Cash flows from investing activities Z REEBELNBERE
Cash received from disposal of investments WERERENES
Cash received from gains on investments RERENGRENES
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible REETEE BVEENEM
assets and other long-term assets RAEENENRSFE 707,633.25 1,659,759.15
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other BREFRARARAMEEENLE
business units WAL EE
Cash received from other investing activities WHERARAETHERENRS 6,570,339.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities REZHRSMADE 7,217,972.25 1659,759.15
Cash paid to acquire and construct fixed assets, intangible ERETEE BVAENER
assets and other long-term assets RAEETANES 291,725,607.34 577,385,950.27
Cash paid for investments REYANRE
Net increase in pledge loans EREFTEME
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business units REFRARAMEFEMNTH
MHeFE
Cash paid for other investing activities XRNEMEREEHEENRE  (L)(E ) 808,234,759.31 5,911,229.73
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities RERHRE AL 1,099,960,366.65 583,297,180.00
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHELENREREFE -1,092,682,394.40 -581,637,420.85
Il Cash flows from financing activities = BEEBELNBERE
Cash from absorption of investments Rz glnRS
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from investment HEh - FRaRb o SR RRE
by minority shareholders Dbk
Cash received from borrowings REEFNEINES 419,692,500.00 2,752,594,727.73
Cash received from other financing activities KHERAEEEYERORE:  L)(ET-) 519,497,645.15 200,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities EEZEHREMN G 939,190,145.15 2,952,594,727.73
Cash paid for debts repayments EREBIANES 1,249,316,000.00 1,972,198,949.33
Cash paid for distribution of dividends and profits or payment of AEERF - MERERNEZA
interest ik 54,204,427.87 82,034,077.16
Including: Dividends and profits paid to minority shareholders Eh FRAINELHERN
by subsidiaries A - #E
Cash paid for other financing activities SHEMBEEEEYERNEE  (L)(ET) 366,992,550.20 394,432,658.97
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities LEERRL MG 1,670,512,978.07 2,448,665,685.46
Net cash flows from financing activities EETHELNBERERE -731,322,832.92 503,929,042.27
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - £ EMH A AR E )

Amount of Amount of
Note V the current period the previous period
Items EH ipiai rHEH ITHeE
IV. Effect of fluctuation in exchange rate on cashand cash - ERZHURERBELLEYH
equivalents 2 20,237,387.42 -1,299,359.00
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents I ReRBESENTFENE -1,230,378,408.16 85,130,205.06
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period n:BNReRReEEWHE 1,375,111,214.07 1,289,981,009.01
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ~ BRBERASEEBIHE 144,732,805.91 1,375,111,214.07
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BB IS HMEM T AN B RERAAKITD -
statements.
Person-in-charge of the Company: AFEEA:
Zhu Lingjie KRER
Chief Accountant: FTEGTIEEEA:
Shi Lei A&
Head of the Accounting Department: 2HBESE A
Shen Sanxing = E
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BRARARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )

Amount of Amount of
Notes the current period the previous period
Items BEH fizt rHLE ik
. Cash flows from operating activities - BEIBELNRERE
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of services HEWm RESBYUINES 2,716,191,192.59 2,449,272,964.30
Tax refunds received WEMHBRE
Cash received from other operating activities WEHERALREREENES 1,038,024,038.06 574,245,867.32
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities TEEHREMANDE 3,754,215,230.65 3,023,518,831.62
Cash paid for goods purchased and services received BERR BI4BYARNARS 2,829,385,714.46 2,247,871,663.93
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees SHRBIARARIIH
Be 156,198,492.57 183,384,181.30
Cash paid for taxes SRHEERE 17,766,166.12 13,174,363.80
Cash paid for other operating activities THEMELLEYEENES 991,694,459.95 425,038,317.99
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities BEEBHRERL 3,095,044,833.10 2,869,468,527.02
Net cash flows generated from operating activities BETHELENREREFE -240,829,602.45 154,050,304.60
IIl.  Cash flows from investing activities Z REZBELNBEORE
Cash received from disposal of investments WERERENES
Cash received from gains on investments RERENERENES
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible REETEE BVEENEM
assets and other long-term assets RAEENRENRSTFE 127,988.25 1,148 482.75
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other BREFRAARAMEEENLE
business units WALEE 10,000.00
Cash received from other investing activities WHERERARHEENES 6,570,339.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities REZHRSRADE 6,698,327.25 1,158,482.75
Cash paid to acquire and construct fixed assets, intangible ERETEE BVEENEM
assets and other long-term assets RAEETANES 206,389,134.62 380,735,214.62
Cash paid for investments REZRBOES 160,000,000.00
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business units REFRARAMEFENTH
MELFE
Cash paid for other investing activities XHEMEREEYEENES 496,803,156.26
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities BRERHRE AL G 863,192,290.88 380,735,214.62
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHELNRLRERE -856,493,963.63 -379,576,731.87
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BRAARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - £ EMH A AR E )

Amount of Amount of
Notes the current period the previous period
Items BEH fifzt rHLE ik
Ill. Cash flows from financing activities = BETBELNRERE
Cash from absorption of investments Rz g lsnRS
Cash received from borrowings nEERKENES 339,692,500.00 1,466,890,000.00
Cash received from other financing activities WEHERBEEEHEHNES 67,264,466.67 150,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities ELTHELTANG 406,956,966.67 1,616,890,000.00
Cash paid for debts repayments EEEBIANES 217,316,000.00 1,246,000,000.00
Cash paid for distribution of dividends and profits or payment of AREF - FERERAEX A
interest MR e 50,461,030.63 87,680,163.67
Cash paid for other financing activities XHEMASEEYEENES 252,743,036.47 30,912,366.12
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities EEEHRLAL G 520,520,067.10 1,364,592,529.79
Net cash flows from financing activities ERTHELNRLTETE +113,563,100.43 252,297, 470.21
IV. Effect of fluctuation in exchange rate on cashand cash - ERZHURERBLZEUH
equivalents ye -460,728.44 -211,694.40
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents I BeRBCEENTFENE -1,211,347,394.95 26,559,348.54
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period n:BNReRBeEEYHE 1,250,392,069.70 1,223,832,721.16
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ~ BRBERACSENRE 30,044,674.75 1,250,392,069.70
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BWEHBRERM T AV B RENBERIS -
statements.
Person-in-charge of the Company: AFBEA:
Zhu Lingjie KER
Chief Accountant: FEEHIEAEA:
Shi Lei A&
Head of the Accounting Department: EMBEE A
Shen Sanxing k=
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EHFEEREEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - € EMH A ARE )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
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CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

BARMEEREZE DR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (All amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) 20224 £ (45 B 55835 - £ EMH A AR E )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (Fr# 7k LA  ©EEBEMH A AR D)

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(I) Company Profile

Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company” or “the Company”) was approved by Liaocheng
Administrative Examination and Approval Service Bureau in
December 2010, and it was a joint stock company jointly
established by GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (ZrEEpk s
EHBRETAR) and Shandong Fengxiang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (LB B#EE B R A F]). The Company’s Enterprise Legal
Person Business License registration number is
91371500723866545F. The Company was listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in July 2020, which is classified as
livestock breeding industry.

As of 31 December 2022, the total number of share capital
issued by the Company was 1,400,000,000 shares, and the
registered capital was RMB1,400,000,000. The registered
office is located at Liumiao Village, Anle Town, Yanggu
County, Shandong Province. The headquarter is located at
GMK' Building, Yanggu County, Shandong Province. The
principal businesses of the Company are: the sale of animal
feeds for animal husbandry and fishery, the sale of agricultural
by-products, the sale of fertilizers, technical service,
technology development, technical consultation,technical
exchanges, technology transfer and technology promotion;
planting of herbs used in Chinese medicine; purchase and
sale of locally produced Chinese herbal medicine (excluding
slices of prepared Chinese medicine); and convention and
exhibition services. Approved items for operation: poultry
breeding; slaughtering; breeding stock and breeding poultry
production and operation; food production and operation;
online food sales; food purchase; animal feed production;
veterinary drug operation; fertilizer production; innocuous
treatment of animals; food import and export; goods import
and export; technology import and export; import and export
agency.

GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd., Shandong Fengxiang
Investment Co., Ltd. and Shandong Fengxiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd. are former controlling shareholders of Fengxiang. On 16
October 2022, Falcon Holding LP obtained 70.92% of the
Company’s equity held by GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd.,
Shandong Fengxiang Investment Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Fengxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. through judicial auctions. The
completion of registration of transfer at China Securities
Depository and Clearing Co., Ltd. took place on 20 December
2022 and the equity transfer was officially completed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

OZZFEMHEFKRME

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

() Company Profile (Continued)

The new Controlling Company of the Company is Falcon
Holding LP, and the de facto controller of the Company is
Pacific Alliance Group (PAG, registered in the Cayman
Islands). The financial statements were approved and issued
by the Board of the Company on 30 March 2023.

(II) Scope of the consolidated financial statement

For relevant details of the Company’s subsidiaries, please
refer to the Note “VII. Equity in other entities”.

For details of the change in the scope of consolidation during
the reporting period, please refer to the Note “VI. Change in
the scope of consolidation”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

() Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance and respective specific accounting
standards, application guidelines for accounting standards for
business enterprises, interpretation for accounting standards
for business enterprises, and other relevant regulations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”). In addition, the financial
statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

(Il) Going concern

In 2022, the Company incurred a net loss of RMB769,028,600,
with the unrestricted monetary funds balance of Fengxiang
amounted to RMB144,732,800, the balance of short-term
borrowings amounted to RMB1,124,613,700, and the balance
of long-term borrowings and long-term payables due within
one year amounted to RMB112,372,600, indicating the
existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on Fengxiang’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s management intends to take relevant
measures to improve its liquidity and expects to be able to
obtain sufficient funds to support the Company’s operating
needs for the foreseeable next 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE
SBEMNHAEAREIT)

CUBBRNOERER (E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

Il. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

() Going concern (Continued) (D) BERE (E)

The Company intends to take the following measures to
improve the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern:

(1) the controlling shareholder of the Company intends to
provide loans to the Company for its operation. According
to the Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2023,
the new controlling shareholder and the Company have
signed a loan framework agreement for a period from
January 2023 to January 2024.

(2) the Company has been actively negotiating with financial
institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost. At
present, some financial institutions have indicated
intentions to grant new loans to the Company and secure
the Company’s loan renewals. Given the Company’s good
credit history over the past years and the influence of
controlling shareholder, the Directors are confident that
new loans can be obtained at a reasonable cost.

(3) the Company will continue to focus on its main
businesses, fully release production capacity to achieve
business growth, continuously develop new products to
expand overseas customers, strengthen pipeline
construction, and speed up inventory turnover, while
continuing to adopt cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement measures to increase operating cash flows.

(4) the Company will further improve its capability to cope
with financial risks, optimise its debt structure, reduce
short-term liabilities and increase long-term liabilities to
minimise the pressure of short-term debt repayment.

The Directors of the Company have reviewed the cash flow
projections prepared by the management covering a period of
not less than 12 months from the date of filing of these
financial statements by the Group. The management of the
Company is of the opinion that the Group will be able to obtain
sufficient working capital to ensure that the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months after
31 December 2022 through the above measures. Accordingly,
the Company considers it appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the
Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(II) Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, there are still significant
uncertainties as to whether the management of the Group will
be able to implement the above plans and measures. The
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern will depend on:

(1) timely receipt of the borrowing from the holding company
and settlement of foreign exchange to domestic
subsidiaries;

(2) successfully maintaining ongoing and normal business
relationships with the Group’s existing lenders so that the
relevant lenders will not take action to exercise their
contractual rights to demand immediate repayment of
such borrowings;

(3) gradual release of the company’s production capacity,
continuous stability of overseas customers, maintaining
good inventory turnover, and timely recovery of accounts
receivable;

(4) successful extension of loan term;

If the Group does not achieve the expected results of these
plans and measures, it may not be able to continue as a going
concern, and adjustments will have to be made to reduce the
carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to accrue for any further liabilities that may arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

() Declaration on compliance with the Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance, and truthfully and completely reflect the
consolidated and the Company’s financial position as at 31
December 2022 and the consolidated and the Company’s
results of operations and cashflows for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(II) Accounting period

The accounting year is from 1 January to 31 December of the
calendar year.

(Ill) Business cycle

The Company’s business cycle is 12 months.
(IV)Functional currency

The Company adopts RMB as its functional currency.

(V) Accounting treatment of business combinations
under common control and not under common
control

Business combinations under common control: The assets
and liabilities acquired by acquirer through business
combination shall be measured at the carrying value of the
assets, liabilities (including goodwill arising from the acquisition
of the acquiree by controlling party) of the acquiree in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the date of combination. The difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or total
nominal value of the issued shares) is adjusted to capital
premium in capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.

Business combinations not under common control: The cost of
combination is the assets paid, the liabilities incurred or
committed and fair value of the equity securities issued by the
acquirer for acquisition of control over the acquiree on the date
of acquisition. Where the cost of combination is higher than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired from the
acquiree in business combination, such difference shall be
recognised as goodwill; where the cost of combination is less
than the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired from
the acquiree in business combination, such difference shall be
charged to current profit or loss. Each of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree,
which are acquired in the combination and meet the criteria for
recognition, shall be measured at fair value on the date of
acquisition.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(V) Accounting treatment of business combinations
under common control and not under common
control (Continued)

The direct relevant expenses incurred for the business
combinations are recognised as the profit or loss in the period
when the costs are incurred; the transaction costs for the
equity securities or debt securities issued for business
combination shall be recognised as the initial recognition
amount of equity securities or debt securities.

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial
statements

Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation of the consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control, and the
scope of consolidation comprises the Company and all of
its subsidiaries. Control refers to the power of a company
over the investee, the rights to enjoy variable returns from
its involvement in relevant activities of the investee, and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of its returns.

Consolidation procedures

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Company considers the entire enterprise group as a
single accounting entity and presents the overall financial
position, operating results and cash flows of the enterprise
group based on the consistent accounting policies. The
impact of internal transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, and among its subsidiaries, shall be
offset. If internal transactions indicate impairment losses
on relevant assets, such losses shall be recognised in full.
Any inconsistent accounting policies and accounting
period adopted by a subsidiary will be subject to
necessary adjustments to align with those of the Company
when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

2.

Consolidation procedures (Continued)

Owners’ equity, net profit or loss of the current period and
comprehensive
shareholders of the current period of subsidiaries are
stated separately under owners’ equity in the consolidated
balance sheet, net profit in the consolidated income
statement and total comprehensive income respectively.
Loss of the current period assumed by minority
shareholders of a subsidiary in excess of minority
shareholders’ share of owners’ equity in that subsidiary at
the beginning of the period is offset against minority

income attributable to minority

interests.
(1) Addition of subsidiary or business

During the reporting period, if there is an addition of
subsidiary or business due to business combination
under common control, the operating results and
cash flow of the subsidiary or business combination
from the beginning of the period to the end of the
reporting period will be included in the consolidated
financial statements, and the amounts at the
beginning of the period in the consolidated financial
statements and relevant items in the comparative
statements will also be adjusted as if the reporting
entity after combination had been existing since the
control of the ultimate controlling party started.

Where control over the investee under common
control is obtained due to reasons such as increase
in investments, for equity investment held before the
control over the acquiree is obtained, profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and other changes in
net assets recognised from the later of the acquisition
of the original equity interest and the date when the
acquirer and the acquiree are placed under common
control until the date of combination are offset against
retained profit at the beginning of the period of the
comparative financial statements or profit or loss of
the period respectively.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

2. Consolidation procedures (Continued)

(1) Addition of subsidiary or business (Continued)

During the reporting period, if there is an addition of
subsidiary or business due to business combination
not under common control, it shall be included, from
the date of purchase, in the consolidated financial
statements based on the fair value of each of the
identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities
determined on the date of purchase.

Where control over the investee not under common
control is obtained due to reasons such as increase
in investments, for the equity interest of the acquiree
held before the date of purchase, the Company
remeasures the equity interest at its fair value as at
the date of purchase, and any difference between the
fair value and its book value will be accounted for as
investment gains of the period. Other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified into losses and profits
and other changes in owners’ equity under equity
accounting with respect to the equity interest in the
acquiree held before the date of purchase are
transferred to investment gains of the period to which
the date of purchase belongs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O--HFEMBWMRMEE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial (R)EOHMBRENERS E(E)

statements (Continued)
2. Consolidation procedures (Continued) 2 BHERF (&)
(2) Disposal of subsidiary 2) BEF A

@ General treatment for disposal O —MREEAFZE

When control over the investee is lost due to the
disposal of part of the equity investment or other

HEESD REREIEME
FRKTHWIRETTEH

reasons, the Company re-measures the B SR EEEEFSRRER
remaining equity investment after the disposal at BromREARKIZTHZERD
fair value as at the date on which control is lost. AREBEETEFIFZ2-RE
The difference between the sum of the RERSHEERFRKRER
consideration received from equity disposal and AEEZM BREZRRFRLLEL

the fair value of the remaining equity interest and
the sum of the net assets of the subsidiary
proportionate to the original shareholding
accumulated from the date of purchase or
combination and goodwill is included in
investment gains of the period during which the
control is lost. Other comprehensive income that
will be reclassified into losses and profits and
other changes in owners’ equity under equity
accounting with respect to the equity investment
in the original subsidiary are transferred to
investment gains of the period during which the
control is lost.
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

statements (Continued)

2. Consolidation procedures (Continued)

(2) Disposal of subsidiary (Continued)

@ Stepwise disposal of subsidiary

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

EEEMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBERERfhE(E)

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial (R)

In respect of stepwise disposal of equity
investment in a subsidiary through multiple
transactions until control is lost, if the terms,
conditions and economic effects of the
transactions of equity investment in the
subsidiary satisfy one or more of the following
conditions, the transactions are normally
accounted for as a package of transactions:

i. these transactions are entered into
simultaneously or after considering the
effects of each other;

i. these transactions constitute a complete
commercial result as a whole;

iii. one transaction is conditional upon at least
one of the other transaction;

iv. one transaction is not economical on its own
but is economical when considering together
with other transactions.

Where the transactions constitute a package of
transactions, the Company accounts for the
transactions as a transaction of disposal of a
subsidiary resulting in the loss of control; the
difference between the amount received each
time for disposal before control is lost and the
net assets of such subsidiary corresponding to
the disposal of investment is recognised as other
comprehensive income in the consolidated
financial statements, and upon loss of control, is
transferred to profit or loss of the period during
which control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(VI)Preparation method of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

2. Consolidation procedures (Continued)

(2)

(3

(4)

Disposal of subsidiary (Continued)
@ Stepwise disposal of subsidiary (Continued)

Where the transactions do not constitute a
package of transactions, before the loss of
control, the transactions are accounted for based
on partial disposal of equity investment in a
subsidiary that does not involve loss of control;
when control is lost, they are accounted for using
the general method for disposal of subsidiaries.

Purchase of minority interests in subsidiary

For the difference between the long-term equity
investment newly acquired due to the purchase of
minority interests and the share of net assets of the
subsidiary that the Company is entitled to calculated
according to the new shareholding accumulated from
the date of purchase or date of combination, share
premium of the capital reserve in the consolidated
balance sheet will be adjusted; where share premium
of the capital reserve is insufficient for the write-down,
retained profit will be adjusted.

Partial disposal of equity investment in
subsidiary without loss of control

For the difference between the consideration received
from disposal and the net assets of the subsidiary
that the Company is entitled to corresponding to the
long-term equity investment disposed accumulated
from the date of purchase of date of combination,
share premium of the capital reserve in the
consolidated balance sheet will be adjusted; where
share premium of the capital reserve is insufficient for
the write-down, retained profit will be adjusted.
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

——EEMBWRME

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(VIl)Classification of joint arrangements and

accounting treatment for joint operations

Joint arrangements can be classified into joint operations and
joint ventures.

Joint operations represent the joint arrangement that a party to
a joint arrangement has rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to such arrangement.

The Company recognises the following items in relation to its
share of benefits in joint operations:

(1) the assets held solely by the Company and those jointly
held on a prorate basis;

(2) the liabilities assumed solely by the Company and those
jointly assumed on a pro-rata basis;

(3) the income generated from the sale of the products of the
joint operation attributable to the Company;

(4) the income generated by the joint operation from the sale
of products on a pro-rata basis;

(5) the expenses incurred solely by the Company and those
incurred by the joint operation on a pro-rata basis.

The Company’s investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method. Please refer to the Note “lIl. (XIII)
Long-term Equity Investment” for details.

(Vi) Recognition standard for cash and cash

equivalents

Cash represents the Company’s cash on hand and deposits
that can be used readily for payments. Cash equivalents
represent investments that satisfy four conditions, namely
short-term, highly liquid, readily convertible to known amounts
of cash, and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(IX)Foreign currency transactions and translation of (NI EXBMIMERRITE
financial statements denominated in foreign
currency
Foreign currency transactions 1 IEEH

Foreign currency transactions shall be translated into
RMB at the spot Exchange rate on the day when the
transactions occurred.

Balance sheet date foreign currency monetary items shall
be translated using the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. The resulting Exchange difference are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period, except
for those differences related to a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency for acquisitions
and construction of the qualified assets, which should be
capitalised as cost of the borrowings.

Translation of financial statements
denominated in foreign Currency

For the translation of financial statements of foreign
operation denominated in foreign currency, the assets
and liabilities in the balance sheets are translated at the
spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date; except for
“retained earnings” items, all items under owner’s equity
are translated at the spot exchange rates when incurred.
The income and expense items in the income statement
are translated at the approximate spot exchange rates on
the transaction dates.

On disposal of foreign operations, exchange differences
in financial statements denominated in foreign currencies
related to the foreign operation shall be transferred from
owner’s equity items to profit or loss to profit or loss from
disposal for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESBERER MG (B)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(HE®IA

(X) Financial Instruments

ARAERALBIARRANH 5 BR
—HeRMAE SMEBERMAIA -

One of the financial asset, financial liabilities or equity
instrument is recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contract of the financial instruments.

Classification of financial instruments

According to the business model of the Company for
management of financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of financial assets, financial assets
are classified at the initial recognition as financial assets
measured at amortised cost, or financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, or
other financial assets that are measured at fair value
through current profit or loss.

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the
following conditions and are not designated as financial
assets at fair value through current profit or loss as
financial assets measured at amortised cost:

— The objective of the business model is to collect
contractual cash lows;

— The contractual cash flows are solely payment of the
principal and the interest based on the outstanding
principal amount.

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the
following conditions and are not designated as financial
assets at fair value through current profit or loss as
financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income:

— The objective of the business model for managing
such financial assets is both to collect contractual
cash flows and to dispose of the financial assets;

— The contractual cash flows are solely payment of the
principal and the interest based on the outstanding
principal amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued) (H)&mMIAE)

Classification of financial instruments
(Continued)

For an investment in equity instruments not held for
trading purposes, the Company may irrevocably designate
it as financial assets (equity instrument) measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income at the initial
recognition. This designation is made on an investment-
by-investment basis and the relevant investment meets
the definition of equity instrument from the perspective of
the issuer.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income as described above are measured at fair value
through current profit or loss. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as at fair value through current
profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities, at initial recognition, are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through current profit or
loss and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

When meeting any of the following criteria, the Company
may, at initial recognition, designate a financial liability as
measured at fair value through current profit or loss:

(1) Such designation would eliminate or significantly
reduce an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

1. Classification of financial instruments
(Continued)

)

@)

A group of financial liabilities or financial assets and
financial liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key management
personnel.

The financial liabilities include embedded derivatives
which can be split separately.

2. Recognition basis and measurement method
of financial instruments

(1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost,
including bills receivable and trade receivable, other
receivable, and debt
investment, are initially measured at fair value plus
relevant transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain significant financing components and
trade receivable that the Company has decided not
to consider for a financing component of no more

long-term receivable,

than one year are initially measured at the contractual
transaction price.

Interest calculated under the effective interest method
during the period of holding is included in current
profit or loss.

When recovering or disposing, the difference
between the price obtained and the book value of the
financial asset is included in current profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

2. Recognition basis and measurement method
of financial instruments (Continued)

(2)

3

Financial assets (debt instruments) measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets (debt instruments) measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, including
financing receivables and other debt investments, are
initially measured at fair value plus relevant
transaction costs. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value included in other comprehensive income
except for interest, impairment losses or gains and
exchange gains or losses calculated using the
effective interest method.

On derecognition, the accumulated gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is transferred out from other comprehensive
income and recognised in current profit or loss.

Financial assets (equity instruments) measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets (equity instruments) measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, including
other equity instruments investments, are initially
measured at fair value plus relevant transaction
costs. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
included in other comprehensive income. The
dividends received are included in current profit or
loss.

On derecognition, the accumulated gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is transferred out from other comprehensive
income and recognised in retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

2. Recognition basis and measurement method

of

(4)

(5

(6)

SHANDONG

financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through current
profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through
current profit or loss, including held-for-trading
financial assets, derivative financial assets and other
non-current financial assets, are initially measured at
fair value with relevant transaction costs included in
current profit or loss. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value included in current profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through current profit or loss

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
current profit or loss, including held-for-trading
financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities, etc.,
are initially measured at fair value with relevant
transaction costs recognised in current profit or loss.
These financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value included in
current profit or loss.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration paid is recognised in
current profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilites measured at amortised cost,
including short-term loans, bills payable, trade
payable, other payable, long-term borrowings, bonds
payable and long-term payables, are initially
measured at fair value plus relevant transaction
costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O--HFEMBWMRMEE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(X) Financial Instruments (Continued) (H)&mMIAE)

2 TR T ANERALKBNELE

2. Recognition basis and measurement method

of financial instruments (Continued)

(6) Financial liabilites measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Interest calculated under the effective interest method
during the period of holding is included in current
profit or loss.

On derecognition, the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in current profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial asset and financial
asset transfers

The Company derecognizes a financial asset if it meets
one of the following conditions:

— the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire;

— the financial asset has been transferred, and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset have been ftransferred to the
transferee;

— the financial asset has been transferred, and the
Company neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards related to the
ownership of the financial assets, but did not retain its
control over the said financial assets.

When transferring a financial asset, if the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the Company shall continue to
recognize such asset.

When judging whether the transfer of a financial asset
meets the above criteria for derecognition, the substance-
over-form principle shall be applied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESBERER MG (B)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued) (H)&mMIAE)
3. Derecognition of financial asset and financial 3 THREERUIERFNCHREEER
asset transfers (Continued) (&)

The Company differentiates the transfer of a financial
asset as full transfer or partial transfer. If the full transfer
of a financial asset meets the criteria for derecognition,
then the difference between the following two amounts
was included in current profit or loss:

(1) the book value of the financial asset transferred;

(2) the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and the total amount of the fair value
changes that is directly charged or credited to
owners’ equity (if the asset transferred is a financial
asset (debt instruments) at fair value through other
comprehensive income).

When the partial transfer of a financial asset meets the
criteria for derecognition, the entire book value of the
financial asset transferred shall be allocated between the
part derecognised and the part to be recognised based on
their respective fair value, with the difference between the
following two included in current profit or loss:

(1) The book value of the part that is derecognised;

(2) The sum of the consideration attributable to the part
derecognised and the total amount of the fair value
changes that is directly charged or credited to
owners’ equity and attributable to the part
derecognised (if the asset transferred is a financial
asset (debt instruments) at fair value through other
comprehensive income).

If the transfer of a financial asset does not meet the
criteria for derecognition, the financial asset shall continue
to be recognised and the consideration received is
recognised as a financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

If all or part of the current obligations of a financial liability
have been discharged, the financial liability or part of it will
be derecognised; if the Company signs an agreement
with the creditor to replace the existing financial liability
with new financial liability of substantially different
contractual terms, the existing financial liability shall be
derecognised while the new financial liability shall be
recognised.

If substantial changes are made to the contractual terms (in
whole or in part) of the existing financial liability, the
existing financial liability (or part of it) shall be
derecognised, and the financial liability after the
modification of terms shall be recognised as a new
financial liability.

When a financial liability is derecognised in whole or in
part, the difference between the book value of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
(including the non-cash assets transferred out or the new
financial liability assumed) shall be included in current
profit or loss.

If the Company repurchases part of a financial liability, the
book value of the entire financial liability is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised on the repurchase date based
on their respective relative fair value. The difference
between the book value assigned to the part derecognised
and the consideration paid (including the non-cash assets
transferred out or the new financial liability assumed) shall
be included in current profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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—FEEMBHRRNE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

5.

Determination of fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities

As for financial instruments with an active market, their
fair values are determined by quoted prices in the active
market. As for financial instruments without an active
market, their fair values are determined by using valuation
techniques. At the time of valuation, the Company adopts
valuation techniques that are applicable in the current
circumstances and sufficiently supported by available
data and other information, and selects inputs that are
consistent with the characteristics of the assets or
liabilities considered by the market participants in the
transactions of the relevant assets or liabilities, and
prioritizes the use of relevant observable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are used only if the relevant
observable inputs are unavailable or not reasonably
available.

Test and accounting methods for impairment
of financial assets

The Company estimates financial assets measured at
amortised cost by way of single or combination, or the
expected credit losses of financial assets (debt
instruments) measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income and the financial guarantee
contract, etc.

The probability-weighted amount of the difference in
present value between the cash flow of receivable from
contracts and the cash flow expected to be received,
weighted with the risk of default, will be measured by
taking into account of reasonable and valid information
on, among other things, past events, current status and
the forecast of future economic conditions to recognize
the expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued) (H)&mMIAE)

EHEERBENARAST ERENE

6. Test and accounting methods for impairment 6

of financial assets (Continued)

If the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since the initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss provisions according to the lifetime
expected credit loss of the financial instrument; if the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since the initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss provisions at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses of the financial
instrument. The resulting increase in or reversal of loss
provision shall be included in current profit or loss as
impairment losses or gains.

In determining changes in the risk of default during the
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expected lifetime of a financial instrument and assessing AEAEENNERETVRBERAE
whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has FEANER  LETeRIAENFE

increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the balance sheet date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
Usually, if it is overdue for more than 30 days, the
Company will consider that the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly, unless there is
conclusive evidence to prove that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition.

For a financial instrument with lower credit risk on the
balance sheet date, the Company assumes that its credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since the initial recognition.

If there is objective evidence that a financial asset has
been credit impaired, the Company shall make individual
provision for the impairment of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X) Financial Instruments (Continued)

6.

Test and accounting methods for impairment
of financial assets (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract asset formed by the
transactions regulated in the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.14-Revenue (2017) whether
contain significant financing components or otherwise, the
Company always measures the loss provision at the
lifetime expected credit loss.

For lease receivables, the Company chooses to always
measures the loss provisions at the lifetime expected
credit loss.

Where the Company no longer reasonably expects
contractual cash flows of a financial asset to be fully or
partially recoverable, the book balance of the financial
asset is directly written down.

(XI)Inventories

1.

Classification for inventories

Inventories are classified into: goods in transit, raw
materials, turnover materials, goods in stock, work in
process, finished goods, consumptive biological assets,
etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XI)Inventories (Continued)

2. Consumptive biological assets

The consumptive biological assets refer to broilers, chicks
and hatchable eggs held by the Company. Consumptive
biological assets are measured at fair value less sales
costs at the end of the year. Any gain or loss arising from
changes in fair value less sales costs is included in
current profit or loss for the period in which the gain or
loss arises.

3. Valuation of inventories

(1)

(2)

Costs of other inventories

Other inventories are initially measured at cost, which
comprises purchase costs, processing costs and
other expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to
their current location and condition.

Measurement for inventories delivered

The standard cost method is adopted for inventories
measurement on a normal basis. The difference
between actual cost and standard cost at the end of
the period is included in the current profit or loss or
carried forward to the cost of the corresponding
asset. When the actual cost of inventories fluctuates
significantly from the standard cost each quarter, the
Company will revise the relevant standard cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XI)Inventories (Continued)

4.

Basis for the determination of net realizable
value of different type of inventories

On the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. When the cost of
inventories was higher than their net realisable value, the
provision decline in value of inventories shall be made.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of the
inventories in the ordinary course of business deducting
the estimated costs upon completion, the estimated
selling expenses and the related taxes.

Net realizable value of held-for-sale commodity stocks,
such as finished products, goods in stock, and held-for-
sale raw materials, during the normal course of production
and operation, shall be determined by their estimated
selling prices less related selling costs and taxes; the net
realizable value of inventory materials, which need to be
processed, during the normal course of production and
operation, shall be determined by the amount after
deducting the estimated cost of completion, estimated
selling costs and relevant taxes from the estimated selling
price of finished goods; the net realizable value of
inventories held for execution of sales contracts or labor
contracts shall be calculated on the ground of the
contracted price. If an enterprise holds more inventories
than the quantity stipulated in the sales contract, the net
realizable value of the excess part shall be calculated on
the ground of general selling price.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X1)Inventories (Continued) (t-) & (&)

TEEF 7FE 7] 85 FE I #EE

4. Basis for the determination of net realizable 4 -

value of different type of inventories
(Continued)

After the provision decline in value of inventories, if the
factors resulting in the previously recorded inventory
impairment disappeared, as a result of which the net
realisable value of the inventories became higher than its
book value, it would be written back to the extent of the
original provision decline in value of inventories made,
and such written-back amounts would be charged to the
current profit or loss.

k15 (&)

AARETFEREREGR  MRAMBLHE
EEENFERRERER BRFE
MAERFERREAREEEN  ER
EfRNEFEREEHESREATUE
O Eoe A AS RS -

Inventory system 5- FEMBFHE
The perpetual inventory system is adopted. FAXEBRITH
Amortisation of low-value consumables and 6 IEEZFERBAELYH BT~

packaging materials

(1) Low-value consumables are mortised using the
immediate write off method.

(2) Packaging materials are mortised using the
immediate write-off method.

(1) RESRRERAB - REHEE-

(2) BEYMRA -REHEE-
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XIl)Contract assets

Recognition and standard of contract assets

The Company presents contract assets or contract
liabilities in the balance sheet based on the relationship
between performance obligations and customer
payments. The consideration that the Company has the
right (and this right depends on factors other than
passage of time) to receive for goods transferred to
customers is listed as a contract assets. Contract assets
and contract liabilities under the same contract shall be
shown on a net basis. The right of the Company to charge
the customer unconditionally (only depends on the
passage of time) is listed as a receivable individually.

Method of determination of expected credit
loss of contract assets and accounting
treatment methods

For the method of determination of expected credit loss of
contract assets and accounting treatment methods,
please refer to the Note “lll. (X) 6. Test and accounting
methods for impairment of financial assets”.

(Xl Long-term equity investments

Joint control or significant influence criterion

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, and exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities of the arrangement require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. If the
Company together with the other joint venture parties can
jointly control over the investee and are entitled to the
right of the net assets of the investee, the investee is joint
venture of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

——HEEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

1. Joint control or significant influence criterion
(Continued)

Significant influence refers to the power to participate in
making decisions on the financial and operating policies
of investee, but not the power to control, or jointly control,
the formulation of such policies with other parties. Where
the Company can exercise significant influence over an
investee, the investee is an associate of the Company.

2. Determination of initial investment cost

(1) Long-term equity investments acquired through
business combination

For a long-term equity investment in subsidiaries
resulting from a business combination involving
entities under common control, the initial investment
cost of long-term equity investments are its share of
the book value of the owners’ equity of the acquiree
in the financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party on the date of combinations. The difference
between initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment and the carrying value of paid
consideration is to adjust share premium in the
capital reserve. If the balance of share premium in
the capital reserve is insufficient, any excess is
adjusted to retained earnings. In connection with
imposing control over the investee under joint control
as a result of additional investment and other reasons
the difference between initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment according to the aforesaid
principle, and the sum of the carrying value of long-
term equity investment before combination and the
carrying value of newly paid consideration for
additional shares acquired on the date of combination
is to adjust share premium. If the balance of share
premium is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to
retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

2. Determination of initial investment cost
(Continued)

(1)

(2)

Long-term equity investments acquired through
business combination (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment in subsidiaries
resulting from a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the cost of the
combination determined on the date of acquisition
shall be taken as the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment. In connection with
imposing control over the investee not under joint
control as a result of additional investment and other
reasons, the initial investment cost shall be the sum
of the carrying value of the equity investment
originally held and the newly increased investment
cost.

Long-term equity investments acquired by other
means other than business combination

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment obtained by the Company by cash
payment shall be the purchase cost which is actually
paid.

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment obtained by the Company by means of
issuance of equity securities shall be the fair value of
the equity securities issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

3. Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss

(1)

(2)

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
cost method

Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using cost method unless the
investments meet the conditions of held-for-sale.
Except for the actual consideration paid for the
acquisition of investment or the declared but not yet
distributed cash dividends or profits which are
included in the consideration, investment gains is
recognised as the Company’s share of the cash
dividends or profits declared by the investee.

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
equity method

Long-term equity investments in associates and
jointly ventures are accounted for using equity
method. Where the initial investment cost of a long-
term equity investment exceeds the Company’s share
of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date, no adjustment shall be
made to the initial investment cost; where the initial
investment cost is less than the Company’s share of
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date, the difference shall be
charged to current profit or loss and the cost for long-
term equity investment shall be adjusted.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

3. Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss (Continued)

(2) Long-term equity investment accounted for by

equity method (Continued)

The Company recognizes the investment income and
other comprehensive income according to its shares
of net profit or loss and other comprehensive income
realized by the investee respectively, and
simultaneously makes adjustment to the carrying
value of long-term equity investments. The carrying
value of long-term equity investment shall be reduced
by attributable share of the profit or cash dividends
for distribution declared by the investee. In relation to
other changes of owner’s equity (the “Other Changes
of Owner’s Equity”) except for net profits and losses,
other comprehensive income and profit distribution of
the investee, the carrying value of long-term equity
investment shall be adjusted and included in owner’s
equity.

The Company’s share of net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and Other Changes of
Owner’s Equity of an investee is determined based
on the fair value of identifiable assets of the investee
at the time when the investment is obtained, and
according to the accounting policies and accounting
period of the Company, recognition shall be made to
the net profit of the investee after the adjustment and
other comprehensive income, etc.

The unrealized profit or loss resulting from
transactions between the Company and its associates
or joint venture shall be eliminated in, based on which
investment income or loss shall be recognised. Any
losses resulting from transactions, which are
attributable to impairment of assets, shall be fully
recognised, except for the disposal of assets that
consist of operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——HEEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

3. Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss (Continued)

(2)

3

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
equity method (Continued)

The Company discontinues recognising its share of
net losses of the investee after the carrying amount
of the long-term equity investment and any long-term
interest that is in substance forms part of the
Company’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture is reduced to zero, except to the extent
that the Company has an obligation to assume
additional losses. Where net profits are subsequently
made by the associate or joint venture, the Company
resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses
not recognised.

Disposal of long-term equity investments

When long-term equity investments are disposed of,
the difference between the carrying amount and the
actual proceeds received should be charged to
current profit or loss.

For the certain long-term equity investment treated
under the equity method, where the remaining equity
continues to be accounted for using the equity
method, the other comprehensive income previously
recognised under the equity method shall be
transferred in proportion by using the same basis as
the investee used for direct disposal of relevant
assets or liabilities. Other Changes of Owner’s Equity
shall be transferred in proportion into current profit or
loss.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(Xl Long-term equity investments (Continued)

3. Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss (Continued)

(3) Disposal of long-term equity investments

(Continued)

When the Group loses the control or material
influence over the investee due to disposal of equity
investment and other reasons, for other
comprehensive income recognised in the original
equity investment due to the equity method is
adopted, it shall be treated using the same
accounting basis as the investee used for direct
disposal of relevant assets or liabilities when ceasing
to use the equity method. Other Changes of Owner’s
Equity shall be transferred into the current profit or
loss when ceasing to use the equity method.

When the Group loses the control over the investee
due to partially disposal of equity investment and
other reasons, the remaining equity interest after
disposal shall be accounted for under equity method
in preparation of separate financial statements
provided that joint control or material influence over
the investee can be imposed and shall be adjusted
as if such remaining equity interest had been
accounted for under the equity method since being
obtained. The other comprehensive income
previously recognised before obtaining the control
over the investee shall be transferred in proportion by
using the same basis as the investee used for direct
disposal of relevant assets or liabilities. Changes in
other owner’s equity recognised as a result of the
adoption of the equity method shall be transferred to
the current profit or loss on pro rata basis. Where the
remaining equity interest after disposal cannot
exercise joint control or exert material influence over
the investee, it shall be recognised as financial asset,
and the difference between fair value and the carrying
value on the date of losing control shall be included
in current profit or loss. All the other comprehensive
income and Other Changes of Owner's equity
recognised before obtaining the control over the
investee shall be transferred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——FEMBRKRME
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(XIll) Long-term equity investments (Continued) (T REARERE (B)

énﬁ#i&fﬁéﬁgwu }‘it(/‘é%)

3. Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss (Continued)

(3) Disposal of long-term equity investments
(Continued)

For disposal of the equity investment in a subsidiary
in stages by multiple transactions resulting in the loss
of control, where the Company accounts for a
package deals, accounting treatment shall be
conducted for all transactions as the equity
investment for disposal of a subsidiary and the
transaction in the loss of control. In the individual
consolidated financial statements, the differences
between the consideration disposed and the
corresponding carrying value of long-term equity
investment of the disposed equity in each transaction
prior to the loss of control shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income first and transferred to the
current profit or loss when the parent eventually loses
control over the subsidiary. Where the no package
deal is accounted for, accounting treatment shall be
conducted for each transaction individually.

(XIV)Fixed assets

Recognition and initial measurement of fixed
assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and have a useful
life of more than one accounting year. Fixed asset is
recognised when it meets the following conditions:

(1) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the fixed asset will flow to the enterprise;

(2) its cost can be reliably measured.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost (and taking into
account the effect of estimated costs of disposal).
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XIV)Fixed assets (Continued)

Recognition and initial measurement of fixed
assets (Continued)

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the
related economic benefits are likely to flow into the
enterprise and its cost could be reliably measured, such
expenses are included in the cost of the fixed asset; and
the carrying amount of the replaced part will be
derecognised. All other subsequent expenses are
included in current profit or loss upon occurrence.

Methods for depreciation

Fixed assets of the Company are depreciated by
categories using the straight-line method, and the annual
depreciation rates are determined by categories based
upon their estimated useful lives and their estimated
residual values. For fixed assets that have made provision
for the impairment, the amount of depreciation of it is
determined by carrying value after deducting the provision
for the impairment based on useful life during the future
period. Where different components of a fixed asset have
different useful lives or generate economic benefits for the
enterprise in different ways, different depreciation rates or
depreciation methods shall apply, and each component is
depreciated separately.
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ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XIV)Fixed assets (Continued)

2

(XV)Construction in progress

Methods for depreciation (Continued)

The depreciation methods, useful life of depreciation,

residual value rate and annual depreciation rate of each
category of fixed assets are as follows:

Category
Bh

Depreciation method

TER*

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

B EEEE (&)
2 EHE(E)

BEREEEENENE FEFR B

EEMEFERMT :
Residual Annual
Useful life value depreciation
(Years) rate (%) rate (%)

TEFR(F) BRER%) FREXR®%)

House and buildings

FEREEY

Machine and equipment

Heg R B
Vehicle
B &

Electronic equipment

BFRE

Straight-line method
T ERIE
Straight-line method
T E R
Straight-line method
T ERE
Straight-line method
T ERIE

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from using or
disposal. The amount of proceeds on sale, transfer,
retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in

current profit or loss.

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual
cost comprises construction costs, installation costs, borrowing
costs that are eligible for capitalisation and other costs
necessary to bring the construction in progress ready for their
intended use. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assets when the assets are ready for their intended use, and
depreciation begins from the following month.

20-40 5 2.38-4.75
4-15 5 6.33-23.75
5-8 5  11.88-19.00
5-8 5  11.88-19.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVl)Borrowing costs

1.

Criteria for recognition of capitalised
borrowing costs

The Company’s borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised into the cost of
relevant assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Qualifying assets include fixed assets, investment
property and inventories that necessarily take a
substantial period of time for acquisition, construction or
production to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Capitalisation period of borrowing costs

The capitalisation period refers to the period beginning
from the commencement of capitalising borrowing costs
to the date of ceasing capitalisation, excluding the period
of suspension of capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs begins when the
following three conditions are fully satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the assets (including cash paid, non-
cash assets transferred or interest-bearing liabilities
assumed for the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets) have been incurred;

(2) borrowing costs have been incurred;

(3) acquisition, construction or production that are
necessary to enable the asset get ready for their
intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall cease when the
qualifying asset under acquisition, construction or
production gets ready for intended use or sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVl)Borrowing costs (Continued)

3.

Suspension of capitalisation period

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended
during periods in which the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset is interrupted abnormally,
and the interruption is for a continuous period of more
than 3 months; if the interruption is a necessary step for
making the qualifying asset under acquisition, construction
or production ready for the intended use or sale, the
capitalisation of the borrowing costs shall continue. The
borrowing costs incurred during such period of interruption
shall be recognised in current profit or loss. When the
acquisition, construction or production of the asset
resumes, the capitalisation of borrowing costs continues.

Capitalisation rate and calculation of
capitalisation amount of borrowing costs

As to specific borrowings for the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, borrowing costs from
the specific borrowings actually incurred in the current
period minus the interest income earned on the unused
borrowing loans as a deposit in the bank or the investment
income earned from temporary investment will be used to
determine the amount of borrowing costs for capitalisation.

As to general bor rowings for the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, the to-be-capitalised
amount of borrowing costs on the general borrowing shall
be calculated and determined by multiplying the weighted
average asset disbursement of the part of the
accumulative asset disbursements minus the specific
borrowings and the capitalisation rate of the said general
borrowings. The capitalisation rate shall be calculated and
determined according to the weighted average actual
interest rate of general borrowings.

OZZFEHBHKRMHZE

SHREMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

(7 BB A (E)

3.

TEEXEHE

NAENLHEMHNEELEBELLES
RAEANIFLETE - AP EEHEE
BEBE3MEAAN AEREREFER
b ZERHMEMBEILEENTS
BARLGHNEEZREEAEAMRE
HEFAHERELENRF - BEXE
RS EARNL - FEh i B B EE R
ERNHARENBED EEZEEMEE
FELERDENMARRERERESR
AR -

- EAREAEFIE EXESH

AT E L

HERRBRELAELETEENEEMER
BEMMEBEANEPIER  AEPIEXE
HERBRENBRER REEKBH
MEEREEFARITEREHNE A
ETERERENSHREREERNE
BRETERERANERNEERE -

URRBREAELETEENCBGHR
BEMGAN—RER RERFEE
XHBBEEFMERE DM EES SN
BT IBRIAME A —RERNE R
EOGEEE -RERETERLNE
RERAER - ENMCERE—RERM
BFOEREN R EEE

Annual Report 2022 £}

189



190

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVl)Borrowing costs (Continued)

4.

Capitalisation rate and calculation of
capitalisation amount of borrowing costs
(Continued)

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose
borrowing are included in the current profits and losses
when incurred.

(XVl) biological assets

1.

Classification and costs for biological assets

The Company’s biological assets are classified as
consumptive biological assets and productive biological
assets, including broilers, chicks, hatchable eggs and
breeders. Productive biological assets are classified into
immature productive biological assets and mature
productive biological assets according to different stages.
The two stages refer the breeding stage and the
production stage, respectively.

Productive biological assets are measured at fair value
less sales costs at initial recognition and the end of each
reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from changes in
fair value less sales costs is included in current profit or
loss for the period in which the gain or loss arises.

Breeding costs and other related costs (such as labour
costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses and public
expenses) are capitalised at the breeding and the
production stage until normal and stable egg production.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVll biological assets (Continued)

2. Inventory system of productive biological
assets

The Company takes inventory of parent stock day-old
chicks by batch once every six months or at the time of
culling. The perpetual inventory system is adopted.

(Xvil)Intangible assets
1. Measurement of intangible assets

(1) Intangible assets are initially measured at cost
upon acquisition by the Company;

The costs of an externally purchased intangible asset
include the purchase price, relevant tax expenses,
and other expenditures directly attributable to bringing
the asset ready for its intended use.

(2) Subsequent measurement

The Company shall analyse and judge the useful life
of intangible Assets upon acquisition.

As for intangible assets with a finite useful life, they
are amortised over the term in which economic
benefits are brought to the firm; If the term in which
economic benefits are brought to the firm by an
intangible asset cannot be estimated, the intangible
asset shall be taken as an intangible asset with
indefinite useful life, and shall not be amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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—FEEMBHRRNE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVlllIntangible assets (Continued)

2

Estimate of useful life for the intangible

EEEMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBERERfhE(E)

ThEFREE (&)

2 BRASGERNEFLEENRAE

assets with finite useful life w4 7t 15 %
Estimated Amortisation Residual

Items Useful Years method value rate Basis

HE I EASe #BMEEE BREX KE

Land use rights 25-50 Straight-line 0 Terms for bringing economic benefits
method to the Company

o 3 {6 R FRFEE RN A RSB N &5 B H IR

Computer software 10 Straight-line 0 Terms for bringing economic benefits
method to the Company

B e FRFEE RN R RS N 25 6 B PR

Patents 20 Straight-line 0 Terms for bringing economic benefits
method to the Company

I FRFIE R B RAS B A w1 69 BR IR

Specific criteria for the division of research
phase and development Phase

The expenses for internal research and development
projects of the Company are divided into expenses in the
research phase and expenses in the development phase.

Research phase: a phase in which innovative and
scheduled investigations and research activities are
conducted to obtain and understand new scientific or
technological knowledge.

Development phase: a phase in which the research
outcomes or other knowledge are applied for a plan or a
design prior to the commercial production or use in order
to produce new or substantially improved materials,
devices, products, etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVll)Intangible assets (Continued)

4.

Specific conditions for capitalisation of
expenditure incurred in development phase

Expenditures incurred in the research stage are
recognised in profit or loss for the period. Expenditures
incurred in the development stage are recognised as
intangible assets only when all of the following conditions
are satisfied, and the expenditures in the development
stage that does not meet all of the following conditions are
recognised in profit or loss for the period:

(1) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or for sale;

(2) the intention to complete the intangible asset for use
or for sale;

(3) the ways in which the intangible asset generate
economic benefits, including there is evidence that
the products produced using the intangible asset has
a market or the intangible asset itself has a market,
or if the intangible asset is for internal use, there is
evidence that proves its usefulness;

(4) the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and the
ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(5) the expenditures attributable to the development
phase of the intangible asset could be reliably
measured.

If the expenditures cannot be distinguished between the
research phase and development phase, all of which
should be included in the current profit or loss.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XIX)Impairment of long-term assets

Long-term equity investments, fixed assets, construction in
progress, right-of-use assets, use of intangible assets with a
finite useful life, oil and gas assets and other long-term assets
are tested for impairment if there is any indication that such
assets may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result
of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of
the asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment and an impairment loss are recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
Provision for asset impairment is determined and recognised
on the individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable
amount of a group of assets to which the asset belongs is
determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash inflows.

Goodwill formed by business merger, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets that are not yet
ready for use are tested for impairment at least at the end of
each year regardless of whether there is any sign of
impairment.

When the Company performs impairment test on goodwill, the
Company shall, as of the purchase day, allocate on a
reasonable basis the carrying value of the goodwill formed by
merger of enterprises to the relevant asset groups, or if there
is a difficulty in allocation, to allocate it to the set of asset
groups. The related asset groups or the set of asset groups
refers to these ones that can benefit from the synergies of a
business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XIX)Impairment of long-term assets (Continued) (th REAEERME(B)

For the purpose of impairment test on the relevant asset
groups or the set of asset groups containing goodwill, if any
evidence shows that the impairment of asset groups or set of
asset groups related to goodwill is possible, an impairment
test will be made firstly on the asset groups or set of asset
groups not containing goodwill, thus calculating the
recoverable amount and comparing it with the relevant
carrying value so as to recognize the corresponding
impairment loss. Then, the Company will conduct impairment
tests on the asset groups or set of asset groups that includes
goodwill and compare its carrying value against its recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than its carrying
value, the amount of impairment loss is first offset against the
carrying value of the goodwill allocated to the asset groups or
set of asset groups, then, based on the proportion of the
carrying value of other assets in the asset groups or set of
asset groups other than goodwill, offset against the carrying
value of other assets proportionally.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised, it will not
be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.

(XX) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but will benefit over 1 year and shall be amortised
over the current period and subsequent periods.

The amortisation period and amortisation method for each
expense are: evenly amortised over the benefit period.

(XXI)Contract liabilities

The Company has presented contract assets or contract
liabilities in the balance sheet based on the connection
between the fulfilment of performance obligations and payment
of the customers. A contract liability represents the obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for that the
Company has received a consideration or an amount of
consideration that is due from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXl Employee benefits

EEEMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBERERfhE(E)

() B T % B

Accounting treatment method of short-term
benefits

In the accounting period in which employees provide
services for the Company, short-term benefits actually
incurred are recognised as liabilities and charged into
current profit or loss or cost of relevant assets.

With regard to the social insurance and housing provident
funds contributed and labour union expenses and
employee education expenses paid as required by
regulations, the Company should calculate and recognise
the corresponding employee benefits payables according
to the appropriation basis and proportion as stipulated by
relevant requirements in the accounting period in which
employees provide services for the Company.

At the time of actual occurrence, the Company’s
employee benefits are recorded in the current profit or
loss or costs of relevant assets as incurred. The non-
currency welfare expenses are measured at fair value.

Accounting treatment method of post-
employment benefits

(1) Defined contribution scheme

The Company will pay basic pension insurance and
unemployment insurance for the staff in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the local government.
During the accounting period in which the staff
provides services for the Company, the Company will
calculate the amount payable in accordance with the
local stipulated basis and proportions, and such
amount will be recognised as liabilities and charged
into current profit or loss or cost of relevant assets.
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——HEEMBWRME
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXl Employee benefits (Continued) CrBISM(E)

2 BEBAEFFNESEELE(E)

2. Accounting treatment method of post-
employment benefits (Continued)

Sat &
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(2) Defined benefit scheme (2) HEX

According to the formula determined under the
expected cumulative welfare unit method, the
Company attributes the welfare obligations arising
from the defined benefit scheme to the period during
which the employees provide services, and such
obligations would be charged into current profit or
loss or costs of relevant assets.

The deficit or surplus generated from the present
value of obligations of the defined benefit scheme
minus the fair value of the assets of defined benefit
scheme is recognised as net liabilities or net assets
of a defined benefit scheme. When the defined
benefit Scheme has surplus, the Company will
measure the net assets of the defined benefit scheme
at the lower of the surplus of defined Benefit scheme
and the upper limit of the assets.

All defined benefit schemes obligations, including the
expected duty of payment within 12 months after the
end of annual reporting period during which the staff
provided service, are discounted based on the market
yield of government bonds matching the term and
currency of defined benefit scheme obligations or
corporate bonds of high quality in the active market
on the balance sheet date.

The service cost incurred by the defined benefit
scheme and the net interest of the net liabilities and
net assets of the defined benefit scheme would be
charged to current profit or loss or relevant costs of
assets. The changes arising from the remeasurement
of the net liabilities or net assets of the defined
benefit scheme would be included in other
comprehensive income and are not reversed to profit
or loss in a subsequent accounting period; when the
previously defined benefit scheme is terminated, all
of such amount previously included in other
comprehensive income shall be carried forward to
undistributed profit within the scope of equity.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXl Employee benefits (Continued)

2.

Accounting treatment method of post-
employment benefits (Continued)

(2) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

When the defined benefit scheme is settled, the gain
or loss is recognised based on the difference
between the present value of obligations under the
defined benefit scheme and the settlement price at
the settlement date.

Accounting treatment method of termination
benefits

When the Company provides employees with termination
benefits, the staff remuneration liabilities arising from
termination benefits are recognised and recorded in
current profit or loss whichever of the following is earlier:
when the Company cannot unilaterally revoke such
termination benefits provided due to dissolution of labour
relationship plan or layoff proposal; when the Company
recognises such cost or expenses associated with the
restructuring involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(XXl Estimated liabilities

The Company shall recognise an obligation related to
contingencies as the estimated liability, when all of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(1

)

@)

such obligation is the present obligation of the Company;

the performance of such obligation is likely to lead to an
outflow of economic benefits of the Company;

the amount of such obligation can be reliably measured.

The estimated liabilities are initially measured at the best
estimate of expenditure required for the performance of
relevant present obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——FEMBRKRME
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXIl)Estimated liabilities (Continued) 1 aEE)

The Company shall take into consideration the risks,
uncertainties, time value of money and other factors relating to
the contingencies in determining the best estimate. If the time
value of money is significant, the best estimates shall be
determined after discount of relevant future cash outflows.

If there is a successive range of the required expenditure, and
the likelihood of occurrence of various results within the range
is the same, the best estimate is determined by the
intermediate value. In other cases, the best estimate is
handled as follows:

*  Where the contingency is related to individual item, the
best estimate should be determined as the most likely
amount.

*  Where the contingency is related to a number of items,
the best estimate should be calculated and determined
according to the various possible results and the relevant
probabilities.

When all or part of the expenditures necessary for the
settlement of an estimated liability is expected to be
compensated by a third party, the compensation should be
separately recognised as an asset only when it is virtually
certain that the compensation will be received. The amount
recognised for the compensation should not exceed the
carrying amount of estimated liabilities.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of estimated
liabilities on balance sheet date. If there is clear evidence that
the carrying amount does not reflect the current best estimate,
the carrying amount is adjusted to the current best estimate.

(XXIV) Share-based payments

The share-based payments of the Company are transactions
that grant equity instruments or assume equity-instrument
based liabilities for receiving services rendered by employees
or other parties. The share-based payments of the Company
include equity-settled share-based payments and cash-settled
share-based payments.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXIV)Share-based payments (Continued)

1. Equity-settled share-based payments and

equity instruments

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange
for services rendered by employees are measured at the
fair value of equity instruments granted to employees. If
the equity instruments granted to employees vest
immediately, the fair value of the equity instruments
granted is, on grant date, recognised as relevant cost or
expenses with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve. If the equity instruments granted to employees
do not vest until the completion of services for a vesting
period, or until the specified performance conditions are
met, the Company, at each balance sheet date during the
vesting period, makes the best estimation according to
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
Company recognises the services received for the current
period as related costs or expenses, with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve, at an amount equal to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

If the terms of the equity-settled share-based payment are
amended, the Company shall recognise the services
received at least based on the situation before the
amendment was made. In addition, any amendment
resulting in the increase of the fair value of the equity
instrument granted or changes that are beneficial to the
staff on the amendment date will be recognised as an
increase in the service received.

During the vesting period, where the granted equity
instrument is cancelled, the Company shall accelerate the
exercise of rights thereunder, recognising the outstanding
amount for the remainder of the vesting period in current
profit or loss, while recognising capital reserve. However,
if new equity instruments are granted and they are verified
at the granting date of new equity instrument as
alternatives granted to the cancel led equity instruments,
the treatment on the new equity instrument is in conformity
with the modified treatment on disposal of equity
instrument with the same terms and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXIV)Share-based payments (Continued)

2

Cash-settled share-based payments and
equity instruments

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured
in accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and
determined based on the shares or other equity
instruments undertaken by the Company. If the equity
instruments granted to employees vest immediately, the
fair value of the liability undertaken by the Company shall,
on the date of the grant, be included in the relevant costs
or expenses, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. If the equity instruments granted to
employees do not vest until the completion of services for
a vesting period, or until the specified performance
conditions are met, at each balance sheet date during the
vesting period, the services obtained in the current period
shall, based on the best estimate of the information about
the exercisable right, be included in the relevant costs or
expenses and the corresponding liabilities at the fair value
of the liability undertaken by the Company. On each of the
balance sheet date and settlement date before the
settlement of the relevant liabilities, fair value of the
liabilities will be remeasured and the changes will be
included in the profit or loss for the current period.

The Company amends the terms and conditions of a
cash-settled share-based payment agreement to make it
become an equity-settled share-based payment. At the
date of amendment (whether occurring during or after the
end of a vesting period), the Company measures the
equity-settled share-based payment at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date by including the
acquired services in capital reserves and derecognising
the liability recognised for the cash-settled share-based
payment on the date of amendment, where the difference
is recognised in profit or loss for the current period. If a
vesting period is extended or shortened as a result of the
amendment, the Company will account for in accordance
with the amended vesting period.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXV)Revenue

EEEMIR/ARET)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

S EEEMBERERfhE(E)

(2T WA

1. Accounting policies for revenue recognition

and measurement

The Company recognises revenue when the performance
obligation in a contract is fulfilled, that is, the customer
obtains control over relevant goods or services. Control
over a good or service refers to the ability to direct the use
of the good or service, and obtain substantially all of the
benefits from the good or service.

If a contract contains two or more performance
obligations, at the commencement of the contract, the
Company allocates the transaction price into each
individual performance obligation according to the relative
proportion of each individual selling price of goods or
services committed by individual performance obligation,
and recognises the revenue according to the transaction
price allocated to each individual performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties and
those expected to be refunded to the customer. The
Company considers the terms of the contract and its
customary business practices to determine the transaction
price. When determining the transaction price, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration,
the existence of a significant financing component in the
contract, noncash consideration and consideration
payable to a customer. The Company determines the
transaction price that includes variable considerations
based on the amount not exceeding the revenue
accumulatively recognised which is not likely to be
significantly reversed when the relevant uncertainty
disappears. Where there are significant financing
elements in the contract, the Company determines the
transaction price based on the amount payable by the
assumption that the customer will pay in cash when he/
she obtains control over the promised goods or services.
The difference between the transaction price and the
amount of contract consideration is amortised using an
effective interest method over the contract term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXV)Revenue (Continued) (TR A (&)

Accounting policies for revenue recognition
and measurement (Continued)

When one of the following conditions is satisfied, the
Company is considered to have fulfiled an obligation
within a certain period of time. Otherwise, the Company is
considered to have fulfilled an obligation at a certain point
in time:

* At the same time when the Company fulfills the
obligation, the customer immediately obtains and
consumes the economic benefits brought about by
the Company’s performance.

« The customer can control the goods under
construction in the course of the Company’s
performance.

* Goods produced in the course of the Company’s
performance are irreplaceable. In addition, during the
entire contract period, the Company has the right to
collect the payments for the cumulatively completed
parts of performance.

For a contractual obligation per formed within a certain
period of time, the Company recognises revenue by the
progress in performance over that period of time, except
where the progress cannot be reasonably determined.
The Company considers the nature of the goods or
services and adopts the output method or the input
method to determine the progress in per formance. If the
progress in performance cannot be reasonably
determined, but the incurred costs are expected to be
compensated, the Company should recognise revenue on
the basis of the incurred costs till the progress in
performance can be reasonably determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXV)Revenue (Continued)

1. Accounting policies for revenue recognition
and measurement (Continued)

For a contractual obligation performed at a certain point in
time, the Company recognises revenue when the
customer obtains control over relevant goods or services.
In determining whether the customer has obtained control
over the goods or services, the Company considers the
following indications:

« The Company enjoys the present right to receive
payment for the goods or services, that is, the
customer has the present obligation to pay for the
goods or services.

*  The Company has transferred the legal ownership of
the goods to the customer, that is, the customer has
obtained the legal ownership of the goods.

«  The Company has physically transferred the goods to
the customer, that is, the customer has physically
taken possession of the goods.

*+ The Company has transferred the main risks and
rewards in the ownership of the goods to the
customer, that is, the customer has obtained the
main risks and rewards in the ownership of the
goods.

*  The customer has accepted the goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXV)Revenue (Continued)

2. Specific Principles

(1)

(2)

The specific method of determining the
Company’s revenue recognition criteria and the
time of recognition of revenue from the sale of
goods:

The Company’s sales model is divided into direct
sales to domestic customers and direct sales to
foreign customers. The Company’s revenue from
domestic sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and accepted by the
counterparty. The Company’s revenue from external
sales of goods is recognised when the goods have
been declared at customs and the charter party bills
of lading has been obtained.

Analysis and introduction of the corresponding
business characteristics of the Company’s
revenue from sales of goods

Shandong Fengxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. and
Shandong Fengxiang Food Development Co., Ltd.
are the main subsidiaries of the Company’s external
sales. Shandong Fengxiang Industrial focuses on the
raw chicken cutting products and Shandong
Fengxiang Food Development focuses on processed
and cooked chicken products. The external sales
customers are domestic advanced payment
customers, credit customers and export customers,
respectively. The Company grants credit to different
customers and enters into credit contracts with
customers with better reputation. The remaining
customers are generally advanced payment
customers.

(XXVl) Contract costs

Contract costs comprise contract performance costs and
contract acquisition costs.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXVl) Contract costs (Continued)

The costs incurred by the Company for the performance of the
contract which does not fall under the scope of the standards
relating to inventories, fixed assets and intangible assets are
recognised as an asset as contract performance costs when
the following conditions are met:

 The cost is directly related to a current or expected
contract.

*  The cost increases the resources of the Company to fulfill
its performance obligations in the future.

»  The costis expected to be recovered.

If the incremental cost incurred by the Company in obtaining
the contract is expected to be recovered, such cost shall be
treated as contract acquisition cost and recognized as an
asset.

Assets related to the cost of the contract are amortised on the
same basis as the revenue recognition of the goods or
services related to the asset; however, if the amortisation
period of the contract acquisition cost is less than one year,
the Company will include it into the current profit or loss when
is incurs.

For assets related to contract costs whose carrying amount is
higher than the difference between the following two items, the
Company will make provision for impairment for the excess
and recognise it as asset impairment loss:

1. The remaining consideration expected to be obtained by
the transfer of goods or services related to the asset;

2. The cost expected to be incurred for the transfer of the
relevant goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXVl) Contract costs (Continued)

If the above-mentioned excess is higher than the book value
of such assets as a result of any subsequent change of
impairment factors in the previous period, the provision for
impairment of assets previously made shall be reversed and
included in profit or loss for the period as incurred to the extent
the book value of the reversed asset shall not exceed the book
value of the asset on the date of the reverse assuming no
provision for impairment is made.

(XXVl) Government grants
1. Types

Government grants are monetary assets and nonmonetary
assets obtained by the Company from the government for
free, and are divided into government grants related to
assets and government grants related to revenue.

Government grants related to assets are those obtained
by the Company for the purposes of acquisition,
construction or otherwise forming a longterm asset.
Government grants related to revenue refer to the
government grants other than those related to assets.

The specific criteria for classifying government grants as
asset-related are: government documents specify that the
grants are for long-term assets obtained, acquired or
constructed or otherwise formed by the enterprise.

The specific criteria for classifying government grants as
revenue-related are: government documents specify that
the grants are for expenses or losses.

If government documents do not specify the target of the
subsidy, basis of determination for asset-related
government grants or revenue-related government grants
are: the Company classifies government grants as a
whole as revenue-related government grants and includes
them in current profit or loss, or recognises them as
current revenue in installments over the project period,
depending on the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XxvVl) Government grants (Continued)

2

Timing for recognition

Government grants are recognised when the Company
can comply with the conditions attached to it and when it
can be received.

Accounting treatment

Asset-related government grants shall be used to offset
the carrying amount of relevant asset or recognised as
deferred income. The amount recognised as deferred
income shall be included in current profit or loss by
installments in a reasonable and systematic way over the
useful life of the relevant assets (the government grants
related to the Company’s daily activities shall be included
in other income; and the government grants unrelated to
the Company’s daily activities shall be included in
nonoperating income);

Government grants related to revenue that are used to
compensate relevant costs or losses of the Company in
subsequent periods are recognised as deferred income
and included in current profit or loss when such costs or
losses are recognised (government grants related to the
Company’s daily activities shall be included in other
income; government grants unrelated to the Company’s
daily activities shall be included in non-operating income)
or are used to offset relevant costs or losses; and the
grants used to compensate relevant costs or losses that
have incurred by the Company are included directly in
current profit or loss (government grants related to the
Company’s daily activities shall be included in other
income; government grants unrelated to the Company’s
daily activities shall be included in non-operating income)
or are used to offset relevant costs or losses.
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

S EEEMBEREfhE(E)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XxvVl) Government grants (Continued)
3. Accounting treatment (Continued)

The interest subsidies for policy-related preferential loans
obtained by the Company are divided into two types and
subject to accounting treatment separately:

(1) Where the interest subsidies are appropriated from
the fiscal funds to the lending bank and then the bank
provides loans to Company at a policy-based
preferential interest rate, the Company will recognize
the amount of borrowings received as the initial value
and calculate the borrowing costs according to the
principal amount and the policy-based preferential
interest rate.

(2) Where the interest subsidies are paid directly to the
Company, the Company will use such interest
subsidies to offset the corresponding borrowing
costs.

(XxviiDeferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Current income tax and deferred income tax are recognised in
current profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a
business combination or items included directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(X\iiDeferred income tax assets and deferred income

tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
are calculated and recognised based on the differences
(temporary differences) between the tax bases and the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences to the extent of taxable income that is
likely to be obtained in the future period to offset the deductible
temporary differences. For deductible losses and tax credits
that can be carried forward to future years, deferred income
tax assets shall be recognized to the extent of future taxable
income that is likely to be obtained to offset the deductible
losses and tax credits.

Save for exceptions, deferred income tax liabilities shall be
recognised for the taxable temporary difference.

The exceptions for not recognition of deferred income tax
assets or deferred income tax liabilities include:

» the initial recognition of the goodwiill;

* a transaction or event that is neither a business
combination nor affects accounting profit and taxable
income (or deductible loss) at the time of its occurrence.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences relating to the investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference, and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. When
it is probable that the temporary differences relating to the
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures will
be reversed in the foreseeable future and that taxable income
is likely to be obtained in the future to offset the deductible
temporary differences, deferred income tax assets will be
recognised.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XVi|Deferred income tax assets and deferred income CNEZEFRSHEENEERMESHRAEBE)

tax liabilities (Continued)

On the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the applicable
tax rates during the period when the relevant assets are
expected to be recovered or the relevant liabilities are
expected to be settled in accordance with the provisions of the
tax law.

The carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset is
reviewed on the balance sheet date, and is reduced when
sufficient taxable income is not likely to be obtained in future
periods to offset the benefit of deferred income tax assets.
Such reduction will be reversed when sufficient taxable income
is likely to be obtained.

When the Company has a legal right to set-off and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to acquire the income tax
asset and settle the income tax liability simultaneously, current
income tax assets and current income tax liabilities shall be
presented as the net amount after offsetting.

On the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are presented in their net
amount after offsetting when all of the following conditions are
met:

*  When the taxable entity has the legal right to set off
current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities on a net basis;

*  When the deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities are related to income tax to be paid
by the same entity liable to pay tax to the same tax
authority, or related to different entities liable to pay tax
but the relevant entities intend to settle on a net basis or
to acquire the income tax assets and settle the income tax
liabilities simultaneously in the future period in which
significant deferred income tax assets and liabilities would
be reversed.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease

A lease is a contract that conveys the right to use an asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception of
a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of one or more
identified asset(s) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For a contract that contains multiple separate lease, the
Company separates and accounts for each lease component
as a lease separately. For a contract that contains lease and
non-lease components, the lessee and lessor separates the
lease and non-lease components.

For rent reductions, deferred payments and other rental
concessions directly caused by the COVID-19 Pandemic and
agreed on existing leasing contacts, if the following conditions
are met at the same time, the Company adopts a simplified
approach for all lease options, and does not assess whether
there is a lease change, nor does it reassess the classification
of leases:

* The lease consideration after the concession is reduced
or basically unchanged compared with that before the
concession, among which, the lease consideration can be
either undiscounted or discounted at the discount rate
before the concession;

+  After taking into account the qualitative and quantitative
factors, it is determined that there is no significant change
in other terms and conditions of the leases.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)

1.

The Company as a lessee

(1) Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date of lease term, the
Company recognises right-of-use assets for leases
(excluding short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets). Right-of-use assets are measured initially at
cost. Such cost comprises:

¢« The amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

* Lease payments made at or before the inception
of the lease less any lease incentives already
received (if there is a lease incentive);

» Initial direct costs incurred by the Company;

« The costs of the Company expected to be
incurred for dismantling and removing the leased
asset, restoring the site on which the leased
asset is located or restoring it to the condition as
agreed in the terms of the lease, except those
incurred for the production of inventories.

The Company subsequently depreciates right of-use
assets using the straight-line method. If there is
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the
ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset
from the commencement date to the end of the useful
life of the underlying asset; otherwise, the Company
depreciates the leased asset from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
lease term or the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset.

The Company determines whether the right-of use
assets have been impaired in accordance with the
principles described in the note “lll. (XIX) Impairment
of long-term assets” and conducts accounting
treatment for impairment loss identified.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

EEEMIR/ARET)

S EEEMBERERfhE(E)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)

1. The Company as a lessee (Continued)

(2) Lease liabilities

R E (&)

1-

At the commencement date of lease term, the
Company recognises lease liabilities for leases
(excluding short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets). Lease liabilities are initially measured based
on the present value of outstanding lease payments.

Lease payments include:

Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives (if there is
a lease incentive);

Variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

Amounts expected to be payable under the
guaranteed residual value provided by the
Company;

The exercise price of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option;

Payments for terminating the lease option, if the
lease term reflects that the Company will
exercise that option.

The Company adopts the interest rate implicit in the

lease as the discount rate. If that rate cannot be
determined reasonably, the Company’s incremental

borrowing rate is used.
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)

1.

The Company as a lessee (Continued)

(2) Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Company shall calculate the interest expenses
of lease liabilities over each period of the lease term
at the fixed periodic interest rate, and include such
expenses into current profit or loss or cost of relevant
assets.

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities are included into
current profit or loss or cost of relevant assets when
actually incurred.

After the commencement date of lease term, the
Company re-measures the lease liabilities and
adjusts the corresponding right-of-use assets under
the following circumstances. If the carrying value of
the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zero, and
the lease liabilities still need to be further reduced,
the difference is included into current profit or loss:

«  When there in a change in the assessment
results of the purchase, extension or termination
option, or when the actual exercise of the
aforementioned options is inconsistent with the
original assessment results, the Company
remeasures the lease liabilities in accordance
with the lease payments after changes and the
present value calculated using the revised
discount rate;

«  When there is a change in substantial fixed
payments, the amount expected to be payable
under the guaranteed residual value or the index
or rate used to determine lease payments, the
Company remeasures the lease liabilities in
accordance with the lease payments after
changes and the present value calculated using
the initial discount rate. However, if the change
in lease payments is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, a revised discount rate is
used for the calculation of present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)

1.

The Company as a lessee (Continued)

(3

(4)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Company chooses not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, and includes the relevant
lease payments into current profit or loss or cost of
relevant assets over each period of the lease term on
a straight-line basis. Short-term leases refer to leases
with a lease term of not more than 12 months from
the commencement date of lease term and excluding
a purchase option. Leases of low-value assets refer
to leases that the single underlying asset, when is
new, is of low value. Where the Company subleases
or expects to sublease a leased asset, the original
lease is not a lease of low value asset.

Lease change

The Company will account for the lease change as a
separate lease if the lease changes and meets the
following conditions:

* The lease change expands the scope of lease by
increasing the rights to use one or more leased
assets;

e The increased consideration and the individual
price of the expanded part of the lease are
equivalent to the amount adjusted for the
contract.

If the lease change is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Company shall re-allocate the
consideration of a changed contract, redetermine the
lease term, and remeasure the lease liabilities in
accordance with the lease payments after changes
and the present value calculated using the revised
discount rate on the effective date of the lease
change.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)

1.

The Company as a lessee (Continued)
(4) Lease change

If the lease change results in a narrower lease or a
shorter lease term, the Company reduces the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset accordingly,
and includes the gains or losses related to partial or
complete termination of the leases into current profit
or loss. For other lease change that cause the lease
liabilities to be remeasured, the Company adjusts the
carrying value of the right-of-use assets accordingly.

The Company as a lessor

At the commencement date of lease term, the Company
classifies leases as financing leases and operating
leases. A financing lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset, irrespective of whether the
ownership of the asset is eventually transferred. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. As a
sub-leasing lessor, the Company classifies the sub-leases
based on the right-of-use assets of the original leases.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)
2. The Company as a lessor (Continued)

(1) Accounting treatment of operating leases

The lease payments derived from operating leases
are recognised as rental income on a straight-line
basis over the respective lease term. Initial direct
costs relating to operating leases to be incurred by
the Company shall be capitalised and then included
into the current profit or loss by stages at the same
base as the recognition of rental income over the
lease term. The variable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease payments shall be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are occurred. Where there is a modification in an
operating lease, the Company accounts for it as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification,
and the amount of lease receipts received in advance
or receivable relating to the premodification lease is
treated as receipts under the new lease.

(2) Accounting treatment of financing leases

At the commencement date of lease term, the
Company recognises financing lease receivable for
financing leases and derecognises the underlying
assets. The Company initially measures financing
lease receivable in the amount of net investment in
the lease. Net investment in the lease is the sum of
present value of unguaranteed residual value and the
lease payments receivable at the commencement
date of lease term, discounted at the interest rate
implicit in the lease.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EESTBRERER MG (B

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(XXX Lease (Continued) ri & (&)
2 XRAERBHBA(E)

2. The Company as a lessor (Continued)

(2) Accounting treatment of financing leases 2) BEHE S EE (&)

(Continued)

The Company calculates and recognises interest
income in each period during the lease term, based
on a constant periodic interest rate. The derecognition
and impairment of financing lease receivable are
accounted for in accordance with the note “lll. (X)
Financial instruments”.

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the net investment in the lease are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
are occurred.

When a financial lease is changed and the following
conditions are simultaneously met, the Company
accounts for the lease change as a separate lease:

« The change expands the scope of lease by
adding the right to use one or more leased
assets;

e The increased consideration and the individual
price of the expanded part of the lease are
equivalent to the amount adjusted for the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“OZZHEEVBERHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Lease (Continued)
2. The Company as a lessor (Continued)

(2) Accounting treatment of financing leases
(Continued)

Where a change in a financial lease is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Company deals with the
lease after the change according to the following
situations:

* In case where the lease would have been
classified as an operating lease assuming the
modification became effective at the
commencement date of the lease, the Company
accounts for it as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification and the net investment
in the lease prior to the effective date of the
modification is taken as the carrying amount of
the leased assets;

* In case where the lease would have been
classified as a finance lease assuming the
modification became effective at the
commencement date of the lease, the Company
conducts accounting treatment in accordance
with the policy regarding the modification or
renegotiation of contracts described in note “ Ill. (X)
Financial instruments”.

(3) Rental concessions related to the COVID-19
Pandemic

The Company is listed overseas and adopts the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to
prepare financial statements. As a lessor, the
simplified approach is not applicable.
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX Lease (Continued) ri & (&)
3. Sale and leaseback transactions 3- ERHEEIXEZ
The Company determines whether the asset transfer in NEEBAMFEIZ - (Z+F)WALFT
the sale and leaseback transaction is a sale in accordance MRAFEEEERERRSPNEE
with the principles described in notes “lIl. (XXV) Revenue”. EEELBREE -

(1) As alessee (1) tEREEA
EREERSGINEEEZBRE
transaction is a sale, the Company, as a lessee, EW - RAEREABARREER
measures the right-of-use assets formed by the sale HEETFRARNESHNFERAES
and leaseback based on the part of the book value of AR TEESREBFEAD
the original assets related to the use rights obtained FRAEEE TEREERELEA
WEMBERABBASHIEBL: &%
HERSHEHEESEZETERNE

If the asset transfer in the sale and leaseback

from the leaseback, and recognise relevant gains or
losses only for the right transferred to the lessor; if

the transfer of assets in the sale and leaseback EW RAEREE AEBERE
transaction is not a sale, the Company, as a lessee, BEEAE RRN®ER - BEREEK
continues to recognise the transferred assets and AZFENEHAGE 2HAENE

AREEFRAAME=Z (P& @&

recognises a financial liability equal to the transfer

income. For details of accounting treatment for TAH]|-
financial liabilities, please see note “lll. (X) Financial
instruments”.

(2) As alessor (2) tEAZM A

If the transfer of assets in the sale and leaseback

ERAMZZHNEEERE N H

transaction is a sale, the Company, as a lessor,
accounts for asset purchase, and accounts for asset
lease in accordance with policies in the
aforementioned “2. The Company as a lessor”; if the
transfer of assets in the sale and leaseback
transaction is not a sale, the Company, as a lessor,
does not recognise the transferred assets, but
recognises a financial asset equal to the transfer
income. For details of accounting treatment for
financial assets, please see note “Ill. (X) Financial
instruments”.

EW AREAERAAUEERE
Lﬁ@%ﬁ@'imﬁmﬁm‘ﬁ

NEMEAHBAINBEHEELA
ETETEE ERHEERSFH
EEEETBEREEN  QaltEA
PRAATHERWEREE BEER
—FHEZFRASENCREE -
CRMEEMNSTERF R AN
= - (H)&@mITA]l-
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I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX)Repurchase the shares of the Company

Shares repurchased by the Company for employee equity
incentive purposes is handled as follows:

When shares are repurchased, they should be treated as
treasury shares in accordance with the full expense of the
repurchased shares and be registered for record purposes.

At each balance sheet date during the vesting period, the
Company recognises the services received as related costs or
expenses, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve
(other capital reserves), at an amount equal to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

When the employee exercises the rights to repurchase shares
of the Company, the Company writes off the cost of treasury
shares delivered to the employee upon receipt of consideration
and the cumulative amount from capital reserve (other capital
reserves) during the vesting period, while its difference is
adjusted to capital reserve (share premium).

(XxX) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Company continuously evaluates estimates and
judgments based on historical experience and other factors,
including reasonable projections of future events under
relevant circumstances. The Company makes estimates and
assumptions about the future. Accounting estimates under
judgments are seldom equal the actual results. The risks of
making estimates and assumptions that could result in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next accounting year are discussed as
follows.

(1) Net realizable value of inventories is lower
than inventories

The net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated sales cost. These estimates are based on
current market conditions and historical experience in
selling products of a similar nature. In severe industry
cycles, inventories may change significantly due to the
actions of competitors. Management will re-estimate at
the reporting date. The carrying amounts of the
Company’s inventories are disclosed in Note V (V) to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(2)

(3

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than inventories, biological assets and
goodwill)

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
investment in associates and the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. For intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives, the impairment test is
conducted at the end of each year or when there are
indicators of impairment. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators of
impairment that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
calculating the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, the management
shall estimate the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset or the group of assets, and select
appropriate discount rate in calculation of the present
value of cash flows.

Fair value measurements of biological assets

The management of the Group recognises the fair value
less sales cost of biological assets at the end of the
reporting period with reference to market pricing, species,
growing environment, costs incurred and professional
valuation. The Directors of the Company worked closely
with qualified external valuers to select the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for the model. The
decision involves the application of significant judgments.
If actual results differ from management’s estimates, the
relevant differences from the original estimates will affect
the fair value changes in the current and future periods.
Details of the carrying amounts and fair value
measurements of the Company’s biological assets are
disclosed in Note V (X) to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“OZZHEEVBERHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

I1l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(XXX) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(Continued)

(4) Income tax and value-added tax

The Company is subject to various taxes in the PRC.
Meanwhile, the Company enjoys various tax benefits in
the PRC. For example, the Company is exempted from
enterprise income tax for its operations engaging in
primary processing for agricultural products and animal-
husbandry and poultry feeding, and is exempted from
value-added tax on its revenue from the sales of its own
agricultural products. There are various transactions and
calculations in the ordinary course of business that result
in uncertainties as to the ultimate taxable income. The
Company recognises the related tax based on best
estimates. If the tax outcome of the matter differs from the
initial recorded amount, such difference will affect the
current profit or loss. In addition, the realisation of income
tax and value-added taxes is dependent on the
Company’s capability to generate sufficient taxable
income in the future. The aforesaid estimates, income tax
rates and future profitability will result in adjustments to
the value of tax assets and liabilities.

(XXX) Changes in significant accounting policies and
estimates

1. Changes in significant accounting policies

The changes in accounting policies have no significant
impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S EEEFBERGMAE(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(XX) Changes in significant accounting policies and CrHEEZEMBERNEFHAHNEE(E)
estimates (Continued)
2. Changes in significant accounting estimates 2 - EEEAAEE
During the reporting period, there was no change in the ABEHRAAEESHHIAREE
Company’s major accounting policies. BE o
IV. TAXATION m - 18
() Main taxes and tax rates () EEHREMHR X
Tax types Tax basis Tax rate
HnE SRR BE
Value-added tax The value-added tax payable is the difference between output 13% * 9% ~ 6%

tax (calculated based on the revenue from sales of goods and
taxable service income under the tax laws) and net of the input
tax that is allowed to be deducted in the current period

EEMW ERERTEAENHEEEMFAER LB R ER T
AU ENBRERAFBENNERNBRR 8L AE
RIEEH
City maintenance and Value-added tax actually paid 5%
construction tax
WA R R RERSMNR BT T
Education surcharge Value-added tax actually paid 3%
HE BN RERSMRIEET
Local education surcharge Value-added tax actually paid 2%
75 2 A 2 N RER MR IEET
Enterprise income tax Taxable income 25%
BEPEH 12 E T PR 1S B AT AR
Resource tax Amount of water resources used RMB1.5/ton, RMB2/ton,
RMB6/ton
BIRH BKERER S 1.5,/ -
27t/ WE - 67T A
Property tax 1.2% of the remaining value after the original property value 1.2%
less 30%
BER 2B E R E — R BR 30% 1% B/ B 79 1.2% 5 4
Land use tax Actual land area RMB4/m?
& b8 A R ER L EEAH 470,/ F K
Different enterprise income tax rates applicable to different GETRCEMGSHMEMNHE BN HE
taxpayers are disclosed as below (EDEA]
Taxpayer Income tax rate
MBEEREE FREBH=E
Fengxiang Foods (Japan) Co., Ltd. Tax rate of 15% applicable to
the current period
BHER MK gL NHE AT E15%
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IV. TAXATION (Continued)

() Tax preference

The Company and Shandong Fengxiang Industrial Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, are entitled to the preferential tax
policy of “exemption from enterprise income tax for agriculture,
forestry, husbandry and fishery projects” from 1 July 2012;

The Company is entitled to the preferential tax policy of “VAT
exemption for agricultural producers on the sale of self-
produced agricultural products” from 1 August 2012;

The Company is entitled to the preferential tax policy of “VAT
exemption for feed products” from 1 January 2015;

The Company is entitled to the preferential tax policy of
“exemption from urban land use tax for land directly used for
production in agriculture, forestry, husbandry and fishery” from
1 December 2010;

The Company, Shandong iShape Food Technology Co., Ltd.* (1L
HEFRBEHAERAT) and Shandong Fengxiang Food
Development Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Company, are
entitled to the preferential tax policy of “exemption from VAT
on free lending of funds between units within an enterprise
group (including enterprise groups)” from 1 February 2019 to
31 December 2023;

Shandong Fengxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Fengxiang Food Development Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the
Company, are entitled to the preferential tax policy of “VAT
exemption for fresh meat and egg products in circulation” from
1 August 2014;

Shandong Fengxiang Food Development Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to the preferential tax
policy of “VAT exemption for vegetables in circulation” from 1
July 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
() Monetary funds

1. Presentation of monetary funds

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE
SHEBEMHYBARET)

hEHMBHRREEER

(-E¥ES

1- EREZ ST

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
ltems 1H B HIREREE FFEFRBR
Cash on hand BFIRE 14,737.46
Digital currencies HFEE
Bank deposits RITH R 281,264,380.50 1,374,795,896.95

Including: Amounts deposited in the
finance company
Other monetary funds

HE¥Es

Hep: FREMBARRA

1,041,438,054.10

859,111,623.35 479,977,937.67

Sub-total /a5t
Less: Credit impairment loss provision

B ERRERKER

1,140,390,741.31
808,234,759.31

1,854,773,834.62

Total =

332,155,982.00 1,854,773,834.62

Including: Aggregate amounts deposited
overseas ]

Hep: RSN RIA8

21,818.53 14,642,131.17

Additional information: as of 31 December 2022, the
deposits of RMB808,234,759.31 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,041,438,054.10) deposited by the Company with
GMK Finance are all presented in other monetary funds (31
December 2021: all presented in bank deposits). During this
period, based on the obtained information, the Company has
made a provision for “Credit Impairment Loss - Monetary
Funds” of RMB808,234,759.31 for the deposits in GMK
Finance. As at 31 December 2022, the balance of credit
impairment losses provision recognized by the Company for
the deposits in GMK Finance amounted to
RMB808,234,759.31.

HEMEA & 1-20229F128310 AR
RITFERRTBETERARNERARE
808,234,759.31 70 (2021412 A 31 B :
1,041,438,054.1070) 2 &5 "R E &
B & 4 (202112 A31 8 2 25 R 4R
AER) - ARBEAQXRERDEBHNEES
HTBEHEVBRARFRRIEARE
Bk —E¥E4]808,234,759.317C ° I
2022F12 A31H » AN A HETE & ¥ 37 B
HUBABGERERREERREERE
808,234,759.31 7T °
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TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBEZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
() Monetary funds (Continued) (- E¥ES(E)
2. Details of other monetary funds 2 - At EMELHMA
As at 31 As at 31
December 2022 December 2021
Items HE 2022%F12A31H 202112 A31H
Deposits in GMK Finance FBEMBER R BFR 808,234,759.53
Letter of credit deposits EHEBRES 20,171,503.81 20,006,000.00
Loan deposits BERRES 29,800,000.00
Deposits for bank acceptance notes RITERNEEZRFS 452,398,682.29
Deposits for land reclamation THERRES 300,000.00
Others Hi 905,360.01 7,273,255.38
Sub-total NET 859,111,623.35 479,977,937.67
Less: Credit impairment loss provision B ERAREEBKRER 808,234,759.31
Total &t 50,876,864.04 479,977,937.67
Details for monetary funds that are restricted in use due to AR EALRESTHERAERS - BE
pledge, mortgage or freezing, limited to access due to SCEFEEIRER URBRESRIINEES
centralised management of funds, and deposited overseas EEZEREMNEEESHMAIT -

and limited to repatriate are as follows:

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Items BHH HREREE LFEFERHBE
Deposits for bank acceptance notes RITELEZERES 452,398,682.29
Letter of credit deposits ERAFERER 20,171,503.81 20,006,000.00
Deposits for land reclamation THERREZS 300,000.00
Term deposits or call deposits AREREESHFERSBA
for guarantee P 137,000,000.00
Other deposits EMRES 30,251,672.28 6,957,938.26
Total &5t 187,423,176.09 479,662,620.55

228 SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Il) Trade receivable

1. Disclosure of trade receivable by aging based

on the invoice date

il

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

B BBREEER(E)

(Z) B AR

1 BN ZRE AR BRI

I =

Balance at the end

Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Aging BR HIR&AEE LFEFERBE
Less than 1 year 1FE A 198,520,927.23 261,600,900.64
Including: Less than 1 month HErh 1@ AUA 192,640,081.74 259,261,881.97
1 to 3 months 1-31& A 2,782,489.11 2,334,573.49
3 months to 1 year 3M@MA-1EF 3,098,356.38 4,445.18
1to 2 years 1522%F
2 to 3 years 2F3%F 2,797,010.49
3to 4 years 3E44F 2,525,868.95
4 to 5 years 4E5F
Over 5 years 5F LA E
Subtotal INEE 201,046,796.18 264,397,911.13
Less: bad debt provision W R 6,069,387.00 4,113,244.74
Total CE 194,977,409.18 260,284,666.39

Note: The sales settlement methods between the Company and
its customers are mainly cash sales and credit sales. The
credit period generally ranges from 30 to 60 days. The
Company implements strict control measures over
outstanding receivables, and the overdue amounts are
regularly reviewed by the management. Credit period risks
are managed in accordance with customers’ credit. The
Company does not require customers to provide any
collateral or other guarantee measures. Trade receivables

are not interest-bearing.

i AARBEEPHBEEAENRATIERR
HANRR G - BREEBR B — AR T M 30=60
Koo AN A H i R YR RGBT
BAEMIEGIEE YhEREEHARRX
BEHNEZ ERRHARRREPE
RETER - RRRERBREPREM
E ] #5402 E A 4R 35 8 5 o B WOR K
WAFHE

Annual Report 2022 F 2§

229



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“O-ZHEEMBHMRE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Trade receivable (Continued) () EW AR (48)

2. Disclosure of trade receivable by bad debt
provision method

Balance at the end of the period

2 BRRANZBEIRIEL ZD BHE

Balance at the end of last year

BAGE TEERBR
Book balance Bad debt provision Bad debt provision Book balance
RERE BRER i BEBE
Provision Provision
Proportion percentage Book Proportion percentage Book
Category =¥l Amount (%) Amount (%) value Amount (%) Amount (%) value
8 %) S8 FREH%) REEE 2F  hl%) SF sHEOI%) REEE
Bad debt provision madeon R EBH RIEEEE
an individual basis 5,686,369.05 283 5,067,205.03 89.11 619,164.02  2,797,01049 1.06  2,797,01049 100.00
Including: He:
Bad debt provision madeon  EEHEEEHSBEEX
an individual basis with
significant amount 5,621,689.05 280  5,002,525.03 88.99 619,164.02  2,797,01049 1.06  2,797,01049 100.00
Bad debtprovisionmadeon ~ EELEFEABEE
an individual basis with FHRER
insignificant amount 64,680.00 0.03 64,680.00 100.00
Bad debt provision madeon A AH REEEE
a collective basis 195,360,427.13 9747 1,002,181.97 0.51 194,358,245.16 261,600,900.64 98.94  1,316,234.25 0.50 260,284,666.39
Including: He:
Aging analysis group BEHTAA 19536042713 9747 1,002,181.97 051 19435824516 261,60090064 9894 131623425 050 260,284,666.39
Total At 201,046,796.18 100.00  6,069,387.00 194,977,409.18 264,397,911.13 100.00  4,113,244.74 260,284,666.39
Bad debt provision made on an individual basis: REIEFRERER
Balance at the end of the period
HRERE
Provision
Book Bad debt percentage Reasons for
balance provision (%) provision
Name Z28 RERE BERER  FHREEI(%) FREH
Company 1 B 2,525,868.95 2,525,868.95 100.00 Not expected
to be settled
B EEEE
A E
Company 2 B2 3,095,820.10 2,476,656.08 80.00 Not expected
to be settled
B EEBE
EE
Company 3 BAI3 64,680.00 64,680.00 100.00 Not expected
to be settled
B EEBE
EE
Total A&t 5,686,369.05  5,067,205.03
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Il) Trade receivable (Continued)

2. Disclosure of trade receivable by bad debt
provision method (Continued)

Bad debt provision made on a collective basis:

Group provision items: aging group

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(Z) EW AR ()

2 BRRANZBEIRIEL ZD BHE
(&)

AR RIERER
HMeFtERE  RIRES

Balance at the end of the period

HARERE
Provision
Trade Bad debt percentage
receivable provision (%)
Name £ FE WL BR X HAREE =T 1R b Bl (%)
Less than 1 month 11&8 A A A 192,575,401.74 962,877.03 0.50
1 to 3 months 1-318 A 2,498,657.99 24,986.58 1.00
3 months to 1 year 3EA1EF 286,367.40 14,318.37 5.00
Over 1 year 16U E
Total &t 195,360,427.13 1,002,181.97

3. Provision for bad debts made, reversed or

3 XEH1E  BEOXKO Y RERER

recovered for the current period 185
Changes in amount for the current period
rHEHEHE
Balance at Balance at
the end of Recovered Resold or the end of
last year Provision  orreversed written off the period
LF
Category %55 FRHE iR KREREE  EHK HREAEE
Group provision made on  BIEFHRAA

an individual basis 2,797,010.49 2,541,336.08 -271,141.54 5,067,205.03
Aging analysis group FERoMESE 1,316,234.25 986,824.99 -1,300,877.27  1,002,181.97
Total B 4113,244.74  3,528,161.07  -271,141.54 -1,300,877.27  6,069,387.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I At KERREEZER(B)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
() Prepayments () EANRE
Balance at the end Balance at the end
of the period of last year
HRER %R EFEFRGBE
Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Aging R o) t 1 (%) k) EE B (%)
Less than 1 year 1F AR 45,755,986.99 99.38  84,406,565.16 99.39
1to 2 years 15224 284,897.23 0.62 515,081.02 0.61
2 to 3 years 2E34F
Over 3 years 3F LA E
Total &t 46,040,884.22 100.00  84,921,646.18 100.00
(IV) Other receivable (79) H ft FE W K
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
ltems HH BRERER FEFERBE
Interest receivable FEUF B
Dividend receivable JRE W B
Other receivable H W kIR 14,832,112.57 13,776,273.32
Total &t 14,832,112.57 13,776,273.32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(IV)Other receivable (Continued)

1. Other receivable

(1) Disclosure by aging

(m) &t WK (48)

1 EttEKNE

(1) AR b3 BR

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

Balance at Balance at

the end of the end of

the period last year
Aging BR iR HR&REE T FFRGBE
Less than 1 year 1F AR 5,428,039.51 10,876,537.28
1to 2 years 1227 7,612,006.69 607,499.06
2 to 3 years 2E 34 177,499.06 153,200.00
3 to 4 years 3FE4F 153,200.00 400,137.51
4 to 5 years 4ZE5F 390,137.51
Over 5 years 5F Mk 2,587,679.27 2,587,679.27
Subtotal INEF 16,348,562.04 14,625,053.12
Less: bad debt provision o EEREE 1,516,449.47 848,779.80
Total =X 14,832,112.57 13,776,273.32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(IV)Other receivable (Continued) (M) H b & 3 (48)

1. Other receivable (Continued) 1- EfEWFE(E)
(2) Disclosure by bad debt provision method (2) LR GHET LW E

Balance at the end of the period Balance at the end of last year

HARRE FEERBE
Book balance Bad debt provision Book balance Bad debt provision
REHE BRER FEHE BRER
Provision Provision
Proportion percentage Proportion percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)  Book value Amount (%) Amount (%) Book value
Category <yl 28 WH(%) S8 SREH%) REEE 28 A% S8 HELHI%) FHER
Bad debtprovisionmadeon ~ KEBHREHER
an individual basis 30,000.00 0.18 24,000.00 80.00 6,000.00
Including: Hep:
Bad debtprovisionmade on £ EFEAEEE R
anindividual basis with SERAEEMHK
insignificant amount 30,000,00 0.18 24,000.00 80.00 6,000.00
Bad debtprovisionmadeon ~ KAAHREHER
a collective basis 16,318,562.04 99.82  1,492,449.47 915 14,826112.57 14,625,053.12 100.00 848,779.80 580 13,776,273.32
Including: Hep:
Aging analysis group FELNAR 16,318,562.04 99.82  1,492,449.47 915 14,826,112.57 14,625,053.12 100.00 848,779.80 580 13,776,273.32
Total &t 16,348,562.04 100.00  1,516,449.47 14,832,112.57  14,625,053.12 100.00 848,779.80 13,776,273.32
Bad debt provision made on an individual basis:
REIBAGHRIERER
Balance at the end of the period
MR
Provision
Book Bad debt percentage Reasons for
balance provision (%) provision
Name 78 IRE &R RIREE  TIELHI(%) FEER
Deposits ik 30,000.00 24,000.00 80.00 Notexpected
to recovered
EEEERE
Total A&t 30,000.00 24,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(IV)Other receivable (Continued)

1. Other receivable (Continued)

(2) Disclosure by bad debt provision method

(Continued)
Provision for bad debts on group basis:

Group provision items: aging group

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(m) &t WK (48)
1 Hft KR (&)

(2) EARAHE TR BB KR ()

REAHRERER
MAEFHRER  REkESR

Balance at the end of the period

HREREE

Provision
Other Bad debt percentage
receivables provision (%)
Name £ H 1 & W 7R TE RERER TR E Bl (%)
Less than 1 year 1FAR 5,428,039.51 81,420.59 1.50
1to 2 years 1526 7,582,006.69 758,200.67 10.00
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 177,499.06 26,624.85 15.00
3to 4 years 344 153,200.00 30,640.00 20.00
4 to 5 years 4-5%F 390,137.51 78,027.50 20.00
Over 5 years 5F A E 2,587,679.27 517,535.85 20.00

Total a5t 16,318,562.04 1,492,449.47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I At KERREEZER(B)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(IV)Other receivable (Continued) (M) H b & 3 (48)
1. Other receivable (Continued) 1- EfEWFE(E)
(3) Provision for bad debts (3) AR EBETIRIE R
Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
B ERE E=RR
Lifetime
Lifetime expected
Expected expected credit losses
credit losses credit losses (credit
in the next (no credit impairment
12 months impairment) has occurred) Total
EEFESES REFEASES
Provision for KFE121@ B ERBX ERBEX
bad debts BEREE EHERBA (RBEGARE) (CEREGARE) &t
Balance at the end of last year F&F F K% 848,779.80 848,779.80
Balance at the end of last year - 4F & K #4 B 7F AN Hf
at the current period 848,329.80 450.00 848,779.80
— Transfer to phase 2 —EAFRE
— Transfer to phase 3 —HEAF=RE -450.00 450.00
— Reverse to phase 2 —HEOE[RE
— Reverse to phase 1 —H#OE—[RE
Provision for the current period ~ ZX Bzt 1% 757,670.50 23,550.00 781,220.50
Reversal at the current period 7K #i#2 (3]
Resell at the current period N -113,550.83 -113,550.83
Written off at the current period 7% Hi 4% 8%
Other changes Hih &8
Balance at the end of the period 5 7K &4 58 1,492,449.47 24,000.00 1,516,449.47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE
SBEMNHAEAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(IV)Other receivable (Continued)

1.

Other receivable (Continued)

(3) Provision for bad debts (Continued)

The movements of the book balance for other

receivables are as follows:

(m) &t WK (48)

1 AR IE (E)

(3) EREmIEIEN ()

HibEWSIARE MBI T

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
E—MR B FEZHE
Lifetime
Lifetime expected
Expected expected credit losses
credit losses credit losses (credit
in the next (no credit impairment
12 months impairment) has occurred) Total
EEFESESD REGESED
KK1218 A EREBX ERABX
Book balance IRESE EHERBL (RBLEGARE) (ERLEGARE) &%
Balance at the end of last year £ F R#H 5 14,625,053.12 14,625,053.12
Balance at the end of last year  _+4F £F 5K #: 58 76 A 1]
at the current period 14,595,053.12 30,000.00 14,625,053.12
— Transfer to phase 2 —BAEZ-RE
— Transfer to phase 3 —BAZZRE -30,000.00 30,000.00
— Reverse to phase 2 —BEERE
— Reverse to phase 1 —EBEE-RE
Addition for the current period 7% HA 7 1% 5,398,039.51 5,398,039.51
Derecognised at the current RER TR
period -3,674,530.59 -3,674,530.59
Other changes H &
Balance at the end of the period Efi 7k #: %8 16,318,562.04 30,000.00 16,348,562.04
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBEZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(IV)Other receivable (Continued) (M) H b & 3 (48)
1. Other receivable (Continued) 1- EfEWFE(E)
(4) Provision for bad debts made, reversed or (4) KEFET1E - B3 [0 o YK [ 7Y 52 R 28
recovered in the current period 15 2

Changes in amount for the current period

rHEHEHE
Balance at Balance at
the end of Recovered Resold or the end of
last year Provision orreversed  written off the period
-3
Category 3l FREHE iR KREREE EHSRH ARG
Bad debt provision made on % & BT IRIZEREE
an individual basis 450.00 23,550.00 24,000.00
Bad debt provision made on {Z#HA FTIRIERER
a collective basis 848,329.80 757,670.50 -113,550.83 1,492,449.47
Total &t 848,779.80 781,220.50 -113,550.83  1,516,449.47
(5) Classification of receivables by nature (5) ‘A BN E S IR
Book balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Nature MIEME HAREEERE FEFFREAARE
Deposits and guarantees HekRE\ES 15,910,302.48 11,707,290.78
Withholding social security payments £ 1 £ & 3k 11,075.46 2,805,064.78
Employee advance payment BT ARER 112,697.56
Others H 427,184.10
Sub-total NEE 16,348,562.04 14,625,053.12
Less: Bad debt provision W RmAREE 1,516,449.47 848,779.80
Total &&t 14,832,112.57 13,776,273.32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(V) Inventories (B)#F&
Inventory Classification FESHE
Balance at the end of the period Balance at the end of last year
BRHBE TEERBE
Provision for Provision for
Book  Impairment of Book Book  Impairment of Book
balance Inventory value balance Inventory value
FEHRE FEKE
ltems | RHEEAE £ BEHEE FRE S £ FEEE
Raw materials R R 172,431,395.50 172,431,395.50 208,654,724.38 208,654,724.38
Materials in transit EENE 8,596,645.69 8,596,645.69
Tumover materials [EE R 37,009,113.85 37,009,113.85 40,972,715.90 40,972,715.90
Inventory goods EFA® 490,914,798.44 3,936,921.91  486,977,876.53 546,189,688.60 546,189,688.60
Consumptive biological assets & iE £ £ W& E 190,022,300.00 190,022,300.00 194,005,400.00 194,005,400.00
Finished goods BHEM 11,005,889.95 11,005,889.95 19,627,966.23 19,627,966.23
Total Gl 901,383,497.74 3,936,921.91  897,446,575.83  1,018,047,140.80 1,018,047,140.80
Note: The Company’s consumptive biological assets refer to broilers, A ARAEREEEMEEERARBAENNE -
chicks and hatchable eggs held by the Company. Consumptive B PR E - ERUEEMEERFRER
biological assets are measured at fair value at the end of the NRBEEFE -
year.
2. Provision for Impairment of Inventory 2 FEUKEZERE
Increase for Decrease for
the current period the current period
Balance at REEMSE ¥R R ] Balance at
the end of Reversed or the end of
last year Provision Others resold Other  the period
Items EH L EFRBE iR Hit BEREH Hity HARERE
Inventory goods EFE 3,936,921.90 3,936,921.90
Total A&t 3,936,921.90 3,936,921.90
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(VI)Other current assets (RMHEMRBEE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Items |E HRERE FFFERBER
Input tax to be recognized IR 268,961.07
Overpaid income tax Z TSR 1,558,549.19
Cost of return receivable &R B R AR 108,488.82 115,265.15
Undisposed current assets HRERDEE 88,835.52
Outstanding value-added tax credit BEMRBETE 73,082,816.69 99,050,209.22
Total CE 75,107,651.29 99,165,474.37
(VI)Long-term equity investments (D RERERE
Increases/decreases at current period
RERHLE
Gains or
losses on
investments Other Declaration Closing
Balance at recognised comprehensive Other ofcash  Provision Balance at balance of
theendof  Additional Reduction of under the income changes in dividends or for theend of  provision
lastyear investment investment equity method adjustment interest profits  impairment  Others the period impairment
EERR
L% ERETRA HhiRs  HitRE  RERA  HREE HEER
Investees BREEML ERBE  BNRE BORE  WREBRE BERE 29 D EE Hft HABE HBAME
Associate BEhE
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological Technology 15 3/ 4 #1781 5
Co., Ltd. BRAA 63,069,900.18 -3,228,665.54 59,841,234.64
Sub-total gt 63,069,900.18 -3,228,665.54 59,841,234.64
Total At 63,069,900.18 -3,208,665.54 59,841,234.64
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O--HFEMBWMRMEE

SHREMIR/ARET)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(VI Fixed assets

1. Fixed assets and fixed assets in liquidation

NBEEEE

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

1 BIEEENBEEEESE

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Items 15 B BREREE FFEFRBE
Fixed assets EEE 3,054,646,796.31 2,960,924,522.01
Fixed assets in liquidation EEEEE 950,036.11 690,653.05

Total =

3,055,596,832.42

2,961,615,175.06
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(VI Fixed assets (Continued)

2. Fixed assets

EEEMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

NEEEE(E)

2 BlELERR

Premises and Machinery Electronics
buildings devices  Transportation devices Total
Items BE EEREEY BeERE BaRE ETRE &%
1. Original Book Value 1. EERE
(1) Balance at the end of last year (1) EFFRHE  1,871,885551.62 2,106,251,044.63 64,674,878.98 92,183,465.02 4,134,994,940.25
(2) Currentincrease amount (2) mEEMEE 143,898,281.13  186,262,227.10 7,339,729.96 6,002,170.73  343,502,408.92
— Purchase — BE 1,878,028.68 26,231,084.29 6,192,494.73 3,728,437.79 38,030,045.49
— Transfer from construction — fEEIR
in progress ZYN 142,020,252.45  159,756,442.64 136,000.00 2,273,732.94  304,186,428.03
— Others — Hftg 274,700.17 1,011,235.23 1,285,935.40
(3) Current reduction payment () AERS 2R
amount 816,603.78 10,061,039.89 1,067,203.74 572,304.85 12,517,152.26
— Disposal or abandonment — RERRE 816,603.78 10,061,039.89 1,067,203.74 572,304.85 12,517,152.26
(4) Balance at the end of the (@) BRHE
period 2,014,967,228.97 2,282,452,231.84 70,947,405.20 97,613,330.90 4,465,980,196.91
2. Accumulated depreciation 2. ZEME
(1) Balance at the end of last year (1) LEERBE 424,011,425.81  679,480,074.26 15,664,184.10 54,914,734.07 1,174,070,418.24
(2) Currentincrease amount (2) mEEMEE 77,796,778.16  150,746,367.52 7,776,004.56 11,969,629.20  248,288,779.44
— Provision — iR 77,796,778.16  150,746,367.52 7,776,004.56 11,969,629.20  248,288,779.44
(3) Current reduction payment (@) KERIEE
amount 250,613.80 9,232,753.32 1,013,462.56 528,967.40 11,025,797.08
— Disposal or abandonment — BREIHRE 250,613.80 9,232,753.32 1,013,462.56 528,967.40  11,025,797.08
(4) Balance at the end of the (4) BRHE
period 501,557,590.17  820,993,688.46 22,426,726.10 66,355,395.87 1,411,333,400.60
3. Provision for impairment 3. RMEEE
(1) Balance at the end of last year (1) LEERBE
(2) Current increase amount (2) REEMeH

@)

(4)

Current reduction payment
amount

Balance at the end of the
period

4. Book value

Q) BRI LE

(4) MRHE

REEE

(1) Book value at the end of the
period

(2) Book value at the end of last
year

(1) BRERERE

Q) LFERER
BE

1,513,409,638.80

1,447,874,125.81

1,461,458,543.38

1,426,770,970.37

48,520,679.10

49,010,694.88

31,257,935.03  3,054,646,796.31

37,268,730.95 2,960,924,522.01
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(VI Fixed assets (Continued)

2

Fixed assets (Continued)
Additional information:

For the impairment test of fixed assets, the “Asset valuation
report on the recoverable amount of fixed and intangible
assets held by Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries involved in the proposed asset impairment test
of Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd. “ (Zhelian Pingbao Zi [2023]
No. 95) issued by China United Assets Appraisal Group
(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. on 29 March 2023 was used and the
valuation conclusion is that the valuation of fixed assets is
not less than its carrying amounts.

Based on the purpose of this valuation, the value type is
the recoverable amount. According to the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 8- Asset
Impairment and the Evaluation Guidelines for Financial
Reporting Purposes, the recoverable amount of the asset
is equal to the higher of present value of the expected
future cash flow of the asset and Net amount of the fair
value less cost of disposal. As the valuation subjects are
production plants, land, equipment, software, and patent
assets used for self owned production, the fair value less
cost of disposal is selected as the valuation method
according to the usage method and business plan set for
the assets. Among them:

(1) Fair value of building assets = full replacement value
x comprehensive newness rate

full replacement value (excluding tax) = construction
installation project cost (excluding
tax)+preliminary and other costs (excluding
tax)+capital cost

and

Newness rate = remaining useful life/(past useful life
+ remaining useful life) x 100%

OZZFEHBHKRMHZE

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

NEEEE(E)
2 BlELERR
H e

HREEEERNRBENZRFAT B
EfmEECTI) BR A A K202343
A29B AWML ERBEHR D BR A A
BETEERENS Y KA LR BFR
BERAARETFARBEENETEE
REREE KRB SEFGEE EET
i ¥R 45 ) O Bt 5T 38 £[2023] 559557 ) + #F
HEBRA BTEENTHEEATER
IREEE -

ERNARFHEEN EERELRTKRE
2 RB(CESFERESR—EE
BAED R UA B 75 S 5 & B &9 B9 FF 4 78
My BEEFREOSREREERGRK
KRS RENAEXELIABERER
EEAMNFREASE ERFEEHRR
EERE LT RERAGLENE
E -AREBLEE REHEHUBEERTE
MEMTAMEERE EEAAREE
MEREEMIERSRRFMETTE Hp:

) FEEZEMBEEAABEE=-EE

EEXFEARME
EE2EMENRE)=ZELETRE

EE(TESHRE)+A MR EBLER
(TaBE)+EEKA

BETR=15 Al A F R (B FERF
PR + & 7] {2 FA &F BR) X 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“OZZHEEVBERHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(VI Fixed assets (Continued)
2. Fixed assets (Continued)

Additional information: (Continued)

EEEMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

NEEEE(E)

2.

Bl EZERER

HAFHA : (&)

(2) Fair value of equipment assets = full replacement

price x comprehensive newness rate

full replacement price = equipment purchase costs
(excluding tax)+transportation and miscellaneous costs
(excluding tax)+installation engineering costs (excluding
tax)+other costs (excluding tax)+capital cost

@  Newness rate of machinery and equipment =
remaining useful life/(actual past useful life +
remaining useful life) x 100% (for general
equipment with relatively small value, the
straight-line method is used to determine its
newness rate)

@  Newness rate of vehicle = Min (service life
newness rate, mileage newness rate)

Service life newness rate = (1 — service life/
specified or economic service life) x 100%

Mileage newness rate = (1 — distance traveled/
specified driving mileage) x 100%

For equipment that has been produced for a long
time and no longer has a similar model, the valuation
will be determined based on the recent second-hand
market situation.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

2 REBEEAREE=EE2EX
ERA ACHT =

EEZE-REBEE(TH)+E
HMEBASR+REKTIZE(TEH)
+HMBER(TEH)+EEKA

O BRXERFTER=HIFERF
R (EREERFR+H A E
FAER) X100% (L EEER
PR —REERIRAEZEFR
SEMEE E AL FT )

@  EHKH E=Min({EBFRK
R ITRERKHEX)

ERERKFE=(1-2FH
FRAMERLBEERBFR)
*x100%

TREERXRFTE=(1-2178
B2/ HETHRER) x100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(VI Fixed assets (Continued)

3. Fixed assets in liquidation

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

NEEEE(E)

3 BIEEERE

Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
ltems 15 B BREREE FFEFRBE
Assets pending disposal FRIBEE 950,036.11 690,653.05
Total &5t 950,036.11 690,653.05
(IX) Construction in progress (W EEZIRE
1. Construction in progress and working 1- EEIBRRIEYE
materials
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
ltems b= BRERER FFEFRHBE
Construction in progress EEIRE 996,180.00 35,293,113.33
Working materials TEWE
Total a&t 996,180.00 35,293,113.33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I AN EBRREEERE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(IX) Construction in progress (W EEIRE
2. Details of construction in progress 2 - EBZIREX
Balance at the end of the period Balance at the end of last year
BRBH LEERBR
Book  Provision for Book Provision for
balance impairment Book value balance impairment Book value
Items HE RESE HEEHR REEE BESH HEER BHEER

Intelligent integration project % & — 2k —&E

— breeding 33,552,962.51 33,552,962.51
Other works HiwTi 996,180.00 996,180.00 1,740,150.82 1,740,150.82
Total Ch 996,180.00 996,180.00  35,293,113.33 35,293,113.33
3. Changes in significant construction in 3- EENHEEIREEAHEEEL
progress projects during the period
Cumulative Including:
investment Amount
Amounts Other inthe of interest
transferredto decreases projectas a Accumulated  capitalised Current
Balance at Current  fixedassets  forthe Balanceat percentage amount of forthe interest
the end of increase forthe current  current the end of ofthe  Project interest current capitalisation Source of
Budget last year amount period  period theperiod budget(%) progress capitalised period rate (%) funding
IRE: Hep
rHEN RPHME RALRE &R AHMAE  AHAR
Project name ERER BEY LEERGE AHENSE BTEESE ROSE HAHBE  WH%) IBEE  RHEE EAGLE EALE(%) EERR
Intelligent integration project £ & — 1t Borrowing,
—breeding —&H self
financing
&30
1,373,471,683.09 33,552,962.51 227,528,908.58 261,081,871.09 8453 100.00% 11,823,078.57 1,664,286.50 539 8%
slaughterhouse —auxiiary BEEF—#3) Self
equipment B financing
55,206,700.00  129,088.25 23/428217.17  23,557,305.42 100.00 100.00% BS
Total At 33682,050.76 250,957,125.75 284,639,176.51 11,823,078.57  1,664,286.50
Additional information: during the reporting period, the HEMFHmR REBAN ARFABIHE
Company’s broiler farms underwent cage breeding and BEUE1REESS -

renovation of 12 chicken farms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(X) Productive biological assets

Productive biological assets using the fair value

ZOZZHEEUBHRRHE
SHEBEMHYBARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(HEEMENEE

RAAABEFAERANLEEMLY
BE

Productive
biological
assets of
livestock
breeding
industry
BEWRBEHX
EEM
EYEE &t

Total

measurement model

ltems EHA

1.Balance at the end of last year 1. L FFRBE

2. Current changes 2. 7 Hp g

Add: External procurement s ANEE
Self-breeding BIT¥EA

Less: Disposal B RBRE
Changes in fair value (increase to be AREE
inserted with “-”) EA)

3. Balance at the end of the period 3. HAR R EE

204,484,100.00
51,208,200.00
48,048,465.53
130,809,407.48
-169,053,288.16

204,484,100.00
51,208,200.00
48,048,465.53
130,809,407.48
-169,053,288.16

B (B ANAT-15%

41,403,615.15  41,403,615.15
255,692,300.00 255,692,300.00

Note 1:  Self-breeding costs for breeders mainly include the costs of
animal feed, labour costs, depreciation and amortisation
expenses, apportionment of public expenses, etc.

Note 2: Gains or losses from changes in fair value consist of two

components: gains from the initial recognition of consumable
biological assets at fair value less sales costs upon harvest
and gains from changes in fair value less sales costs of
productive biological assets. The Company engaged an
independent professional appraiser to assess the fair value
of the biological assets as at the balance sheet date. The
valuation method adopted in determining the fair value and
the key parameters of the relevant valuation models are
disclosed in Note IX, Disclosure of fair value.

Additional information:

The Company’s productive biological assets are breeders
used for the production of hatchable eggs. The Company’s
breeders include breeders at the breeding and the production
stage.

A1 BEMNBTEAKATIEZRESAMK
AATIHRA FEREHEBERBUALR
HRERODHES -

#2:  AnRBEEHESEEMBO  HEEM
EMEENRERRAAEBERLER
AGERAEENREREELEENE
EARBERLEERNESHELNIY
e ANRF O AR E B BT
EWMEEREEABRENAAEEE
TTTRHE - EERQ A EEFRAOIMG
BERELERAGRERENIRZ2HERE
RHENL 2R BENEE -

HAb e
ARARMEEEEMEERRNEEA B

HENBHE - ARANBHEBEAHS KR
BRREEMNESERBH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

248

(XI)Right-of-use assets t-IEREEE
Premises and Land use
buildings rights Total
Items BE EEREEY T ERE &%
. Original Book Value 1. EERE
(1)Balance at the end of last year MEEERBE 29,341,839.61  198,321,201.79  227,663,041.40
(2)Current increase amount QFBEMEE 26,251,900.67 26,251,900.67
— New leasing —MEHE 26,251,900.67 26,251,900.67
(3)Current reduction payment amount CFER &8 15,066,288.23 15,066,288.23
— Disposal —RE 15,066,288.23 15,066,288.23
(4)Balance at the end of the period hERHE 40,527,452.05  198,321,201.79  238,848,653.84
. Accumulated depreciation 2. ZEINE
(1)Balance at the end of last year MEFFRHB 10,292,394.29  22,740,933.14  33,033,327.43
(2)Current increase amount QFEENeE 5,875,928.98 423534812 10,111,277.10
— Provision —itiE 5,875,928.98 4,235348.12  10,111,277.10
(3)Current reduction payment amount BRI &8 5,783,020.00 5,783,020.00
— Disposal —RE 5,783,020.00 5,783,020.00
(4)Balance at the end of the period @E R 10,385,303.27  26,976,281.26 37,361,584.53
. Provision for impairment 3. RE%ERE
(1)Balance at the end of last year MEEFERHE
(2)Current increase amount QFHENEFE
(3)Current reduction payment amount CVEEHR 28
(4)Balance at the end of the period MERHE
. Book value 4. REERE
(1)Book value at the end of the period MBREEER 30,142,148.78  171,344,920.53  201,487,069.31
(2)Book value at the end of last year QLEFXREEEE 19,049,445.32  175,580,268.65  194,629,713.97
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XI)Iintangible assets

1. Intangible assets

(tEFEE

1 BFEEERR

Land use Patent Computer
rights rights software Total
ltems ER TuERE ¥} g4 &%
1. Original book value 1. EERE
(1)Balance at the end of last year MEEERHBE 101,254,444.24 1,045,779.25 20,844,169.47  123,144,392.96
(2)Current increase amount QFHENEE 65,308.49 436,510.00 501,818.49
— Purchase —RE 65,308.49 436,510.00 501,818.49
(3)Current reduction payment amount ~ (3)AREH A &%
(4)Balance at the end of the period @) HR%E 101,319,752.73 1,045,779.25 21,280,679.47  123,646,211.45
2. Accumulated amortisation 2. REtEH
(1)Balance at the end of last year MEEERHBE 18,578,338.96 592,608.24 12,136,387.69 31,307,334.89
(2)Current increase amount QFBENEE 2,033,623.89 104,577.93 779,847.77 2,918,049.59
— Provision —itiE 2,033,623.89 104,577.93 779,847.77 2,918,049.59
(3)Current reduction payment amount ~ (3)AEH A &%
(4)Balance at the end of the period MERHE 20,611,962.85 697,186.17  12,916,235.46  34,225,384.48
3. Provision for impairment 3 MEEE
(1)Balance at the end of last year (MLFFRHE
(2)Current increase amount QAHEMEHE
(3)Current reduction paymentamount ~ (3)REEH A &%
(4)Balance at the end of the period @) BR%E
4 Book value 4. EEEE
(1)Book value at the end of the period MEBERERER 80,707,789.88 348,593.08 8,364,444.01 89,420,826.97
(2)Book value at the end of last year QLEFXRERERE 82,676,105.28 453,171.01 8,707,781.78 91,837,058.07
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Xl Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred (TZELEFBSHREENELFIEHAE
Income Tax Liabilities
1. Deferred income tax assets not subject to 1 REEEHWELFFEHEE
offset
Balance at the end Balance at the end
of the period of last year
HARER R T FEFRHBE
Deductible Deferred Deductible Deferred
temporary income tax temporary income tax
differences assets differences assets
G EL AT g
Item EHA ERMER FEBERE HREE=R FriSti & E
Deferred income iR TE U 2 662,982.66 165,745.68 736,647.40 184,161.86
Total &5t 662,982.66 165,745.68 736,647.40 184,161.86
2. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets or 2 AERELZFEHEEREEHA
liabilities
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Items BB HR&REE EEFRBE
Deductible temporary differences AR SR E R 499,485,655.42 4,962,024.54
Deductible loss AENEE 446,510,337.29 233,395,314.94
Total &&F 945,995,992.71 238,357,339.48

250 SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Xl Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred
Income Tax Liabilities (Continued)

3. Deductible losses on unrecognised deferred

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

TDEZEFRSHREENELRESBEME(E)

3 REERIELFTIS B EE K A1 H

income tax assets due in the following years BERUTEEZTR
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period lastyear  Remarks
Year F HARsE LFFAHBE B
2022 2022F & 82,031,965.69
2023 2023 F [ 25,219,316.50 25,219,316.50
2024 2024 F £ 33,856,824.85 33,856,824.85
2025 2025 F £ 63,602,603.68 63,602,603.68
2026 2026 F & 37,628,185.52 28,684,604.22
2027 2027 F & 286,203,406.74
Total At 446,510,337.29  233,395,314.94
(XIV)Other Non-current Assets (TREMERBEE

Balance at the end of the period

Balance at the end of last year

BARBE LEFRBE
Book  Provision for Book Provision for
balance impairment Book value balance impairment Book value
Item BHE BHAH BEER FHEE RERE REERE REEE
Deposits for land reclamation IwERRES 300,000.00 300,000.00
Prepayment for acquisitionoflong T8 RHAE EBE X
term assets 4,273,164.42 4,273164.42  48,969,974.44 48,969,974.44
Total A 4,573,164.42 4573,164.42  48,969,974.44 48,969,974.44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XV)Short-term Borrowings (TREEHER
1. Classification of short-term borrowings 1- HHEHTE
Balance at the Balance at the
end of the period end of last year
Items BB HAREREE L FEFERBREE
Pledged borrowings BHHER 149,189,414.00 812,282,333.33
Mortgaged borrowings EIER 875,424,248.56 804,647,333.33
Guaranteed borrowings IREBER 100,000,000.00 114,114,472.22
Total &5t 1,124,613,662.56 1,731,044,138.88
(XVI)Bills Payable FRIEMREE
1. Bills payable 1 BN FEEST
Balance at the Balance at the
end of the period end of last year
Category EHE HR&AEE LFEFERBE
Commercial acceptances EEALESE 46,606,601.35
Domestic letter of credit Az AE 70,000,000.00
Total &&f 70,000,000.00 46,606,601.35
2. Disclosure of bills payable by aging based on 2 ENEREHERHTENERE
the issuance date #% Z
Balance at the Balance at the
end of the period end of last year
ltems EHR HREREE LFEFRBE
Less than 1 month 118 A LA 43,939,206.55
1 to 3 months 12 31E A 2,667,394.80
3 months to 1 year IEAE1EF 70,000,000.00
Over 1 year 16 E
Total EEl 70,000,000.00 46,606,601.35

252 SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Xvi) Trade Payable (TH)FE AT BR X

1. Trade payable 1 BRI

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year

Items BB HARERE L FFRBREE
Payables for goods FERTE R 454,943,148.32 448,843,615.58
Total &3t 454,943,148.32 448,843,615.58

2. Disclosure of trade payable by aging based 2 E{IEEZ 15 = F A5 & 0 BE
on the invoice date BE

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items EHH HREAEE FFEFRBEE
Less than 1 month 118 A AR 238,689,792.76 369,774,076.02
1 to 3 months 1231 A 197,471,111.89 49,149,924 .14
3 months to 1 year 3EA =1 17,120,465.66 21,463,242.99
Over 1 year 1FE A+ 1,661,778.01 8,456,372.43
Total A&t 454,943,148.32 448,843,615.58

Note: Trade payable are not interest-bearing. The credit period i BNERTAMNE - ZEHEHREM
granted by each supplier depends on individual ERABARFENBERME LENAHRE
circumstances and is included in the supplier contract. EMaELR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XVillContract Liabilities it ERaE
1. Contract liabilities 1- EEAEEEX

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items HE HMARERE FEERGE
Advance payment for goods AW E R 46,449,176.46 34,352,314.47
Total CEn 46,449,176.46 34,352,314.47
2. Amount and reasons for significant changes 2 WEHAREEERLEEAEEGH
in carrying amount during the reporting 2EAEFEH
period
Change amount Reason for change
Items HA 2EeE 2FRE
Advance payment for goods TE U E R 34,352,314.47 Revenue recognised during the period
RH TR A
Advance payment for goods TEWE & 46,449,176.46 Advance payment for goods during
the period
REFERE K
Total A&t 80,801,490.93
(XIX) Payroll Payable (1) FEA B T 3 A
1. Payroll payable 1- BB IHM T
Balance at the Balance at the
end of last Increase in Decrease in end of the
year  current period  current period period
Items BEH FEFERGRE AEALE AN AER D HRERE
Short-term 52 HA 5 B
compensation 67,677,364.10 596,174,834.32 591,191,295.24 72,660,903.18
Post-employment BERERN —RTRT
benefits — defined &l
contribution plan 160,399.99 47,901,044.73  40,585,588.84 7,475,855.88
Termination benefits ~ &F iR & 7 65,776.00 65,776.00
Other benefits due —FREH ) E b 1E F
within one year
Total 5 67,837,764.09 644,141,655.05 631,842,660.08 80,136,759.06
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XIX)Payroll Payable (Continued) (th PETEE T B (48)

2 RS T

2. Short-term compensation

Balance at the

Balance at the Increase in Decrease in end of the
end of last year current period current period period
Items HHE FEFRABHE AERIE N AER D HREAEE
(1) Wages, bonuses, (1) IE - & FER
allowances and Ak
subsidies 67,527,273.83  539,015,602.81  534,643,124.86 71,899,751.78
(2) Employee QBIRANE
benefits 21,562,268.19 21,560,480.19 1,788.00
(3) Social insurance @ eRksE 97,924.67 27,268,764.73 26,651,655.60 715,033.80
Including: Medical He BERRE
insurance premium 93,290.48 23,447,485.55 23,453,174.34 87,601.69
Work-related injury IERBRE
insurance premium 3,697.47 3,815,738.26 3,193,176.21 626,259.52
Maternity insurance EERBE
premium 936.72 5,540.92 5,305.05 1,172.59
(4) Housing provident @EFELAES
funds 52,165.60 7,168,281.16 7,176,117.16 44,329.60
(5) Labour union G)IEKEMBIHE
expenses and =
employee education
expenses 1,159,917.43 1,159,917.43
Total B 67,677,364.10  596,174,834.32  591,191,295.24 72,660,903.18

Defined contribution plan

Balance at the

3 RERFTEIT

Balance at the

end of last Increase in Decrease in end of the

year  current period  current period period

Items BB FEERBRE ANHAIE hn AERRL D HARERE
Basic pension EAREEZRE

insurance 154,837.82 45,937,369.46  38,928,597.37 7,163,609.91

Unemployment KERBE
insurance 5,562.17 1,963,675.27 1,656,991.47 312,245.97
Total B 160,399.99 47,901,044.73  40,585,588.84 7,475,855.88
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBEZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XIX) Payroll Payable (Continued) (t BB IHM(E)
3. Defined contribution plan (Continued) 3 - RERFIEGF (&)
Additional information: The Group shall pay pension Efh iR : A RBIAE S E R EIR
insurance premium and unemployment insurance A PIRR E M MEZMLLL B - % A M
premium to the relevant agencies on a monthly basis HAKRERESNEZREE RKER
according to the payment base and proportion stipulated E  BRMNESTARERARAR
by the local labor and social security department, and the REAEE BB THIFHFRIA

payment shall not be used to offset the amount that the
Group shall pay for its employees in the future.

(XX) Taxes Payable L1 BXBE

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items HEEAE HR&REE FFFRGBE
Value-added tax EE 288,437.81 997,458.92
Stamp duty TR 1,417,348.08
Enterprise income tax TEMBEH 2,093,041.85
Personal income tax (EPNIESE 535,016.52 547,727.63
City maintenance and construction tax WA R 819,747.49 107,802.70
House tax FEMN 3,646,231.17 3,271,514.30
Education surcharge HE BN 819,747.47 106,809.59
Resource tax BIRH 1,707,740.00 1,745,224.46
Land use tax b AR AR 799,887.95 799,007.94
Environmental protection tax IRIBRER 720.00 5,490.00
Total = 10,034,876.49 9,674,077.39

(XX) Other Payables (1-) H fth P& 3 K

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items 1B B HReE EFEFRHBE
Interest payable FERT B
Dividends payable FE 5 R R
Other payables H fth JE S F0B 228,506,878.96 236,504,040.71
Total A& 228,506,878.96 236,504,040.71
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE
SBEMNHAEAREIT)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XXI)Other Payables (Continued)
1. Other Payables

(1) By nature of payment

) Hib AR (58)

1 EtEMNHE

(1) %A IE &R

Balance at the end

Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items HH HIR&AEE TFEFRHBE
Payments for projects TR 115,024,049.97 145,569,888.01
Accrued expenses EIREH 68,394,548.94 47,752,165.39
Deposits and guarantees e RRES 36,715,761.89 37,114,363.00
Sales commission HEME 7,418,031.05 5,252,595.06
Employee advance payment B TH# M 954,487.11 354,407.23
Business transaction amounts and R R E A
others 460,622.02
Total A5t 228,506,878.96 236,504,040.71

(XXI) Non-current Liabilities due within One Year

Items

HH

Balance at the end
of the period
HIR&AER

) —FREYNERBEE

Balance at the end
of last year

EFEREGHR

Long-term borrowings due within one year
Long-term payables due within one year
Lease liabilities due within one year

—F R RBE R
—F R H & & B S R
—FRIHMNEERR

51,167,617.00
61,205,012.83
8,039,958.03

44,429,338.08
84,293,042.06
3,876,110.75

Total

120,412,587.86

132,598,490.89
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXIl/Other Current Liabilities

I HeRBEE

Balance at the end

Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items HE HARERE FEFRBEE
Pending output tax RFEHIE T 2,497,015.86 3,003,157.34
Total i 2,497,015.86 3,003,157.34
(XXIV) Long-Term Borrowings 10 REAfERK
Balance at the end Balance at the end
of the period of last year
Items BHR HiR&AEE LFEFRBE
Mortgaged borrowings IR E R 152,148,000.00 375,112,000.00
Guaranteed borrowings REBHE R 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Total At 252,148,000.00 475,112,000.00
1. Long-term borrowings by maturity 1 RAEIE N 1E 8RR ST
Balance at the end of the period
BARARE
Immediate
repayment  Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years Total
ltems EH BEE 15 0R 1-2F 2-5% 5FN L &%
Long-term
borrowings REMER 150,716,000.00 101,432,000.00 252,148,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXV)Lease Liabilities I HESE

Balance at the end Balance at the end

of the period of last year
Items EHA HREREE EFEFRGBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 199,665,992.14 196,897,137.78
Total &t 199,665,992.14 196,897,137.78
1. Lease liabilities by maturity 1- HEEERZEERHRIF
Balance at the end of the period
HREBE
Immediate
repayment  Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years Total
Items EH BEHEE 150 R 1-2% 2-58 5F L &t
Lease liabilities HEAR 7,289,114.38 16,926,908.54 175,449,969.21 199,665,992.13
(XXV) Long-term Payables L1 REAFEAT R
Balance at the end Balance at the end
of the period of last year
Items EHA HREREE EFEFRGBEE
Long-term payables = B E T 3K 6,070,952.51 125,990,704.41
Specific payables HIFFE K
Total &t 6,070,952.51 125,990,704.41
1. Long-term payables 1. REEMNH
Balance at the end Balance at the end
of the period of last year
Items b= HREREE FFEFERBE
Finance lease payable EmERER 3,752,354.45 131,457,567.45
Including: Unrealised financing costs Ed: RERMEER 96,830.78 7,882,291.88
Land lease payments T EE 2,415,428.84 2,415,428.84
Total &t 6,070,952.51 125,990,704.41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

260

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(V) Estimated Liabilities

CH EERE

Increase in  Decrease in Balance at the

Balance at the current current end of the
end of last year period period period Reason
Items EHA EFFRBE N ER3E N N E R HRER %R ¥R IR A

Returned goods JERHRE
payable 154,688.25 618,790.88  649,298.25 124,180.88 JEIRREE
Total AFr Accrued return
154,688.25 618,790.88  649,298.25 124,180.88 expense
(XXVll) Deferred Income (1N I FE W 2

Increase in  Decrease in Balance at the

Balance at the current current end of the
end of last year period period period Reason
Items EHA EFFRBE AR ) AN E R HIRER%E F IR E
Government grants BT # Bf) 22,821,583.69 2,065,499.14 20,756,084.55 B B B R
Total = Fiscal
22,821,583.69 2,065,499.14 20,756,084.55 appropriation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XxVll) Deferred Income (Continued) (1)) 3 R W 2 (78)
Projects involving government grants: W RPN IEAER
Amount
included in
Balance atthe Amountof new  current profit Balance atthe = Related to the
endof last  grants forthe  orloss of the end of the  assets/related
year period current period Other changes period  to the income
KHEFA
RE BHER HEERR/
Liabilities BEER TEERBE A £ Hin 28 MAGE HREAR
Special funds for solar GRELERNERLRE 946,592.14 283,609.48 662,982.66  Related to the
collector project from AGHERERES assets
Economic and HEERH
Information Bureau of
Yanggu County
Government grants for solar A 5 8278 B Bl 5 # 8 698,001.33 80,000.00 618,001.33  Related to the
energy projects assets
HEERY
Government grants for VOC  VOC 3% & BT # B) 145,000.00 20,000.00 125,000.00  Related to the
equipment assets
HEAEIEE
Subsidies from Agriculture  BFRERERNBHER  13453,441.33 1,010,516.33 12,442,925.00  Related to the
and Rural Bureau of BRBRRUBHEAES assets
Yanggu County for HEEEH
intelligent environmental
protection projects
Special funds from Financial S ZEEMBMES  4,757,500.00 330,000.00 4,427,500.00  Related to the
Office of Anle Town, REARKIEELS assets
Yanggu County for the HEERY
construction of strong
industrial town
Subsidy for harmless EEEERIEERHE  1,988,888.89 133,333.33 1,855,555.56  Related to the
treatment of poultry assets
HAEEE
Technological reform s 832,160.00 208,040.00 624,120.00  Related to the
subsidies assets
HEERH
Total GEl 22,821,583.69 2,065,499.14 20,756,084.55
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXX) Share Capital

Items HE

Balance at the
end of last year

EFFRGBE

EEEMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

) R A

Increase (+) or decrease (-) in the current period

AHE B (4 ()

Conversion

Issuance of shares
of new Stock  of common Balance at the
shares bonus reserve fund Other Subtotal end of the period
BATHR Kk REeEER O HM NeEE HIR&AEE

Total number of A& 1p 48 %8

shares

1,400,000,000.00

1,400,000,000.00

(XXX) Capital Reserve C1 BEXAE

Balance at the

Balance at the Increase in Decrease in end of the

end of last year current period current period period

Items HE FEFREREE A EREE N AER HREREE
Capital premium (share WA

premium) (RAEE) 620,161,797.35 620,161,797.35

Other capital reserves HMAERRQIE 1,592,447.60 7,957,188.51 1,009,844.82 8,539,791.29

Total A 621,754,244.95 7,957,188.51 1,009,844.82 628,701,588.64

Additional note: Capital reserve — the increase in other capital reserves for
the current period was due to the calculation of the
corresponding employee service expenses for the current
period according to the share-based payment based on
the fair value of equity instruments on the granted date;
Capital reserve — the decrease in other capital reserves

for the current period was due to the exercise of employee

share-based payment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXX) Treasury Shares Ct- EFR
Balance at the
Balance at the Increase in Decrease in end of the
end of last year current period current period period
Items EHA EFEFRBE PN IR 7 B HRER %R
Share repurchase 5] B8 A% 19 2,547,916.16  26,146,573.71 1,009,844.82  27,684,645.05
Total =1 2,547,916.16  26,146,573.71 1,009,844.82  27,684,645.05

Additional note: the increase in treasury shares for the current period was due to
the share repurchase for share-based payment; the decrease in
treasury shares for the current period was due to the exercise of

employee share-based payment.

(XxXijOther Comprehensive Income

Hpai 8 - ANERE T ARG 0 Bl RS IR 15 AR IR AR 4D ST AT

AHEFERRLS BB TITEEER-

Cf) Hftbim & W

Amount of the current period

Less: Those
included in other Less: Those
comprehensive included in other
income inthe  comprehensive
Incurred  previous period income in the
income tax  but reclassified  previous period Attributable  Attributable
Balanceat  amountfor into the profitor  but reclassified Less: tothe  tominority  Balance at
theendof  the current lossinthe into the retained Incometax ~ Company shareholders  the end of
last year period  current period earnings  expenses after tax aftertax  the period
B ATER R AR AR
AAEM  MEalEE L
HE FBRER HARREB BEA el HEBRE HEEEB
Items HE FRHBE  ABEE HARR Bl ER  RERF ROBRE  HBRHBE
Other comprehensive income that & D38 185 H)
can be reclassified into profitor ~ H 474 Wz
loss -254,496.85 -419,238.41 -419,238.41 -673,735.26
Including: Exchange differences ~ H /1 : SN B 7K
on translation of RENE
foreign currency =8
financial statements -254,496.85 -419,238.41 -419,238.41 -673,735.26
Total other comprehensive income E#b 4R & A5 -254,496.85 -419,238.41 -419,238.41 -673,735.26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XXXll) Surplus Reserves D BERATE

Balance at the Balance at the

Balance at the beginning Increase in Decrease in end of the

end of last year of the year  current period  current period period

Items EE FEFRBE FURE RERSE N KEVR HREAE

Statutory surplus reserves EERBAE 155,377,605.51 155,377,605.51 155,377,605.51

Total B 155,377,605.51 155,377,605.51 155,377,605.51
(XXXV)Undistributed Profits (B0 S T

Amount of the Amount of the

current period previous period

ltems HH KBS HE THie%E

Undistributed profits at the end of last year
before adjustment

BEA L E R KD

1,225,282,480.31

1,220,362,407.91

BEEDAHRHBEH B
(B + - )
BERENAHENHY

Total undistributed profits at the beginning of
adjustment year (increase +, decrease -)

Undistributed profits at the beginning of the year
after adjustment

Add: Net profits attributable to the shareholders /il :

1,225,282,480.31  1,220,362,407.91

AHFREREREREE

of the Company in the current period PN -769,028,641.27 50,910,673.32
Less: Withdrawal of statutory surplus reserves & : IREUE FE BB A TE 3,990,600.92
Withdrawal of discretionary surplus RREERHBARE
reserves
Withdrawal of general risk reserves IRE— AR B b AE
Dividends payable on ordinary shares JE A< 3 38 AR PR R 42,000,000.00
Dividends on ordinary share converted to B B AR Y 38 AR AR

share capital

Undistributed profits at the end of the period B R R o B 108 456,253,839.04  1,225,282,480.31

it EEER2023F03A308 B NREHE
2022912 A31H IE G E & K H & 5 - (2021
F o)

Note: On 30 March 2023, the Board recommended not to distribute
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I AR REEZER(B)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XXXY|Operating Revenue and Operating Costs C1D BEBRAFEERK
1. Operating revenue and operating costs 1- EXRAFEXELEXIER
Amount of the current period Amount of the previous period
THELHE FHe®

Revenue Costs Revenue Costs
ltems 1E B N R A A N
Main business TEER 5,071,896,323.61 4,499,675,462.21 4,394,459,596.01 3,857,160,733.05
Other businesses Hfh 2 7% 13,893,760.68 2,617,927.37 22,303,979.98 1,664,613.45
Total &5 5,085,790,084.29 4,502,293,389.58 4,416,763,575.99 3,858,825,346.50

The breakdown of operating revenue: EEWARA -
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Items ER TESHE rHe®
Main business: FEER: 5,071,896,323.61  4,394,459,596.01
Sales of goods SHE MM 5,071,896,323.61  4,394,459,596.01
Other businesses: HEib x5 13,893,760.68 22,303,979.98
Revenue from by-products Bl E WA 2,559,811.10 7,938,992.01
Revenue from waste materials BEEWMEIRA 5,849,038.76 6,023,420.79
Revenue from sale of ash, slag and scrap & )& ~ TR 5 & WA 2,353,284.76 2,682,006.35
Services income B 75 e A 2,760,655.80 3,346,280.36
Revenue from sale of materials MRHEE & A 277,149.59 849,431.62
Others Hib 93,820.67 1,463,848.85
Total &&t 5,085,790,084.29 4,416,763,575.99
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“O-ZHEEMBHMRE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXXV)Operating Revenue and Operating Costs (Continued)

2. Revenue from contract

EEEMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

1) R AME R A (B)

2 BEHELEHKRARBL

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

Breakdown of contracts ERADE TESHE e
Product types: iR

Raw chicken meat EZHERA 2,500,558,599.75  1,913,255,819.02
Processed chicken meat EINTZRA 2,371,086,929.83  2,295,405,890.63
Chicken breeds HH 53,619,103.49 64,821,696.00
Others EHih 160,525,451.22 143,280,170.34
Total &t 5,085,790,084.29  4,416,763,575.99
By operating region: AL @ o 4

Mainland China M B K BE

— Raw chicken meat —HHER 2,142,830,674.39 1,617,227,400.25
— Processed chicken meat —FIMT#RA 1,369,494,248.75 1,614,972,439.70
— Chicken breeds —%E 53,619,103.49 64,821,696.00
— Others —H 4 160,525,451.22 143,280,170.35
Japan B2

— Processed chicken meat —RMIT#A 387,352,500.42 369,487,618.89
Malaysia BRADR

— Raw chicken meat —E#HA 329,913,996.45 275,956,540.54
Europe BOM

— Processed chicken meat —FIMT#A 558,308,868.82 262,068,437.53
Other countries Hb Bl =x

— Raw chicken meat —HHER 27,813,928.91 20,071,878.22
— Processed chicken meat —RMT#A 55,931,311.84 48,877,394.51
Total a5t 5,085,790,084.29  4,416,763,575.99

3. Transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligations

As of 31 December 2022, the amount of the transaction
price corresponding to the performance obligations that
have been contracted but not yet per formed or completed
was RMB46,449,176.46, which is expected to be
recognised as revenue in 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XXX) Taxes and Charges

(=5 Bt & B Bt A0

Amount of the
current period

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

Amount of the
previous period

Items HH KBS HE LH&®E
House tax FEMN 14,246,918.28 12,225,422.92
Resource tax BIR 5,846,303.00 5,291,690.50
City maintenance and construction tax WA R 4,856,636.90 3,580,352.76
Land use tax T b AR AR 3,199,111.68 3,190,755.17
Education surcharge A BN 2,909,089.23 2,146,210.28
Local education surcharge 5 E B W 1,939,392.80 1,430,806.85
Stamp duty ENTERL 6,076,962.45 1,611,095.23
Vehicle and vessel use tax B 68,341.11 52,802.97
Environmental protection tax IRIBIREM 12,424.72 21,143.40
Total &t 39,155,180.17  29,550,280.08

Additional information: the stamp duty for this period is paid at
0.03% of the purchase and sales amount; According to the
Announcement of the State Administration of Taxation of
Shandong Province on Issues Related to Stamp Tax
(Announcement No. 10 of 2018 by State Administration of
Taxation of Shandong Province) (abolished in December
2021), stamp duty was paid at 0.03% of 50% of sales revenue
for last period, resulting in a significant increase in the amount

of stamp duty in the current period

(XXvi) Selling Expenses

Hb 588 AEOEHIZEE HeHENE
DRZ-EH FEHREBEIBRBELBILE
ERBERERINEHEEREN L AE(EX
HEBRIURERE R R52018F F1057) ]
(2021 F12 A B BB L) XX E - ENFETL IR R
HEW A% E D 2 =84 BB UK
RO EHRSBEARBER -

CH SHEHERA

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

ltems HH RESHE LFHE
Sales and promotion expenses HEHRREE 234,149,955.75 257,013,335.93
Employee compensation % T % B 72,967,149.00 67,664,256.22
Travel expenses EIRE 7,033,933.36 8,313,015.62
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 3,912,958.98 1,944,968.22
Office expenses WAE 2,340,954.36 1,854,578.55
Business entertainment expenses XBHBEE 2,320,841.03 2,113,232.41
Intermediary services fees T RS & 2,254,965.27 1,515,456.71
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & B g 728,563.55 707,477.30
Others Hit 3,496,365.22 3,892,398.98
Total &t 329,205,686.52  345,018,719.94

Annual Report 2022 F 2§

267



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XVIAdministrative Expenses 1) EEEH

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

ltems HE HE &5 FHeR
Employee compensation B T 357 B 72,038,711.82 61,622,977.34
Intermediary services fees P RS E 12,561,440.33 7,407,170.13
Depreciation and amortisation kD& ¥ 6,449,538.18 7,235,168.04
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREESERE 5,188,096.55 4,960,835.79
Business entertainment expenses ERBEE 3,077,114.89 1,580,382.53
Office expenses BITR/NE=¢ 3,015,246.31 2,002,851.46
Energy consumption BE R H FE 2,474,589.45 1,265,712.57
Others HAb 3,694,686.35 3,235,429.57
Total &t 108,499,423.88 89,310,527.43
(XXXX)R&D Expenses i W8 & A

Amount of the Amount of the

current period previous period
ltems HE K5 FHe
Employee compensation B T & B 12,940,824.09 9,577,758.67
R&D and design expenses R = 11,961,737.91 6,736,901.02
Depreciation expenses mES 2,450,840.49 2,829,246.68
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 1,205,752.46 2,093,525.40
Office expenses WNE 1,160,518.76 216,299.52
Entrustment fees L8 677,369.00 1,430,157.86
Energy consumption 8L IR B % 516,483.14 435,729.66
Travel expenses E=IRE 478,247.13 841,661.28
Others EH A 551,774.87 821,843.31
Total &t 31,943,547.85 24,983,123.40
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XL) Finance Costs

Items

HE

B MHEA

Amount of the
current period

TS

Amount of the
previous period

g ikt

Interest expenses
Including: Interest expenses on lease liabilities

MEER

Hp  HEREBEMNEER

74,095,066.76
11,501,508.20

51,849,048.52
11,227,446.43

Less: Interest income R B A 23,447,718.05 37,433,512.81
Exchange gains or losses [ i B -14,181,212.82 1,890,167.94
Handling fee FEE 1,424,071.56 2,379,969.47

Discount acceptance notes

O PE SR BE B

11,214,528.88

29,010,315.14

Total EE 49,104,736.33 47,695,988.26
(XL) Other Gains [Br-) B fth W 2
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
ltems HH TESHE e
Government grants I 7 7 Bf) 9,323,494.05 13,196,429.71
Handling fee for withholding individual RINBEAFREHRFEE
income tax 228,060.22 195,989.42
Gains from debt restructuring EBEARE 124,699.22
Value-add tax refund from micro-enterprises IR FEIRE TR 41.69
Total Xl 9,676,253.49 13,392,460.82
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XL) Other Gains (Continued) (-] H 2 W 2% (748)
Government grants included in other income Tt A B it I 25 B9 BT 4 BY
Amount of the
Amount of the previous Related to the assets/
Grant Projects current period period related to the income
WEEE rHEE LHeE HEERE/HUERAE
2022 one-off retention subsidy 2,599,000.00 Related to the income
0025 —RIEBEIHE B
R&D project funds allocated by Department of Science &Technology of Shandong Province 2,479,500.00 Related to the income
LIREHBERNTEEALE HINHIER
Subsidy for position stabilization and return 1,303,955.08 274,384.06 Related to the income
BERER B R

Financial incentives of Municipal Key Project for the intelligent and efficient integration project
of breeding and processing remitted by Development and Reform Bureau of Yanggu County ~ 1,010,516.33 400,000.00 Related to the assets

GARENRENTEREARDECEERNAEMI B TIRER HEERH
Grants for harmless treatment of livestock and poultry 3,470,060.00 Related to the income
EEEZRERY IR

Subsidy for technological transformation of intelligent and efficient integration project of
breeding and processing remitted by Industry and Information Technology Bureau of

Yanggu County on 15 December 2,000,000.00 Related to the income
RBGARIENEACRENRSHAREENTI —ELHEREHTED B R
Subsidy for harmless treatment of hogs dead of illness in the breeding sector of 2020 1,980,000.00 Related to the income
00FERRORLEESCRERY B
Special funds for foreign economic and trade activities from the Bureau of Commerce and

Bureau of Investment Promotion of Yanggu County 1,354,005.02 Related to the income
GARAERNRERER—NEERREEES B
Financial incentives granted on 6 August for directing financial innovation and development

(Multi-level market subsidy) 1,310,000.00 Related to the income
BOLRMAIFERESIZECRA(ZEATHHHES) Bl 25 A 7
Other Government Grants 1,054,982.81 705,974.52  Related to the assets
HEBR#HE HEERH
Other Government Grants 875,539.83 1,702,006.11  Related to the income
HEBR#HE Bl 25 A 7
Total 9,323,494.05  13,196,429.71
Eh
Additional information: Government grants include various HAF A - BB B & RIKT AP EE
related grants allocated by various government departments BAMNEIBAAAERNSEMREB RN
to support the development of the Company. The Company ELEHM ARG EIMEBEGRG &R O
can meet the relevant conditions for such grants and there is [ B

no risk of return.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XLIl) Investment Income

B2 & W 58

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

Items EHE rESH rFHe®
Gains from long-term equity investments BREAZENRIRERSE

accounted for by equity method I & -3,229,692.59 -1,741,065.89
Investment gains from disposal of long-term BERBREREEENRE

equity investments g 20,536,640.33
Interests of discounted bills that can be AR IEERBIRAL R

derecognized -7,911,749.02
Handle fees for hedging instruments EHTAFES -4,761.00
Total a&t -11,141,441.61 18,790,813.44

(XLll|Gains from the changes in fair value

Sources of gains from

B AREBEEEZH WS

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

the changes in fair value EEAREBESBRENRIR THEHE LHe®
Biological assets measured at fair value BARBEAENEVMEE 21,693,761.10 -4,169,866.00
Total &5 21,693,761.10 -4,169,866.00

Additional information: gains from changes in fair value of the
Company consist of: (1) gains from the initial recognition of
consumable biological assets at fair value less sales costs
upon harvest; (2) gains from changes in fair value less sales

costs of productive biological assets.

HMHA: ARBAAABELHREBHE:
MEBEREEMEERRESZ QA BER
HEBRVLERAELNRE  QEEN
EMEEAABEREEEANESELN
Wz o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I At KERREEZER(B)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XLIV) Credit Impairment Loss b0 5 AR EER X
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Items EHE rESH LH&®E
Losses on bad debts of trade receivable FEUBR SREBRIB R 1,956,142.26 1,301,620.64
Losses on bad debts of other receivable Hib e FIZRIB L 667,669.67 848,779.80
Losses on bad debts of monetary funds BEBESERIEX 808,234,759.31
Total EE 810,858,571.24 2,150,400.44
Additional information: losses on bad debts of monetary funds HEMiE: B ESEEBFEARARATN
was caused by the full provision of bad debt losses on the REBFEMBRAFTNERELAe 2 EARER
principal of the Company’s deposits with GMK Finance. BRPTE -
(XLV) Asset Impairment Loss M) EERMERX
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
ltems HH TESHE FHeR

Losses on inventory impairment and impairment 17 & % (8 8 55 2 & [ 8 49 ik 2~

of cost of contract performance EREREES 3,936,921.91
Total &5 3,936,921.91
(XLV) Gains on Disposal of Assets Bt BEEREE W&

Amount included in
non-recurring

Amount of the Amount of the profit or loss

current period previous period in the current period

STAEMERTIE

Items HE rH£EE e Bae e
Net gains on disposal of REIFREEEF R

non-current assets 761,369.73 1,621,508.51 761,369.73

Total = 761,369.73 1,621,508.51 761,369.73
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(XLVl) Non-operating Income [Brt) &SP A
Amount included in
non-recurring
Amount of the Amount of the profit or loss
current period previous period in the current period
FFAEHIELE N
Items EHR AEEHE LHeE Eae e
The gain from disposal of BEIFNEEENG
non-current assets 26,777.40 23,912.63 26,777.40
Net income from fines 1 FOF WA 652,504.04 766,992.31 652,504.04
Donations received 2B 140,000.00 140,000.00
Unpayable trade payables AW ERNRIA 113,429.95 142,961.94 113,429.95
Insurance claims 1R IR B 15,189.00 15,189.00
Gain on surplus BRI 9,404.49
Total &&F 947,900.39 943,271.37 947,900.39
(V) Non-operating Expenses [Bt]) & 3% 5h 2 i
Amount included in
non-recurring
Amount of the Amount of the profit or loss
current period previous period in the current period
FFAEBIELE N
ltems 1E R RS E +FHE Banl e
Loss on destruction and ERBEERBWMEIBL
retirement of non-current
assets 267,765.23 296,767.27 267,765.23
Donation for public welfare ~ %J 5} 18 % 505,330.93 719,780.00 505,330.93
Damages or penalties BABESIE NI 191,824.76 44,745.63 191,824.76
Non-recurring losses WK 22,704.14 2,031.97 22,704.14
Total B 987,625.06 1,063,324.87 987,625.06
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL At BBREEER(E)

274

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(XLX) Income Tax Expenses

Bl FRSBLER

1. Income tax expenses table - B E &
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Items HH rHEH THeE
Current income tax expenses EHMENER 753,069.94 1,450,222.93
Deferred income tax expenses ELEMEHER 18,416.18 218,415.65
Total A5t 771,486.12 1,668,638.58
2. Adjustment process of accounting profits and BRI BE AR ERARBRE

income tax expenses

Items HA

Amount of the
current period

rHMEHE

Total profits MEERE
Income tax expenses calculated at statutory %% F siiE AR R BN EHE R

-768,257,155.15

or applicable tax rates -192,064,288.79
Effect of subsidiaries applying different NEEATRARENEE

tax rates 91,518.38
Effect of adjustment in income tax in AR M SR A2

the previous period 753,069.94
The impact of non taxable income e ONCN A -828,759,538.57

AR A BRAMBANTE

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses

and losses 834,091,146.31
Effect of deductible losses of deferred FRPAEREEMSEREEN KNS ED
income tax assets unrecognised in 2

the previous period
Effect of deductible temporary difference or

RHR R HERRIE T P 15 fRéEE’J—J%EHDE*E HER
KA EMEER

deductible loss of deferred income tax

-9,946,231.53

‘:'r{/ s
assets not recognised in the current
period 196,812,199.49
Deductions for the disabled B A DG HIBR -206,389.11
Income tax expenses Fristi &R 771,486.12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(B1) 8 IR W

(} Earnings Per Share

1. Basic earnings per share 1- BEXER K
ERXGRREANEBRE QAL BRR
R A GHFFEBR AR R A BEITHENY
AR INAE T HETE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company:

Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
ltems EHE TEEEE LHe®E

Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary 53 B R & A & L B E
shareholders of the Company & HFERE

Weighted average number of outstanding RNRBBEITEINE BARE
ordinary shares of the Company I 1 8 1,387,956,000.00  1,398,975,000.00

Basic earnings per share EXRG R -0.55 0.04

Including:  Basic earnings per share from He : FEEEEXRGR

-769,028,641.27 50,910,673.32

2]}

continuing operations g -0.55 0.04
Basic earnings per share from RIEKEERNEGR

discontinued operations gz

Additional information: the change of weighted average HEMFHA: ARA EITEIN T AR N
number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company VYOS ETEHREFRE
during the current period is mainly due to changes in B

treasury shares.

2. Diluted earnings per share 2 MESRKZ

HESREENEERE AR EBERK
RH A GFME (BB BRUAARRR T
SN EBARRMETF AR (BE) G E -

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company (diluted) by the weighted
average number of outstanding ordinary shares of the
Company (diluted):

Items HH

Amount of the
current period

TME R

Amount of the
previous period
LHe®E

Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary 53 B X & A &) @R IR
shareholders of the Company (diluted) W& HFEFE(FE)
Weighted average number of outstanding QB BEITEINE @A EY

ordinary shares of the Company (diluted) mEFHH (HE) 1,399,017,500.00  1,398,975,000.00
Diluted earnings per share wmEgRKE -0.55 0.04
Including: Diluted earnings per share from Hi: BEKEREER

-769,028,641.27 50,910,673.32

continuing operations W -0.55 0.04
Diluted earnings per share from RIEKEHESR
discontinued operations 1 &=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“OZZHEEVBERHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(L) Cash Flow Statement Items

1. Other cash receipts in relation to operating

EEEMIR/ARET)

- RERBRER

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

1 WEIWAMEEEZHEHANEE

activities

Amount of the Amount of the

current period previous period
ltem HE AEEEE e
Business transaction amounts E TN 7,197,544.46 65,952,045.71
Deposits KRIEH 4 16,829,219.37 28,868,509.15
Interest income ABSS@N 26,692,348.66 37,434,373.82
Government grants BT 78 B 7,257,994.91 29,187,567.23
Catering income SN ON 8,324,828.98 7,491,050.99
Rental income BEWA 2,069,436.10 197,080.83
Waste income BE S A 73,844.10 166,312.42
Others Hib 10,077.35
Total AEf 68,445,216.58 169,307,017.50

2. Other cash payments in relation to operating

2 XYW EMELLETBHEHN RS

activities

Amount of the Amount of the

current period previous period
Item HE KL EE FHeR
Out of pocket expenses IR &R 66,804,863.87 66,189,654.86
Deposit, deposit RES e 16,656,346.24 39,167,468.20
Business transaction amounts R 7,384,096.12 69,568,791.92
Others HAb 930,630.50 2,945,499.62
Total &t 91,775,936.73 177,871,414.60

3. Other cash received in relation to investing

3 WHAIMAMBREZBERNE S

activities
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
ltem HH REELEE FHe®m
Withdrawal of futures margin WEHERFE < 6,570,339.00
Total a5t 6,570,339.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(L) Cash Flow Statement Items (Continued)

4. Other cash payments in relation to investing

- REREBERER (B)

EN

XN EMEREZEHEHN RS

activities
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Item HH TESHE rHe®
Net cash from disposal of subsidiaries BREFRAREFHE 5,911,229.73
Impairment loss of monetary funds BERESRBEEX 808,234,759.31
Total = 808,234,759.31 5,911,229.73

5. Other cash receipts in relation to financing

5 WAMAMBEZEEZBERNEE

activities
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Item HH TESHE e
Borrowings from related parties RA B 7 B X 200,000,000.00
Recovery of deposit g [B{R 3B & 458,803,817.48
Bills discounting E Sl 60,693,827.67
Total a5t 519,497,645.15 200,000,000.00

6. Other cash payments in relation to financing

XN EMEBEZEHEHN RS

activities
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Item HH TESHE THe
Sale and leaseback payments E & O 8 160,876,264.81 133,951,397.38
Lease fees HE®E 21,078,867.67 19,221,613.13
Payment of shares repurchase AT R B B R 26,061,570.00

Bills and borrowings deposits

2 BRRES

158,975,847.72

241,259,648.46

Total

366,992,550.20

394,432,658.97
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“OZZHEEVBERHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(LI)Supplementary Information for Cash Flow

Statement

1. Supplementary information for cash flow

statement

EEEMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

FEREREBERERTESR

Amount of the
current period

1 BEREXHELEH

Amount of the
previous period

Supplementary information HrER RESHE e
1. Reconciliation of net profits to cash 1~ & FFIEAH AL L EH)
flows from operating activities ReEnz
Net profits FF)E -769,028,641.27 47,075,414.63
Add: Credit impairment loss e ERRERERXK 810,858,571.24 2,150,400.44
Provision for asset impairment BEREREE 3,936,921.91
Depreciation of fixed assets FEEEWNE 248,288,779.44 208,991,718.59
Depletion of oil and gas assets MR EETE
Depreciation of right-of-use CTREEERE
assets 10,111,277.10 8,591,758.87
Amortisation of intangible assets A E Y 2,918,049.59 3,542,909.59
Amortisation of long-term RHFEE REH
deferred expenses
Losses on disposal of fixed EEETEE BEEE
assets, intangible assets and MEMEHEEMNELX
other long-term assets (Uezs AT-1574E751))
(income to be inserted with “-") -761,369.73 -1,621,508.51
Obsolescence losses on fixed FEEEMBEEE
assets (income to be inserted (Uezs AT-1574E 7))
with “=”) 240,987.83 272,854.64
Losses from changes in fair AHBEESIEKX
value (income to be inserted (Yezm AT-15R4B51))
with “=”) -21,693,761.10 4,169,866.00
Finance costs (income to be MsER
inserted with “-") (U s AT=15%1E %)) 71,128,382.82 80,859,363.66
Loss on investments (income to wEBK
be inserted with “-") (W AT SRR 1)) 11,141,441.61 -18,790,813.44
Decrease in deferred income RIETEREER D
tax assets (increase to be (BE A1 573E51))
inserted with “=") 18,416.18 218,415.65

Increase in deferred income tax
liabilities (decrease to be
inserted with “=")

Decrease in inventories (increase
to be inserted with “-”)

Decrease in operating
receivables (increase to be
inserted with “-")

Increase in operating payables
(decrease to be inserted with
)

Others

Net cash flows generated from
operating activities
2. Material investment and financing
activities not involving cash receipts
and payments
Conversion of debt to capital

BIEFTISTH B EE N
OB A BAT-15R B 5)

0D 0oy
(B AIAT-I5R B )
FEE R IR B AR
GEIPAT-15REDY)

KRN IR R AL A
OBl D LAT-1 573 51)

H Al
RETPEENHESRE
R

2 - THERRERINEARE

MEERD

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

124,537,486.88

100,508,367.99

-26,772,667.26

7,957,188.51

573,389,431.74

-299,601,187.90

-85,557,037.93

212,018,638.88

1,817,149.47

164,137,942.64



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

OZ-FEMBHRRME

SHREMIR/ARET)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(LI)Supplementary Information for Cash Flow

Statement (Continued)

1. Supplementary information for cash flow

statement (Continued)

Supplementary information

Amount of the
current period

TE L

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

EORERERBRER(E)

1- BEREBRFBAEHN (H)

Amount of the
previous period

LHSH

Convertible corporate bonds due
within one year

Fixed assets under finance lease

3. Net changes in cash and cash

equivalents

Closing balance of cash

Less: Opening balance of cash

Add: Closing balance of cash
equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash
equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

—FRIHM T ERRE
&%
MEMABEEE

ReRASEZEWIR

B

e R

R e H B R ER
n:REFEYMOERAER

w R EEBMHNRGRER
RehREFEYFIEINE

Information on Other: an increase of RMB 7,957,188.51 in

share-based payments included in cost.

144,732,805.91
1,375,111,214.07

-1,230,378,408.16

Htsi : RN ARAERASE
#§1%7,957,188.51 7T °

1,375,111,214.07
1,289,981,009.01

85,130,205.06
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBEZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(LI)Supplementary Information for Cash Flow ErOREREXBRER (B)
Statement (Continued)
2. Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 - BB EBYHEA
Balance at the Balance at the
end of the period end of last year
Items B H HiRerEE EFEFRGBEE
I. Cash — B 144,732,805.91 1,375,111,214.07
Including: Cash on hand Hep: - EFHRE 14,737.46
Digital currency that can be AEFARIANET
used readily for payments "
Bank deposits that can be ATEE R AR A A 8R1T
used readily for payments T 144,264,380.50 1,374,795,896.95
Other monetary funds that can AR R AR S AN B E A
be used readily for BEEE®
payments 453,687.95 315,317.12
Amounts that can be used AARINERF L
readily for payments from RITHIE
Central Bank Deposits
Interbank deposits 7R %5008
Interbank Offer i CIES O

Il. Cash Equivalents — BEEED

Including: Debt investments due within ~ E/ : = {8 A RE|HHEHEE
three months

[ll. Cash and cash equivalents atthe end = - HiKIR & RIA & S E W5

of the period 144,732,805.91 1,375,111,214.07
Including: Restricted use of cash B BARIKEEAFAA
and cash equivalents by the {5 A 52 BR il #9358 & AN
parent company or intra-group ReZEEBY
subsidiaries
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AU BBREEER(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(L) Assets with Restricted Ownership or Use Right EEFERIEAESIRFINEE

Book value at the Reasons for
end of the period restriction

ltems EHR HAREEHEERE ZRER
Monetary funds BEEES Guarantees,
mortgaged

187,723,176.09 borrowings
RES  BREXK

Fixed assets TEE 1,948,513,386.99 Mortgaged borrowings
& E

Intangible assets mEEE 74,288,249.03 Mortgaged borrowings
EHRER

Total &t 2,210,524,812.11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL I et BEBRREBEEE(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(LIV)Government grants (BB A %8 B
1. Government grants related to assets 1- B E B R BT # B
Items included
in current
profit or loss
or written off
Presented Amount included in current against related
items in the profit or loss or written off against costs and
Amounts balance sheet related costs and expenses expenses

FAEHBESHHAR HAEE
RABRBANER BRI
Amountofthe  Amount of the 1gBIR A

BERGBR current period  previous period B 8%
Types BE &8 5%EA KHEE tHeE =R
Special funds for the construction of 5 22 & % 42§ 81 4,950,000.00 Deferred income 330,000.00 192,500.00 Other income
strong industrial towns from FEZRBER R s Hitn
Finance Office of Anle Town EEES
Yanggu County
Funds for intelligent environmental SHZE2E£ENF 13,574,100.00 Deferred income 1,010,516.33 120,658.67 Other income
protection projects from BB AIRIR R R s Hitn
Agriculture and Rural Bureauof ~ BB &%
Yanggu County
Funds for solar collector project from [5 5k & & E M= B1L B 1,062,000.00 Deferred income 283,609.48 73,664.74 Other income
Economic and Information AGRERERES R s H it W g
Bureau of Yanggu County
Government grants for solar energy A 5 &8 B B # B 800,000.00 Deferred income 80,000.00 80,000.00 Other income
projects R s Hitn
Government grants for VOC VOC BB H 8 228,333.33 Deferred income 20,000.00 20,000.00 Other income
equipment R s Hitn
Subsidy for harmless treatmentof EBEZ(LEEER 2,000,000.00 Deferred income 133,333.33 11,111.11  Other income
poultry e R s Hitn
Funds for the transformation HAHEE S 1,040,200.00 Deferred income 208,040.00 208,040.00 Other income
BT W H it W g
Total At 23,654,633.33 2,065,499.14 705,974.52
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(LIV)Government grants (Continued)

2. Government grants related to revenue

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

“OCHEEMBRRMEE

SHREMIR/ARET)

hEHMBEBRRERERE(E)

(B+IBR AT %5 B (45)

Amount included in

current profit or loss or written off

2 B2 a HE B B9 B AT B

Items included in
current profit or loss
or written off against
related costs and

Amounts against related costs and expenses expenses
SFAEHBERR PREE
REBREANEE
Amount of the Amount of the 3t AEHEHR
current period  previous period IR AEE R ANE A
Types EE -] KEEH LHe®E BAWER
Subsidy for harmless treatment EE(CEEHEL 3,470,060.00 3,470,060.00 Otherincome
e
One-off retention subsidy in 2022 20224 — X 14 B T # & 2,599,000.00 2,599,000.00 Other income
e
R&D projects expenses granted by LR A BHEBEH MM ETRE  2,479,500.00 2,479,500.00 Other income
the Department of Science K= H i W g
&Technology of Shandong
Province
Funds for the transformation of BRELENES/IFBER  2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 Otherincome
intelligent and efficient integrated ~ F&t S AEEMT — &1L H e i
breeding and processing project BHERMEBES
from Industry and Information
Technology Bureau of Yanggu
County
Subsidy for harmless treatment of ~ 2020F EEREIRLIEEE  1,980,000.00 1,980,000.00 Otherincome
dead hogs during breeding LB L e
process in 2020
Special funds for foreign economic (R EEHBMIEERER  1,354,005.02 1,354,005.02  Otherincome
and trade development from —MEERBREEES At e
Investment Promotion Agency of
Yanggu County
Incentive funds for financial SRAFERESIEE2%E  1,310,000.00 1,310,000.00 Otherincome
innovation and development (ZBRTSHBES) Hfth o
guidance (subsidy funds for
multi-level market)
Technology reform subsidy funds 12 & iR i 3 1,303,955.08 1,303,955.08 375,795.19 Otherincome
HA s
Special funds for foreign economic WIS GE @K BN L (R # 401,912.04 401,912.04 Selling expenses
and trade development received ~ B— NI ERBZHEE S HEB A
from Investment Promotion
Agency of Yanggu County
Other subsidy H i B 2,860,134.81 875,539.83 2,000,594.98 Otherincome
HoAth e
Total A& 19,758,566.95 7,257,994.91 12,490,455.19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL IEHMEBRREBEZTR(E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(LV) Lease EtDHEE
1. As alessee 1- ERAMA
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Items BHR TES THeE
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMMNEER 11,501,508.20 11,227,446.43
Short-term lease charges included in the &+ A BRI & ERK ANk & 2B 25 Y
cost of the related assets or in the LR ENEHEEREA
current profit or loss using simplified
treatment 2,798,161.27 2,798,161.27
Lease charges for low-value assets (other F ATEHBIE EXK ANk & HiiEm M
than short-term lease payments for BEEENEKEEEEHRESR
low value assets) included inthe cost A (KEEEENEHAES
of the related assets or in the current FABRAIN
profit or loss using simplified treatment
Variable lease payments not included in  5F AMHBIE ER Ak E BB H
the measurement of lease liabilities RMABEBEF =R EH
included in the cost of the related B
assets or in the current profit or loss
Including: Portion arising from saleand E & : €4 HEX HEL L H
leaseback transactions
Income from sublease of right-to-use EHCAEEERGHRA
assets
Total cash outflow related to leases HEEHENRR SR 23,877,028.94 20,228,112.29

Gains or losses arising from sale and ERMERBRFIEENHEBEER
leaseback transactions
Cash inflows from sale and leaseback &R X 5B &k

transactions
Cash outflows from sale and leaseback & EIZ 5E 47
transactions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OCHEEMBRRMEE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

VI. CHANGE IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

There was no change in the scope of consolidation during the

current period.

VIL.

() Equity in Subsidiaries

EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES

Ry

AN

AHARBELEAHHENES -

EHEENEE

t EHE TR ES

() EFLRPHES

SHREMIR/ARET)

Constitution of the enterprise group PEFEHEA
Percentage of
shareholding (%)
IR LB (%)
Category of Paid-up capital Acquisition
Name of subsidiary Major operation place Registered in Business nature legal person (RMB10,000) Direct Indirect method
BhREX
FRAER TELE s ¥BME EAER (B7) BE B mELR
Shandong Fengxiang Industrial ~ Yanggu County, Yanggu County, Liaocheng  Production and sale of  Limited liability 61,950.00 100.00 Set up
Co., Ltd. Liaocheng City, City, Shandong Province frozen meat products company
Shandong Province
LIRBEHEXBRAR LREWRTERE LREPRTERE RRARMEE BEREERF RI
HE
Shandong Fengxiang Food Yanggu County, Yanggu County, Liaocheng  Production and sale of  Limited liability 41,223.89 100.00 Set up
Development Co., Ltd. Liaocheng City, City, Shandong Province frozen food company
Shandong Province
LWRB¥ERERERAA  LRAURTHERE LREPRTERE RREMEE HES HFRECAF R
Shandong iShape Food Yanggu County, Yanggu County, Liaocheng  Production and sale of ~ Limited liability 22,000.00 100.00 Set up
Technology Co., Ltd. Liaocheng City, City, Shandong Province frozen food company
Shandong Province
LWREFRGREERLA  LRAHRTHERE LEREPRTERE BRAREE HEE BRAERA &L
Fengxiang Foods (Japan) Japan Japan Consulting Limited liability 300.31 100.00 Set up
Co., Ltd. company
BRaRAFAEH AR AR EE BEREERF R
Yucheng Fengming Food Yucheng City, Yucheng City, Shandong Production and sale of ~ Limited liability 3,300.00 100.00 Setup
Co., Ltd. Shandong Province Province frozen food company
BHEABRERERAR LWREBHT LREBRT RRAREE HEE BRARERA KL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

“TOZZFEMNBBRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (R £ okt » ©EEBEMH A AREIT)

VILEQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) t EHMER

(II) Equity in Joint Arrangements or Associates
1. Major joint ventures or associates

Percentage of

1 EENEETHEABELE

shareholding (%) Accounting for
BRLHI(%)  investmentsin  Strategic to
Name of joint Major operation joint ventures or  the Company’s
ventures or associates  place Registered in Business nature Direct Indirect associates activities
HEegb¥qH

BELED ELXRENE HEAQREHR
BErEER TERE 1 3t ES) 331 HE Mg HEERE BREEKM
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological Yanggu County, Yanggu County, Operation of organic 49.00 Equity method Yes

Technology Co., Ltd. Liaocheng City, Liaocheng City, fertilizers, microbial

Shandong Province Shandong fertilizers, bio-fertilizers
Province

BRERAEDRE WRAGHUTERE WREWHT BHEE - BE - BR% =

ARAT 58 &% EHEa g e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
—CHEEMBRRME
SEEMHABARKT)

feERBP R (E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

VILEQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) t #ZH

() Equity in Joint Arrangements or Associates (S ERERYSBELEINRERE (B)

(Continued)

2 - EEHETENTEMHBRER

2. Key financial information of major associates

Balance at the
end of the period/
amount of the
current period

Balance at the end
of last year/
amount of the
previous period

HARBE, LFFRHBES

rPEE e

Yanggu Xiangyu Yanggu Xiangyu

Biological Biological

Technology Technology

Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.

BREREY BRERLEY

BEAERLDH R AR R A

Current assets MENE E 10,493,222.27 63,680,628.35

Non-current assets JEMENE E 126,682,197.34 113,808,589.28

Total assets BEAT 137,175,419.61 177,489,217.63

Current liabilities mBERE 17,843,814.80 56,373,403.45

Non-current liabilities EmMBEE 2,975,416.67 3,168,416.67

Total liabilities aEasr 20,819,231.47 59,541,820.12
Minority interests LH R RS

Equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company
Net assets share calculated
as per shareholding ratio

BERERARRRES

BEBRLLAFENFEENE

|,

116,356,188.14

57,014,532.19

117,947,397.51

57,794,224.78

Adjustments FEEIE 2,826,702.45 5,275,675.40
— Others —H A 2,826,702.45 5,275,675.40
Book value of equity investment in et ERRREANKRRERE

associates

59,841,234.64

63,069,900.18

Operating revenue EEWA 18,665,202.26 15,135,406.04
Net profit /% ) -6,591,209.37 -2,237,034.46
Net profit from discontinued 1E 48 2 1% A1

operations
Other comprehensive income ﬁ’rlﬂ%ffié\ﬂﬂlﬁ?%
Total comprehensive income ra W s B R -6,591,209.37 -2,237,034.46

Dividends from associates at
the current period

ZISHHHSZ@JE’JX B E XA
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OZZFEMHEFKRME

VIILRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The Company is confronted with various financial risks during its
operation, including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk). The
financial risks and the risk management policies adopted by the
Company to reduce the risks are as follows:

The Board is responsible for planning and establishing the
Company’s risk management framework, formulating the
Company’s risk management policies and related guidelines and
overseeing the implementation of risk management measures. The
Company has established risk management policies to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company. These risk management
policies specify specific risks, covering various aspects of market
risks, credit risks and liquidity risk management. The Company
regularly evaluates changes in market conditions and the
Company’s business activities to determine whether to update its
risk management policies and systems. The Company’s risk
management is carried out by the Risk Management Committee in
accordance with the policies approved by the Board. The Risk
Management Committee identifies, evaluates and hedges relevant
risks through close cooperation with other business units of the
Company. The Company’s internal audit department conducts
regular audits of risk management controls and procedures and
reports the results of these audits to the Company’s Audit
Committee.

The overall objective of the risk management in the Company is to

formulate risk management policies to minimise the risks without
unduly interfering the Company’s competitiveness and resilience.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

EEEMIR/ARET)

NBRERTEABNER

ARAELEBRTERSELRAR A
g RBUERANTEER(2EEEER - F
S L K (B R LR ) o b R UL DA B
DA REE A TR W AR B R 0 T
i

BEEAARATRETARAINEREIERE
HERABNEBREERENBREESIALEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

VIILRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL NREMTAERBNRRE(E)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Credit risk () ERRAK

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Company
due to the failure of the counterparty to fulfill its contractual
obligations.

The Company’s credit risk mainly arose from the monetary
funds, bills receivable, trade receivable, other receivable and
financial guarantee contract. At the balance sheet date, the
carrying amount of the financial assets of the Company
represents its maximum exposure to credit risk.

As at the end of the reporting period, except for those placed
in GMK Finance Co., Ltd., the Company’s monetary funds
presented in the financial statements are mainly deposits
placed in state-owned and other large and middle listed banks
with higher credit rates. The Company is of view that they are
free from significant credit risks and is unlikely to incur
significant losses due to banks’ defaults. As of the reporting
date, the Company has provided full impairment loss for its
monetary funds placed in GMK Finance Co., Ltd., the main
reason is that GMK Finance Co., Ltd. is insolvent and the
Company is unlikely to recover its monetary funds.

The Company ensures that the Company’s overall credit risk
is within control through quarterly monitoring of existing
customers’ credit ratings and monthly review of trade
receivable aging analysis. When monitoring the customer’s
credit risk, we group them according to their credit
characteristics. Customers rated as “high-risk” will be placed
on the list of restricted customers, and the Company can only
sell them on the premise of additional approval, otherwise they
must be required to pay the relevant amounts in advance.

EREREZERXZHFREBTARELM
BYARABELEMBERIORER

ARRERRARIBZEELANRERES EHX
5 BURER  EMEERNBBERS
RE REEREXRD ARRSMEEN
FEEECRRESRAKERRARHO

AR H R B 75 R 51 UR B R B R A R
REMBRRABIN TERERRBER
HAURERSERTIRNBERITHMEMKX
RAERIRITORITESR ARBRRBBED
FEEANERER EFTeELERT
BOMEBBMERBR - BHIEARER A
AlERHEHEMBRANEEES A
HFHBRRCRRENEN RAIERES
B R R - BB R IR IR 100% 5t B2 R (B
e

RRBBHECAEEPEANENFTEEEIN
Ko WRR SR BR e 0 AT B0 H B B 1 R BE R 2 A
MEREARREFTZENEEA - EEER
FHERARE REREFPNEAFBYEE
- WFARIERRIBINEFERESR
REIEFEESR WA RBEREIMOESNA
BT RAEAAAERKARAGERE &
AR BSRE IR A S AR SRR -
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VII.LRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter
deficiency of funds in meeting obligations settled with cash or
other financial assets delivery.

The Company’s policy is to ensure it has sufficient cash to
settle the debts when they fall due. The Company’s finance
department centralized control on liquidity risk. Through
monitoring cash balance, readily realizable marketable
securities and the rolling forecasts of cash flow for the next 12
months, the finance department will ensure the Company has
sufficient fund to settle its debts under all reasonable
foreseeable circumstances. It also continuously monitors the
Company’s compliance with borrowing agreements to obtain
commitments from major financial institutions to provide
sufficient reserve funds to meet short- and long-term capital
needs.

The financial liabilities of the Company are analysed by their
maturity date below at their undiscounted contractual cash
flows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
OZZHFEHKBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

NEESETARBENRR(E)

(2) R34 B

mBERBRERECERERTARNESHE
MERMEENTABENEERELEDR
R LR e

ARRMNBERBREBERATNRSIUER
B HAERS o mE MR B AN A A EY B S Y
S MBI BRERIRSHEE - A
BERE M AEBEFANYERK12EAES
RENRIEN  BRABEMAEAEEN
MERTHAERENESCEEER REFH
BERATREHREAERBHNAT  H=E
ESRBBRESIEHZABRESHER
WmRRBMEHNESE K-

AATEESBMEABURTEDAARE R
£RFHENRMT :

Balance at the end of the period

HARBE

Immediate

repayment Within 1 year 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
Items BH EEE 18R 2-5% 585 F At
Bills payable ANES 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
Short-term borrowings 52 £ £ ¢ 1,149,254,674.50 1,149,254,674.50
Trade payable JE 1 BR 3% 454,943,148.32 454,943,148.32
Other payable Hit 7 228,506,878.96 228,506,878.96
Long-term borrowings & H {5 3 63,206,219.74 105,748,945.92 326,990,881.73
Long-term payable REEMAR 63,037,819.08 6,070,952.51 69,108,771.59
Lease liabilities MHEEE 19,971,345.56 49,080,490.35 394,339,036.84  482,170,201.63
Total A&t 2,048,920,086.16 154,838,436.27  400,409,989.35 2,780,974,556.73

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBI#¥ KRG ERA A
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

VIILRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL NESmTAMEBHER(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Il) Liquidity risk (Continued) (D) mEEREBE ()
Balance at the end of last year
TEERBE
Immediate
repayment Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
Items ER BB (B R 15 AR 1-2F 2-5% 5F L At
Bills payable EAES 46,606,601.35 46,606,601.35
Short-term borrowings  #8 Hi & 5 1,731,044,138.88 1,731,044,138.88
Trade payable BT ERR 440,387,243.15 8,456,372.43 448,843,615.58
Other payable H{th JE SR 230,351,136.38 6,152,904.33 236,504,040.71
Long-term borrowings & E}f& % 46,788,972.28  64,866,536.80 454,596,124.28 566,251,633.36
Long-term payable REEMAR 95,380,993.50  72,407,837.23  61,368,328.28 229,157,159.01
Lease liabilities HEBR 15,439,748.07  15,029,160.57  45,343,182.70  405,317,982.73  481,130,074.07
Total Bt 2,605,998,833.61 166,912,811.36  561,307,635.26  405,317,982.73  3,739,537,262.96
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

VIILRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Ill) Market risk

Market risk of financial instruments is the risk of fluctuation in
the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flow
arising from changes in market price. Market risk includes

EEEMIR/ARET)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NEESETARBENRRE(E)

(2) WS AR

ERMITANTSERAREEERTANAAE
EIARARRERERTHEREHME LR
PRk SEREXRR FEERMEM

exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation in the fair value
of financial instruments or future cash flow arising from
changes in market interest rate.

The Company’s interest rate risk mainly arises from bank
borrowings. Interest-bearing financial instruments with
fixed and floating interest rates expose the Company to
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates of
borrowings with floating interest rates increased or
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Company’s net profit will decrease or
increase by RMB5,524,963.33 (31 December 2021:
RMB4,951,120.00). The management is of the view that
100 basis points reasonably reflect the reasonable range
of possible changes in the interest rates in the following
year.

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company continuously monitors foreign currency
transactions and the size of foreign currency assets and
liabilities to minimize exposure to foreign exchange risk.
In addition, the Company may consider entering into
forward exchange contract or currency swap contract to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk. During the period and
the previous period, the Company has not entered into
any forward exchange contract or currency swap contract.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

R -
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B L e o

KA ) H B RO A X EL b = B RRRRTT
a5 BEMEMFIHMNENHEE 2R
TASEARAHEEBEAABENEE
RRRRENKER -

2022F 12 A31H - EEME 2 RIFT
HEHERT  MRELEEBARFEMNE
SRR EFF ek T 10018 E 2 B AR
A)HF FI B R A k38 hn5,524,963.33 7T
(20214124318 : 4,951,120.007T) ° &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

OZ-FEMBHRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

NEESETARBENRRE(E)

VII.LRISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Ill) Market risk (Continued)
2. Exchange rate risk (Continued)

The Company’s exposure to exchange rate risk arises
mainly from financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in US$. The amounts of foreign currency
financial assets and foreign currency financial liabilities
translated into RMB are shown below:

(2) miE AR (E)

2.

Balance at the end of the period

B = 7 bz (%)

AN A B 0 % L 3 B OB BA %
THENSBAENSREE SED
BEETNESBEBRERARSD
SEIIRMT :

Balance at the end of last year

BREGE HFEFRBE
Other foreign Other foreign
Us$ currencies Total US$ currencies Total
Items HE EYH Hipshe it e H At oh & A%t
Monetary funds 8L 5,479,399.47 640,442.71 6,119,842.18  13,242,059.85 16,348,728.75  29,590,788.60
Trade receivable U BR 3R 67,797,501.07 67,797,501.07  102,801,042.82 102,801,042.82
Prepayments B ZE 12,146.20 222,408.88 234,555.08 73,397.17 73,397.17
Trade payable ERERER 3,546,018.64  2,555,065.19  6,101,083.83 7,049,039.21 280,840.69  7,329,879.90
Total At 69,743,208.10  -1,692,213.60  68,050,814.50  108,994,063.46  16,141,285.23 125,135,348.69

As at 31 December 2022, with all other variables
unchanged, if the RMB appreciates or depreciates by 1%
against the US$, the Company’s net profit will increase or
decrease by RMB697,430.28 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,398,533.00). Management believes that 1%
reasonably reflects the reasonable range of changes that
may occur between the RMB and the US$ in the coming
year.

202212 A31B EFIEHEME SR
BIAEMNERT MEAREHETLAH
BB E1% » B2 7] #5318 hn sk im0
F H697,430.28 7 (2021 12 A 31 H -
1,398,533.007T) - B ER A1% A E R
MTT—FEARBEZTIIEELEE
BHAIBEE -
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(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

OZZFEMHEFKRME

IX. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

The inputs used for fair value measurement are divided into three
levels:

Level 1 input is the unadjusted quotation of the same asset or
liability that is available on the measurement day in the active
market.

Level 2 input is the input that can be observed directly or indirectly
of the relevant asset or liability other than those in level 1.

Level 3 input is the unobservable input of the relevant asset or
liability.

The level of the fair value measurement is determined by the

lowest level of the input which is of great significance to the whole
of the fair value measurement.

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

h
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

IX. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (Continued)

() Valuation techniques used and the qualitative (-
and quantitative information of key parameters

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

for recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurement categorized within Level 3

Fair value at the end

— Q=

—EEMBHRRMNE

SHREMIR/ARET)

h-2AEBENRE(E)

JSi

)ﬁ MERFEE=
’ %kﬁﬁ E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂi%%%ﬂﬁ’ﬂiﬁ

;|_,\

ERAAMETEE

Relations between key unobservable

Items of the current period  Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs inputs and fair value measurement
HRETIERBABEAAENEZH
HH BAMAEE HERE FABRBAE NIEEBRR
Broiler eggs 28,990,300.00 Cost method (The valuation is determined by The market price of broiler eggs on 31 December The estimated fair value increases when the
deducting the sales expenses, all taxes and certain 2022 was RMB2.06/egg; market price increases.
product sales profits from the selling price.)
BE KALNEBREAHEER 200N —E8 2022512838 BEETIHERARB206T,/ WHEREME it AR EEM.
ERHERBRBETIME) e
Broiler 161,032,000.00 Cost method (The valuation is determined by The market price of broilers on 31 December 2022 The estimated fair value increases when the
deducting the sales expenses, all taxes a certain was RMB23.89/bird. market price increases.
product sales profits and the cost upto the date of
listing from the selling price.)
mE RAENEBREHEER %%ﬁ% —Ef 2022F12A31A ARTSERARBE2389  WHEERLME A ALEEM.
EREENBNZHHANKAGREETMHE) TR
Breeders 255,692,300.00 The fair value of the breeders is determined by the For the quantity of the breeders, assuming the The estimated fair value decreases when the
replacement cost method, which is based on the cost number of the existing breeders will decrease as at ~ estimated culling rate increases.
and profit of restoring the breeders to their original the end of relevant period at certain culling rates
condition, taking into account the newness and due to natural or unnatural factors, which include
residual value. illness, difficult birth, low eggs production or
completion of all eggs production periods, the
estimated overall culling rate of the year ranges
from 6.29% and 27.11% along with the increase of
the number of the eggs production periods.
% BENRAERREERFLET ZH%EeR  HEENHEMS BREFEZHERAR  AHORELAR fBHRLERD -
BERBRERANKANMNBLZERHFEZRE BRIFARRR(BERAR BE KEES
ErtE- 2 HERLE )%ﬁ%%? AREMRAHE
BMEERKRD FERABEROREBES

é%%ﬁ%ﬁ%nuﬂﬁﬁe.zg%gzm%ﬁaﬁ o

The replacement cost is the price of the chicken
breeds plus the cost of each breeder to the
breeding period. The breeding period of breeders is
25 weeks, and the production period ranges from
25 weeks to 71 weeks. The average price of
chicken breeds of the year was RMB79.96/bird,
and the cost of the breeders to the breeding period
is RMB112.27/bird.
EERARBEHERMEREEZERBONK
KBRERERBE EEHABEZTAE-
AEFEOTHERATINT/ R BEEEE
RERAR112.27/R

The profit is determined by multiplying the sum of
the cost of chicken breeds and the breeding period
by the cost margin. The cost margin was 10.20%
based on the financial data for 2021.

BORF AR R A B AR A AR IA K A
FIE R HEE o AR FIE X 1R 152021 81 7
S E152510.20%

The ratio of the remaining egg production of the
hen to the total egg production during the entire life
cycle is used to calculate the newness rate.
ARERBENRBESSEETETASRN
MEZENLHIFERITE -

The estimated fair value increases when the
estimated chicken breeds price, breeding and
other costs increase.

At HEERMA RS EERA LIRE - st
RAEEM-

The fair value increases when the estimated cost
margin increases.

Rt AR BR LA AR EEM-

The estimated fair value increases when the
newness rate increases.
KM ERBR G AR EEM-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION WITH T BBLREBRS
RELATED PARTIES

() Information on the controlling shareholders of (C) BB ERRRER
the Company

Equity Percentage

interest in of the
the Company controlling
held by shareholders’s
Name of the controlling voting rights in
controlling shareholders  the Company
shareholders Registered in Business nature Registered capital (%) (%)
2R AR R R RRE
XD EH AT
ERBREERE = it 3t EF 33 o it & A R B IR FE L B
(%) (%)
Falcon Holding LP Cayman Islands Private equity
investment 70.92 70.92
Falcon Holding LP e/ LERERE
Information on the controlling shareholders of the Company: AATMERBREIBAMHE : KAQFRE
The previously controlling shareholders of the Company was BERRABLUREBEHFE(EE) BEREEQA
Shandong Fengxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (LB (EE)ERE 2022410 A 16 B - Falcon Holding LP & i@ &)
f£2@]). On 16 October 2022, Falcon Holding LP obtained EHEESHRESEREEEREERAA
70.92% of the equity of the Company held by GMK Holdings, IWREHFREBRA AR - ILREBEHF(EE)AE
Fengxiang Investment and Fengxiang (Group) through judicial REEREFE AR ET0.92% 8% # - 2022
auction. On 20 December 2022, the registration and transfer F12A208TR THEFBIBSELEEEBR
of CSDC was completed and the equity was officially settled. EERAIMEBECBP, REEXTHIZE
The controlling shareholders of the Company was changed to AN &) IR % R B2 B Falcon Holding LP ©
Falcon Holding LP.
The ultimate controller of the Company: PAG (Pacific Alliance ARABGREIEFHIF 2 PAG(KBRESLE) -
Group).
(I) Information on the subsidiaries of the Company (D) EXABRNFLRER
Please refer to Note “VII. Equity in other entities” for details of ARAFRAAMNBEAFRAMIEN £ £ X
the information on the subsidiaries of the Company. tEBREER] -
() Information on associates and joint ventures of E)ERARANEENBELEBR
the Company
Please refer to Note “VII. Equity in other entities” for details of ARFEENEERBELEFRANTE
the major associates and joint ventures of the Company. [+ TEEMEERER] -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZ-FEMBBRME
SEEMHABARKT)

T BBAIRBEBRIS (E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(IV) Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties

HittpAB S &%

(W) HAibBARE 5 1B

Relationship between other related party and the Company

Hitp B 7 /A QB HEE

Liaocheng Aode Energy Co., Ltd. (B35 RE4ERER 2 7))

M REERERRA

Shandong Fengxiang Supermarket Co., Ltd. (LI B #8H AR A T)

WREFBEMARRAA

GMK Finance Co., Ltd. (3B 5 ERAF])

MBS BEAERLQA

GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (TR EE AR EEAR])

MEHEREEERAFAA

Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., Ltd. ({525 St il AR A7)

GREXMEERAA

Zhongke Fengxiang Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (FRIBE#EA Y Ti2
IR AR AT

FRIBEENIRROERAA

Shandong Xiangyu Information Technology Co., Ltd. (LIEE#F{E &
BEMAEREEAR])

WREFEERMEREEILA

Luxinan Hospital Co., Ltd. (iR Bt BR A R])

BEMERARLDA

Qingdao Xiangguang Logistics Co., Ltd. (B &N MRAR A R])

BEEHXMRERAA

Yanggu Ping Anyeguo Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd.
(GRELIREEREBRAR)

GREZIREERNTERAA

Yanggu Xiangqi Biomass Power Generation Co., Ltd
(GREEEENELERRAR)

GAGREHENERSEERAA

Shandong Xiangrui Metal Technology Co., Ltd
(LREHmEBREBRAR)

LWREFmeBREAERRAA

Other information: enterprises listed above are related parties

to the Company as at 20 December 2022.

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
BR[F— RIS TR %

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
B F — RS S b2

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
RAE—REEFH T EHNAMEE

Investing party of the Company

LRARBIMKRES

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
B [F — RS S B 2

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party

B R - REES TR

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party

RR-—REER RN EMPE
Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
RA—REER T EHNEMEE
Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party
BRF— A TR %
Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party

B R - REES TR MM

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party

DR REES TR AR

Other enterprises controlled by the same ultimate controlling party

JIfEd

RF—mEEH TR EmEE

HA A« ERATOIDEH 1-2022512 520

B Z Al R R 5] B B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEIREBXS (E)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions () BBXZER
1. Related party transactions for purchase and 1- BiEEm RHNESEENEE
sales of goods/provision and receipt of labor XxZ
services
Table of goods purchase/receiving labor services HERm BXEBELE
Content of related party Amount of the Amount of the
Related party transactions current period previous period
22) BEXZAR AL THeR
Liaocheng Aode Energy Co., Ltd. Purchase of natural gas
(W RIBEEIRBRR A ) 76,673,578.85 71,987,312.31
W REEIRE R A A RERAR
Qingdao Xiangguang Logistics Co.,  Settlement of logistics service fees
Ltd. (B SHFAMRERARF) 15,630,073.35 1,508,576.14
FEEHEXMRBRAR EEORE
Shandong Xiangyu Information Settlement of service fees
Technology Co., Ltd. (LT
= ERMBRETEAT) 200,000.00 2,461,410.68

WRHFFEERMEREELR HERBE
Zhongke Fengxiang Biotechnology Purchase of raw materials, etc.

Co., Ltd. (P RUEFE LA TR

BRAT] 1,403,507.59 3,370,766.19
PRIBFEMIEROHARAR BERMES
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Settlement of service fees

B ERERERAEELT) 4,994,830.41

MBEFEREEBREMERAA EERBE
Shandong Fengxiang Supermarket Purchase of turnover materials,

Co., Ltd. (LR BB AR AR) purchase cards, etc. 648,727.35 723,824.11
IWREBEHFBTERA R BEREME BYRE
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Car Rental expenses

B ERERBRELAR) 279,536.77 86,970.98
MEFEEREBEREEAA HEEA
Luxinan Hospital Co., Ltd. Settlement of service fees
EEEERBRAR EERBE 1,812,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OCHEEMBRRMEE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEBAIRBEE®EXRS (B8)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions (Continued) (R BHXZER(E)
1. Related party transactions for purchase and 1- BiEEm RHNESEENEE
sales of goods/provision and receipt of labor X5 (&

services (Continued)

Table of selling goods/provision of labor services HE B 1RHELHELER
Content of related party Amount of the Amount of the

Related party transactions current period previous period

22) BEXZAR AL THeR

Shandong Fengxiang Supermarket ~ Sales of goods

Co., Ltd. (LRBEHFEHARLQA) 5,586,244.18 5,937,358.59
IWERBHFBTARRR HE B m
Zhongke Fengxiang Biotechnology Sales of goods

Co., Ltd. (T RUBE A T2

ARRAT] 4,997,930.05 5,132,987.69
PRIBFEMIREBROARAR HEFM
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., Ltd. Sales of goods

(FGRAFIERRAR]) 227,795.74 301,977.26
BRAE L IAERR QR HE® m
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. Sales of goods

GTEFT AR IQR]) 21,567.43
MBI IEHER AR HE® m
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Sales of goods

(FTEERERERAELRT) 50,221.11 86,970.98
MEEEREEEREERA HE®m
Luxinan Hospital Co., Ltd. Sales of goods 14,447.02
BHmEERAERADA 5 7
Yanggu Xiangqi Biomass Power Sales of goods

Generation Co., Ltd. 64,680.00
CRESHEMEREARLA HEE®
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological Settlement of electricity bills

Technology Co., Ltd. 2,235,640.37
BREREYRRBRAA HEHEB
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological Sales of materials

Technology Co., Ltd. 11,388,528.23 5,046,361.23
GRENEDERERRQA HEMHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEBAIRBEBXS (B)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions (Continued) (B) BB ZER(E)
2. Leasing with related parties 2 FBHHEERR
The Company as the lessor: KAFIERHET -
Income
Income recognised
recognised from leasing
from leasing for the previous
Name of the lessee Type of leased assets for the period period
FHRAN FEARE R
EBEFEB HEEEESR HERA HERA

Zhongke Fengxiang Biotechnology Housing equipment

Co., Ltd. (PRIBEAEY T2

BIRAF]) 11,429.44 14,092.12
TRIEFEMIRERNDBRAR FERB

The Company as the lessee: AR BIERAMT -
Amount of the current period Amount of the previous period
rEEE THeE
Rental Rental
expenses of expenses of
short-term short-term
lease under lease under
simplified simplified
approach and approach and
low-value low-value
assets and assets and
variable lease variable lease
payments payments
that are not Interest that are not
included in the Rental Increased  expenses on included in the Increased Interest
measurement of expenses  right-of-use lease  measurement of Rental  right-of-use  expenses on
Name of the lessor Type of leased assets lease liabilities paid assets liabilities lease liabilities  expenses paid assets lease liabilities
BLEERNER BlERENES
RENEEE HEMEERE
EERENES EERENHS
ERURABA BRNRAMA
HEARTEN Bme AEONEE BEREGEN Eney  EEOHEE
HERER HEEEER TEEENRE XANEE ERAREE AERNEXN AEEENRE XfnHe RAEEE BENEXL

GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Housing equipment
(MEHZREEEREMLLA) 1,006,499.16  1,006,499.16
HERZREBMEREART RERE
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Housing equipment
(MEHZEREEEREALF) 798,161.27  798,161.27 3,168,030.33
MBHEREBERRELT FERE
Yanggu Ping Anyeguo Agricultural - Housing equipment
Technology Co., Ltd. 2,000,000.00  2,000,000.00
BREZBREXRERAT RERE
300 SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRB#RBERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZ-FEMBBRME

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION WITH

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(V) Related party transactions (Continued)

3. Guarantee with related parties (Continued)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

(B) ABXZER(E)

3 BBEREY (E)

SHREMIR/ARET)

T BBAIRBEBRIS (E)

The Company as a guaranteed party: KANFIERBERT -
Whether
or not the
guarantee
Guarantee Commencement date  Expiry date of is fully
amount of guarantee guarantee performed
BERRES
Guarantor BRE EReE ERERA ERIYPA CEETRE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WERFEREBER 52,000,000.00 2019/12/26 2022/12/26 Yes
Co., Ltd. NS BETTE
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. MEHMBER 52,000,000.00 2019/12/26 2022/12/26 Yes
(FTEMBERAT) NS BETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WREREBAR  250,000,000.00 2021/1/6 2022/1/5 Yes
Co., Ltd. NGl BEETRE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WRELEEAR 10,000,000.00 2021/1/27 2022/1/26 Yes
Co., Ltd. yNE] BEETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WE#KEBAR  50,000,000.00 2021/3/17 2022/3/16 Yes
Co., Ltd. NS BETTE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., ~ BREEXIMEFR  534,976,900.00 2021/4/20 2022/4/19 Yes
Ltd. (SR K IAEFR LR NS BETTE
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. MBEEERSE 200,000,000.00 2021/4/27 2022/5/7 Yes
(FEHEREEERETLT) BEREFDA BETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WREHXEEAR  100,000,000.00 2021/6/2 2022/6/2 Yes
Co., Ltd. yNG] BETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WREHXEBEAR  100,000,000.00 2021/6/21 2022/6/21 Yes
Co., Ltd. NGl BEETRE
Shandong Fengxiang (Group) W3 (BL#) & 100,000,000.00 2021/6/21 2022/6/21 Yes
Co., Ltd. EREAELDA BEETTE
Shandong Fengxiang (Group) LR (B % 35,000,000.00 2021/9/7 2022/6/24 Yes
Co., Ltd. BREERA BERETTREE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co.,  [G& & X NEHBR  320,400,000.00 2021/9/9 2022/9/8 Yes
Ltd. (BEEHIAEFRAT) NS BETTE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., BRI XMEAFR  240,000,000.00 2021/9/28 2022/9/27 Yes
Ltd. (R MEBRAR) NG BETTE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co.,  [GE &K iNEABR  240,000,000.00 2021/9/28 2022/9/27 Yes
Ltd. (BB KIEBR LR NG BEETTE
Shandong Xiangrui Metal WELHESE 49,000,000.00 2021/12/24 2022112115 Yes
Technology Co., Ltd. BHEAR AR ERITTE
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. HEFEERER 50,000,000.00 2021/12/29 2022/5/13 Yes
(FTEFEREEFREELR) EREAELDA BEETTE
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. MEEMEER 50,000,000.00 2021/12/29 2022/5/13 Yes
(M BEERAT) NG| BETTE
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(V) Related party transactions (Continued)

3. Guarantee with related parties (Continued)

EEEMIR/ARET)

t BABIREBRXS (E)

() ABXZER(E)

3 BHERER(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

The Company as a guaranteed party: (Continued) AKRAERBKERY - ()
Whether
or not the
guarantee
Guarantee Commencement date  Expiry date of is fully
amount of guarantee guarantee performed
ERESR
Guarantor BRA EReE EREHKA ERIHA BERETRE
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological GRERNEDRE 68,768,700.00 2020/2/2 2026/8/1 No
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAAE AEITRE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., B XMEEFMR  100,000,000.00 2021/4/29 2024/4/28 No
Ltd. (SREFHIMEER AT N RETTE
Shandong Xiangrui Metal IWRERELE 360,450,000.00 2021/9/8 2024/9/77 No
Technology Co., Ltd. BHEERA A RETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WERFERERER 50,000.000.00 2021/9/9 2024/9/30 No
Co., Ltd. AL RETTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WREHXEEAR  100,000,000.00 2021/9/17 2024/9/27 No
Co., Ltd. AL RAETTE
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. MEHMBER 100,000,000.00 2021/9117 2024/9/27 No
(M BEERAT) NG| AEITTE
Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co.,  [5E & K iH%EABR  100,000,000.00 2021/9/17 2024/9/27 No
Ltd. ((FEEHIMEFRAA]) NG| RAETTE
Xiangrui International Holding Group #¥ ¥ B B2 42 % 5 240,000,000.00 2021/9/28 2023/9/25 No
Co., Ltd. BEAF RETTE
Luxinan Hospital Co., Ltd. ERMERER 240,000,000.00 2021/9/28 2023/9/25 No
AT RETTTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group WERFERERER 49,994,000.00 2022/3/17 2023/3/2 No
Co., Ltd. AL RETTE
GMK Holdings Group Co., Ltd. MEHEERSE 200,000,000.00 2022/4/27 2023/4/27 No
(FTRFEREEEREELT) BREMFAA RAETTE
Shandong Fengxiang (Group) IWEBHE(ER)E  100,000,000.00 2022717 2023/7/5 No
Co., Ltd. REEAA AEITTE
Shandong Xiangguang Group LWE#EREEABRE  100,000,000.00 2022/717 2023/7/5 No
Co., Ltd. NS RETTE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEBAIRBEE®ERS (B)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions (Continued) (R BHRXZER(E)
4. Remuneration of key management personnel 4 - FREEANSFH
(1) Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and (1) EF EFENHTHEATHRE
Chief Executive Officer and Directors’ interests FE#En
Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and 5 EEMIITRIEE M

Chief Executive Officer

Remuneration of each Director, Supervisor and Chief 202FEHNEE BEEMNITLHE
Executive Officer for the year ended 2022 is as ErF BT
follows:

Benefit plan (social

Date of Date of security provident ~ Share-based
appointment  resignation Fees Remuneration fund) compensation Total
EAE A3 X ¢

Name #eH ZEARY BEAE e M (HRDES) o 5 B At
Director — Liu Zhiguang Ex—2Ex 2010112/6  2023/1/18
Director — Xiao Dongsheng % 5 — & # 4 2018111 2,000,000.00 8465580  1,956,157.65 4,040,813.45
Director — Shi Lei EE—0% 2022/5/31 1,333,333.00 33,696.00 342,430.84 1,709,459.84
Director — Zhou Jinying EE—FYE 2022/5/31 2023/1/18 1,551,000.00 37,152.00 63,438.97 1,651,590.97
Independent Director — BUEE—FMEE 2019/8/8  2023/1/18  267,981.00 267,981.00

Guo Tianyong
Independent Director — B EE— 2021/5/28 267,981.00 267,981.00

Zhao Yinglin
Independent Director — BUEE—EEX 2019/8/8 267,981.00 267,981.00

Chung Wai Man
Supervisor — Lian Xianmin ~ E5% — & & 2019916 20231118 360,000.00 32,400.60  201,833.42  504,243.02
Note: There were no bonuses and discretionary bonuses G AHEE EFNRTeHESS

for Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executive Officer EBiEES -
for the current period.

There was no arrangement under which a director B 220214 20224 |F /R {E F E I
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the BEMEZTHEXRERETMEF
two years ended 2021 and 2022. B ) 2 B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION + BEAIREEXIS (8)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions (Continued) (B) BB SZER(E)
4. Remuneration of key management personnel 4 - BREZENSFHMH(E)

(Continued)

(1) Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and (1) EF  EFMHNTHELFTHRE
Chief Executive Officer and Directors’ interests FERnEF EFNHTHEH
(Continued) N (&)

Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and EE EENRTAHETHN(E)
Chief Executive Officer (Continued)
Remuneration of each Director, Supervisor and Chief MNFEBMNEF ESNMHITE
Executive Officer for the year 2021 is as follows: HHFHmmT
Benefit plan
Date of Date of (social security Share-based
appointment  resignation Fees  Remuneration provident fund)  compensation Total
B E R fn % 1
Name ®E ZEEH BERH we o (HRDHESR) ok At
Director — Liu Zhiguang EE—2ER 2010112/6  2023/1/18
Director — Xiao Dongsheng % 5 — ¥4 % & 2018/11/1 1,200,000.00 79,622.00 186,432.89  1,466,054.89
Director — Wang Jinsheng #E—F#E 20131015 2022/3/31 1,767,837.00 37,152.00 12428859 1,929,277.59
Director — Ow Weng EE—RKE 2018111 2022/3/31 413,634.00 550.00 12428859  538,472.59
Cheong
Independent Director — BUEF—JME 2019/8/8  2023/1/18  245,280.00 245,280.00
Guo Tianyong
Independent Director — BUEE—RE 2019/8/8  2021/528  100,221.94 100,221.94
Zhang Ye
Independent Director — BUEE—EREX 2019/8/8 245,280.00 245,280.00
Chung Wai Man
Independent Director — B EE— 2021/5/28 145,717.42 145,717.42
Zhao Yinglin
Supervisor — Lian Xianmin ~ £% — EE & 2019/916  2023/1/18 350,000.00 31,000.00 3107215 412,072.15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OCHEEMBRRMEE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEBAIRBEE®ERS (B)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(V) Related party transactions (Continued) (R BHRXZER(E)
4. Remuneration of key management personnel 4 - BREZENSFHMH(E)
(Continued)
(2) Five highest paid individuals (2) # B &= = A Bl T fiz
Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid B 1E2022F12A31H A& & ®
employees (including three Directors (2021: three)) i E (R #E3%EF(20214 ¢
as at 31 December 2022 are set out in note X (V) 3B WMEMFBR EXWFE+
above. The remuneration of the remaining two (2021: (F)° # 1£2022F12 A31H « H
two) non-Directors or key executives as at 31 M (20214 : 2B FFESHF E T
December 2022 is as follows: HWABWMEHMET :
2022 2021
2022F & 2021 &

Basic salary, housing subsidy and EXRTE FEMMUK

other subsidies H 7 BA 2,529,311.12 2,395,715.56
Bonus ##4
Pension plan contributions BEELEHER 71,208.00 111,456.00
Share-based payment Bt A 203,737.51 201,968.96
Total Af 2,804,256.63 2,709,140.52

Number of individual

AE

2022 2021

2022F F 2021 F [

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 75 ¥ 075-1,000,000 7T 1

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 7% 1,000,000 7C—1,500,000 7T 2 1
Save as disclosed above, no emoluments have been BREXHEEEN AEBF A
paid by the Group to any directors or the five highest EOENESFKAEEaHMET
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon XNEANME  FRREFEZSEALT
joining of the Group, or as compensation for loss of MBAEEIZEATMBELRE
office for the year. W REVRIERZZATBERMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BBRAIRBEXS (&)

WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(V) Related party transactions (Continued)

() ABXZER(E)

5. Other related party transactions

5 AtEHX S

Amount of the
current period

Amount of the
previous period

ltems 1HH P e e
Interest income: FILBHA
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. FEFMBEERAR

GBS AERAE]) 26,539,298.35 26,761,295.51
Interest expenses: FMESH :

Shandong Fengxiang (Group) Co., Ltd.

WREH(RE)EREETAF

(LERBEHFEER)BREEAT) 1,818,055.56 3,850,000.00
GMK Finance Co., Ltd. BT BER AR

(B BAERAR) 883,188.90
Acquisition of fixed assets: WHEE & E

Yanggu Xiangguang Copper Co., Ltd. BREXEEERA T

(SR HIMEFR LA 23,125,900.00

(VI)Receivables from and payables to related parties () BAHS 5 B W B {3 IE

1. Receivables from related parties 1 BEHE

Balance at the

Related parties end of the period Balance at the end of last year

Items HEEH )b BARERE FEFRBER
Bad debt Bad debt
Book balance provision Book balance provision
RESRE BERER BRE SR ER BERER
Other receivable H At g ik Liaocheng Aode Energy
Co., Ltd. (Wi RiZae
RERAR) 1,500,000.00 22,500.00

B REeRERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEIREBXS (E)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(VI)Receivables from and payables to related parties (R) BAEE 75 FE W B 1 SR 7B (48)
(Continued)
2. Payables to related parties 2 EffEH
Book balance at Book balance at
the end of the the end of
Related parties period last year
Items EHEEW B HRIEMERE LCFFRKRMEATE
Trade payable &< BR 3% Liaocheng Aode Energy Co., Ltd. 8,659.75

P RIEEIRER A A

(Vll) Commitment of related parties (t) BAHE 5 AR

Nil i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTION T BEBAIRBEE®ERS (B)
WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(Vlll) Centralised management of funds N EEEHREE
1. Funds of the Company deposited into the 1- XLAFEZEENER
Group
Funds deposited directly into the finance company KRB ARGEZEBERNFIRFM
by the Company without being deposited into the BEREGANBEAGNE D

parent account of the Group

Balance at the

end of the period Balance at the end of last year
HREBE FEFERGBHE
Bad debt Bad debt
Book balance provision Book balance provision
Items HH S8 IREEAEE BIREE IRE R EE BIRAEE
Monetary funds EHEe 808,234,759.31  808,234,759.31  1,041,438,054.10
Total B 808,234,759.31  808,234,759.31  1,041,438,054.10
Including: Funds restricted Hep: AE2EF
due to centralised fund EEREH
management XBROHES 808,234,759.31  808,234,759.31
2. Funds borrowed by the Company from the 2 XRAIREEFAAGEKEENIF
Group’s parent company or members EHEZ
Balance at Balance at
the end of the the end of
period last year
Items BHHEW HREAEE L FEFERBREE
Long-term borrowings REER 200,000,000.00
Total A5 200,000,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

—CHEEMBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

Xl. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

U]

(I

Share-based payment

Total amount of equity instrument granted by the Company for
the period: RMBO0.00.

Total amount of equity instrument exercised by the Company
for the period: RMB1,143,074.15.

The total amount of various equity instruments lapsed in the
current period: RMB0.00.

Range of exercise prices and contractual remaining period for
share options issued by the Company at the end of the period:

Exercise prices for share options:RMB 0.00

Remaining period for the first phase share-based payment
contract : 6 months

Remaining period for the second phase share-based payment
contract : 28 months

Equity-settled share-based payment

Recognition method for fair value of equity instrument on the
date of grant: The price to buy back the shares of the
Company.

Recognition method for best estimation of the amount of
exercisable equity instrument: shall be exercisable by the
grantee on the date of within the prescribed service period, so
the best estimation of the amount of exercisable equity
instrument is all exercisable.

Reason for significant difference between estimate of the
period and previous period: N/A.

Accumulative amount in capital reserve of equity-settled
share-based payment: RMB13,317,134.09.

Total amount of equity-settled share-based payment
recognised for the period: RMB6,947,343.69.
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Xl. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

() Equity-settled share-based payment

2020 Share Award Scheme: As considered and approved at
general meeting of the Company on 4 June 2020, the
Company adopted the share award scheme from 26 June
2020. Pursuant to the share award scheme, the Board of the
Company is authorised to grant the shares of the Company to
18 senior management members and other employees for nil
consideration. Shares repurchased are granted to rewarded
employees in four phases, in which 40% of the total amount
was granted on 30 September 2020 (first phase), 20% of the
total amount was granted on 30 June 2021 (second phase),
20% of the total amount will be granted on 30 June 2022 (third
phase) and 20% of the total amount will be granted on 30
June 2023 (fourth phase).

2021 Share Award Scheme: As considered and approved at
general meeting of the Company on 4 June 2020, the
Company adopted the share award scheme from 10
December 2021. Pursuant to the share award scheme, the
Company is proposed to repurchase 26,097,600 H shares,
23,487,800 H shares would be granted to 63 employees in 3
batches, in which one third of the total amount will be granted
on 30 April 2023 (first phase), one third of the total amount will
be granted on 30 April 2024 (second phase), one third of the
total amount will be granted on 30 April 2025 (third phase).
The 2,609,800 H shares would be reserved for granting to
newly recruited senior marketing staff, senior marketing de-
partment management, and core R&D staff.

One share option shall entitle the grantee to subscribe 1
ordinary share of the Company.

(Ill) Cash-settled share-based payments

Nil

(IV)Modification and termination of share-based

payments

Nil

SHANDONG FENGXIANG CO., LTD. ILRBE# KRB ERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
OZZHFEHKBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OCHEEMBRRMEE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 457k £ BASN © £ EE T AAREIT)

XILI. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES T ERBERIEEE
() Significant commitments (-) EEA®ESERE
No significant commitments are required to be disclosed AEEFEHENETENEAESE -

during the period.
() Contingencies (Z) HESHE

No significant contingencies are required to be disclosed AHEFERENEENNEEFIE -
during the period.

XII.LEVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF BALANCE T EESERHREE
SHEET
() Significant Non-adjustment Items (-) EEMNFRAESE
Trading of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been N RS L IR A 15% 0 A & B 202342
suspended from 2 February 2023 since the percentage of A2BUEBARMIMEERRS  BRESSH
public float fell below 15%. According to the Listing Rules of RECEMAAD  EMARIMREEFE18
the Stock Exchange, a listed company may face the risk of &l A - 7] 82T R bR 8 89 R B o

delisting after being suspended for 18 consecutive months.

(I) Explanation of Other Events after the Balance (D) HttEEEBERBRSEHIHA

Sheet Date

Nil s

XIV.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT TR ERER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEXREERNTEZEAGTABRALABRIN
ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital EETRMEBRNERA T RUIRBEEBEREX
ratios in order to support it business and maximize shareholders’ TREBEE REEABXRAKAENARG &
value. The adjusted debt/capital ratios as at the balance sheet date KRR -

are as follows:

Balance at the Balance at the
end of the period end of last year

R ERHE EEFEERGRE

Total borrowings BEBE 1,489,134,292.39  2,460,869,223.43
Owners’ equity FiBE&ERED 2,611,974,652.88  3,400,161,700.75
Adjusted debt/capital ratios KAENBE BEARLX 57.01% 72.38%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
——EEMBWRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k 7 83 51 -

XV. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

() Auditor’s remuneration

EEEMIR/ARET)

tHhEMEESR

(=) % B8 M % BA

Amount of the
previous period

Amount of the
current period

Item 5B THLHE FHeR

Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 R % B 2,150,000.00 2,300,000.00
(I) Segment information (2) 2 BER

1. Basis for determining reporting segments 1 HEDBHWEEMBEHE T HE

and accounting policies

Each of the Company’s reporting segments provides
different products or services or engages in operating
activities in different geographic areas. As each segment
requires different technologies or market strategies, the
Company’s management separately manages the
operating activities of each reporting segment and
regularly evaluates the operating results of these reporting
segments to determine the allocation of resources and to
evaluate their performance.

Intersegment transfer prices are determined on the basis
of actual transaction prices. Expenses indirectly
attributable to each segment are allocated between
segments in proportion to revenue. Assets are allocated
based on the operations of the segment and the location
of the assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
attributable to the segment arising from its operating
activities. If expenses related to liabilities shared by
multiple operating segments are allocated to those
operating segments, the jointly assumed liabilities are
also allocated to these operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OCHEEMBRRMEE

SHREMIR/ARET)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

XV. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

(II) Segment information (Continued)

2. Financial information of the reporting

tEHMERER(E)

(2)

i)

BEE

2 MEDEBHBEER

segments
Processed
Raw chicken chicken meat
meat products products Chicken breeds Other Elimination Total

Items EH fREAHEL ANMIEAHEE BE Hitr DBEEH %
Revenue from external HHZHWA

transactions 2,500,558,599.75 2,371,086,929.83  53,619,103.49  160,525,451.22 5,085,790,084.29
Revenue from inter-segment 5 & 5 WA

transactions 4,286,286,843.79  213,027,589.28 30,615,843.40 -4,529,930,276.47
Income on investments in HBRLEMALLEN

associates and joint ventures & B Ui -3,229,692.59 -3,229,692.59
Credit impairment loss ERRERRE -398,679,328.07 -378,036,869.07  -8,548,821.11  -25593,552.99 -810,858,571.24
Asset impairment loss EERELRL -3,920,845.18 -16,076.73 -3,936,921.91
Depreciation and amortisation 17 & &M & i &

expense 128,483,721.65  121,831,207.29 2,755,057.20 8,248,120.00 261,318,106.13
Total profit (total loss) FIE@E (BREE) 53007404220 8445773811 -33478340.84 27825188471  -1010,62551 -768,257,155.15
Income tax expenses FIERER -28,719.61 800,205.73 771,486.12
Net profit (net loss) FHHEER) 53007404220 8448645772 -33478340.84 -279,052,09044  -1010,62551 -769,028,641.27
Total assets EEQAT 3,968,067,810.01 3,762,612,770.57  85,086,683.66  254,733,432.66 -2,842,166,728.37 5,228,333,968.53
Total liabilities BEAT 2,104,308,596.73 1,995,353,602.40  45,122,374.03  135,087,850.78 -1,663,513,108.29 2,616,359,315.65
Other important non-cash items = i & Z#)3F 8 ¢ 8

B

Non-cash expenses other than ~ #7 & & 1§ & LA 5h

depreciation and amortisation ~ #3F¥ 4 &

expense
Long-term equity investments in %} B & 1 & 4 b Z 1)

associates and joint ventures R EARERE 59,841,234.64 59,841,234.64
The amounts of increase of RERERE I

non-current assets other than ~ JF 7 89 & & 12 N 58

long-term equity investments 38,528,556.60 36,533,659.72 826,162.07 2,491,864.62 78,380,243.01
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IWEBARMERRTERAEE
THE COMPANY

() Bills receivables (-) ERREE
1. Category of bills receivable 1- BREEZESES T
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end
the period of last year
Item 15 B HREREE FFEFRBRE
Bank acceptances HITERNES 100,000,000.00 340,000,000.00
Commercial acceptances HEAHES 102,000,000.00
Total B 100,000,000.00  442,000,000.00
2. Endorsed or discounted notes receivable that 2 - AR AEEERHBEAHEEES
are not mature on balance sheet date at the EXRH KRB ERE
end of the period
Amount not
derecognized at
the end of
the period
HIR R &R 1E
Item BHR ERE 5
Bank acceptances RITHERESE 100,000,000.00
Total =1 100,000,000.00
(1) Trade receivable () BWERR
1. Disclosure of trade receivable by aging 1- EWRRF R HE
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end
the period of last year
Aging BR R HREEE FEFRHE
Less than 1 year 1F AR 861,890,833.16 535,573,320.38
1to 2 years 15224
2 to 3 years 2 3F
3 to 4 years 3E44F
4 to 5 years 4E5F
Over 5 years 54
Subtotal NET 861,890,833.16  535,573,320.38
Less: Bad debt provision o R YEE 122,173.66
Total AEf 861,768,659.50  535,573,320.38
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

INEBARMBHRRTIEEBER(E)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(Il) Trade receivable (Continued)

2. Disclosure of trade receivable by bad debt
provision method

Balance at the end of the period

“OZZFEMBHRKRHE

SHREMIR/ARET)

(Z) B AR ()

2 BRRANZBEIRIEL ZD BHE

Balance at the end of last year

ARBE TEFRBE
Book balance Bad debt provision Book balance Bad debt provision
RESE BRER BEHE BERER
Provision Provision
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount percentage(%)  Book value Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  percentage(%) Book value
4] 1]
Category g5l k2] (%) &8 HREA%) EEEE ka2 (%) S FRLAI) FEEER
Bad debt provision made on an individual basis REBFRABEE 64,680.00 0.01 64,680.00 100.00
Including: A
Yanggu Xiangqi Biomass Power Generation Co, Lid. ~ BREEFLNELE 64,680.00 0.01 64,680.00 100.00
BRAR
Bad debt provision made on a collective basis REAEEEER 861,826,153.16 9999 57,493.66 001 861768,659.50 53557332038 100.00 535,573,320.38
Including: A
Aging group BRiA 11,498,731.59 133 5749366 050 11,441,237.93
Related parties in the scope Emras 850,327,421.57 98.66 850,327,42157  535,573,320.38 535,573,320.38
Total At 861,890,833.16 10000 12217366 861,768,650.50  535,573,320.38 10000 535,573,320.38
Bad debt provision made on a collective basis: WG I ERR L -
Group provision items: Aging group HEeFtRER - REcES
Balance at the end of the current period
HR&AER
Trade Bad debt Provision
receivable provision percentage
Name £ FE U BR X HREE 5T 12 b 65 (%)
Less than 1 month 118 A AR 11,498,731.59 57,493.66 0.50
1 to 3 months 1-31& A
3 months to 1 year 3 A-1F
Over 1 year 1F A +
Total &5t 11,498,731.59 57,493.66
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WEARBERRTIEEAZERE(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(1) Trade receivable (Continued) () BWERR (&)
3. Provision for bad debts made, reversed or 3 AEF#2 - B[O O] By AR EE
recovered for the current period 18X

Changes in amount for the current period

REE g R

Balance at Balance at

the end of Recovered or Resold or the end of

last year Provision reversed written off the period

Category Al FEFRGBE MR WEsER EES HREREE

On an individual basis & B &t 12 64,680.00 64,680.00

Aging group BRI E 57,493.66 57,493.66

Total &5t 122,173.66 122,173.66

(1) Other receivable () H bW R

Balance at Balance at

the end of the end of

the period last year

ltems 15 H HREREE EFFEFRBE
Interest receivable JE U FI) B
Dividend receivable JE U 3R )

Other receivable H ) & W 518 13,254,134.80 9,705,069.18

Total &t 13,254,134.80 9,705,069.18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

INEBARMBHRRTIEEBER(E)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

(Ill) Other receivable (Continued)

(Z) W (8)

SHREMIR/ARET)

1. Other receivable 1- EfEWSE
(1) Disclosure by aging (1) 1ZARH 1 58
Balance at Balance at
the end of the end of
the period last year
Aging BR 2 MREAEE TFFRGBE
Less than 1 year 1FEAR 4,889,331.35 7,682,501.77
1to 2 years 1224 7,000,000.00 80,000.00
2to 3 years 2534 80,000.00
3 to 4 years 3E4F
4 to 5 years 4E5F
Over 5 years 5% Ak 2,587,679.27 2,587,679.27
Subtotal NEE 14,557,010.62 10,350,181.04
Less: bad debt provision o R YES 1,302,875.82 645,111.86
Total a5t 13,254,134.80 9,705,069.18
(2) Disclosure by bad debt provision method (2) TLEBRETIEN L 7R EE
Balance at the end of the period Balance at the end of last year
BRHE LEERBE
Book balance Bad debt provision Book balance Bad debt provision
FESE LR BEHE SHEE
Provision Provision
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount percentage(%)  Book value Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  percentage(%) Book value
t Al 1]
Category 5l ¢8 (%) S8 HELA) RAEE £ (%) SE  FHRLAI%) FEEE
Bad debt provision made on an individual basis REBIRREER
Bad debt provision made on a collective basis REATRIEER 14,557,010.62 10000 1,302,875.82 8.95 13,254,134.80  10,350,181.04 10000 645,111.86 623 9705,069.18
Including: He:
Aging analysis group BEAITES 14,557,010.62 10000 1,302,875.82 8.95 1325413480  10,350,181.04 10000 645,111.86 623 9,705,069.18
Total a3t 14,557,010.62 10000  1,302,875.82 13,254,134.80  10,350,181.04 10000 64511186 9,705,069.18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REARBERRTIEEAZERE(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

() Other receivable (Continued) (Z) Efb e K (48)

1. Other receivable (Continued) 1- EfEWE(E)

(2) Disclosure by bad debt provision method (2) BERETIE T A M1 E (B)

(Continued)

318

Bad debt provision made on a collective basis:

Group provision items: Aging group

BB IRERER

MAEFHRER  REKESR

Balance at the end of the period

HREREE
Other Bad debt Provision
receivables provision percentage(%)
Name =x H 1 FE WK E RERER 5T 12 e Bl (%)
Less than 1 year 1F AR 4,889,331.35 73,339.97 1.50
1to 2 years 15224 7,000,000.00 700,000.00 10.00
2 to 3 years 2E3F 80,000.00 12,000.00 15.00
3 to 4 years 3FE4F
4 to 5 years 4E5F
Over 5 years 54 A E 2,587,679.27 517,535.85 20.00
Total A&t 14,557,010.62 1,302,875.82
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

THE COMPANY (Continued)

(Ill) Other receivable (Continued)

1.

Other receivable (Continued)

(3) Provision for bad debts

—CHEEMBRRME

SHREMIR/ARET)

INEBARMBHRRTIEEBER(E)

(Z) W R ()
1 EttEKNIE (E)
(3) ZHREmatielE R

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
F-RR EZRR E-RR
Expected credit Lifetime expected
losses in Lifetime expected credit losses
the next credit losses (credit impairment
12 months  (no credit impairment) has occurred) Total
BEFEDES BEFEDES
AR1218 A EREX EREX
Provision for bad debts BEER BEERAX (RBEERARE) (BRESARE) &t
Balance at the end of last year +FEKHE 645,111.86 645,111.86
Balance at the end of last year ~ F & & R E £ A H)
that transfers/reverses at the
current period
— Transfer to phase 2 —BAE-RE
— Transfer to phase 3 —BAE=RR
— Reverse to phase 2 —HEOE R
— Reverse to phase 1 —BEE—
Provision for the current period 7% Ei £t 2 672,339.97 672,339.97
Reversal at the current period 7K H#2 g
Resell at the current period AEEH -14,576.01 -14,576.01
Written off at the current period 7% £ 4% 84
Other changes Hin &g
Balance at the end of the period 7 % %8 1,302,875.82 1,302,875.82
The movements of the book balance for other b W GRIERERBEEEHNT
receivables are as follows:
Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
F-Ka FRR F=RR
Expected credit Lifetime expected
losses in Lifetime expected credit losses
the next credit losses (credit impairment
12 months (no credit impairment) has occurred) Total
BEFESES BEFESES
AR1218 A EREX EREX
Book balance RESE REERAX (RBEERREE) (BRESARE) G
Balance at the end of last year % % K 4 10,350,181.04 10,350,181.04
Balance at the end of last year ~ F & & R FEE A H]
that transfers/reverses at the
current period
— Transfer to phase 2 —BAEZ[EE
— Transfer to phase 3 —BAF= ﬁ%
— Reverse to phase 2 —BpE £ “ER
— Reverse to phase 1 —HELOE AR
Addition for the current period 7% £ 7 1% 4,889,331.35 4,889,331.35
Derecognised at the current KB IERER
period -682,501.77 -682,501.77
Other changes Hin#g)
Balance at the end of the period 7K % %8 14,557,010.62 14,557,010.62

Annual Report 2022 F 2§

319



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“O-ZHEEMBHMRE
(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REARBERRTIEEAZERE(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

() Other receivable (Continued) (Z) Efb e K (48)
1. Other receivable (Continued) 1- EfEWE(E)
(4) Provision for bad debts made, reversed or (4) KE5H#E - 82 [0] 36 4g [B] 7Y 52 AR 2
recovered in the current period A=
Balance at the
Changes in amount for the current period end of the period
TEEBeHE HREAE
Balance at the Recovered or Resold or
end of last year Provision reversed written off
Category 5l FEFERBE iR Yy (o] 5 ¥ [l 1 55 o % 8
Aging analysis group RS 645,111.86 672,339.97 -14,576.01 1,302,875.82
Total S 645,111.86 672,339.97 -14,576.01 1,302,875.82
(5) Classification of receivables by nature (5) A EINE S IR
Book balance Book balance
at the end of at the end of
the period last year
Nature MEHE HAREEERE  LFFREKHE
Deposits and guarantees HekRES 14,417,679.27 9,378,447.52
Withholding payments KRR BK 1,075.35 877,050.80
Imprest fund ERe 94,682.72
Others HAh 138,256
Sub-total NET 14,557,010.62 10,350,181.04
Less: Bad debt provision AR 1,302,875.82 645,111.86
Total CEn 13,254,134.80 9,705,069.18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (B 7%t » £ EEEMHTBARBIT)

INEBARMBHRRTIEEBER(E)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(IV) Long-term Equity Investments

() RERERE

Balance at the end of the period

Balance at the end of last year

MR ERE LFEERBE
Provision for Provision for
Book balance impairment Book value Book balance impairment Book value
Items ER REHE HEER REEE RHHE HEERE REEE
Investment in subsidiaries HYRARE 1,233,148,356.88 93,623,000.00 1,139,525,356.88 1,069,291,337.31 93,623,000.00  975,668,337.31
Investment in associates and ¥ & - A2
joint ventures RE 59,841,234.64 59,841,234.64  63,069,900.18 63,069,900.18
Total Eh 1,292,989,591.52 93,623,000.00 1,199,366,591.52 1,132,361,237.49  93,623,000.00 1,038,738,237.49
1. Investment in subsidiaries 1- $HFRARE
Provision for
Decreases Balance at  impairment Closing balance
Balance at the Increases at  at current theend of  atcurrent of provision
end of lastyear  current period period the period period impairment
KRR HEEE
Investees RREEN TEERBE REEM  KEES MARRE HEER HRBE
Shandong Fengxiang Industrial I EBHEEEERE A
Co., Lid. (LREHEXER
AA)) 583,338,301.47 562,231.83 583,900,533.30 57,051,078.44
Shandong Fengxiang Food LEBERGERERAA
Development Co., Ltd.
(LREHRRERERAR) 375,579,646.39  3,186,035.22 378,765,681.61 36,571,921.56
Shandong iShape Food LREFRABEERAR
Technology Co., Ltd.*
(LREFREMEARAT) 13,549,204.50  160,081,564.39 173,630,768.89
Fengxiang Foods (Japan) Co., ElER Rkt &4t
Ltd. (B2 @) 3,201,184.95 27,188.13 3,228,373.08
Total B3t 975,668,337.31 163,857,019.57 1,139,525,356.88 93,623,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
TOZZHFEEMBBRRHE

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (K 52k £ B35+ ©EE 9 A ARE L)

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REARBERRTIEEAZERE(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(IV) Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (M) REAKRERE (B)

2. Investment in associates and joint ventures 2 - HfE SETL¥ERE

Increase/decrease at current period

THERZESY
Gains or losses
oninvestments Other
recognised  comprehensive Declaration of Balance at  Closing balance
Balance at the Additional  Reduction of under the equity income  Other changes  cash dividends  Provision for the end of of provision
end of last year investment investment method adjustment ininterest or profits impairment  Miscellaneous the period impairment
=3 BRETET e it SEENERS it AEERE
Investees REREEN ERGE BRE RORE  HREER BERE BE2Y  RFEAE HEER £t BRBE BRBE
Associates BEtE
Yanggu Xiangyu Biological Technology BREFLNHE
Co., Ltd. (BEERENREERAR) BRAE 63,069,900.18 -3,228,665.54 59,841,234.64
63,069,900.18 -3,228,665.54 50,841,234.64
Total ait 63,069,900.18 -3,208,665.54 59,841,234.64
(V) Operating revenue and operating costs () W AMEXEEAE
1. Operating revenue and operating costs 1 EEXWRAFEZREXEL
Amount of the current period Amount of the previous period
rHEHE e
Revenue Costs Revenue Costs
Items 1B B WA 5% A B AR
Main business TEER 3,255,756,407.51 3,091,146,988.10 2,606,459,276.26 2,420,534,107.96
Other businesses H i % 7% 4,449,855.98 2,468,417.67 3,606,716.76 2,183,344.18
Total AEf 3,260,206,263.49 3,093,615,405.77 2,610,065,993.02 2,422,717,452.14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
“OZZHFEVBBRRME
SBEMNHAEAREIT)

INEBARMBHRRTIEEBER(E)

(Amounts are expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated) (% 45 %k =£ 83 5 -

XVLNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

(V) Operating revenue and operating costs (Continued)

1. Operating revenue and operating costs 1

The breakdown of operating revenue:

i N

Amount of the
current period

(B) @B AMERERE(E)

ERRANEXZRLBER

Amount of the
previous period

Items EHA TS LHe®E
Main business: FEER 3,255,756,407.51  2,606,459,276.26
Sales of goods HEM M 3,255,756,407.51  2,606,459,276.26
Other businesses: H A 27 4,449,855.98 3,606,716.76
Revenue from by-products Bl E M A 387,927.52 741,145.95
Revenue from waste materials BEEWE WA 1,305,961.70 1,275,787.78
Services income AR 75 A 2,551,272.16 430,130.79
Revenue from sale of materials MRS WA 20,293.58 392,750.09
Others Hity 184,401.02 766,902.15
Total A& 3,260,206,263.49 2,610,065,993.02
(VI)Investment Income (R) BRE W=
Amount of the Amount of the
current period previous period
Items 1HH KBS HE LHe®E
Gain from long-term equity investments B ARENRARERE RS
accounted for using the equity method -3,228,665.54 -1,741,065.89
Investment income from disposal of REERABREREELENRERS
longterm equity investment -8,990,000.00
Interests of discounted bills that can be AR R EIRAL B
derecognized -7,911,749.02
Handle fees for hedging instruments ERTEFESE -4,761.00
Total &5t -11,140,414.56 -10,735,826.89

Shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd.
(Company seal affixed)
30 March 2023

WREHKRGERAF
(MEaRE)

ZOZ=%=R=+H
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBHE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group TEREBINAEER BT AEMNKREZ 22 P18 %
for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set out herein, EH - EERAEME ZSEHEBRAFRAHFEE
is set out below: e

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 F 20214 2020 F 2019 20184

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREBTIT ARBTET

Results ES
Revenue A 5,085,790 4,416,764 3,901,615 3,926,217 3,197,099
Gross profit (before biological EFMREMEE
assets fair value adjustments) AR EEFHEN)
(Note 1) (Htaz1) 583,497 557,939 603,246 1,221,460 461,947
Profit (loss) for the year (after FEE A (EE)
biological assets fair value (REMEEAREBE
adjustments) (Note 2) AR (Mit2) (76,029) 47,075 151,615 837,381 136,611
Gross profit margin (%) EMEQR)(REMEE
(before biological assets AR EEFHER)
fair value adjustments)
11.5 12.6 15.5 311 14.4
Net profit (loss) margin (%) HEF (B 18) % (%) (15.1) 1.1 3.9 21.3 4.3
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BERE 5,228,334 6,931,052 5,777,550 4,431,048 3,919,498
Total liabilities =Rk 2,616,359 3,531,440 2,390,015 2,167,408 2,493,303
Total equity B 2,611,975 3,399,612 3,387,535 2,263,640 1,426,195
Note 1: According to the regulations of the Q&A on the Implementation of the Batt1: REBEFPRPRFERAITHRAEBEHEEZAR
New Criteria of Revenue issued by Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the E o ARFNITHMAER B2020F1A1B R A
Company’s implementation of the new revenue criteria from 1 January BOIEPHEEARMEENERK AL L EKAK]
2020 presented the transportation costs incurred for the fulfilment of FHR - 2020F EE202FEEERAF RS ESH
customer sales contracts in the “operating costs”. Transportation costs A 2018 [ R2019FEE XX AP AR SER
were included in the operating costs for the years ended 31 December XA o

2020 to 2022, and were not included in the operating costs for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019.

Note 2: Net profit after deducting monetary fund receivables bad debt loss B aE2 - 05 B i 52 WOHT BLAE BT 75 2 Rl 2 15 3 — IR &
arising from the recognition of a one-off and non-recurring impairment EBEERBEEEMEEANEEESIERIEBLRBNF
loss on the deposits due from GMK Finance amounted to RMB39,206 FE A AR 39,206 F 7T ©
thousand.
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shandong Fengxiang Co., Ltd.
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